
City of Berwyn 
City Council Meeting 

August 26, 2008 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

AUGUST 26, 2008 

DEAR ATTENDEK,.,.THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL WELCOME YOU. PLEASE KEEP IN MIND THAT THIS IS A 
MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS AS OPPOSED TO A PUBLIC HEARING WHERE ATTENDEES ARE 
ENCOURAGED TO P ARTlCIP ATE, UNLESS INVITED BY THE MAYOR TO SPEAK, YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO 
INTERRUPT IF YOU ARE RECOGNIZED BY THE MAYOR, PLEASE PREFACE YOUR REMARKS BY STATING YOUR 
NAME AND ADDRESS FOR THE RECORD, THANK YOU 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR 
MAYOR 

ROLLCALL 
AGENDA 

(A) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - MOMENT OF SILENCE 
(B) OPEN FORUM - (TOPIC MUST NOT BE ON THE AGENDA) 

THOMAS 1. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

(C) PRESENTATION OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS MINUTES FOR APPROVAL 

1. REG MTG-8/12/08-COW 8/12108 
(D) BID OPENING - TABULATIONS 

(E) BERWYN DEVELOPMENT CORP.-BERWYN TOWNSHIPIHEALTH DISTRlCT 
L BDC-(3) ORDINANCES-DEPOT DIST, TIF AMENDMENT 
2. BDC-MUNICIPAL PARKING DECK 
3. BDC-HARLEM METRA STATION AGREEMENT 
4. TIF APPLICATION-NICHOLAS & ANGELA DIBRlZZI, 7005 ROOSEVELT RD 

(F) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

L DEFER-PROPOSED REFERENDUM-ALDERMAN ERlCKSON 
2. PROPOSED NON-PARTISAN REFERENDUM QUESTION FOR 11/4/08 BALLOT 
3 ZONING HEARING FOR DEPOT PARKING GARAGE 
4. MRA CONTRACT AMENDMENT 
5. DAMAGE TO CLAM TRUCK 
6. BUSINESS LICENSE INSPECTOR 
7. REMOVE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE REFERRALS 
8. TREE TRlMMING 
9. GRIEVANCE FILED BY PUBLIC WORKS UNlON 

(G) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE CITY CLERK 
L EARLY VOTING 

(H) COMMUNICATIONS FROM (ZONING) BOARD OF APPEALS 
L ZBA-RESOLIORD-CITY OF BERWYN 1310 GROVE A VE-MUNICIP AL GARAGE 

(1) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM ALDERMEN, COMMITTEES OTHER BOARDS 
AND COMMISSIONS 
L CHAPMAN-LIBRARY BD APPOINTMENTS 
2. RAMOS-PEDESTRlAN SAFETY IN CROSSWALKS 



3. WEINER-STREET SWEEPING AUGUST 26, 2008 MEETING 
4. SKRYD-BASEBALL ALLEY NETTING 

(J) STAFF REPORTS 
I. DEFER-LAW DEPT-JOB DESCRIPTION RESOLUTIONS 
2. LAW DEPT-CASE #08 C 897 (U.S. DIST CT FOR THE NORTHERN DIST OF IL) 
3. LAW DEPT-TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDINANCES 
4. BLDG DIR-METRA'S REQUEST TO WANE PERMIT FEE 
5. LIBRARY DIR-STAFF REPLACEMENTS 
6. PW DIR-COST FOR CONTRACTUAL TRIMMING OF "TRIM-LIST" TREES 

(K) CONSENT AGENDA: ALt ITEMS ON THE CONSENT AGENDA ARECONSIOERED TO BE ROUTINE lNNAI1JREANO 
WILL BE ENACTED IN ONE MOTION. THERE WILL BE NO SEPARATE DISCUSSION OF THESE lTI:.MS UNLESS A COUNCIL MEMBER SO 
REQUESTS. IN WHICH EVENT THE ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND CONSIDERED AS TIlE FIRST ITEM AFfER 
APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 

I. BUDGET CHAIRMAN-P A YROLL-S/20/0S-$946,945.53 
2. BUDGET CHIRMAN-PAY ABLES-S126/0S-$1,067,53422 
3. CHAPMAN-HANDICAP SIGN REQ-S. KLEMCHUK-7014 W. 34TH ST. -APPROVE 
4. RAMOS-HANDICAP SIGN REQ-L CHA VEZ-3736 LOMBARD-DENY 
5. WEINER-HANDICAP SIGN REQ-T.POWELL-6S30 W. 26TH ST.-APPROVE 
6. WEINER-HANDICAP SIGN REQ-D. MANTIS-6943 W. 30TH PL-APPROVE 
7. SKRYD-HANDICAP SIGN REQ-R. GILBERT, JR-2812 HIGHLAND-APPROVE 
S. PHELAN- HANDICAP SIGN REQ-M. CAPILUPO-1531 SCOVILLE-APPROVE 
9. GIRL SCOUTS OF GREATER-CHGO & NW INDIANA-SOLICIT -10/1108-3/1109 
10. KNIGHTS OF COLUMBUS-TOOTSIE ROLL DR.9/19, 9/20, & 9/21108 
II. FITZERALD'S NIGHT CLUB-("DOG DAY JAMBOREE!) S/22/08-PERMISSION 

GRANTED BY THE MAYOR 
12. CICERO CHAMBER OF COMMERCE-HOUBY FESTIV AL-1O/3-1 0/5/08 
13.. BLOCK P ARTY·3100 MAPLE-9/6/08 
14. BLOCK P ARTY-2S00 WENONAH-8131108 
15. CIGARS & STRIPS-OPEN MIC COMEDY SHOW-9/4/0S 

ITEM SUBMITTED ON TIME 41 

In accordance with the provisions of the Americilns with disabilities Act, nny individual who is in the need of a reasonable accommodation in order to participate in or 
benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the City of Berwyn should contact Thomas J Pavlik, City Clerk at 7081788~2660 as soon as possible before the 



AGENDA 
ADDENDUM 

BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 
AUGUST 26, 2008 

(F) COMMUNICATION FROM THE MAYOR 

10. RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE COOK COUNTY INTEROPERABLE 
COMMUNICATION SYSTEM 



Sections A & B 

Pledge of Allegiance-Moment of Silence 

Open Forum 
Topic must NOT be on the Agenda 

Open space for comments or ideas. 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Item(s) 

ROLL CALL 
A Pledge of Allegiance -Moment of Silence 

B. Open Forum 
Topic must NOT be on the Agenda 

C Presentation of Previous Meeting Minutes for Approval 
I.. Minutes of Regular Meeting - 8112/08 
2. Minutes of Committee of the Whole - 8/12/08 

D Bid Opening - Tabulations 

E.. Berwyn Development Corp - Berwyn Township/Health District 

Pages 

1- 7 
1- 4 

I BDC-(3) Ordinances-Depot District TIP Amendment- Also 1- 46 
See EXHIBITS For Depot District TIF Amendments 

2.. BDC-Municipal Parking Deck 1- 3 
3. BDC-Harlem Meta Station Agreement 1- 4 
4. TIF Application-Nicholas & Angela Dibrizzi-7005 Roosevelt Rd. 1- I 

F. Reports and Communications from the Mayor 
I. Defer-Proposed Referendum-Alderman Erickson 1- 2 
2. Proposed Non-Partisan Referendum-Question for 1114/08 Ballot 1- II 
3. Zoning Hearing for Depot Parking Garage 1- 2 
4. MRA Contract Amendment 1- 3 
5. Damage to Clam Truck 1- 9 
6. Business License Inspector 1- 2 
7 Remove Committee of the Whole Referrals 1- 1 
8. TreeTrimming 1-6 
9. Grievance Filed by Public Works Union 1- 1 
10. Resolution Accepting the Cook County Interoperable Communication 

System 1- 1 

G. Reports and Communications from the City Clerk 
I. Early Voting 1- 2 

H Communications from (Zoning) Board of Appeals 
I ZBA-ResoIiOrd-City of Berwyn 3310 Grove Ave-Municipal Garage 1- 7 

I. Reports and Communications from Aldermen, Committees, other Boards and Commissions 
1 Chapman-Library Board Appointments 1- 1 
2. Ramos Pedestrian Safety in Crosswalks 1- 1 
3.. Weiner-Street Sweeping August 26, 2008 Meeting 1- 2 
4. Skryd-Baseball Alley Netting 1- 7 

August 26. 2008 



TABLE OF CONTENTS (continued) 

J STAFF REPORTS 

I. Defer-Law Dept-Job Description Resolutions 1- 4S 
2. Law Dept-Case #OS C S97 (US District Ct for the Northern Dist ofIL) 1- I 
3. Law Dept-Traffic Regulation Ordinances 1- II 
4.. Building Director-Metra's Request to Waive Permit Fee 1- 6 
5.. Library Director-Staff Replacements 1- 5 
6. P .. W. Dir-Cost for Contractual Trimming of "Trim-List" Trees 1- I 

K Consent Agenda 

I Budget Chairman-Payroll-S/20/0S-$946,945 53 1- I 
2. Budget Chairman-Payables-S/26/0S-$1 ,067,534.22 1- 19 
3. Chapman-Handicap Sign Req .. -S. Klemchuk-7014 W. 34'h SI. Approve 1- 5 
4 Ramos-Handicap Sign Req-L Chavez-37336 Lombard-Deny 1- 5 
5. Weiner-Handicap Sign Req.-T. Powell-6S30 W. 26'h St.-Approve 1- 5 
6. Weiner-Handicap Sign Req.-D Mantis-6943 W 30'h PL-Approve. 1- 5 
7. Skryd-Handicap Sign Req.-R. Gilbert, Jr.-2S12 Highland-Approve 1-7 
S Phelan-Handicap Sign Req.-M. Capilupo-153I Scoville-Approve 1- 5 
9 Girl Scouts of Greater-Chicago & NW Indiana-Sloicit-I 0/1/0S&3/1/09 1- 2 
10 .. Knights of Columbus-Tootsie Roll Drive-9/J 9, 9/20, & 9/21/0S 1- I 
II. Fitzgerald"s Night Club -"Dog Day Jamboree! -S/22/0S-Permission 

Granted by the Mayor 1- 2 
12 Cicero Chamber of Commerce - Houby Festival-IO/3 - 10/5/0S 1- 2 
13 .. Block Party-31 00 Maple - 9/6/0S 1- 2 
14 .. Block Party-2S00 Wenonah-S/21/0S 1- 2 
IS. Cigars & Sl1ipes-Open Mic Comedy Show - 9/4/0S 1- I 

August 26, 2008 



Section C 

Presentation of Previous 

Meeting Minutes For 
Approval 



~; ~ICHAEL A. O'CONNOR 
MAYOR 

THOMAS l. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

MINUTES 
BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

AUGUST 12, 2008 

1. The Berwyn City Council was called to order by Mayor O'Connor at S:20 
p.m. Upon the call of the roll, the following responded present: Chapman, 
Ramos, Weiner, Day, Phelan, Lovero, Erickson. Absent: Skryd. Thereafter, 
Chapman made a motion, seconded by Ramos, to excuse Alderman Skryd. 
The motion carried by a voice vote. 

2. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited and a moment of silence was observed 
for the safety of our armed forces, pOlice, firefighters, paramedics, and for 
best wishes to the Olympians in China. 

3. The Open Forum portion of the meeting was announced. The Mayor 
recognized resident Jose Ramirez of Wesley Avenue who complained that 
someone had parked in his handicapped spot and the lack of police 
response, Sandy VanGothem of Riverside Drive spoke on 3 topiCS, 
congratulating Aldermen Chapman, Skryd, Lovero, and Clerk Pavlik on their 
successful pool party; also spoke on the pot holes in her alley and public 
works not addressing the issue; and lastly, the library continuing summer 
hours throughout the year due to the lack staff associated with the layoffs, 
Jeff Stall of Home Avenue voiced concerns over false diplomas presented 
by some police officers, a resident of 6510 W. Ogden Avenue complained 
regarding the Multi Unit Housing ordinance and claimed that it targeted 
certain properties and was unconstitutional. 

4. The minutes of the regular Berwyn City Council meeting held on July 22, 
200S along with the Special Committee of the Whole meetings of July 15, 
200S and July 16, 200S, the Committee of the Whole for July 22, 200S and 
July 29, 200S were presented. Thereafter, Erickson made a motion, 
seconded by Ramos, to concur and approve as submitted. The motion 
carried by a voice vote. 

5. Erickson made a motion, seconded by Ramos, to suspend the rules and 
bring forth item F-S. The motion carried. F-S is a communication from the 
Mayor regarding Comcast Care check presentation to Youth Crossroads. 
Thereafter, the Mayor recognized representatives from Comcast who 
presented a check to Youth Crossroads in the amount of $2,000. 
Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, seconded by Ramos, to accept the 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 
AUGUST 12, 2008 

matter as informational with congratulations and thanks. The motion 
carried by a voice vote. 

6. Lovero made a motion, seconded by Chapman, to suspend the rules and 
bring forth item 1-5. The motion carried by a voice vote. I-5 is a 
communication from the Fire and Police Commissioners regarding the 
appointment of Brian Madden as probationary firefighter. Thereafter, 
Erickson made a motion, seconded by Lovero, to concur and approve as 
submitted. The motion carried. Thereafter, the Clerk administered the oath 
of office and the Mayor and Aldermen extended congratulations. 

7. Chapman made a motion, seconded by Ramos, to suspend the rules and 
bring forth items J-l0 and J-l1. Item J 10 is a communication from the 
Finance director regarding the impact of Departmental Budget cuts for 
2008. The motion carried by a voice vote. Thereafter, the Mayor 
recognized the Finance director, John Wysocki, who supplied an amended 
communication, see attached. Chapman questioned an open line of credit 
for the city. The Finance responded that it is in the application process and 
when completed, will present a copy to the Council for consideration. 
Thereafter, Lovero made a motion, seconded by Chapman, to accept the 
matter as informational. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

8. Item J-11 is a communication from the Finance director regarding an 
analysis of the Parking Enforcement collections. After discussion, Lovero 
made a motion, seconded by Erickson, to accept the matter as 
informational. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

9. Chapman made a motion, seconded by Erickson, to suspend the rules and 
bring forth item 1-1. The motion carried by a voice vote. Item 1-1 is a 
communication from Alderman Chapman regarding City Finances, Layoffs, 
and Mid Year Adjustments. Thereafter, Chapman reiterated the request for 
the information from the finance department and made a motion, seconded 
by Erickson, to concur with the request and refer the matter to the Finance 
department and to a Closed Committee of the Whole. The motion carried 
by a voice vote. 

10. Day made a motion, seconded by Erickson, to suspend the rules and bring 
forth item F-9. The motion carried by a voice vote. Item F-9 is a 
communication from the Mayor regarding questionable diplomas. 
Thereafter, the Mayor requested the communication be read. After 
discussion, Lovero made a motion, seconded by Chapman, to waive 
reading. The motion failed by a voice vote. Thereafter, the Clerk read the 
communication into the record. Thereafter, Erickson made a motion, 

2 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 
AUGUST 12, 2008 

seconded by Ramos, to accept the matter as informational. The motion 
carried by a voice vote. 

11. Weiner made a motion, seconded by Chapman, to suspend the rules and 
bring forth item J-7, The motion carried by a voice vote. Item J-7 is a 
request from police chief to hire to fill vacancies created by resignations. 
Thereafter, Erickson made a motion, seconded by Ramos, to waive the 
hiring freeze, concur and approve as submitted. The motion carried by a 
unanimous roll call vote with Skryd excused. 

12. The Berwyn Development Corporation submitted a request for a TIF 
application for Nicholas and Angela DiBrizzi, 7005 W. Roosevelt Road. After 
discussion, Erickson made a motion, seconded by Weiner, to refer the 
matter to the BDC and the Law department to renegotiate an agreement. 
The motion carried by a voice vote. 

13. Erickson made a motion, seconded by Weiner, to suspend the rules and 
bring forth item J-6 and mark as germane to F-1. Item J-6 is an 
agreement regarding 320d and Harlem parking improvement agreement 
with Lea, Ltd and an ordinance attached entitled: 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO A 
PARKING IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT AT 32ND &. HARLEM WITH 
LEA, LTD 

Thereafter, Weiner made a motion, seconded by Ramos, to concur and 
adopt the ordinance as presented and to authorize the corporate authorities 
to affix their signatures thereto and to refer the matter to the law 
department for review. The motion carried by the following roll call: Yeas: 
Chapman, Ramos, Weiner, Day, Lovero. Nays: Phelan, Erickson. Excused: 
Skryd. 

14. The Mayor submitted a communication regarding a proposed referendum, 
Alderman Erickson. After discussion, Chapman made a motion, seconded 
by Lovero, to defer for 2 weeks. The motion carried. After further 
discussion, Erickson made a motion, seconded by Day, to approve a public 
hearing on the matter. The motion to authorize posting and publishing of 
the public hearing carried by a unanimous roll call vote with Skryd excused, 
with date to be determined at the end of the meeting. 

15. The Mayor submitted a communication regarding National Night Out and 
recognized all those who helped to make the event successful. Thereafter, 
Phelan made a motion, seconded by Ramos, to accept the matter as 
informational. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

3 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 
AUGUST 12. 2008 

16. The Mayor submitted a communication regarding the Berwyn Development 
Corporation 2008 mid year Status report. Thereafter, Erickson made a 
motion, seconded by Ramos, to accept the matter as informational. The 
motion carried by a voice vote. 

17. The Mayor submitted a communication regarding the block party on 2100 
block of Lombard. After discussion, Erickson made a motion, seconded by 
Day, to approve as submitted. The motion carried by a voice vote. 
Thereafter, the Clerk interjected stating that this should not have been 
approved in arrears because the proper application submission with 
resident signatures along with the approval from Cicero was not received 
by the Clerk's office. The Clerk went on to say that signatures or the 
approval from Cicero authorizing the block party was not submitted to 
either Berwyn or Cicero and that the residents of the 2100 block of 
Lombard misrepresented themselves, not only to the Clerk's office, but to 
the public works department, the resident alderman, the mayor and the 
police department, when they stated that they had obtained a permit for 
the east side of Lombard from the Town of Cicero with the Clerk's office 
and the police department confirming same was not filed with the Town of 
Cicero. The Clerk stated that he would deny further permits requested per 
ordinance 1020.99 Section (e) Violations. Thereafter, a comment from the 
Mayor invoked debate from the Clerk, and the Mayor asked for order to be 
restored. 

18. Erickson made a motion, seconded by Day, to suspend the rules and bring 
forth item J-8 and make germane to F-6. The motion carried. Item F-6 is 
a communication from the Mayor regarding the Snow Emergency plan. 
Thereafter, Erickson made a motion, seconded by Day, to concur and 
approve as amended and to authorize the public works director to seek an 
RFP and to include a change for street sweeping signs. The motion carried 
by a unanimous roll call vote with Skryd excused. 

19. The Mayor submitted a communication regarding the Mail Machine 
upgrades. After discussion, Erickson made a motion, seconded by Day, to 
concur and approve as submitted. The motion carried by the following roll 
call: Yeas: Ramos, Weiner, Day, Erickson. Nays: Chapman, Phelan, 
Lovero. Excused: Skryd. 

20. Alderman Ramos submitted a request for a block party for the 3300 and 
3400 blocks of Highland. Thereafter, Ramos made a motion, seconded by 
Chapman, to concur and approve as submitted. The motion carried by a 
voice vote. Thereafter, Alderman Ramos invited all elected officials and 

4 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 
AUGUST 12, 2008 

residents to join the 13th Annual Larry Menchetti Memorial Block party on 
August 31, 2008. 

21. Alderman Lovero submitted a communication regarding the Oak Park 
Regional Housing Center. After discussion, Erickson made a motion, 
seconded by Lovero, to refer the matter to the Committee of the Whole. 
The motion carried by a voice vote. 

22. Alderman Lovero submitted a communication regarding Non-Union 
Furloughs. Erickson made a motion, seconded by Lovero, to refer the 
matter to the Committee of the Whole. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

23. The Law department submitted a communication regarding the settlement 
of case #06 L 1186 (Circuit Court of Cook County). Thereafter, Erickson 
made a motion, seconded by Weiner, to concur and approve for payment 
in an amount not to exceed $200,000. The motion carried by a unanimous 
roll call vote with Skryd excused. 

24. The Law department submitted and ordinance entitled: 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 484.04 OF THE CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
REGARDING SCHOOL DISTRICT AND CHURCH SPECIAL VISITOR 
PARKING PASSES 

Thereafter, Erickson made a motion, seconded by Weiner, to concur and 
adopt the ordinance as presented and to authorize the corporate 
authorities to affix their signatures thereto. The motion carried by a 
unanimous roll call vote with Skryd excused. 

25. The Law department submitted and ordinance entitled: 

AN ORDINANCE DESIGNATING AS A HISTORIC LANDMARK 
PROPERTY KNOWN AS THE BERWYN MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 6700 
WEST 26TH STREET, PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF 
CHAPTER 1820 OF THE BERWYN CITY CODE 

Thereafter, Erickson made a motion, seconded by Weiner, to concur and 
adopt the ordinance as presented and to authorize the corporate 
authorities to affix their signatures thereto. The motion carried by the 
following roll call: Yeas: Chapman, Ramos, Weiner, Day, Phelan, Lovero, 
Erickson. Nays: Phelan. Excused: Skryd. 

5 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 
AUGUST 12, 2008 

26. The Law department submitted and ordinance entitled: 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUILDING AND HOUSING CODE OF 
THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS ESTABLISHING 
DEMOLITION DELAY PROCEDURES FOR THE PURPOSES OF 
ENCOURAGING HISTORIC PRESERVATION 

Thereafter, Erickson made a motion, seconded by Chapman to concur and 
adopt the ordinance as presented and to authorize the corporate 
authorities to affix their signatures thereto. The motion carried by the 
following roll call: Yeas: Chapman, Ramos, Weiner, Day, Phelan, Lovero, 
Erickson. Nays: Phelan. Excused: Skryd. 

27. The law department submitted job description Resolutions. After 
discussion, Chapman made a motion, seconded by Lovero, to defer the 
matter for 2 weeks. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

28. The Public Works director submitted a communication requesting approval 
to distribute an RFP for Holiday Decorations. After discussion, Chapman 
made a motion, seconded by Weiner, to concur and approve as amended 
on face. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote with Skryd 
excused, 

29. The Traffic Engineer submitted a communication regarding a temporary 
barrier at Riverside Drive alley between Grove and Oak Park Avenues. 
Thereafter, Weiner made a motion, seconded by Erickson, to concur and 
approve as submitted. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote 
with Skryd excused. 

30. The Traffic Engineer submitted a communication regarding the traffic flow 
change at Irving School. Thereafter, Erickson made a motion to defer. 
After discussion, the motion was withdrawn. Thereafter, Chapman made a 
motion, seconded by Ramos, to concur and approve as submitted and to 
refer to the Law department to draft an ordinance to enact. The motion 
carried by a unanimous roll call vote with Skryd excused. 

31. The Law department submitted the Metra Platform Lease Agreement and 
the submission of a reVised agreement between the City of Berwyn and 
BNSF Company. Thereafter, Erickson made a motion, seconded by Day, to 
concur and approve as amended. The motion carried by a unanimous roll 
call vote with Skryd excused, 

6 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 
AUGUST 12, 2008 

32. Erickson made a motion, seconded by Weiner, to suspend the rules and 
bring forth item K·6 from the Consent agenda. The motion carried by the 
following roll call: Yeas: Weiner, Day, Phelan, Erickson. Nays: Chapman, 
Ramos, Lovero. Excused: Skryd. K-6 is a handicap request from A. 
Dzambaizi, 1910 Wenonah. After discussion, Lovero made a motion, 
seconded by Ramos, to concur with the recommendation of the 
investigating officer and deny the request. The motion carried by the 
following roll call: Yeas: Chapman, Ramos, Weiner, Day, Phelan, Lovero. 
Nays: Erickson. Excused, Skryd. 

33. Consent Agenda K-l through K-5 and K-7 through K-ll were submitted. 
K-l-Budget Chairman submitted payroll for July 23, 2008 in the amount 

of $913,946.29, and August 6, 2008 in the amount of $851,698.46 
K-2-Budget Chairman submitted the payables for August 12, 2008 

in the amount of $1,836,399.83. 
K-3-Collector submitted the business licenses issued in July, 2008 
K-4-Building director submitted the building permits issued in July, 2008 
K-5-Day, handicap request from M. Magbanua, 1431 Ridgeland, Approve 
K-·7-Erickson, handicap request from V. Duff, 1231 Kenilworth-Approve 
K-8-Block party, 1900 Scoville, August 23, 2008 
K-9-Block party, 2300 Highland, August 23, 2008 
K-l0-Block Garage sale, 3700 and 3800 Ridgeland & Cuyler, on 

September 6, 2008 
K-ll~Dedicated to Youth Ministries, Sidewalk sale on August 15th & 16th 

Ramos made a motion, seconded by Lovero, to concur and approve by 
Omnibus Vote Designation. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

34. The Mayor scheduled a Public Hearing, to discuss the Resolution for 
referendum for non-partisan elections, to be held on Monday, August 25, 
2008 at 7:00 p.m. in the Berwyn City Council Chambers. 

35. The Mayor called for a Committee of the Whole on Tuesday, August 26, 
2008 at 6:00 p.m. for referrals. 

36. There being no further business to come before the meeting, same was, 
after a motion by Ramos, seconded by Day, to adjourn at the hour of 9:55 
p.m. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

7 



MINUTES 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

AUGUST 12, 2008 

L The Committee of the Whole was called to order by Mayor O'Connor 
at 6:04 p.m. Upon the call of the roll, the following responded present: 
Chapman, Ramos, Day, Lovero, Erickson. Absent: Weiner, Skryd, Phelan. 
Thereafter, the Mayor declared a quorum present and the meeting duly convened 
for business. 

2. Chapman made a motion, seconded by Ramos, to excuse Aldermen Weiner, 
Skryd, and Phelan. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

3. Agenda, Item F-2, Proposed Referendum, Alderman Erickson. The Mayor 
recognized Burt Odelson of Odelson &. Sterk to address the issue. Alderman 
Lovero immediately questioned why this item was on the Council agenda, stating 
that the Mayor knew that this matter was referred to the Committee of the Whole 
to conduct a Public Hearing for public input, and not for the Council to decide its 
faith. 

Alderman Weiner present at 6:06 p.m. 

Odelson explained that he was asked by the Mayor to come here and explain the 
ramifications of the Resolution to the Council and distributed a copy of draft 
exhibit A, see attached, which is a similar referendum that was placed on the 
Cicero ballot. The matter of the Township election being Partisan and the City 
being Non-Partisan raised a question for the ballot style and the manner, in which 
the election would have to be conducted in February, 2008. Odelson explained 
that there would be 2 different forms of ballots, Partisan and Non-Partisan and 
those that wish to declare to be Democrat or Republican, for the Township races, 
may request a Partisan ballot. 

• Questions were raised on a Binding Referendum and whether it needed to 
be submitted through voter signature driven petitions verses coming as a 
Resolution from the Council. 

• Odelson stated, no, it may come from the City Council and still be binding. 
Odelson stated that the Council can approve this evening and that he can 
plug in the City of Berwyn into the template referendum in hand. Clerk 
Pavlik cautioned and raised questions on approving a resolution into a 
referendum, sight unseen, and then referring it to the Law department to 
draft. Discussion ensued on City Council procedure regarding this matter. 
Clerk Pavlik stated, numerous times in the past, this Council has approved 
Resolutions and or Ordinance, sight unseen, including agreements that 
needed to be amended and once again cautioned the Council stating, these 



COMMJTTEE OF THE \WIOIE 
AUGUST 12,2008 

items should be presented ahead of time prior to votes being taken on 
same. 

• Alderman Chapman questioned the Township Attorney, Larry Zdarsky, who 
was present in the audience regarding this referendum as it applies to the 
Township. Zdarsky explained that the Township already has (3) three 
referendums on the November, 2008 ballot and that this matter was 
brought forth by one of the Trustees, but was denied, because the full 
amount of referendums for the November, 2008 ballot, had already been 
accepted. Zdarsky stated that there was a recent Illinois Attorney 
General's ruling regarding changing the form of which Township officials are 
elected by either referendum or resolution and that it could not be done. 

e Chapman questioned if this information and wording could be included on 
the referendum question, Odelson answered, yes. 

G The Aldermen questioned Odelson on the number of signatures required for 
a signature driven petition. Odelson answered, approximately 1,107. 

e Weiner questioned the number of signatures required for alderman and 
mayor to be placed on the ballot, reminding Odelson of the local ordinance 
210.03 regarding nomination petitions. Odelson stated that he believes 
that the local ordinance takes precedence, since Berwyn is Home Rule, thus 
requiring only 25 signatures for aldermanic nominations and 50 signatures 
for mayor. 

• The City Council discussed holding a Public Hearing prior to the next 
scheduled City Council meeting to present the matter. 

4. Erickson made a motion, seconded by Day, to close the Committee of the 
Whole at 6:34 p.m. for pending litigation, personnel, and union negotiations. 
The motion carried by a voice vote. 

The open portion of the Committee of the Whole reconvened at 7:05 p.m. 

5. Agenda addendum Item J-14-Metra Platform Lease amendment, Bruen 
explained changes in the contract from 86 to 97 for non commuter spaces and 
extra spaces for railroad workers. Bruen stated that he BDC has been 
informed. The Mayor recognized Griffin to confirm. Alderman Chapman 
questioned the amendments. Griffin explained the exhibits and maps see 
attached. 

6. Snow Emergency sign changes-The Mayor recognized Nicole Campbell and 
Public Works director, Pat Ryan. Ms Campbell explained the snow routes and 
that the amount of snow fall would be 2 inches and that the key was to 
educate the residents regarding the changes. Ryan stated that the signage is a 
problem throughout the city. The Mayor asked for the plan to be passed 
which would allow Public Works to go out for proposal for signage. 
Alderman Phelan present at 7:25 p.m. 

2 



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
AUGUST 12, 2008 

Alderman Ramos questioned street sweeping enforcement during winter 
months. Discussion ensued on suspending street sweeping for the winter 
months. Ryan stated that the salt damages the Street Sweeper and would 
like to see street sweeping suspended from December 1st through March 1st 

and also recommends gOing out for an RFP for signage and then return to City 
Council for authorization on RFP. The Mayor asked for a consensus on a 3 
month suspension on street sweeping during the winter months, from 
December 1st through March 1st , consensus, 7·-0 in favor. The Mayor stated 
that the matter is on the Council agenda and would suggest a vote to approve 
to go out for RFP, which would also include the change in signage. 

7. Parking, 32nd and Harlem, Agenda items F-1 and J-6-The Mayor referred to 
Nicole Campbell, Traffic Engineer, who stated that she reviewed the plans and 
is in agreement. The Mayor asked for a consensus to approve, consensus 5-2 
in favor with Phelan and Erickson against. 

8. Residential parking restrictions-The Mayor referred to the Traffic Engineer who 
handed out a residential questionnaire, see attached. 

9. Holiday Decorations, agenda item J-9-The Mayor referred to Pat Ryan to asked 
to go out for proposals to be returned by September 5, 2008 and approved at 
the September 9, 2008 Council meeting. Alderman Chapman questioned the 
numbers in the proposal and reviewed same with Pat Ryan. Chapman 
suggested limiting the number of poles on Ogden Avenue for decorations, and 
suggested only every other pole as was done this past holiday season, with 
Alderman Ramos concurring. Thereafter, the Mayor asked for a consensus to 
eliminate addendum RFP, Council 7-0 in favor. 

10. Agenda item F-7-Mailing Machine upgrade-The Mayor handed out an example 
of material that may go into the water bills along with correspondence from 
Deborah Sitz, Executive Director, of the Berwyn Cicero Council on Aging. 
Alderman questioned the amount and the cost of the lease. 

11. Agenda item I-4 from Alderman Lovero regarding Non-Union furloughs. The 
Mayor handed out a letter, see attached, sent by the Mayor to both the fire 
and police unions, in which he has already asked the union to consider items 
such as furlough days, wage concessions, or employee contributions for health 
care. 

12. The Mayor recognized BDC Director, Anthony Griffin who spoke regarding the 
Metra Station on Harlem Avenue and its space usage for a Coffee House and is 
requesting to go out for an RFP. Griffin handed out a proposal and explained 
and asked the Mayor to place this on the next City Council agenda for August 
26,2008. 

3 



COMMIfTEE OF THE WHOLE 
AUGUST 12,2008 

13. Agenda item E-1-TIF application for DiBrizzi, 7005 Roosevelt Road. Alderman 
Lovero questioned Anthony Griffin regarding this item on the Council agenda 
and the email sent to the aldermen related to the proposed end user and lack 
thereof, see attached email regarding same. Erickson stated that he would be 
more comfortable with a loan and not a TIF grant. Discussion ensued on 
placing restrictions on the application. 

14. Ramos made a motion, seconded by Erickson, to adjourn the Committee of 
the Whole at 8: 10 p.m. The motion carried. 

4 



Section D 

Bid Openings -

Tabulations 



Section E 

Berwyn Development Corp" 
Berwyn Township/Health District 



,'iiI de'/eloprnent 
CORPORATION 

3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 

Berwyn, IL 60402 

708]888100 

fax: 708 7880966 

wwwberwyn.net 

- I 
,/ 

\ 

August 22, 2008 

Mayol" Michael O'Connor 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Re: Depot District TIF Amendment 

Dear Mayor and City Council, 

City Council is requested to adopt three (3) ordinances to amend the terms 
of the City's Depot District Tax Increment Finance (TIF) District in 
accordance with the Illinois Tax Increment Finance Redevelopment Act. 

The three attached ordinances, prepared in coordination with Odelson & 
Sterk and Kane, McKenna Associates, would amend the Redevelopment 
Plan for the Berwyn Depot District TIF Districts to provide for a budget 
change and boundary change under the original tenn (twenty three year's 
expiring at the conclusion of the year 2019). 

The City has completed a joint review board, publicly advertised the 
amendments, arld facilitated a public hearing during the Spring and Summer 
of 2008 prior to bringing forward for City Council consideration. 

Respectfully sub,mitted, 

r-I-;4tO. Cr >-

~H1~ny W Gr&fin 
Executive Director 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER. __ _ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, 
U,LINOIS, APPROVING AN AMENDED TAX INCREJ.\.ffiNT 

REDEVEI,OPMENT PLAN AND PROJECT FOR THE SOUTH BERWYN 
CORRIDOR TAX JNCREJ.\.ffiNT REDEVELOPJ.\.ffiNT PROJECT AREA 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 
THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 
SANTIAGO "JIM" RAMOS 

MARK WEINER 
MICHELE D. SKRYD 

THOMAS J. DAY 
MICHAEL J. PHELAN 
ROBERT J. LOVERO 

JOEL ERICKSON 
Aldermen 

Published in pnmphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City Clerk of Ihe City of Berwyn on 08126108 
Odelson & Sterk, Ltd. - City Attorneys - 3318 West 95" Street - Evergreen Pnrk, minois 60805 

FilslOrdinance 



ORDINANCE NO.: ___ _ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS, 
APPROVING AN AMENDED TAX INCREMENT REDEVELOPMENT PLAN AND 

PROJECT FOR THE SOTITH BERWYN CORRIDOR TAX INCREMENT 
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyu, Cook County, Illinois (the "City") is a home rule 

municipalitypmsuant to Section 6(a), Article VTI of the 1970 Constitution of the State oflllinois, and 

as such may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs 

(the "Home Rule Po-weI's"); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council ofthe City ofBerwyn (the "City COl//lcil") has determined that 

it is desirable and in the best interest of the City of Berwyn to expand its use of ta.x increment 

allocation financing pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, 65 ILCS 5/11-7404 

et seq., as amended, (the "TIF Act"), in order to accomplish the purpose and objectives of said South 

Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Area Plan and Project in areas adjacent to the original project area 

that have not experienced private investment and thereby eliminate the existence of blighting factors, 

which endanger the tax base of the City and the taxing districts having the power to tax leal estate in 

the City (the "Taxing Districts") and threaten the health, safety and welfare of the public; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has heretofore determined that in order to promote and protect 

the health, safety and welfare of the public, the blighting conditions in the proposed expanded area 

of the South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project Area (the "Added Area") must be eradicated 

and redevelopment undertaken by the City in order to encomsge private investment and restore and 

enhance the tax base ofthe City; and 

2 



WHEREAS, the City has heretofore caused the preparation of and made available for public 

inspection a proposed Amended South Berwyn Conidor Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment 

Plan and Project (the "Amended Plall and Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the Amended Plan and Project sets forth in writing the purpose of the Amended 

Plan and Project, which includes amendments pertaining to the Added Area and the budget therein 

contained, which complies in all respects witll the requirements of the TIF Act; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 11·7404-5 of the TIF Act, tlle City Council adopted an 

ordinance calling for a Public Hearing (the" Hearing") relative to the Amended Plan and Prqject and 

the designation of the Added Area aod 111e original project area as an Amended Redevelopment 

Project Area under the TIF Act and fixed the time aod place for such Hearing being the 22nd day of 

July, 2008, at City Hall, 6700 West 26111 Street, Berwyn, Illinois; and 

WHEREAS, due notice aod respect of such Hearing was given pursuant to Section 11-

7404--5 of111e TIF Act, said notice, together with a copy ofthe Amended Plan and Project, and the 

name of a person to contact for fmtller infonnation, being given to 111e Taxing Districts and to the 

Department of Commerce and Community Affairs of the State of illinois by certified mail on May 

29,2008, by publication on June 27,2008 aod July 4, 2008, aod by certified mail to taxpayers on July 

7,2008; and 

WHEREAS, the City has heretofore convened a Joint Review Board as required in all 

respects in compliance wi111 the provisions of111e TIF Act, which Joint Review Board met at the 

times that is required by the TIF Act and reviewed the public record, planning documents, and fonn 

of proposed ordinances approving the Amended Plao and Project; and 

3 



WHEREAS, the City held the Hearing on July 22, 2008, at City Hall, 6700 West 26th Street, 

Berwyn, illinois; and 

WHEREAS, at the Hearing, any interested person or affected Ta;dng District was penmtted 

to file with the City Clerk written objections and be heard orally in respect to any issues embodies in 

the notice of said Hearing, and the City heard and determined all protests and o~jections at the 

Hearing; an d 

WHEREAS, the Amended Plan and Project sets forth the factors which caused the Amended 

Area to be a conservation area, and the City Council has reviewed the information conceming such 

factors presented at the Hearing and has reviewed other studies and is generally informed of the 

conditions in the Amended Area which would cause the Amended Area to be a conservation area as 

defined in the TIF Act; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed evidence indicating that the Added Area on the 

Whole has not been subject to growth and development through investment by private enterprise and 

has reviewed the conditions pertaining to lack of private investment in the Added Area to determine 

whether private development would talee place in the Added Area without the adoption of the 

proposed Amended Plan and Project; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the conditions pertaining to real property in the 

Added Area to determine whether contiguous parcels of real property and the improvements thereon 

in the Added Area would be substantially benefitted by the proposed improvements pursuant to the 

Amended Plan and Project; and 

Fjr~;1 O\'UiL1i.ll1Ce 
4 



WHEREAS, the City Council has made an assessment of any financial impact of the Added 

Area on or any increased demand for services from any Taxing District affected by the Amended Plan 

and Project and any program to address such financial impact or increased demand; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the Amended Plan and Project and also the 

existing comprehensive plan for the development of the City as a whole to determine whether the 

Amended Plan and Project conforms to such comprehensive plan of the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Coole County, illinois, by and through its home rule powers, as follows: 

Section 1. The above recitals and findings are incorporated herein and made a part hereof, as 

if fully set forth in their entirety. 

Section 2. The City Council hereby makes the following findings: 

a) The Amended Area is legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated 

herein as iffully set out by this reference. The general street location, as near as practicable, for the 

Amended Area is described in Exhibit B attached hereto and incorporated herein as if fully set out 

by this reference. The map of the Amended Area is depicted on Exhibit C attached hereto and 

incorporated herein as if fully set out by this reference. 

b) There exists conditions which caused the Added Area to be subject to designation as 

aRedevelopment Prqject Area along with the existing South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project 

Area under the TlF Act and to be classified as a conservation area as defined in the TlF Act. 

c) The Added Area on the whole has not been subject to growth and development 

through investment by private enterprise and would not be reasonably anticipated to be redeveloped 

without the adoption of the Amended Plan and Project. 

5 



d) The Amended Plan and Project conform to the comprehensive plan for the 

development of the City as a whole, as reflected in the City's zoning map. 

e) As set forth in the Amended Plan and Project, and in the testimony at the Public 

Hearing, it is anticipated that the estimated date of completion of the Amended Project and Plan will 

be completed within ten (10) to fifteen (15) years and that all obligations incurred to fmance 

redevelopment project cost, ifany, as defined in the Amended Project and Plan shall be retired within 

twenty-three (2.3) years after the original project area was designated. 

f) The parcels of real property in the Added Area are contiguous to other parcels of real 

estate in the original project area and create contiguous parcels of real properties and improvements 

thereon as an Amended Area which will be substantially benefitted by the Amended Plan and Project 

Section 3. The Amended Project and Plan which were the su~jectmatter ofthe Hearing held 

on the 22nd day of July, 2008, is hereby adopted and approved. A copy of the Amended Plan and 

Project is set forth in Exhibit D attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set out in full by tillS 

reference. 

Section 4. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held 

invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect any other provision of this Ordinance. 

Section 5. All ordinances, resolutions, motions Dr orders in conflict with tills Ordinance are 

hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 6. TillS Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval and 

publication as provided by law. 

6 



ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois this 

___ day of August, 2008, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

I I YES I NO I ABSENT I PRESENT I 
Chapman 

Ramos 

Weiner 
-

Skryd 

Day 

Phelan 

Lovero 

Erickson 

(Mayor O'Connor) 

I TOTAL I I I I I 
APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, illinois on this ___ day 

of August, 2008. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
CITY CLERK 

Michael A. O'Connor 
MAYOR 

7 
Fitst Ordirmnce 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER __ _ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS, DESIGNATING THE AMENDED SOUTH BERWYN 

CORRIDOR TAX INCREMENT REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT ARFA 
OF SAID CITY, A REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA PURSUANT TO 

THE TAX INCREMENT ALLOCATION REDEVELOPMENT ACT 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 
mOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONAN. CHAPMAN 
SANTIAGO "JIM" RAMOS 

MARK WEINER 
MICHELE D. SKRYD 

THOMAS J. DAY 
MICHAEL J. PHELAN 
ROBERT J. LOVERO 

JOEL ERICKSON 
Aldermen 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Mnyor and City Clerk of the City of Berwyn on 08126/08 
Odelson & Sterk, Ltd. - City Attorneys - 3318 West 95" Street - Evergreen ParI£, illinois 60805 

Second (JldiDnnCe 



ORDINANCE NO.: ___ _ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS, DESIGNATING THE AMENDED SOUTH BERWYN 

CORRIDOR TAX INCREMENT REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA OF 
SAID CITY, A REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA PURSUANT TO THE 

TAX INCREMENT ALLOCATION REDEVELOPMENT ACT 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn, Cook County, illinois (the "City") is a home rule 

municipality pursuant to Section 6(a), Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State oflllinois, and 

as such may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs 

(the "Home Rule Powers"); and 

WHEREAS, it is desirable and in the best interest of the City, for the City to implement tax 

increment allocation financing pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, 65 

ILCS 5/11-74.4 et seq., as amended (the "TIF Ad'), with regard to an amended redevelopment plan 

and project (the "Amended Plall and Project") within the boundaries of the City and within a 

proposed amended redevelopment project area (the "AmendedArea") as described in this Ordinance; 

and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Berwyn (the "City Coullcil") bas heretofore by 

ordinance adopted and approved the Amended Plan and Project, which Amended Plan and Project 

was identified in such ordinance and was the subject along with the Amended Area designation 

hereinafter made, of a Public Hearing held on July 22, 2008, in the City Hall at 6700 West 26th 

Street, Berwyn, illinois, and it is now necessary and desirable to designate the Amended Area as a 

redevelopment proj ect area pursuant to the TIF Act, said Amended Area to include those contiguous 

S'.:.cnnd Chdina.nce 
2 



parcels of real property and improvements thereon which will be substantially benefitted by the 

Amended Project and Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the Amended Project and Plan set forth the factors which would cause the 

Amended Area to become a "blighted area," as defined in the TIF Act and the City Council has 

reviewed the information concerning such factors presented at the Public Hearing and has reviewed 

and is generally informed of the conditions in the Amended Ar'ea which cause such Amended Area 

to be a "conservation area" as defined in the TIF Act 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, minois, by and through its home mle powers, as follows: 

Section 1. The above recitals and findings are incorporated herein and made a part hereof, as 

if fully set forth in their entirety, 

Section 2. 

a) There exist conditions which cause the proposed Amended Area to be suqject to 

designation as a redevelopment project area under the TIF Act and to be classified as a "conservation 

area" as defined in the TIF Act 

b) The Amended Area, as legally described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 

incorporated herein as if set out in fnll by tillS reference, is hereby designated as a redevelopment 

project area pursuant to the TIF Act The general street location (as near as practicable) for the 

Amended Area is described in Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set out in full 

by this reference. The map of the Amended Area is depicted on Exhibit C, attached hereto and 

incorporated herein as if set out in full by tills reference. 

Second OrdhEl!ic(' 
3 



Section 3. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held 

invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect any other provision of this Ordinance. 

Section 4. All ordinances, resolutions, motions or orders in conflict with tins Ordinance are 

hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 5. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval and 

pUblication as provided by law. 

Sec-(Ind Oldiuance 
4 



ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois this 

___ day of August, 2008, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

II I YES I NO I ABSENT I PRESENT I 
Chapman 

Ramos --
Weiner 

Slayd 

Day 

Phelan 
" 

Lovero 

Erickson 

(Mayor O'Connor) 

II TOTAL I I I I I 
APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, TIlinois on tins __ day 

of August, 2008. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
CITY CLERK 

Michael A. O'Connor 
MAYOR 

5 
S'3eond (J!.Jil"!ance 



EXBIBITA 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

6 



Legal Description 
Parcels to Be Added to the Thpot TIF District via Amendment 

Also including; 
That part of the East half of the Northwest Quarter Section 31, Township 39 North, Range 13 
East of the Third Principal Meridian, described as follows: Beginning at the nOltheast comer of 
Lot 21 in Block 9 in Berwyn Subdivision, said northeast corner also being a point on the west 
right-of~way line of Grove Avenue; thence south along said west right-of-way line of Grove 
Avenue to the southeast comer of Lot 25 in said Block 9; thence west along the south line of said 
Lot 25 and its westerly extension to the west line ofthe north-south alley lying south of Windsor 
Avenue and north of 34th Street; thence north along said west line of the last described alley to 
the westerly extension of the north line of said Lot 21 in Block 9; thence easterly along said 
westerly extension and north line of Lot 21 to the Point of Beginning, all in Cook County, 
Illinois, 

Also including; 
That part ofthe Northeast Quarter of Section 31, Township 39 North, Range 13 East of the Third 
Principal Meridian, described as follows: Beginning at the northeast corner of Lot 2 in Block 3 
in Bolen's Resubdivision of Woods Subdivision of Blocks 2 and 15 in LaVergne, a Subdivision 
of Pmt of said Section 31, said northeast corner also being a point on the southerly right-of-way 
line of Windsor Avenue; thence south along the east line of said lot 2 and its southerly extension 
to the south line of the east-west alley lying south of Windsor Avenue and north of Fairfield 
Avenue; thence west along said south line mld its westerly extension to the west line of East 
Avenue; thence north along said west line to said southerly right-of-way line of Windsor Avenue; 
thence Northeasterly along said southerly right-of-way line of Windsor Avenue to the Point of 
Beginning, all in Cook County, Illinois, 

Also including; 
That part of the West half of the Northwest Quarter Section 32, Township 39 North, Range 13 
East of the Third Principal Meridiml, described as follows: Beginning at the point of intersection 
of the southwesterly right-of-way line of the Illinois Central Railroad and the Southeasterly right
of-way line of the Chicago, Burlington and Quincy Railroad; thence southeasterly along said 
southwesterly right-of-way line to the North right-of~way line of Park Avenue; thence southerly 
along a line that is perpendicular to said north right-of-way line to a point on the South right-of~ 
way line of said Park Avenue; thence west along a said south line of Park Avenue to the east 
right-of-way line of Ridgeland Avenue; thence north along said east right-of-way line of 
Ridgeland Avenue to said Southeasterly right-of-way line of the Chicago, Burlington and Quincy 
Railroad; thence northeasterly along said Southeasterly right-of-way line to the Point of 
Beginning, all in Cook County, Illinois, 



EXHIBITB 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION 

7 
Seeolld OI';jiuLln;,;·(' 



ill. AMENDMENTS TO THE TIF PLAN 

In this section, amendments to the original TIF Plan are presented For reference, 
relevant excerpts from the original TIF Plan are shown, with amendments showing 
additions and deletions to the original language. 

Amendment A 
Page 60Jthe Original TIF Plan 

The boundaries of the original Project Area are shown in Figure I, Boundary Map, and as 
amended are shown in Appendix 1, Amended Boundary Map, Said boundariesaM are 
generally described as follows: 

AmendmentB 
Page 6-7 oJthe Original TIF Plan 

The boundaries of the Project Area are legally described in Appendix 2, as follows: 

... - - -1 Formatted Table 

... - - -1 Formatted Table 

+hat poT! ogeeliens 31 ana 32 in Te","ship 39 North, Range 13 East efthe Tl-oird Prineipal 
Meridian in Coel, COlli'lt)', lllineis,b~es a5 fulkl-><'5i 

Begiflflifl:g at: tfie ifltefseet:isFi SftAe flsr#i line sf £tan I:,,' la,veA!:!': l,ritA tB€! west line sf-Heins 
A¥eooe;-\h."ee east sle~rdlerly line of Stanley A',en"e af!a northerlyl;"e e,"enaeEl--!e4e 
weSt liae efGIiF.t:sR fn'eE:l:!e; taeBee Rarte aieaE tfie west: Hae efGH:B~efi l!\::.'efl!::fS 't8 tee eU'teB:€!e8 
flsftfieFl:y Ih;e eftfle east '1,.e5~ aliey, lyii'l:§ RSrtfl sf genIe)' l~:\'eFlHe afl:8 SBtltA ef::3;!nd-&tTeet; 
thene. easlerly aloFlg tAe norJ!erly line aAd Ael'1llSl"ly line e);!eAsed of!he lest seserihed alley to 
the ' .... est liRe sf Kenilwerrii Avenue; thence north aloFlg the west line sf Kenilwer:4=I Aveflue to 
tile e"teaaea Rol'1l'erI;r-l~e aferesaid east west alley; !hellee easterly llklRg the H8r!herly 
lille af!a the 50l1herly line-eHenclea ofs';d alley ta the east line of the l'lSTlh seBtl! alley lying 
BOHt!; Sf ;~lId £e=ect:, east sf g;eflilwerth /!,I!'efltlC, florJJ of £tafllc;;', aae '.,'cst of Grs,'c A:';'C5t1C; 
thaOOlH'\eTlh along the ess! l:'fle ana east line eNteaeee of the last aeserieea slley to • point 811 tee 
i1Srtfl1ine ef32nd~et; theneE east eleDg the Eo11hlme of 32nd Street ts ffle west Ih'1e of the 
nortH south 8:11ey lying 13et'A'ccB Grove Avenue and Oalt:-Park Avenue; theooe-nortfl aloFlg the 
'.':est liRe alld '.'!es( liRe e"(",,aea of~,e las! eleser+l>eEi slley ta the-llefth-lffi<H>ftee fle~ 
EjBaTler efsaia Seetiea 3J; the5ee east aleng the lasl aeserieea line to the e"te!'laea east liaa of the 
aerth seBth alley lyiag eetweea Oak Park Aveaue aae Euelia A\'ea"e; theaee south aloag tha ea51 
liRe ane east liRe el,teR6ee of the last deserfued-!;~f-the east west alley lying 
aOT!h af Staaley Aveaue aaa SOBth of31" Street; ti,,,,,,,..,,.,,.st aloag tile lWfth-i-iae af!a aeTlh-line 
€*terHkd t a tb e "Yest lin e 0 f G "5a erse;H\>.'€fltle;-\henee-nertlralofl g th e Vi est 1i5 a a f G lindars on 
A¥eooe; ta the fler.tfl.-lir~~-See!i<m 31; thenee east ~e4a5t 
Eleserihealin ." "'. " .c. -' • _; .:~ oin! alsa Beia" the "elihwest 

) 

I 



eeme~e nortflwest qUfu."'te;:- of said SeetioE 32; theaee eMt aloEg the north liEe of said 
Bertflwest quarter te the seUlAerly liRe efthe l.C.P~ 

1JleAee seutheaBterl;' aleRg #Ie last eieseFieeElIiAe eRei #Ie last seserleesHAe e:"eBiles te the 
seu#lefl;' lme efthe C.B & Q.FtRo; theRee westerly eleRg the lest e1eseFil3ealme te the eaBterl), 
Ime ofRidgcJand Avenue; tAenee SSb1tfl alsng the casterly line-ie-H:i4gel-afld Avenl:le to the south 
line aHa soffifi lif1c c:tfensed eP;l/jl:iesoF.'\x'{e~cnee ~\'est along tHe sOtl'tflline aHd SOtlliA line 
e3i:tcnded of the ~linesOf A'i'cnuc; ~o a pOh"It OE tfi:c east linc of:GadE f!arl~ .6.c'i'em:le~ thenee sS\:lth 
aleAg the last aeseriSealiee te the seuth lme eO 'I"' Si3'eet; theEee west aleRs tile laBt aeseFieed 
liRe aRe last aeserieeeliRe e,,,eReiea te the west Ii"e ef gfe,'e "",enue; tilellee Rertfl aleAg the 
westlme aR" westliAe ":teRaee ef gfe',e ,',,,eaue te the Re*: Ime efhel;ll iR Bleeh 9 iR 
BePliJ'fI Sueai"isieE; #leflee ",estaleRs Ille aertfllift~ruleei eflet21te tile 
l,llest liRe of ~hc fl:oftB: SOt:ltfl alley lyiHg SOt:lEfl sf ~\,iFlSSOf }:,l,'eFll;lc; tl:ieFlee west tHoag tHe soutfl 
~ei seuth lifte e"terulee eflile laBt eeserilles alley 18 tile Wes! Ime efHeme ;".'eflue; #leflee 
Re,,,, aleflg tAe ",eslliRe aRei west lifle e"teflaea ef Heme A"eRue te the peiflt efe~ 

AmendmentC 
Page 16-18 of the Original TIF Plan .. - - .. -{ Formatted Table 

a) Costs of stuc!ies, 51:1:1"\ eys, develOpment of plans and speeificatioRS. implementation and 
aeLniBistratieA efthe redevelopment plaB meludic,g but Ret limited te staff ana prefessieBal 
sen·iee costs for a:rcfiitecffiral, eflginecring, fegal, marketing, Rnsneial, p1an~r ethci seRiees; 
proYiaeel that no eharges for prsfessiol'ltH serviees arc easca en a percentage 6ft~Tef!t 
eelleetea; 

l31-J'repeFly assembly eests, iEeludiftg But net limited te aC'luisitiefl ef laRd ana e~18r pr~ 
real or personal, or rights OF interests Eicrein, sCffiolition efbuildiFlgs, and the clearing and 
graBing eflaRa.; 

e) Costs efrehabilitation, reconstructioR or repaii or rCl1'lodeling of e:::isting pubJie aT private 
bai~dil;g5 and fixtures-; 

dl Cess efrl,e ee"s!fUetieB efpublic ","eFlos aT :mprevemens, 

c) Costs of job trainil1g aHd retraining I'isjeets; 

A Financing costs inel1:l4ffig,£H::H: .. Tlffi .... l-i;::rffied to, all neeessarf afld beidental CNpCFlses rclatccl-te 
the issuance of esl1gatiens ans whieh may ll'Jcl\:1ele-p-symeflt of iflter-est on any eB-ligatiens issues 
fl€reUlleler aeeruiRg auFi"g tAe esametea periea ef eO"Sff"etiefl efa"y reElevelorm""t prejeet fer 
whicH SHEA obligatiol'ls are issued and for a period not e;~EeediBg 36 rnoFl~hs f'eHe\i'mg e0i'fl131e,tion 
8:Rd inell:lding reasonable i-e5€rVes ielated tl~ 

I 



!fie-Felleveleprnent plaB aRa project te U,. e:LteEt tho m""icipality by 'In men agl'eement .ceepts 
aBd approves such cess; 

h1-I'elees';en oests Ie tAa e",ent ~,at a m!±F.ioi~ali?i .etefflli"es thai releoalie" eests shell be-pi<l 
or is required to mal~e payment efreloeatiofl ees:s by federal or state Ie." .. 

il Payment rn lieu efta",,; 

j~ Gosts efjeb i'raiB:ing, Fotfsffiffig, aa:\'aBcea \IOeaHofla-J eeldee'dOE or career cel!;leatioR; ineltismg 
bHt flet limi!eEl-t<>-€eHrses in eee"l'atienal, semi teeflflie.l ef leehnieal liele,leaeing eireetl), te 
emple),m.llt, in.u",ad B)' e"a ef mere 'a,';ng cli,!riets, pfe"iaee that sHeh eeslS Eil afe ralated te 
!fia e,tablish"..eat aBe marnteEanee afadei/ienaljea !rair.mg, aeyaAeed "aea,ienal edueati_ 
e",'ear esu6afiatrpregfffiRs Fe. perSBES emple)'ea eHa-Be-ffilj31ej'eEl By empleJ'ef5 leeated iE a 
~epffieflt pfeject: area:; a:'lS E!11 ¥l'BeB iflE'drrea B!J' a t6!1dflg aisti'iet: aT ta:~jflg eiSt:A6ts stAEr 
tflan the TI1\:lnieipality, are set fortfl if! a Written agreement by or ameng the ffiuFlieipality and the 
ta:~ffig 61sa-iet Of ta~:ing aisE=ie5;-whiea agreement eleseFiees-tfl~e tiflBffiedffffi; 
ffie.l.Hel:mg Elli net Hmitea to ~Ae Alfffieer of employees ts ee t'Fafflee. 8; eeseription ofthe trainiRg 
""a sep,'iees Ie se pFe"iaea, Nle nHElsef aRa Ij,!,e efpo,i8eE' 9'''''ila.le 6r!e be a',ailable, 
ilamieea eeSE; eftl,e l'fOgr_ ana se""ee, o. fHEas Ie pal' Fef the ,,,,,,e, aEa tAo 100Trl eftAa 
agr-eeffJ:eiit'. St:ich eest5 ffieh:ise. sf3eemeaJly. the pa),:meEt sy eSE:1.:ffl'dE:it:y eeBege eiistr:iets sf 08Sts 
fl'*&'lffilt Ie SeeaeBs 3 ;:;Z, ~ 38,3 ~G ""a 3 4Q.1 eftAe POOHe Gelftll'lHBilj' Gellage Aet ona.y 
sc-flesl distriets of cssts J2lUisuant te Sections 1 G 3J.2Ga ""d 1 9 23.3 a ef TI,e Sehee.J-Ge6e; 

1+Jn_~urrea by a Feee>relt>j'ler Felatea Ie the eeEstmelieE, reEovatietl-BHChaloililatioE 
ef" reaeyelopmenl pFeject j3revide<l-lfia" 

1. suel, ees!s aFe te ee pal<Hlireetly fi em !fie speeial tan 9lleestieE fuEa establishea 
purs-::m.t te th.e Aet; 
~eR-j3ay'ltleRts iA Bfl)' efle :year ffiay flst e:~eee8 29% Bfthe aflHt:lsl iEterest esst-5 
<"""""ea ey the Feaevel""er "itl. regard te the raaeYelepma"t i'Fejeet dlffiBg thai year; 
3. if!fiere ",e Bet ,uflieienHi;OOs 9veil9hl~e-5j'leeiaJ tax aileeetien fund te maloe tha 
pa),l"e"t then-the-i"fi_~!5-sB-tIt1e sh.lI ,eerue ""a se pa),aele '.d,eR suf~re 
"'a;;eale iB tile speeiel ta" alleaatieE fHEil; 
4. tfle total sf SI:IEA iRterest13aJ'ffleR5 paie pl::fiSI;IEffit to tfie .O~et may net e;~ceeEl. ;9% of the 
tetel Ell ee,t paie er k.eUffee by the FedeyelepeF Fer the feae,'elepFfleEI proj<>et plus Oil 
reaeyel8pment prejeet eeslS enel"aiEg an)' pr8pe~mhly-eests ana aBY !'elecali8fl 
cssts incurred by a 'FlluRieipalit)' pursuant ta4e-A-.et;-

lj-lJrrless explieitl)' StatCd-irer-eill tAe eest sf .enstrueti8n ef.fiew-pfiYately ewned 
al±i1t!fng;;-si;al1--mrt-l>e-<>B eligible rea"",*,pmenl i'rejeet-eesr. 

Eligible costs permitted by the Act and pertaining to this Plan include: 

(I) Professional Service Costs - Costs of studies. surveys. deveJoQment of glans. and 
sp-ecifications. imRlementation and administration oithe redeveloDment glan including but not 
limited to staff and nTofessional service costs for architectural. ene:ineerin!!. legal. financiaL 



/2larmimz or other services. 12rovided however that no chan!es for Rrofessional services may be 
based on a QercentaQe of the tax increment colfected: ex~eQt that on and after November 1. 1999 
(the effective date of Public Act 91-478). no contracts for Qrofessional services. excluding 
architectural and en!!ineerin!! services. may be entered into if the tenns of the contract extend 
beyond a Redod of 3 years. After consultation with the munici12aHty. each tax increment 
con:;;ultant or advisor to i! municiRalitv that RIMS to designate or has desi£mated a redevelopment 
Qroject area shall infonn the municiRali!y in writin!! of an;:: contracts that the conSUltant or advisor 
has entered into with entities or individuals that have received. or are receivlnlZ. Rayments 
financed by tax increment revenues Qroduced by the redevelo12ment Qroject area with resgect to 
which the con:iultant or advisor has perfonneg. or will be Qerforrniue:. service for the 
rnuniciQality. This reQuirement shall be satisfied by the consultant or advisor before the 
commencement of services for the rnuniciRa1ity and thereafter whenever any other contracts with 
those individuals or entities are executed bv the consultant or advisor: 

0 The cost of marketi.ng sites within the redevelopment :groject area to :QrosQective 
businesses. developers. and investors: 

0 Annual administrative costs shall not include general overhead or administrative costs of 
the municiQalitv that would still have been incurred bv the municiRalitv if the municiRalitv had 
not desilmated a redeve!oRment project area or ap-oroved a redevelopment plan: 

0 In addition. redevelopment nroject costs shall not include lobbyine: exp-enses: 

(2) ProQeJ:!y Assembl~ Costs - Costs inciudinQ but not limited to acguisition of land and other 
12ro12eay (real or /.2ersonal} or ri!!hts or interests therein. gemolition ofbuildine:s. site preRaration l 

site imRrovements that serve as an en!!meered barrier addressing QTound level or below e:T'ound 
environmental contamination. includinQ. but not limited to };;larkin!! lots and other concrete or 
asllhalt barriers. and the c1earino and fITadinQ of land: 

(3) Im12rovement5 to Public or Private Buildings - Costs of rehabilitation. reconstruction. 
nmair. or remodeling of existing public or private buildings. fi>.1.Ures. and leasehold 
im:Qrovements: and the cost of rep lac in!! an existing: l2ublic buildin!! if pursuant to the 
imnlementation of a redevelo:gment j;!roject the exi,'2tin212ublic buildine: is to be demolished to use 
the site for private investment or devoted to a different use requiring private investment: 

(4) Public Works (osts of the construction of public works or imnT'Ovements. except that on 
and after November J. 1999. [edeveloQlnent Qroject costs shall not include the cost of 
constructinf! a new municij2al12ublic building Rrincinally used to Rrovide offices. storag:e sRace. or 
conference facilities or vehicle storag:e. maintenance. or reQair for administrative. 12ublic safe!y. or 
Rublic works l2ersonnel ~nd that is not intend~d to rel2iace an existing l2ublic building: as provjded 
under paralITallh (3) of subsection (g) of Section 11-74.4-3 unless either 0) the construction o[the 
new munici:Qal buildim!: imJ21ernents a redevelogrnent Qr'Oiect that was included in a 
redeveloQment plan that was adoJ2ted bv the municiRality Rnor to t:!ovember 1. 1999 or (ij} the 
lTIunicinalin: makes a rei!sonable determination in the redevelogment Rlan. sURp-orted by 
information that nrovides the basis for that determination. that the new municipal building is 
reauired to meet an increase in the need for DubHe safety nurnoses anticinated to result ITom the 



implementation of the redevelopment plan: 

(5) Job TraininQ Costs of job iTaininQ and retraining Qrojects. includine. the cost of t1 welfare 
to worktl proQTams implemented bv businesses located within the redevelopment Rroject area; 

(6) Financing: Costs Costs including but not limited to all necessarY and incidental expenses 
related to the issuance of obligations and which may include Rayment of interest Qn any 
oblieation~ issued hereunder includine (a} interest accruing: dunnQ the estimated Reriod of 
construction of any redeveloQment project for which such oblieations are issued and for a geliod 
not exceedine 36 months thereafter and (b) reasonable reserves related thereto; 

(7) Capital Costs - To the extent the municipality bv written agreement accepts and ayproves 
the same l all or a portion of a taxing district's caRita1 costs resulting from the redeveloRment 
project ne£essarily incurred or to be incurred within a taxine district in furtherance of the 
objectives of the redevelopment Rlan and project: 

(8) School-Related Costs For redevelo:Qrnent Qroject areas designated (or redeve]oJ,;!rnent 
12roject areas amended to add or increase the number oftax-increment-fmancing assisted housing 
units) on Or after November]. 1929. an elementarY. secondarY. or unit school district's increased 
costs atbi12utable to assisted housine units located within the redeveloJ,;!ment Qroject area for 
which the develoQer or redeveloper receives financial assistance through an a2:reernent with the 
munici12ali:ty or because the muniQinality incurs the cost of necessary infrestructu[e imQrovements 
within the boundaries of the assisted housing sites necessID for the comp:ietion of that housing a§ 
authorized b;l the AcL and which costs shall be gaid bv the municigalill! from the Sgecial Tax 
Allocation Fund when the tax increment revenue is received as a result of the assisted housme 
units and shall be calculated annual Iv. 

(9) Relocation Costs - To the extent that a municioality detennines that relocation costs shall 
be J,;!aid or is reQuired to make Rayment of relocation costs bv federal or State law or in order to 
satisfY subgaraeraDh (7) of subsection (n) of the Ac~ 

(10) Payment in lieu of taxes: 

(11) Other Job Trainin" Costs of job training:. retraining:. advanced vocational education or 
career education. including but not limited to cOUrses in occuQationaL semi-technical or technical 
fields leadine directly to employment incuned bv one or more taxing: districts. J,;!1'Ovided that such 
costs (i) are related to the establishment and maintenance of additional job training. advanced 
vocational education or career education Qf'Oerams for Qersons emRloyed or to be em:gloyed by 
ernJ,;!loyers located in a redeveloJ,;!rnent oroject area: and (ii) when incuned by a taxing district or 
taxing districts other than the munici:gali~. are set faIth in a written a2Teement by or among the 
municiQali!y and the taxing district or taxin2: districts. which agreement describes the J2roerarn to 
be undertaken. inc1udine but not lin1ited to the number of emQ10:yees to be trained. a descri:Qtion 
of the trainin£ and services to be Riovided. the number and tvQe of :go sit ions available or to be 
availabJe. itemized costs of the Qrogram and sources of funds to Ray for the same. and the term of 
the a!.ITeement. Such costs include. soecifically. the oayment by community college districts of 
costs pursuant to Sections 3-37. 3-38. 3-40 and 3-40.1 of the Public Community Colle"e Act and 



bv school districts of costs pursuant to Sections J 0-22.20a and J 0-23.3a of The School Code; 

(12) Developer Interest Cost -Interest cost incurred bv a redeveloQer related to the 
construction. renovation or rehabilitation of a redevelopment project provided that: 

(A) such costs are to be Raid directly from the sRecial tax allocation fund established Qursuant 
to the Act; 
ffi) such Qavrnents in anyone vear ma~ not exceed 30% of the annual interest costs incurred 
by the redeveloQer with ree:ard to the redeveloyment groject during that vear; 
(C) ifthere are not sufficient funds available in the special tax allocation fund to make the 
pay!nent then the amounts so due shall accrue and be R8vi!ble when sufficient funds are available 
in the special tax allocation fund; 
CD) the total of such interest Rayments Raid QllJSUant to the Act may not exceed 30% of the 
total (i) cost paid or incurred bv the redeveloper for the redevelopment project plus Oil 
redeveloDment Qroject CD§;ts excludinQ any RToReny assembly costs and any relocation costs 
incurred bv a municipality Rursuant to the Act: 
IE) the cost limits set forth in subpara!ITaphs un and ID) of para!ITallh shall be modified for 
the financing of rehabilitated or new housing unit§ for low-income house1101ds and verY low-
income households. as defmed in Section 3 of the Illinois Affordable HousinQ Act. The 
percentaQe of75% shall be substit!lted for 30% in subpara!ITaphs (B) and (D). 
IT) Instead of the eliQible costs llrovided b~ subpara!ITaphs (B) and (D). as modified b~ this 
subRaraeragh. and notwitbstanding any other provisions of the Act to the contrarv. the 
municiRality may Ray from tax increment revenues UQ to 50% of the cost of construction of new 
housing units to be occu:Qied by low-income households and vea low-income households as 
defined in Section 3 of the Illinois Affordable HousiTI2 Act. The cost of construction oftbose 
units may be derived from the proceeds of bonds issued bv the municiQality under the Act or 
other constitutional or statutorY aythoritv or from other sources of municipal revenue that mav be 
reimbursed from tax increment revenues or the 12roceeds of bonds issued to finance the 
construction of that housiUQ. The eJiQible costs provided under this subllara!ITaDh (F) shall be an 
elim"bJe cost for the construction. renovation. and rehabilitation of all low and verY low-income 
housinQ units. as defined in Section 3 of the lIIinois Affordable HousinQ Act. within the 
redeve1012ment p-roject area. If the low and verY low-income units are p-art of a residential 
redevelonment Rroject that includes units not affordable to low and verY low-income households. 
only the low and very low-income units shall be eJiQible for benefits under subparalITaph (F). 

The TIF Act 12rohibits certain costs. Unless exp-licitlv stated herein the cost of construction of 
new Rrivately-owned buiJdimls shall not be an elieible regevelogJnent Qf'oject cost. In addition. 
the statute prohibits costs related to retail development that results in the cJosinQ of Dearb~ 
facilities Qfthe same retailers. Specificallv. none of the redeveloQment groject costs enumerated 
in the Act shall be elirdbJe redevelopment Rroject costs if those costs would QT'Ovide direct 
financial SU12J20rt to a retail entitv initiating ol2erations in the redevelo12ment groject area while 
terrninatine oQerations at another Illinois location within 10 miles of the redevelop-ment :Qroject 
area but outside the boundaries of the redevelonment nroiect aJ ea municinalitv. 



AmendmentD 
Page 18-19 of the Original TlF Plan 

2, Estimated Redevelopment Costs 

A range of redevelopment activities and improvements will be required to implement this 

I Redevelopment Plan The activities and improvements and their estimated costs (+9%-2008 
dollars) are summarized "elew and sflev"" in Table I, Estimated Redevelopment hoject 
Costs, To the extent that municipal obligations have been issued to pay for such 
Redevelopment Project Costs prior to, and in anticipation of, the adoption of TlF, the City 
shall be reimbursed from incremental property taxes for such Redevelopment Project Costs, 

I The estimated Redevelopment Project Costs illtl5lrated belew ."a-in Table 1 are intended to 
provide an upper estimate of expenditures Within this upper estimate, adjustments may be 

I made in line:-items without amending this Redevelopment Plan 

I The estimate of Redevelopment Project Costs listed ee!ew-,uld illus_ed in Table I excludes 
financing costs, including any interest expense, capitalized interest and costs associated with 
optional redemptions, These costs are subject to prevailing market conditions and are in 
addition to total Redevelopment Project Costs, 

ef?-lsIming. Legel, .tdminlstratiyc and Other F-ees -- i Formatted: Bullets and Numbering) 

Estimated cest $:50,000 

This c;:.pcFldirure includes survey and srudy [;05t5, Jegal services, aeFl11nistTative 
scr!'ices ar.d ether professioRai-an~ee fees 8s5oeiated with imple~g 
.. ' , n1. . ..1 .. "sm; a secure environment for ]3Fivsto 
h'1\,cst'alcn: m aeeordance wite. tEe l' ... ct. 

b)Preperry,155cmb(1' --- i Formatted: Bullets and Numbering) 

~tedcost S750,900 

This e:;penditure prevides fer the eo<jt!isition ane--a55embl), ef land fsr 
rea~H: eO' the City or agent fer tfle City, Vae",,: or H!'!demt;lized 
prepert)' n'.s), ee sequire" b)' pHrehese. ,:;ehenge or long te"" leas, by priYete 
de¥elepers efth' City for the plil'jJOse efnew deYelopm,nt Of reeey,lopm,nt 

c.-) Bv.:!tkng RehabNlts:fol1 

---I:"'5tirr.ated Cost $1,759,900 

This e?Cpendit\;lFe prs'1'1des for the r:habilitatiefl, reeons1:ndetisR, repak or 
feffie€1cling of existing pus1ie or private buildings aad fl.:tures. 

d) PuBlic Wer-hs and UtIlity IT1rp1"oi'cnw1i(5 



'Land 

This enpendlture fJFovises for tA8 eOFlstFuctio1'1 OF e·· ... Pflsio .n . 
sewers and stornr'ater d t f' .u_ 1'1 of \:\ a-ter fl'ifr~i'lS. 
• • Vi fYen lOR 1\;'119-0' em t· tfl . 
ImprovemeFit of Iandseapb,l

P 
BflE! b ffi p j' CR~)C eenstruetlofl Oi 

" b' ' = "4:,5, str,ets,,,!,es streel r-B" a 
::ocneralcautrfieation irnprOVC-'iCFr"s' tt P co str ~f f' ~l?'l:."lg an ~5--!h . or " .- R "- ,en e penhe p~ ea 
:,::", ' e-oonstrB611Dn Dr imp-e' 'eme'" ef stre ' , e! I '-ef' p='i.~ j, lit Co, 51 cv .. a 10 and 

c) Df?:el-ejEcr Interest Subsidies 

Estimated Cost $800,000 

Y111s eXj3enditure pro .... ises fer reimburseFAent of H "Q . ~ 
_esl eest; as previdea under~;e Aet. jl te • pOIeeA, of develepel'S 

f) Tetal Res:;1':;1:epmcn: Project Costs erc estimafed at S6,.'5g, gOO 

___ ~TH·-~L~·"H'~ffiffi~~'~n~'~_ • . ~~"et Cests 

-----l'lanniag, Legal, AdmiAistrat;"'e and Otloer-f:,.e"es;-----s;~;gl_O 
PFSjlert)' Assen,bly - $ 350,000 
Beildiag R,hal3ilitatien $ 1,250,000 
Publie 'Nerks aaa Utility Imprevemeat; S 1,750,000 

---+lDe-velej>er-ffiterest Subsidi,s $ 2,000,000 S ggM)OO 

Estimat,d Re de .... Ie p mea t Pr"tfj",eeeJtc<C:;e&s>lt5-s ------ES6;4-S0,00O'·" 

n·, r; . . ~s:lmatcd Rcderdoj3li'/cm Project Cests aiD t • . 61.. r. ., . r . . 
l17,'erest stpcmc c'fiJ3!taU-cd :'7'010 r • d ni e. ),l16t,iSlllo casts mclwi:ng ar;r 

, ~ t 10_ ., .~, cs. a.l rosts asses/etce.· ,'" . 1 . 

T/;:;sc sests arc subject Ie p ... :: ... a;'i.7~ 'l1"~'.n{ ... ,eft :~' dlLr1 SpHene. rcdemptiens. 
R8e/[xele-pmel1t P."ojeet Cssts. '" 0 ' ~" it~ ~.e'1 ,{,S,li and Si'e in adiizien te !e:e! 

,n 

$10.00000n 

3.000 non 

,oon.ooo 



Rehabilitation of Ex is tine Structures 

Public Facilities (including Parkin!:! Garaee) 

Interest Costs Pursuant to the Act 
Professional Service Costs (Including Plannine. Legal. Eneineerim!. 
Administrative. Annual Reportin2. and Marketing) 

Job Training 
Aereements with Other TaAine Districts: School District 
Reimbursements 
TOTAL ESTIMATED TIF BUDGET 

llllu:s 
(1) All pmjeg coS eSlimmes nre jn venr ':100& dQ1!nrn co .. ts m~y he adjusted for jnflntiQn per the TIE =\c! 

3.000.000 

10.000.000 

SoD.ooD 

SDD.DDD 

SoD.DDD 

SDD.DoD 
$35,000.000 

Pl In nddjtion to tbe com jd~ntj!jed jn !b~ tShihit MOl'e nnv bpndllssued In finance a phm oftb~ proJe:et roo" include lin nmouDJ 
fiuffit:isDl to pi!\, (n) customary nnd reasonable cbnn:es nmt:iUled I\ith the imJllnce of such nhHomion:; (hI iWTes.lJmJill£h.hr.m..rts..1!IldJsJ 
capim!ized intmsl and ren"!pnilhh' reouired n;~ef\'e5 
Po) AdjnmncDls to the eSljmn)ed limt'ilem costs MOl'!! fire expected Adjusmlcnt:; mn'\.' he mllde in ljne.jtems within the )91g1 either 
jnqensjng or deerell:;ing Hne-hemE coms for rede"elopmen) Each indh'jdunl project cost win he reevaluated in IjnJJ! of the nrojected priVAte 
del'elnnm~nt nnd resn!rinr !j\'i nweDJlts ns i! is cpnsjdered for p.1!hlkJ.innnciol! UDder Jhe p~ofthe Act The 101* orthe !ioe-items 
lie) forth ohm'e nr; nO! jDJended 10 plnce q 10tnl Ijmit on ]he descnlled e~VeodjJum os the specjfj\"i items listet! nh(we on DO! jntmded to 
~a\:m~n! ormher elisib!e rSd;\'elpnmeO! project costs in connectioD the rede\'e!opmcn! orlDe R~~ 
"aVID en! for eligible rerle"clopmmt Project enst~ fih"!! nO! eXceed the overall huduet nmPlzDI mJ!lined nhovS 

AmendmentE 
Page 21 of the Original TlF Plall 

B)' tax ycar 2997 (ceJlecHe" rear 2998) ellS feJlewilog tne ceR'.pl.tie" ef all petenaal 
Rcee',elepm~ts, !fie E,o,'.! ef!fie Project .... ·oa is estifi~ tetal "l'pra"imately 
£4.1§3,889. =l=l1is estilHate is :eases 8n 5e','erall~ey aS5HFrl;}3~ieRs. ineh:latJ'Ig: I) 
reaez,'eI8j3rneBt 8~tAe Prejee~ Afea ",dll 8eEt:fi if! a tifl'lelTffiafl:fwr; a~ tfie 199§ e.6~\1 ef~e 
Ffejeet icee 'wiB in:f:late at tfie fate af 3 pereen'l: per affi'I:\::iffi; BRB ~~ tfie E'f e year aNerage 
slate equali""tie" factef ef~.19H (I"" years 1991 lfireugl! 1995) is used in aJl years te 
BakelateE! estifl,ated-E-A¥, 

URon cOITIQletion of the anticiJ;!ated Qrivate develoQrnent of the RP A and tennination of 
the TlF District. it is estimated that the EA V of the ]lra]leill' within the RP A will be 
aRllroximatelv $55.000.000. 



EXHIBITC 

MAP OF AMENDED REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 

Secund Ch'diDance 
8 



'a~v UOOillTIa 

·a~v NOSmIUNIl!J 

'::rAY llTIIAO::JS 

·'aAV JSva 

aAY 1I1IYd lIVO 

·MY HLlIOM1INlllI 

da~ v NOLNTI::J 

r;i 
:>-
<: 

,.; 
~ 

,.; ,.; 
en en en 

'" "0 ~ "0 .c :: ::: ... ..., 

'" <: '" ... 
'" ... '" '" 

........ ·.ID~)J[ 
1=='== I . J 1·;"\ \~ 

\ \ ~ '--''--' ,--,,--,0 t 
B~{J I 

I I 
0 Dl\\ 'In. 

CU\~\\d 

J. 1···.ln\\\~~ II .10 [ 
...• 1 U~;1 \ UII 11====='=11 

D 

J [--]li\ \\]111 J [ 
JI lj\\D81 10[ 
] I IU\ \\ IE 
] I. . I D\ \\JI IE 

~[O[ 
. . .•.......... ffi~SJ iO [ 

... IWd·.1 PC1(J· ·10 [ 
ll· II ..... \~~\. n I 

,.; ,.; ,.; 
en en en ..., 
'" " .c 

" 
..., -'" co ... 

'" '" 
~ 

11 

'I 

~'d 
~t:1 

lid 
51! 

II n! .! • I , •• .~ 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, n.LINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER __ _ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS, ADOPTING TAX INCREMENT ALLOCATION FINANCING 

FOR THE AMENDED SOUTH BERWYN CORRIDOR TAX INCREMENT 
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 
THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 
SANTIAGO "JIM" RAMOS 

MARK WEINER 
MICHELE D. SKRYD 

THOMAS J. DAY 
MICHAEL J. PHELAN 
ROBERT J.I,OVERO 

JOEL ERICKSON 
Aldermen 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Berwyn on 08/26/08 
Odelson & Sterk, Ltd. - City Attorneys - 3318 West 951b Street" Evergreen Park, illinois 60805 

Thil d UI<.l il1i111Ce 



ORDINANCE NO.: ___ _ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COlJNTY, 
U,LINOIS, ADOPTING TAX INCREMENT ALLOCATION FINANCING 

FOR THE AMENDED SOUTH BERWYN CORRIDOR TAX INCREMENT 
REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois (the "City") is a home rule 

municipality pursuant to Section 6(a), Article vn of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois, and 

as such may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs 

(the "Home Rule Powers"); and 

WHEREAS, it is desirable and in the best interest of the citizens of the City for the City to 

adopt tax increment allocation financing pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment 

Act, 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4 et seq", as amended (the "TIF Act"); and 

WHEREAS, the City, by ordinance dated January 28, 1997, adopted tax increment financing 

for the South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project Area (the "Original Area") and has now 

determined that it is in the best interest of the City to expand such Original Area and adopt tax 

increment financing in the expanded area (the "Added Area"); and 

WHEREAS, the City has adopted an amended redevelopment plan and project ("Amended 

Plan and Project") as required by the TIF Act which Amended Plan and Project includes an area in 

addition to the Original Area and has designated the Original Area and the Added Area as an amended 

redevelopment project area (the "Amended Area") as required by the TIF Act and has otherwise 

complied with all other conditions precedent required by the TIP Act. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, by and through its home rule powers, as follows: 

2 



Section 1. Tbatthe above recitals and findings are incorporated herein and made a part hereof, 

as if fully set forth in their entirety. 

Section 2. Tax increment allocation financing is hereby adopted to pay redevelopment proj ect 

costs as defined in theTIF Act and as set forth in the Amended Plan and Project, within the Amended 

Area as legally described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein, as if set out in full 

by this reference. The general street location (as near as practicable) for the Amended Area is 

described in Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein, as if set out in full by tins reference. 

The map ofthe Amended Area is depicted on Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein, as 

if set out in full by tIlis reference. 

Section 3. Pursuant to the TIF Act, tile ad valorem ta;'{es, if any, arising from the levies upon 

taxable real property in the Added Area by taxing districts and ta.x rates determined in the marmer 

provided in 65 ILCS SM-74.4-9 of the TIF Act each year after the effective date of this ordinance 

until the Project costs as estimated by the Amended Plan and Project and any municipal obligations 

issued in respect thereto have been paid shall be divided as follows: 

a) That portion of taxes levied upon each taxable lot, block, tract or parcel of real 

property which is attributable to the lower of tile current equalized assessed value or the initial 

equalized assessed value of each such taxable lot, block, tract or parcel of real property in the 

Amended Area shall be allocated to and when collected shall be paid by the county collector to the 

respective affected taxing districts in the marmer required by law in tile absence of the adoption of 

tax increment allocation financing. 

b) That portion, if any, of such taxes which is attributable to the increase in the current 

equalized assessed valuation of each taxable lot, block, trHct or parcel of real property in the Arnended 

Thi.rd ChdilJ:m:e 
3 



Area over and above the initial equalized assessed value of each property in the Area shall be 

allocated to and when collected shall be paid to the City treasurer, who shall deposit said taxes into 

a special fund, hereby created, and designated the "The South Bel1l')l1l Corridol' Special Tax 

Allocation FUlld' of the City, such taxes to be used for the purpose of paying project costs and 

obligations incurred in the payment thereof, pursuant to such appropriations as may be subsequently 

made. 

Section 4. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be held 

invalid, tlle invalidity thereof shall not affect any other provision of thls Ordinance. 

Section 5. All ordinances, resolutions, motions or orders in conflict with this Ordinance are 

hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict 

Section 6. Tills Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval and 

publication as provided by law. 

Third Oldim.l!1l:e 
4 



ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, illinois this 

___ day of August, 2008, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

I I YES I NO I ABSENT I PRESENT I 
Chapman 

Ramos 

Weiner 

Slcryd 

Day 

Phelan 

Lovero 

Erickson 

(Mayor O'Connor) 

I TOTAL I I I I I 
APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, illinois on this __ day 

of August, 2008. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas l. Pavlilc 
CITY CLERK 

Michael A O'Connor 
MAYOR 

5 
Third Oi,Jin~1nCe 



EXHlBITA 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

6 



Legal Description 
Parcels to Be Added to the Thpot TIF District via Amendment 

Also including; 
That part ofthe East half of the Northwest Quarter Section 31, Township 39 North, Range 13 
East of the Third Principal Meridi811, described as follows: Beginning at the northeast comer of 
Lot 21 in Block 9 in Berwyn Subdivision, said northeast corner also being a point on the west 
right-of-way line of Grove Avenue; thence south along said west right-of-way line of Grove 
Avenue to the southeast corner of Lot 25 in said Block 9; thence west along the south line of said 
Lot 25 and its westerly extension to the west line of the north-south alley lying south of Windsor 
Avenue and north of 34th Street; thence north along said west line of the last described alley to 
the westerly extension of the north line of said Lot 21 in Block 9; thence easterly along said 
westerly extension and north line of Lot 21 to the Point of Begirming, all in Cook County, 
Illinois. 

Also including; 
That p81i of the N OJiheast Quarter of Section 31, Township 39 North, Range 13 East of the Third 
Principal Meridian, described as follows: Beginning at the noriheast corner of Lot 2 in Block 3 
in Bolen's Resubdivision of Woods Subdivision of Blocles 2 811d 15 in LaVergne, a Subdivision 
of Part of said Section 31, said northeast corner also being a point on the southerly right-of-way 
line of Windsor Avenue; thence south along the east line of said lot 2 and its southerly extension 
to the south line of the east-west alley lying south of Windsor Avenue 811d north of Fairfield 
Avenue; thence west along said south line 811d its westerly extension to the west line of East 
Avenue; thence north along said west line to said southerly right-of-way line of Windsor Avenue; 
thence Northeasterly along said southerly right-of-way line of Windsor Avenue to the Point of 
Beginning, all in Coole County, Illinois. 

Also including; 
That p81i of the West half of the Northwest Quarter Section 32, Township 39 North, Range 13 
East of the TI1ird Principal Meridi811, described as follows: Beginning at the point of intersection 
ofthe southwesterly right-of-way line of the Illinois Central Railroad and the Southeasterly right
of-way line of the Chicago, Burlington and Quincy Railroad; thence southeasterly along said 
southwesterly right-of-way line to the North right-of-way line of Parle Avenue; thence southerly 
along a line that is perpendicular to said north right-of-way line to a point on the South right-of
way line of said P81·1e Avenue; thence west along a said south line of Parle Avenue to the east 
right-of~way line of Ridgeland Avenue; thence north along said east right-of-way line of 
Ridgeland Avenue to said Southeasterly right-of-way line of the Chicago, Burlington and Quincy 
Railroad; thence northeasterly along said Southeasterly right-of-way line to the Point of 
Begirming, all in Cook County, Illinois. 



EXBIBITB 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION 

7 
ThiJd Uldinance 



m. AMENDMENTS TO THE TIF PLAN 

In this section, amendments to the original TIF Plan are presented For reference, 
relevant excerpts from the original TIF Plan are shown, with amendments showing 
additions and deletions to the original language 

Amendment A 
Page 6 of the Original TIF Plan 

The boundaries of the ori~inal Project Area are shown in Figure 1, Boundary Map, and as 
amended are shown in Apoendix I. Amended Boundary Map. Said boundariesll'Rfl are 
generally described as follows: 

AmendmentB 
Page 6-7 of the Original TIF Plan 

The boundaries ofthe Project Area are legally described in Apoendix 2. as :eUaws: 

... ---1 Formatted Table 

... - - - i Formatted Table 

+Rat-part ef Sectiens 31 and,] in Te'?",shi? 39 Nerth, Range 13 East efthe Third Pr.ffi.eipal 
l\4-eI'i<ful~~~ed as fullews-i 

Begim'liFig at tfle intersection of the north line sf Stanly Avenue vdth the ,;vest fine efHome 
l' .. vcnl:lo; thence east along the ne;::fuer-Iy line efStih-"1:loy /\'vcmlc ans nertherJ:'li'F1e-ex4eFlt!efr-.t.e..:tl:re 
Vl'cst lffie of GlifltoFi :t't:VCfH:l:C; tReae: noftE: along 1h-e--west: liRe of Gootee l~:;terH.ie to tlle-ette1.74ea 
nertRcd:y liAG eftAc easf; 'r ... e5~ filley, lyil'I5 flOft.fi of SffiRle;' A\Cenuc ana sOl:!th of ;~nd-£.i:ree.F, 
tflence easleFly aleng the nenAeR,' Ime and nertheflyline e:1tende<l ehhe last described alley Ie 
tAe west line efl,enih':erth ,','(enH8; thence neltH aleng tHe west line ef!4enilwal'J. A,'e_ 
the e'ffenaed llef!l"erly l"'*-eHbe aferesaid east west alley; thence easterly aleng the nertflerlo' 
IiBe anE! !he ne''!Ae,!y liBe e"tenaee eesaiE! alle)'!e tAe easl line af!/'e nerd; S6Htfl allay Irffig 
5et:l~nd St:FCet, cast of: !~efli""reFth A",'CflliC\ fl8l .... J:j of £tanley. aRa we5~ of gpove l\:veFll:ic; 
ffieR€e-flBr'!h aleng the east Ime and east line e,,!enEled eftfle last deseFi.ed alle)'!8 a pein! Oll-!ll€ 
nortflline-ef....;2.fld Street; thence east aloBg the BOrth Ibe of 331

1;.1 Street ts the ,,,,ocst Ih'1e efthe 
flOrth south alley lying B~en Grove /\,;cffiie-arr6-Gal>2-Park Avenue; thence Bartl'} aJOFtg the 
""""line ana we5f-liI,e-e~ded eethe last deserfued a!ley Ie !I>e-flerth--lfee-BHhe-oo~ 
<jBanef af saiE! Seetien 31; tIlenee east aleng the lasl deseriaea Ime !e tfle e,ElenEleEi east liEe af!lle 
ootUl seH!h alley lying between Oal<-Parh AvenHe aad Euelid AvenHe; thenee sel±fu alang tfl' eas! 
line and east line e;:!enGed eftfle las! desc-ribea a!le)'!a the Harth line af.the-east west elley Iyb-,g 
R8FtA afSt_nle), A ,'_nHe ana seH!H en J"-&reet-;-tflenc-e-east aleng ti,e nerd, line and n~ 
~d ts the 'rYOsHine of Gunderson Avenl:le;-4l:.'Hffi€e-fiffi:th-iih3fl·g4l7e-¥o~e--ef Gtmderson 
Avenue; ta ll>e-fler'!h line efthe ne~-ofsaiEi Seetie;;--3+,-tl'lenee ea5! aleag til< lasl 
~ee! line to the H01'th .-: ... .t'~. ....1. ~ .... ;. eiflt 3158 Bein'" fue FlOi .... thW8St 

) 

I 



CSffier of:tfie B8iWy,'est Ejl:iarter-e.f-saie! SeCtiSfi ;2~ tl1eaee east al8flgtfie flsfifllffie sfsaia 
nortl~ ... ,'e5t quarter Ie the soutHerl), liRe efthe I.G.R.R.; 

tAense se~!fieaslefll' .10Rs!fie last aese,o;eea liRe aRE! tfle last aeserieaa liRe e"IeAaee 10 Ifle 
sooilier~ftfle G.B & Q.R.R; tiJeRse v;es!"rl), aleRg the las! aeseriioea liae 10 the easterl)" 
Ii"e efRiagelaR. Ayenue; tfleRse soulll along th~05tefl)' line-le-Rk!geluna AV8Flue to Ille south 
tree Effie 50Ht!; Iil."le e;~teFl8es ef~\;jflEl5eF :A~'el'H±e; ffieFlee ~ ... e5t alsag ~fie S8H'd1 !in~~ 
enteflaes eft!:te ~\rifle!ser .6rl{eHl:ie; t:8 a peint Sn the cast 1me efGah PaFfE J0,cvcfiHe; tficflee SOI:!tfl: 

along !fie last eeserieea line to the soullliiae oto'I'" £Il'eet; thenee west along tha las! eeseribaa 
+iRe-fffia last aeserieea line e'ileRlkEi-!e-the west line of Gf8"e A,'eRue; tl""ee noft;, al8ng the 
wesHiae ffilEl wesl liRe e"tendea of GfO"e .~','en"e 10 tfle Hofth line of be! 21 in BleelE 9 in 
Berwyn Suea;;'isie,,; thenee west aloRs the nefll; line ana 50fll, line e"tenclea of let 21 t-e-the 
west line sf the flortfi SO!:HB alley lying south of\Vifldsol' Aveflue; th8flce '<' .. est along the SOL.~ 
line .Ra seuth lil,e e"tenaea eftl,e last aeserieeEl alley to the .;est line oHlo",e A"enue: Illenee 
ROI'!h along the wesl line .Ha west line elOtenaeEl of Hem~oin! Of eegiAfling. 

AmendmentC 
Page 16-18 of the Original TIF Plan ... - -- i Formatted Table I 

a~ Gest:s ef:~l:ieje5, SI::!:i~'ey5, ae~'elopFflefl:~ efplsfls 8:!,6 spceH'ica1:isHs, imj3lemen~atieA alia 
aeiminist!=stiSE eftl3c roee';'eISflfficflt plaa iflcll:iEiffig eHt flat lhl'l:itee t8 staff aBe prsfessieflal 
sen:"iee oests fer arefljtecR::lfal~ eAgifleef~ng, legal, 'l1'1!H'hetiRg, :HflsAcial, plsnflhig sr e~'leF 5e1"',-iee5, 
~.eed that no charges fer prafessioflal sen'iees arc bases Sf\: El percentage Bft~1e ta;~ i19~ 
e<>lleetecl, 

~eft)· asserrl~ly eosts, ineluaing eet not lim"eEl to ae'lHisi!ion of laRa anElother pfopefly, 
real Sf p2:rsenal~ 8f rights 6r ifltCFCSt: therein. dcmoJitiofl ofbl:lildings, aBB tlie cloedEg and 
gre&ing ofIaHEl; 

e) Cests af reHabilitation, roconstructiofl or repak 61" remodeling of e::isting pHblie Of private 
h>tiltlings and fj"t"l'e5; 

"J Costs of the eOAstrueaoA ofpuelie ",,,rio or irnpfO\'emeAts, 

0) Costs afjab training anEl retraining projects; 

B Fin'Deing eosts iAc~Bl-no: En,ito" ta, all neeessa,.)" am! ineideffial-e;(i'eR5e5-r~ 
the issl:iEffice af ebHgatiofls anel: 'Hfiich may iflsh:lee-13frj"ffient of: h'lter-est OE ai~ens issl:l:e6 
ACrel:maef aecrl:l:il'lg Bl:!riflg tl1e cSBmatee periee 6f. eSF!5ffI:!6Eiei'i sf an)' reae':elefllTlen~ prejeet fer 
",,'hiE'!; su:fi obligatiens Ei:Fe issl:iea aBd fer a peried not e.weeding :6 msnths following eeffifiktioR 
and inelue1iflg reosoRoble-reserves related tl~ 

g) All Of a pOi'Mfi-ef.<Ha:dEg eisa'i~ital-eests resHiting ffeiTl-the-r-e<kY~.,aryrej€et 
fleeessaril,' fnCHITee! 8f to ee iRcHfl'ed '''''1t11:in a ta:EtB;; eHst::=ict in fl:Htfl2renee oftbe esjectill'es af 



t1-1e redevelepffieAl plaB and project te the e"teat ",e mlli'iicipality by 'I,Tittec1 agreement aeeepts 
~reye5 5Heh ee5ts; 

l>1-Reieea!iea cests te ~l~At tila: e m!ffiici~ali;;' eelermi".s fuet relecaliea eests shell be-y.;i<! 
-Sf is required to make payment sf FclocatioB costs by federal or state 13\\' 

t)-Paymcnt in lieu oftEEces; 

j) Costs of JOB trainiF.g, retraining, as\'aneed voeatioaru education OF career e8\;lcatien; inel1::lding 
hut net Hffiit-ea to eOBrscs ii'l 8~F!a~, serAi tccfinieaJ 8f teehfiica-1 ReIss l~aaing Elire~ 
empleyment, inmwred-by-ene-ermere taxiAg districts, preYided ",at such cests (il are related-te 
the establishment S:!"1:8 maiF.tet'lE'u1Ce of additiona1-jes training, aevanced \'o~-edueation or 
career esucatioo-pregr8'ffis fer persens empleyed eHe-be-€ffij3leyeslly emple)'ers leeated-ia-a 
reac,,'clOplTlcnt prejeet area; ana EH~ WfiCFl iFlcHffca by 8 tSi:ing aistfie~ aT tadng dis'tFiet:5 e~her 
than the 111I:1nieipalit)" are set forth in a 'nTirten agreement by or Billong tAe fllunieipa1it)' ana the 
taxhlg 81striGt-er-ffi7i::iFlg distriets, whieh agreement deseFibes4he prograffl-tB--6e I:radertalceir, 
tnelt±EH-""Ig fH.it l1e~ limitee te tl=!e numeer e:f.ernpleyees-te-!;e a:a:ineEl, a aeseriptioA efthe traiAlflg 
aad sm'iees Ie ae pre',idee, tl18 AHA,ber aAslO'!" ee~esitieAs a','eilal3le or te ae ayailal3le, 
itemized eests enAe pF8gn>fl1 aREi se>lfces offuAss te pa), for the seme, "A" the tem, efthe 
agrecITl:cfJ.:t. £uEfi casts include, speetflcally, the payment 19y caEflfE.:'dflity eeHege aist1~ 
p"l'5HiH'lHe SactieAs:j 34,3 ;,g!; 4G all" 3 Q9,I of tile P""lic CeA1muAi;;' Cellege Act all;!-by 
5€Aool eHstriets of tests pursuant ta Sectism 19 23.29a-arul19 23.3a eeThe ScheGl-Gode; 

l0-H'ltCre5t-eest-ffi€tlrre~e¥elBj3er related to the coRStruction, rcnoyation or rehabilita:ion 
ef a redeyelopment project predded-tl-1ati 

~"eh cests are Ie be paid direetl), ii'em tile Special ta" alleea:ien fulld established 
j3ttrSBarfc to tae .~et; 
2. SBER PaJ'fflcnt:s in any Ofl~ e~~Eee6 39% of the afiH\:lal lfi1crest-€B-Sts 
ffi_r wH:l=! reganl to the rede';'ciopITl:ent j9Fejeet auftfig that yeaf~ 
3. if:llere are ae: s"fEcieat funds ",,'.ilaale iH ",e speeifrl-ta.~"iltioll flfflE! te mal!e the 
paymeat theA tAe amWflts-oo eBe shall accrue aBS be payalole wheA sBflicienl ftmEls-ar-e 
a~'ans:ele iR :1=Ie 51geeial ta::~ alleeatien :ft!Ra; 
~, the 10tal ofsueh interest-paYffients paid pUiSt:lant to t=he Act may ne~8 3g~(, aftie 
telal (i) eest paid er h,eulTed by ",e redevelaper fer the rede"ele~fBjeet plus (ii) 
redevelepmeAt projeet eests enebdiHg an)' preperty asseffiBly eests and sny reloealien 
ees:s ineB" ea by a municipali;;' p~.;;P, 

l7-b'''lless '''plicitly staled he~-€{lAstr"cti<>fH3.f.!~ri"at'l)' ewnea 
b1±il<lffigs-slmlh,et-ee-an eligible redewek>pment proje.t cest 

Elieible costs pennitted by the Act and pertainine to this Plan include: 

0) Professional Service Costs Costs of studies. surveys. develogment of glans. and 
sgecifications. irnQlementation and administration of the redevelonrnent glan includine but not 
limited to staff and DTofessional service costs for architectura1. ene:ineerm2. leea1. financial. 



Rlanning or other services. I2rovided however thf!t no chames for I2rofessional services may be 
based on a Dercent"",e of the tax increment collected: exce~t that on and after November 1. 1992 
(the effective date of Public Act 91-478). no contract;; for ~rofessioDal services. excluding 
architectural and engineering services. may be entered into if the tenns of the contract extend 
beyond a Qeriod of:2 Years. After consultation with the municiQa1ity. each tax increment 
consultant or advisor to a municiQalitv that Qlans to desle:nate Of has desiQ11ated a redeveloRment 
Rroje£t area shall inform the munici12ali!y' in writine: of any contracts that the consultant or advisor 
has entered into with entities or individuals that have received. or are receivln2:. Qavrnents 
financed bv tax increment revenues produced by the redeveloQment oroject area with res}2ect to 
which the consultant or advisor has Relforrned. or wil1 be I2erfonniue:. service for the 
rnunici12ality. This reQuirement shall be satisfied by the consultant or advisor before the 
commencement of services fQrthe rnuniciJ2alitv and thereafter whenever any other contracts with 
those individuals or entities are executed by the consultant or advisor: 

Q The cost of rnarketine: sites within the redeveloQment nroject area to urosQective 
businesses. develoners. and investors: 

0 Annual adrninis:trative costs shall not include e:eneral overhead Of administmtive costs of 
the munici]2alitv that would still have been incuned bX the municiQalitv if the municinalitv ha~ 
not desi2l1ated a redevelopment project area or approved a redeveloI2ment plan: 

Q In addition. redevelopment project costs shall not include lobbying expenses: 

(2) Progertv Assemblv Costs Costs includino but not limited to acguisition of land and other 
pIO]2ertv (real or personal) or rillhts or interests therein. demolition ofbuildin2:s. site :Qre]2aration, 
site imI2rovements that serve as an enl!ineered barrier addressine: ground level or below !!rDund 
environmental contamination. including. but not limited to garking lots and other concrete or 
asghalt barriers. and the clemino and ",adino of land; 

(3) ImofOvements to Public o[ Private ;euBdine:s - Costs of rehabilitation. reconstruction. 
repair, or remodeling of existine: J.?ublic or private buildings. fixtures. and leasehold 
imI2rovements: and the cost QfreolaciOI! an existine: J2ublic building ifgursuant to the 
imQ:lementation of a redeveloornent I2roject the existIDe: Rublk buildine: is to be demolished to use 
the site for orivate investment or devoted to a different use reauiring private investment: 

(1) Public Works - Costs of the constr'l:!ctioD of oublic works or imQrDvemenj]. exceQt that on 
al1d after November L 1999. redevelogment oroiect costs shall not include the cost of 
constructin!2 a new municipal Qublic building orinc1}2ally used to Rrovide offices. stora!:!e snace. or 
conference facilities or vehicle storage. maintenance. or regair for administrative.gublic safety. or 
12ublic works RerSonnel and that is not intended to replace an existing: public buildine: as Qrovided 
under ~arglITallh (3) of subsection (g) of Section 11-74.4-;) unless eitller (il tbe construction of the 
new municipal buildinQ: UnQlements a I edevelo~ment Qroiect that was included in a 
[edeveloQrnent Qlan that was ado12ted by the municiQa1ity Qrior to November 1. 1299 or eii} the 
municiRa1i!y makes a reasonable determination in the redeveloQment glan. SURp-oIted b~ 
infmmatiQn that J2fQvides the basis for that detennin£!tion that the new municip-al building is 
required to meet an increase in the need for Dublic safetv DUJ1)oses anticioated to result from the 



implementation of the redevelopment DIan: 

(5} Job Iraining: - Costs of job training: and retraining: Q[ojects. incluging: the cost of "welfare 
to work" pro~ams implemented bv businesses located within the redevelopment project area: 

(6} Financing Costs - Costs including but not limited to all necessID and incidental eXl2enses 
related to the issuance of oblilrations and which mav include payment of interest on any 
obliQations issued hereunder including: (a) interest accruing: during the estimated :Qenod of 
construction of any redeveloQment :Qroject for which such ob1i2ations are issued and for a ReTiod 
not exceeding 36 months thereafter and (b) reasonable reserves related thereto: 

(7l Capital Co~ts - T Q the extent the municiRality bv written agreement acceQts and aWTOves 
the same. all or a Qortion ofa taxinQ district's ca12ital costs resulting from the redeveJoQment 
Qroject necessarily incurred or to be incurred within a taxing: district in furtherance of the 
obiectives of the redevelopment plan and project: 

(8} School-Related Costs - For redevelopment R(oject areas designated (or redevelonment 
project rueas amended to add or increase the number oftax-increment-fmancinQ assisted housing 
units) on or after November 1. 1999. an elementarY. secondary. or unit school district's increased 
costs attJibutable to assisted housing units located within the redeveloRment project area for 
which the develoRer or redeveloRer receives financial assistgnce through an agreement with the 
municip-ality or because the municipality incuIs the cost of necessary infrastruc1l!re im12rovements 
within the boundaries of the assisted housing: sites necess~ for the cOlTI:Qletion of that housing as 
authorized b)' the dcl and whicb costs shall be Raid b)' the municiRalitv from the Sllecial Tax 
Allocation Fund when the tax increment revenue is received as a result of the assisted housing 
units and shall be calculated annuallv. 

(9) Relocation Costs - To the extent that a municinality detennines that relocation costs shall 
be Raid or is reguired to make Rayment of relocation costs by federal or State law or in order to 
satisfy subllara<naph (7} of subsection (n} of the Act: 

illll Pavment in lieu of taxes: 

(II) Other Job Training - Costs of job training:. retraining. advanced vocational education or 
career educi!tion. includin!2 but not limited to courses in occll12ationa1. semi-technical or technical 
fields leadine diregtly to em1210vmenL incuned by one or more taxing districts. provided that §uch 
costs (i) are related to the establishment and maintenance of additional iob training. advanced 
vocational education or careel education D1'OfITams for Qersons erngloyed or to be emgloyed by 
emQloyers located in a I edevelo12ment nroject area: and (ij} when incuned by a taxine district or 
taxing districts other than the munici12a1ity. are set forth in a written a2Teement by or among the 
municiJ2ality and the taxing district or taxing districts. which agreement describes the n:T'Ol.:!ram to 
be undertaken. includin!! but not limited to the number of elTIQloyees to be trained. a descri12t1on 
of the training and services to be Drovided. the number and tv12e of}2ositions availab1e or to be 
available. itemized costs ofthe nrmrr'8m and sources of funds to p-a~ for the same. and the term of 
the aQTeement. Such costs include. sDecifical1y. the pavment bv community colle2e districts of 
costs Rursu~nt to Sections 3-37. 3-38. 3-40 ang 3-40.1 of the Public Community ColleQe Act ~nd 



by school districts of costs pursuant to Sections 10-22.20a and 10-23.3a cfThe School Code: 

(12l DeveloJ2er Interest Cost - Interest cost incurred by a redeveloRer [elated to the 
construction. renovation or rehabilitation of a redevelopment project provided that: 

(Al such costs are to be paid directly from the special tax allocation fund established pursuant 
to the Act: 
(Bl such gavrnents in anY one year may not et;;ceed 30% of the annual interest costs incurred 
by the redeveloRer with reeard to the redeveloRment Rfoject during that Year: 
(Cl if there are not sufficient funds available in the snecial tax allocation fund to make the 
payment then the amounts so due shall accrue and be gayable when sufficient funds are available 
in the special tax allocation fund: 
CD) the total of such interest Rayments Qaid Rursuant to the Act may not exceed 30% of the 
total (il cost paid or incurred bv the redeveloper for the redevelopment project glus (ii) 
redeveloJ2ment groject costs excJydinf! any QrogenY assemblv costs and any relocation costs 
incurred by a municipality pursuant to the Act: 
CEl the cost limits set forth in subgara!ITaphs (Bl and (D) of Qara2Iaph shall be modified for 
the financine: of rehabilitated or new housine: units for low-income households and verY low-
income households. as defmed in Section 3 of the lJIinois Affordable Housine Act. The 
percentage of75% shall be substituted for 30% ill subparaoraphs (B) and (D). 
(F) Instead of the elioible costs provided by subgaraoraghs (B) and CD). as modified by this 
subparaQIaQh. and notwithstanding: anY other };!rovisions of the Act to the contrary. the 
rnunici12ality may Ray from tax increment revenUes up to 50% of the cost of construction of new 
housing units to be occunied bv low-income households ~nd very low-income households as 
defined in Section 3 of the lllinois Affordable Housing Act. The cost of construction of those 
units may be derived from the Droceeds of bonds issued QV the municiQali!y und~r the Act or 
other constitutional or statutorY authority or from other sources of munici};!al revenue that may be 
reimbursed from tax increment revenues or the yroceeds of bonds issued to finance the 
construction of that housine. The elioible costs provided under this subparalnagh IF) shall be an 
eliQible cost for the cons1I.Yction. renovation. and rehabilitation of all low and very low-income 
housing: units. as defined in Section 3 of the Illinois Affordable Housine: Act. within the 
redeveloQment QI'Oject area. If the low and verY low-income units are Rart of a residential 
redevelo:gment Qroject that includes units not affordable to low and verY low-income households. 
only the low and very low-income units shall be e1ie:ible for benefits under subDararrranh (F). 

The TIF Act Qrohibits certain costs. Unless eXRlicitlv stated herein the cost of construction of 
new Qrivately-owned buildimz:s sball not be an elie:ible redeveloQment Rroject cost. In addition. 
the statute Qrohibits costs related to retail develo!;;!ment that results in the closin2. of nearby 
f§cilities of the same retailers. S12ecificallv. none of the redeveloQment :Qfoject costs enumerated 
in the Act shall be el1rrible redevelogment RIOject costs if those costs would grDvide direct 
fmancial sURgort to a retail entity initiatine: oQerations in the redeveJo12ment Rroject area while 
terminatine. ogerations at another Illinois location within 10 miles of the redeveloRment Qroject 
area but Qutside the boundaries of the redevelo:Qment pJ'Oject area municinalitv. . 



AmendmentD 
Page 18-19 of the Original TIF Plan 

2, Estimated Redevelopment Costs 

A range of redevelopment activities and improvements will be required to implement this 

I 
Redevelopment Plan The activities and improvements and their estimated costs (-1-9%-2008 
dollars) are summarized "e!e'?; ans shewn in Table I, Estimated Redevelopment Project 
Costs. To the extent that municipal obligations have been issued to pay for such 
Redevelopment Project Costs prior to, and in anticipation of, the adoption of TlF, the City 
shall be reimbursed from incremental property taxes for such Redevelopment Project Costs. 

I The estimated Redevelopment Project Costs illHstrates bele\\' al,d in Table I are intended to 
provide an upper estimate of expenditures.. Within this upper estimate, adjustments may be 

I made in line:-items without amending this Redevelopment Plan. 

I The estimate of Redevelopment Project Costs listed beJBw.aml-m",;\ralOO-in Table 1 excludes 
financing costs, including any interest expense, capitalized interest and costs associated with 
optional redemptions These costs are subject to prevailing market conditions and are in 
addition to total Redevelopment Project Costs .. 

efP-f.sFl1i:ng. Legal, .1dm:nistl'ath·c snd O/her Fees -- -( Formatted: Bullets and Numbering I 

Estimated Cest $:so,ooo 

This e)[pellsiture in.luses surve), ana SIDa), eests, le;a! ser¥i€es,aaministfative 
~f' .. ice5 and-BtfleF professioBal ana-5€i. .... :iee fees BS50eiated witfi implcFEcntin; 
tfijs Redevelopment Plan fu'1t1 providb."'lg a secure environmcnt fer private 
ur:esEnent in aeesrdance with tfie /' ... €t. 

19)Praperty J1sscmb(~' --- -{ Formatted: Bullets and Numbering I 

Estimates Cost S750,000 

This e:Cj3cndit1:lre prsvides for tHe aCE{!:lisitisA and assembly of lana for 
R>G~nt-by-tJ,e City or agent for the City, Vaeant-eHlli<lerutilizea 
pr"'PeI'lJ'-ffia;rbe aeqHirea by purehase, .::ehange er long te"", lea:;e-l;y-pFi¥flte 
developers oflhe Cit}, fer the-p\lTfl0Se of:w\' sevelopm~ 

c) Bl.':k(,17:g Rehae;/it6'tioJ1 

--Es1'iffiBtes Cost SI,7S0,OGG 

---'+TRllh c::penditure-prsvidcs foF-4e rehabilitation, FeceJ1strt:lctioR, repa-ir--er 
rCFHoaeling of existrng public SF private b1:liJdings and fixtures. 



Estimated Cost ,2,009;ilOO 

This e:cpendit1:ffe provides for tie CBflstruction OJ e:;:tcnsiol'l of water mains, 
sewers Bad stonnwatcr 8etcntion ~rilfJr8\'emcFlt5; the canstruEtiOl'l Oi 

impFovcmeat of landscaj3hlg aas Bl;lffers, stTeetscafJes, street lightirlg and 
general-beautiReati,," i"'prOVeEleB"; :he ee"str"eti~"alie parlo eF epee 
spa:ee; ana the eOFlstruction or improvement of streets, sidewallo----art€l 
pari~ 

c) Dc/dupe;' Interest SUBsidies 

----~E~S~:ffiill' ""a~ffist~--------------------------~S~g~OO~,~OOG 

f! 

This e::peRditure previaes far reimbursement efBp te 30 p~er5 
ifitefest casts 85 praviel:etkmder the }\ct. 

rstall?::Se':e.'spl1isnt Prsjcct cests ewe estimates at SG,l50,OOO 

----Planning, Legal, Admi"istrative anel Qtile!' fees $ 350,000 
Preperef Asse":al), $ 1,250,000 
g"i1Eiing Rehaailitatien S 1,750,000 

--PtHJlk 'Narks and Utility improvements $ ~,Ooo,GOO 
Daveleper In:er'eesffit~S"u",a",sii<ldii,e;&s-----------------------l!:S:::ilg9!OO~,9cOOflJtO 

-----l~epaleat Proje,! Casts 

f-H Estimated Reeiere/opmenf Proj::ct Ces:s eTc.We finaae/n;; ces-ts f, ;:;.'uehrg 6'i'~r 
interest cXpc:i5C, cSf3itali=cd interest fmd costs assacis.'Cd ',!'ilh spaGna! redClnpticns, 
These easts are susjec{ Ie p,"cw;ll/fl.g mtwicet sand-it/am mrd eFe in c:ddiria17 to le:a! 
Res::yele-pr:'Icnt Project Casts, 



Rehabilitation of Ex is tine: Structures 

Public Facilities fincludine: Parkine: Gara2e) 

lnterest Costs Pursuant to the Act 
Professional Service Costs (Includine: Planning:. Lee:al. Ene:ineerine:. 
Administrative. Annual Reportine:. and Marketin2) 

Job Training 
AlITeements with Other Taxine: Districts: School District 
Reimbursements 
TOTAL ESTIMATED TIF BUDGET 

l!lu.<i; 
'/) All pm;"c1 CQ& e5lim.7le~ my jn \'eM "OOS Pollan. Cp"!S ID?Y he ndiu5!ed (Dr ioDntion per the TIE ';ct 

3.000.000 

10.000.000 

500.000 

500.000 

500.000 

500.000 
$35.000.000 

(71 In nddilion to tbe com jriemifi;d in Ibe eljhjhit nhpve nnv bQndti~d 10 finnoce n ohMe jJfthe Pro.k£Lmfl\' jnclude on nmrmn! 
willden! 10 POv (n) cU!i!omop' ODd re.nsQn~hJe chj\fge5 nssodmed with the imnnce n(sllch oblirrntjg11S ~n.rLW 
c:mimlized jmerest :md reamnnbly reQl!ired re~en·e .. 
f3l AriillSlmenlS to the eSlimnted line-item co5tfi Move nre exnected M;lIStme* ma\' he ronde io ljne.jtems within the !Om) either 
increliijinn or decrea~I'n!,! line·irem.~ com forredeveJQ1?ment Each individual proiecl cost win be reevnlunled in !jsht of the projected priville 
deydoprocn! nnd remlrinS la'S revennes ns jI ifi Consjdered forpJJ.hlk.ii.nnn~~fthe Act TIle tOl* o(the Jine·j!;ms 
W forth ahol'e pre t10! intend;d to pl!!ce!! tOlD! Ijmit po 'he descnPed SiSoendinm::s as the snecific items listed ahQve nre opt intended 10 
p~nym;;O! gfmherelicrih1e redsvslppmen! nrQiW CM'S jn cpnnection Ibercde\'e1npmen) of the RpA m:midwhuo1nl.mruumLo. 
pDvment for elicibJe redevelopment project com shall no! eKeeed Jhc ovetjl!! budge! nmpun! m!!lined nhove 

AmendmentE 
Page 21 of the Original TIF Plan 

By ta" year ~997 (e8I1ee,;ellyear ~998) ""a f81181':iF,g the e8mp!et;eH ef all peteRaal 
Re<le¥clBpme!:t Prejeets, the EA-\Lef.ll;e-Prejeet A;-e8 is estiedatea t8 !eta! appreKimately 
~is estimate is basee BF! several·key assurnptiol'ls, ineJudi~ 
'f-e6eve+epfficnt Bfthe Prejeet Area will seeur in a tinre.ly manner; 2) the 1995 El',\, efthe 
Fr8.ieet ,'",sa '.'.-iII ifillate at the rate ef;) i'ereent-per a",,,,m; ella 3) the 'h'e year a""''llge 
stale equaJi,at;en faeler 8[".1911 (Ia" years 1991 t;u'eugl! 1990) ;5 used ill all ye""s te 
ea-letrl-a{ed estimated EAV. 

Ugon comgletion of the anticigated grivate deyelogmenl oflhe RPA and tennination of 
the TIF District. it is estimated that the EA V of the grollertv within the RP A will be 
aggroximately $55.000.000. 



EXBIBITC 

MAP OF AMENDED REDEVELOFMENT PROJECT AREA 

Third (ilJillllllce 
8 



31 at ST. 

32 nd ST. 

t ~ ~" 
..... li·-i:rd 

,., ,-, .. , ,-... 
'" '" , .. 1. .. ,." 

Ilil ::::.a.;; ";'::;;,E:r-...::: 

CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 
DEPOT DISTRICT TIP DISTRICT MAP 

MAYOR - MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR 
CITY CLERK - THOMAS J. PAVLm 

~ oj 

~ 
r; "' o.i .; o.i >-o.i >- -<I 

:;; ttl .; ~ '" ~ z :;; ~ ~ 1;; r; ,.; >- ~ '" ~ 
0 '" 0 -<I ~ 

.; u ~ 
C/l '" 3 z ... .." ,.. Z -<I ~ 0 ~ 

" ::l r; 0. :3 ::l '" - "' 0 

'" ~ [:l ,... 
'" tl 

,. '" I:; '" "" 5 z 0 ';:j u rn j 0 s j 8 0 [:l ~ ::J ~ ;;l u ::J 
:t: u '" 0 '" u C/l '" '" '" u 

----.-1 11 1,1' IU L-J;L-.J'~ ,L-.J' <--I ___ ~ 
-

I' • J ["""I L-:::::- ~ ~,c:J' 1"U'u'" .0.01 0" 0 oq: 2~, .' b-~,~" ._, ", "411.L, 

I ' ;--- t:J ~Q~-> '~'f=4DD' UU: ' , , -~::d ~ :::=~~ u U L-J .' U_ 32 nd ST. 

.00:00 rJ p 0~ ~ CJ CJ OODDt In, n.1 11 
-' '--

,~r :=J,~~r4kFl,nnDDI II I' ", 
~~~:tOl'lCJ C:~J L-v" UU UU ,'." • ULY 

FAIRFIELD A VII. 

33 rd ST. 

~'r--l:r--l r--l,nn nn 111111:1 II // ~Q ,ni 34 th ST. 

Existing TIF District Parcels 

jI:(ii.:'::;i) ProposedTIF District Extension 
DATE: Apri!l3,l006 



EXHIBIT A 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

8 



Legal Description 
Parcels to Be Added to the Thpot TIF District via Amendment 

Also including; 
That part of the East half of the Northwest Quarter Section .31 , Township .39 North, Rarlge 13 
East of the Third Principal Meridian, described as follows: Begirming at the northeast corner of 
Lot 21 in Block 9 in Berwyn Subdivision, said northeast corner also being a point on the west 
right-of-way line of Grove Avenue; thence south along said west right-of~way line of Grove 
Avenue to the southeast corner of Lot 25 in said Block 9; thence west along the south line of said 
Lot 25 and its westerly extension to the west line of the north-south alley lying south of Windsor 
Avenue and north of 34'h Street; thence north along said west line of the last described alley to 
the westerly extension of the north line of said Lot 21 in Block 9; thence easterly along said 
westerly extension and north line of Lot 21 to the Point ofBegirming, all in Cook County, 
lllinois 

Also including; 
That part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 31, Township 39 North, Range 13 East of the Third 
Principal Meridian, described as follows: Beginning at the northeast comer of Lot 2 in Block 3 
in Bolen's Resubdivision of Woods Subdivision of Blocks 2 and 15 in LaVergne, a Subdivision 
of Part of said Section 31, said northeast corner also being a point on the southerly right-of~way 
line of Windsor A venue; thence south along the east line of said lot 2 arld its southerly extension 
to the south line of the east-west alley lying south of Windsor Avenue and north of Fairfield 
Avenue; thence west along said south line and its westerly extension to the west line of East 
Avenue; thence north along said west line to said southerly right-of-way line of Windsor Avenue; 
thence Northeasterly along said southerly right-of-way line of Windsor Avenue to the Point of 
Beginning, all in Cook County, Illinois. 

Also including; 
That part of the West half ofthe Northwest Quarter Section 32, Township 39 North, Range 13 
East of the Third Principal Meridian, described as follows: Beginning at the point of intersection 
of the southwesterly right-of-way line of the Illinois Central Railroad and the Southeasterly right
of~way line of the Chicago, Burlington and Quincy Railroad; thence southeasterly along said 
southwesterly right-of-way line to the North right-of-way line of Park Avenue; thence southerly 
along a line that is perpendicular to said north right-of~way line to a point on the South right-of
way line of said Park Avenue; thence west along a said south line of Park Avenue to the east 
right-of-way line of Ridgeland Avenue; thence north along said east right-of-way line of 
Ridgeland Avenue to said Southeasterly right-of-way line of the Chicago, Burlington and Quincy 
Railroad; thence northeasterly along said Southeasterly right-of-way line to the Point of 
Beginning, all in Cook County, Illinois. 



EXIllBITB 

GENERAL DESCRlPTION 

9 
Fit':;l ()l,Jiunnl,:e 



III. AMENDMENTS TO THE TIF PLAN 

In this section, amendments to the original TIF Plan are presented. For reference, 
relevant excerpts from the miginal TIF Plan are shown, with amendments showing 
additions and deletions to the original language 

Amendment A 
Page 60Jthe Original TIF Plan 

The boundaries ofthe oridnal Project Area are shown in Figure I, Boundary Map, and as 
amended are shown in Appendix I. Amended Boundarv Map, Said boundariesafle are 
generally described as follows: 

AmendmentB 
Page 6-7 oJthe Original TIF Plan 

The boundaries of the Project Area are legally described in Appendix 2, as fe1l8ws: 

... - - ... - Formatted Table 

,",. - ... ,. i Formatted Table 

+I"'t-j3~HBfl5-3-! and 33 in-'Fewfl5hip 39 Nor-!h;-Range 13 East 8fthe Thircl P;~a-l 
M·efi<llilfl-ir;-C-ee~""tyo-l-Itirrei;r.-betrflee~€fiBeEkl5-fel.lew'r. 

Beginniflg at the-iffi.erseetion sf the-fH3fth line of Stanly Avenue with the 'Ncst line of r lome 
M€flliet-\lrence east alefljl-!lle-MFtl;el'ly-1.ifre-e-f:.StafIley Avenue ana n8i1herly-l.ifr"""'-tefleeel-te-tl,e 
"",st IiAe 8f GlintoA Ave~ert€e-flertlraler>£-tlle-\¥est line of Clirrtetr--t'n'efltle to the e:olen<l<;a 
n""lhedy line of.!l,e-east-we;'t-a+ler,-ly-irrg-ner1I~ o[StaAley A .. eAHe an8-seH~"d-&reet; 
IhaflC-e-eastel~ng-tl,e-rreF!lrer-ly-1ffie-atrd-tier1hffiy-line e"tenaed-ef.the-1asHlesefibed-alley-te 
the wesl line of Kenil"'8l1h Aveffilet-\lreAce north-aleng-tfla wesl line of 1~l1lr-A¥effile-le 
Ille e"Iended-He~H,e-eH!'e-&fer~ast-west-fr!ley,-Iheflee-easterly-aleflg-lhe flol'Iherly 
+iRe-&I1d-tlle-rrefllreflr-Iii'e-e<-terrdeEk>f.sa-i6-a.J.!ey-te-tl,e-easf-Iirr~e-flel1h-seuth-all ej' I,' in g 
sSLlth of 32"d -&tl'€et,easf-eH",Jti.lwel'lh-A¥effile,-ReI1I; of Stanley, aAd ",es(48ro"e Ayeffil'" 
llleA€e-flerth aloRg Ihe-ea51-lirre-aRd-aast-I·i,,~,..ee<k>Hhe-l~sl de,cribed all,), 18 a peirrl-en-t-he 
Fl6fllr-l.itle-ef,;;!"d-&tl'€et;-theI1C~ aloRg lire Rerth-lirre-ef,;;!''''-sffe'l 18 Ihe west line of the 
Fl6ftlr-seuth aile), I)'ing be>weerr-Gf<we-A-veffile-&l1il-Gal<-f'afl, AyeR:"; tl,eREe-Hertlralerr;;-#le 
wesl IiR' an d \I' esl Iin"""'leneetl-ef.the-1asHle5c-f~be6-al1ey-te-tl,e-rrer'!l-1-Iffi~e-fle.tJr.wes1 
'l"ffi'\eHTf-saffl-!;eetjeiH-l-;-theAee-east-a-le"g-I1,e-lasf-ees€flbeEl-lirre-te-the-e:!teRdecl-easf-lirre-e-f.the 
fl6fIh-;;eutl1 a!Je)' lying betweeR Oak·Part AYeltue-alld-£trclid Aveffile; IlleRce soulh aloRg the ea,t 
+iRe-frf!<l-east-l1e-e:!t"R6ed-aHhe-lasf-de5C..fibe6-alley-te-the-rrel1Mi~e-<:a5l--\;' est a II ej' I)'irr g 
Fl6F1il sf Stan Ie)' AyeRue-and s8uth 8f3 I "-&treet;-thenc-e-€ast-a-leeg-tlle-Il<H4fl-H_d-r,eFtIt-HRe 
e:fteAeed-te-tile we ,I I irre-<: f 8 una el~ell-lweffiler-tt1enee-"erth-illeng-tfle-we5f-+iRe-efGtt~er, 
A¥e\,ue;-te-tl,e-rrer1h-\ine-&f4J;e;,ertl'ea;;HjUR1'ler-<>f.saiil-Seetiefl-3+,-therree-east-frJeHg-lhe-IHst 
Beserteeellil'le te tl,e flsrtheast eel'Her ef::saia Aertl~ . ;' eiHt ~:15e ~ 

J 

) 



eeffl:er-ef-tfle-Aorth\\"est quarter efsai~ctien 33; t!;etree-east aloAg the nortfilffi.e-e.f-sa-ie 
nerthwest ~uar{",. te !he semhe,.l)' line-eHfl~ 

thenee seutheasterl), aleng H,e lar.rt-dese,.ibee line ane the last BeseribeB liRe ",aeneee te the 
settll1efly+ifle efthe e.B & Q.~nee weste,.ly aleag the-last Beseribee liR~f!5!erl7 
~dgeJtmfr.A.¥en~"""e-5eH-!h-alet>g-!h~rJrlffie4e-Ridgelane Avenue te H,e soH!h 
tine-al1e-seHlh-lifte-e;<lenBeB efWineser-A¥eooe; thenee west aleng the s~e ane seutll-lift€ 
eMenBeil-ef.lhe-WiH<lser Ayenue; te a peiat ea the east line efOalH'ark ,\veaue;4lieac-e-5"H!h 
~e last eeseriaed liae te the s<>H!h line ef 3 '1'" Street: thel1€e-W€5HHeng the last eeseribeB 
J.ine-al1B last eeseriaeEl-liR~<mBed-te-th"..,,\'eSt-ltne ef Greve Aveooe;-thenee ner!h aleng the 
west-J.ine-ar!d ',,'est lin""*teneee efGreve AVeRue te tl,e nerHrJ.ine efLet 31 ia Bieek-9-in 
Bem)"a SuaBivisiew,-+h",,_ aleng the-nertlHine-a!1d-eer-tJH.ine-e;<lene~et 31 te tI,e 
'{ .. est line afthe-Flel4h--seHth alley lyiflg south of Winesar A\'enu~eFlGe west along the-se!±th 
tine-al1e-seHtfl..J.in~"nB ed 0 f :h e last-GeseRllecl-frNey-te-tl1e-\\'eSt-lil1€-<>f-l-l<>_""",e;-thefl€O 
fI<>ftl1-a·Iet>g-!h""",·est line anB \\'5t~ee<k>f-Heffie-A¥efllie4e-!h"i'eiBH>f-begimtiflg, 

AmendmentC 
Page 16-18 of the Original TlF Plan . " - ~ i Formatted Table J 

a) Costs ofstuElies, surveys, 6-e¥~ment of plans and speeificatiol'lS, il'f1:pleffi~ 
edmiftist,.atiea ofth€-fe8~p!'fl-efl!-j>lUR-iflclHaiag aut aet lim keEl te staff ana ~Fefe55ieeal 
service costs f'OF-af-efHt.ectJral. engineering, legal, marketing, fiflsne1al, planniftg-Br other seT':iees, 
p~ed that no ehtwgeS-ferpro.fess.ienal services are based on a j3e~f-{h~€refI'lel* 
eeJ.Ieete<h 

B'Hlr-<>j3e~~st7.-inclu4~eHifltiteil-te-ac~i"n-efc.Joo~!h<>f-j3l'apet'iT; 
l'eoH>Ff><>FSBna+;-er right;;-t>l~irtterest5-ll1_ifl.;-<!emeJ.iti<>n-e-f-hl~<l-tI!e-e-Iffiring-afl<l 
grnGing af leAd; 

e) Costs of rehabilitatioFt:-FecoAstrHetio~~deliRg of e:cisting public or private 
alli<frings aAa fhtUi"-e;r, 

6tGBsts ef tba eensffll€liB!1-&f'.pllhli€-wefl~re¥elI1eJ1ls, 

e) Costs Ofj08 trainiflg and retraining prej-ea&; 

f)-J'.ill<>lleing-€e~lt,etng;-elt~a ta. ali Aaaessm"l aml-;neiee!1tal-e*flenses-r-elate<ke 
the-is5uaAaa a f oBligatians anB whieh Alay ine!ltcl"i*'l'l11""j-e.HI1ter-est-efHll1T"~i",15-i5Stlecl 
hereunder aeenling Eluring the estirnated-t)erie8-ef:...eenslTuction of any redCYcJ01*1."I€fI-t13Tejeel for 
wfi.iel1-5uefl..<>BJ.igatiens ara isslle8-at,<J.-fer..a.yeriB~aing 36 11'lentl....mllawing aample,!ieA 
ftti-8 inclusiflg reaso~e"'l'eser\'es related-Hteret&; 

g)-A!l-er-a-pel4i<m-ef'"8-l"""'Ffl i sli'i at' 5 eapital-eesls-re5ulfing-jf-eI'Hb€-fek\'<>k>pm<>nt-pl'<ljeel 
B€:cessaiii l,' iHcl:u'res or to ee ifle~!lTed wHl:in a ta:~iflg distriel: in fur:.l:eranee ofiAc eejeeti\"es oJ 



~,e-rde\'elepmefll-plafl-a,,&-pl'tljeet Ie Ihe e,,,en! !he-ffitffiieipeli!y by mitteR-agreemeat ac-€ef'l5 
iffi~r-e-\'es suck eo5t5-;-

ftt-Rel&eatffiFl eosts to the c.i:tent that a fI1UBieipality determines that reloeatisFi casts shall be-pa+e 
er-i5-fff!eiR<l-le-mill"'13aymenl efreleoalieB-ce515 by fedeFfrl-eI~_ 

ir i>aYl>1em-ifl-l-iee of woes; 

jtGests of job trail'li:r.g, r:elfaiflir.g, advaF!:ce4-¥eeatienal eeucation or career eclueatiofi, incl1:ldmg 
b»t-nffi-iffiTit-ed-!e-<;"ef;;es-iB--eewpatieflfr!;-sem-i-teehfli€al--eHeeffiH-eal-fiel<l5-1eadiflg-tlif-ec-tly--t<l 
"mpl<lyJTIeRt;-iflGUff-e<l-by-fme-&-ffl<lre !alliflg a islri cIs, pFe\'ide~eclH!ostTti}are Felated-\€l 
lfle eslablishment-,,,,<l-rnaffitffiilnee ef adcl#i<>FHll-j<J~<l¥aHee<k-e~-edeeatioo-<ll' 
e_e¥-eElBeatieH--PI'e~r-pel'5Bns empleyed-oF Ie ee empleyed--by-effl~f5-!e€il!ed-ifl-a 
rcdcvcloflFflcnt pro:teet-aT~-i41-wfleFl-ffiClln'ed by a ta:ting district Of ta:dng distriets ethel' 
#!!m-tfle-tmll~;y,aFe-5et-ferth iA a "TitteA agreement by eHlffi<>Ag4he-ffitffii€ij-la-lity-aH&-lfle 
!iP.<illg-disffiel-e,~g--distriel~e!ragreemeflHleser-ibes-lfle--pFegl'llm-tB-!le-tlHdel1aken, 
ffieitJdiRg-I-;"l-net-+ifl";led-te-llle--flUfl'lbe~es-t-e-be-tFa-ifled,iH!esatiptieA oflhe ~'ai,Tiflg 
afl<l-seF¥iees-l<l-be--pHw.jEled;-the-R_beF ana lype-el'-pe5#i<ms available--eHe-be-a-vai-Jable, 
itclnized costs 0-f-th-c-j7fograrn and sot:lf€M-Of funds 18 flay fer the san'lC, and4c tenH oftke 
agr-eemeffi-:-&tich costs ineh:1B-e,speetf-I-€fr~aym:e»~nul'ltin it)· co Hege-ffistTiet5-&f-ee5ts 
p","HaRHe Sectiefls 3 37, 3 38, 3 '19 allB 3 10-' a fthe-l'ubl i c CeRTIflUR it)' Cell ege-Aet-an<i-by 
seheel-ai5tAels-<lfcests ~Uf5Hant Ie Sectiells 10 23.20. aRa 10 23.3a ef-~heel-GeBe; 

l0-1ilterest-ef>SI-i"CHff€cl--by-a-¥eae¥elBjleHelateEl-te rll e cOHSlfHetiefbre_ietT-6Heflabititatioo 
a-HH-ea~pm,"*""pl'tljeet--p"",~aed-lflat; 

h-sttc-h cests are tB-!le--paia-dir-eclly B'mfl t"e-5jleei~Hea-atieB-f~hlisheEl 
FH:H'Sl:ifmt to the ,"tct: 
~eh-paYiT1effis--trH!ny-aRe-yeaHT1-aj'-flat exceed 30% Elf the aI1fl-l:l-frl-1Rfel'est-eBsts 
iRe"ff-ecl-~'I€-F8<'l",'ela-per with regaFB te lhe-reae¥eiepmer;t.-pr-ejeet auliRg ~,at-j'el'iF, 
] , if there-ar<Hl6l-5ttm€leAt--fuft€ls-fr"a-ilable-itHhe-sl'eeial-ta~ti<m 'HAd te-make-the 
pBJ'ffiffit-theR-lfle-afl"'Bflt5-5e-8He-si-1all accrue alld-be--payable wheB-SHff'l€-ieflI-l'tlR65-frre 
available iA the-5jleeifrl.-tlP.i-a-II0a-atie~ 
~e-t€ltal-efsHc-Mfltef-est-paym-eflle--pskl--pt!fStlflat-tB-th e Act Ffl a),-fl 0 t ence e E8G%-&f-the 
~ai<l-er-ifleHffe<l-by-!he-r-ede¥eleper-fe'-the-rde"eleI'Fflefl1-PI'll:iect plus (ii) 
''ecl~~",",f>S~d·i'¥,;-flny--prepe'-ty-a55emtly--a-ests-a-Ad--fmy-t-elea-ati<lfl 
cests incurred ey ll-lffilfli€ij-la-li<y-puFSHa-At-te-the-Ael-; 

17-C!fll~~talecl-bereiB-lfle-e0sl-<lk0",*"eti_f*-lle"'i,Fi-vatelj'-ewlled 
blliMiflgs-5flaH-fla-l-b8-llll-e1igib1e-recle¥elepmeFll--pl'tljee1-€<l5\' 

Eligible costs permitted by the Act and pertainine: to this Plan include: 

(I) Professional Service Costs - Costs of studies. survevs. develoQl11ent of Hians. and 
sgecifications. imHlementation and administration of the redevelopment glan including: but not 
limited to staff and nrofessional service costs for architectural. en!!ineeri11lI. lelwl. financial. 



glanning or other services. grovided however that no charges for grofessionai services ma:i be 
based on a 12ercentaee of the tax increment collected: exceQt that on and after November L 1999 
(the effective date of Public Act 91-478}. no contracts for 12rofessional services. excluding 
architectural and engineering services. mav be entered into if the telms of the contract extend 
bevond a Qeriod of 3 years. A fief' consultation with the municiQ3lity. each tax increment 
consultant or advisor to a municigalitv that glans to deshmate or has designated a redevelogment 
groject area shall inform the municiQalitv in writing of any contracts that the consultant or advisor 
has entered into with entities or individuals that have received. Of' are receiving. l2axments 
financed bv tax increment revenues Qroduced by the redeveloQment Qroject area with resnect to 
which the consultant or advisor has l2erforrned. or will be Qerforminl2. service for the 
municiQali!y. This reguirement shall be satisfied by the consultant 01 advisor before the 
commencement of services for the munici12alitv and thereafter whenever any other contracts with 
those individuals or entities are executed bv the consultant or advisor: 

0 The cost of marketine. sites within the redeveloQment !2roiect area to I2roS!2ective 
businesses. developers. and investors: 

Q Annual administrative costs shall not include general overhead or administrative costs of 
the municiRalitv that would still have been incuned bv the municipality if the lTIunici12alitv ha~ 
not desi!lllated a redevelo12ment Qroject area or approved a redevelop-ment plan: 

0 In addition. redevelopment project costs shall not include lobbyine. expenses: 

(2) Pronertv Assembly Costs - Costs including but not limited to acguisition of land and other 
Qrogertv (real or Rersonal) or de.hts or interests therein. demolition of build in lIS. site QreRaration, 
site improvements that serve as an enlIineereg barrier addressing QrDund level or below Q,TOUnd 
environmental contamination. including. but not limited to garkinQ. lots and other concrete o[ 
asphalt baniers. and the clearim! and Q.Tading of land: 

(3) ImRrovements to Public or Private Buildin!2s - Costs of rehabilitation. reconstruction, 
repair. or remodelinQ of existine.12ublic or private blJildines. fixtures. and leasehold 
imgrovements: and the cost ofreQlacil111 an e;dstin!2 gublic buildine. ifgursuant to the 
imglementation of a redeveloglTIent 12roject the existinll Qublic buildine. is to be demolished to use 
the site for private investment or devoted to a different use requirin!2 private investment: 

(4) Public Works - Costs of the constl uction of gublic works or imQrovements. excegt tl)at on 
and after November 1. 1999. redeveloQment Qroject costs shall not include the cost of 
constTucting a new municig31 Qublic buildine. QrinciQallv used to Qrovide offices. storage SQ3ce. or 
confe!ence facilities or vehicle storage. maintenance. or reQair for administrative. Qublic safety:. or 
public works 12ersonnel and that is not intended to reglace an existine.l2ublic building as provided 
und~r parallfaRh (3) 0 f subsection (g.l 0 f Section 11-74.4-3 unless either (i) the construction Qfthe 
new mlUliciQai buildinrr imQlements a redeveloQment groject that was included in a 
redeveloQlTIent Qlan that was adogted bv the munici12alitY Qrior to November 1. 1999 or Oi) the 
municiQality makes a reasonable detemlination in the redevelogment QI£!n. sURgorted by 
information that RTovides the basis fOJ that determination. that the new lTIunicinal buiIdin!! is 
reauired to meet an increase in the need for nublic safety Dumoses anticioated to result fr'om the 



implementation of the redevelopment plan: 

(5) Job Trainin!1- Costs of job trainine: and retraining Qrojects. includinQ the cost of "welfare 
to work" programs implemented bv businesses located within the redevelopment project area; 

(6) Financinf! Costs - Costs inciudinQ but not limited to all necessarY and incidental expenses 
related to the issuance of obliQations and which may include pavment of interest on anv 
oblifwtions issued hereunger including (a) interest accruing during the estimated period of 
construction of anv redevelopment Qroiect for which such obligations are issued and for a period 
not exceeding 36 months thereafter and (b) reasonable reserves related thereto: 

(7) Capital Costs - To the extent the municip-alitv QV written a!!reement acceQts and ap-groves 
the same. all or a Qortion of a taxine. district's capital costs resulting from the redevelopment 
project necessarily incurred or to be incurred within a taxing district in furtherance of the 
objectives of the redevelopment plan and project: 

(8) School-Related Costs - For redeveloJ;lment Qroject areas desif!T1ated (or redeveloQrnent 
Rroject areas amended to add or increase the number oftax-increment-financing assisted hoysing 
units) on or after November l. 1999. an elementarv. secondarv. or unit school district's increased 
costs attributable to assisted housing units located within the redevelopment nroject area for 
which the developer or redeveloper receives financial assistance thwugh an agreement with the 
municigality or because the municinalitv incurs the co§t ofnecessarv infrastructure imRrDvements 
within the boundaries of the assisted housi11!z sites necessary for the comQletion of that housing as 
authorized bv tlle Act. an>! which costs shaH be Qaid by the municinalitv from the Snecial Tax 
Allocation Fund when the tax increment revenue is received as a result of the assisted housing 
units and shall be calculated annuallv. 

(9) Relocation Costs - To the extent that a municiQalitv detennines that relocation costs shall 
be gaid Of' is reguired to make Ravment of relocation costs bv federal or State law or in order to 
satisfy subpara", aph 17) of subsection In) of the Act: 

(10) Pavment in lieu of taxes: 

(Ill Other Job Training - Costs of job training. retraininf!. advanced vocational education or 
career education. includinlZ but not limited to courses in occugationaL semi-technical or technical 
fields leading directlv to emglovment. incuned bv one or more taxiTI!z districts. provided that such 
costs (i) are related to the establishment and maintenance of additional 10b training. advanced 
vocational education or Cafee! education Qrograms for persons emQloved or to be emQloved by 
employers located in a 1 edeve!opment project area: and (ii) when incuned by a taxinf!: district or 
taxing districts othel' than the municiQulitv. aTe set forth in a written agreement bX or arnOTI!Z the 
munici:palij;y and the taxing distl ict or taxinQ. districts. which aQTeement describes the RrD!!Tam to 
be undertaken. including but not limited to the number of employees to be trained. a descriQtion 
of the training and services to be Ql'Ovided. the number and type ofQositions available or to be 
available. itemized costs of the program and sources of funds to Ray for the same. f:!nd the term of 
the agreement. Such costs include. s12ecificallv. the Rayment bv community colle!!e districts of 
costs-Illlrsuant to Sections 3-37. 3-38. 3-40 and 3-40.1 of the Public Community College Act and 



bv school districts of costs pursuant to Sections 1O-22.20a and 10-23.3a of The School Code: 

( 12) Developer Interest Cost - Interest cost incurred bv a redevelo12er related to the 
construction. renovation or rehabilitation of a redevelopment project J2T'ovided that: 

(Al such costs are to be Raid directl);: from the s12ecia1 tax allocation fund established pursuant 
to the Act; 
(B) such paYments in anyone vear may not exceed 30% of the annual interest costs incurred 
by the redeveloger with relZard to the ledeveJopment groject durinlZ that vear: 
(C) ifthere are not sufficient funds available in the sQecial tax allocation fund to make the 
Qayment then the amounts so due shall accrue ang be payable when sufficient funds ere available 
in the sgecial tax allocation fund: 
{Dl the total of such interest Qayments naid pUIsuant to the Act mav not exceed 30% of the 
total (i} cost Qaid or incurred bv the redeveJoger for the redevelopment Qroject plus Oi} 
redeveloQment project costs excludinlZ anY QroQer!y assemblv costs and anv relocation costs 
incurred by a municipality pursuant to the Act: 
(E) the cost limits set forth in subgaramaghs {Bl and (D) ofgara!ITagh shall be modified for 
the fmancin!! of rehabilitated or new housinlZ units for low-income households and very 10w-
income households. as defined in Section 3 of the Illinois Affordable Housincr Act. The 
gercentage of75% shall be substituted for 30% in subgara!ITaghs {Bl and {D}. 
(F) Instead of the eligible costs grovided bv subgaragraghs eBl and ml. as modified bv this 
subJ;!ara!!raph. and notwithstandin!! any other Ql0visions of the Act to the contrarv. the 
municipality may Qay from tax increment revenues up to 50% of the cost of construction of new 
housm!! units to be occu:pied by low-income households and very low-income households as 
defined in Section 3 of the minois Affordable Housing Act. The cost ofconstTuction of those 
units may be derived from the proceeds of bonds issued bv the municiQali:ty under the Act or 
other constitutional or stahltorv authority Of' from othel' sources of municiQal revenue that maY be 
reimbursed fTom tax increment revenues or the I2roceeds of bonds issued to finance the 
construction of that hou5inQ, The elhribJe costs grovided under this subgarallraph {F) shall be an 
elie:ible cost for the construction. renovation. and rehabilitation of all low and very 100·v-income 
hQusing units, as defined in Section 3 ofthe minois Affordable Housing Act within the 
redeveloQment project area, If the low and verY low-income units are 12art of a residential 
redevelogment nfoject that includes units not affordable to low and verY low-income households. 
only the low and very low-income units shall be eli!!ible for benefits under subparagraph (F). 

The T1F Act grohibits certain costs. Unless explicitlv stated herein the cost of construction of 
new Qrivatelvwowned buildinlZs sha1l not be an eli2.ible redeveloQment Qroject cost. In addition. 
the statute Rrohibits costs lelated to retail develoQment that results in the closin2. of nearby 
facilities of the same retailers, SQecificallv. none of the redevelopment groject costs enumerated 
in the Act shall be elil:dble redeveloQl11ent project costs if those costs would Qrovide direct 
financial sUQQort to a retail entity initiatinlZ operations in the redeveloQment groject area while 
terminatin2. operations at another lIIinois location within 10 miles of the redevelogment Qroject 
area but outside the boundaries of the redevelon:ment ploject area l11unicin:alitv. 



Amendment D 
Page 18-19 of the Originol TIF Plan 

20 Estimated Redevelopment Costs 

I 
A range of redevelopment activities and improvements will be required to implement this 
Redevelopment Plan The activities and improvements and their estimated costs (+9%-2008 
dollars) are summarized Selew--atld ShOWfl in Table I, Estimated Redevelopment Project 
Costs To the extent that municipal obligations have been issued to pay for such 
Redevelopment Prqject Costs prior to, and in anticipation of, the adoption of TlF, the City 

I 
shall be reimbursed from incremental properly taxes for such Redevelopment Project Costs 
TI,e estimated Redevelopment Project Costs illtistra:eEI-Belev.'-afId-in Table I are intended to 

I 
provide an upper estimate of expenditUJ'cs Within this upper estimate, adjuslJnents may be 
made in line;:-items without amending this Redevelopment Plan 

I The estimate of Redevelopment Project Costs listed BeIDw-efl€!-i+ltl_El-in Table 1 excludes 
financing costs, including any interest expense, capitalized interest and costs associated with 
optional redemptions, These costs are subject to prevailing market conditions and are in 
addition to total Redevelopment Project Costs 

a)Pk .... 7I1ing. Leger!, . fdminlsf-ratfrc and Oth.;,·~ --- .( Formatted: Bullets and Numbering I 
t;sHtl'lated Cest S:50,000 

:r-l~eflt!tRif-e-iflel;Jdes survey aR<l-sffi6y-€es~-ser-¥i€eS;-l!6fflffiisll'll!W€ 
5eryiecs ancl-ethsf--j7F8-f-esskma-i-atlcl sen"tee fees assoe-iated 'o\'i:11 implenientiflg 
llHs-Rerle>releJ>ffiefl1--l2I_cl-prel iam" e Seel;tf€-eFWlr-eftfR2Flt fer pri¥ole 
ir.yestmeFH-in aeeordsAce witH the Aet. 

e)Prepc?rty.lssembly --~. "( Formatted: Bu1!ets and Numbering I 
EstimsteEl'-GBst .750,000 

~j3eRditure pRWiaeH<lr the a€€jttisi-fietl--ftfld-assernI>I,' ef lend-fer 
R<le¥ele]3moftl-by-tfl~nt fer the-{;il)"o Vaeant or lmdeR.tt-i~ 
rl'6j3ol'ly-iT~e-ft€<!,,~ul'eIt<i~~r long temHease-By-pri¥&te 
de>relerol'S-e4'the-Gi1y-f<lHHe-p'*!'ooe-eH"",'"El"'''*'J>ffi0,ll-er reae,oel0j'>ffiet!h 

ci Bulld-i::g RehabftiFtltiOfl 

Eslimatea-f'e st $1,75{}'oOO 

+his-e><penilitt~l'-tj;e-reHoWitation, reeeH5tfHa4en;-Fej3atF-el' 
feffiedeling of existing fll:lblie or private buildings an'€! fbtures. 

frJ--/2tthlie-WeriiS end b'lilil,'-itHpffl1'if/lieR/' 



TAis e"pefl~~r the eOF\5lr"etiee-er e,<lensio" sf water fllfriw.;; 
5€-Wel'5-iffid steFm\\ ater aeteJ'ltien impre'; ements; tRe eofl5i:ftletlm:t--eF 
impro\ ement of landseaping aflfl-buffers, streel5'*'1'er---s!reeHigffiirtg-aM 
generol-heooti-fjeaHBrr-HBj'll'e¥effients; Ihe esrrstr~ooJ.ie..j;arks-f)r--9j'>en 
spa€e-;-atlG---tfle-e&F!5truetion 81" 1fnprO':Cfficnt of stf'eet5;--5t6ewaHs-aoo 
j>llfi~ 

q} De¥eleper /-ll{C;v'c's/ Ez;/?sidJes 

----~m~~C~s~SI~------------------------~SgG~OO 

---IT-Itis-elij>enIDltlf€-j3i'<WiGes-fel'-l'ei..rn.Uf5etj,eRI of up to 31J-j>ereelll of develspers 
fl'ilel'€5Hests as pro\~Ged-tffi<ler-tl~+. 

Hf)--+T.eoftH.-!?etlc'.'e!S/,Il:c\'1l J2rejeef-Ge.sfs tN"e cstilffffl'f!etld .. (;{I/-(-----~SS,6".+.I§MOO 

---IP-lnRRing. Legal. Admiffis!raw;'e and O!l~es S 350.000 
---lP"r<loperty Assembly $ 1,350,000 

Building RehaBilitation $ 1,750.000 
Puslie Woffis-aB<l-Yti+j;y-lmj3_'el"H",eftn~lsr--------l$;",,;cbl.OO~00 

---DDe¥eleperlnterest Subsklies $ gO~OO 

n-1--E5fimafc3t1-Redere!0/3l71ell{ Prc/eel Cas;':; i::':w:lude jJHtffleH:rg--eesfS-irreffiding-tfffY 
111,';;;;-051 c;'g7errsc, e':l-pi!a!i::ed imercs{ end cesit; assecisted-tf-i.lh &-j3fisl1a! redtHffj3fieH.s..: 
::p.fiese cests are suhject :0 preTttiffl.~Htfrkel-eetdi.'iens end are in crddit{e:l !6-[.&!-el 

Redc.,oc\lopment Prejec{ GeMs. 

I ' 



Rehabilitation of Existing Structures 

Public Facilities (including Pm kine Garage) 

Interest Costs PUisuant to the Act 
Professional Service Costs (Inc1udine Planning:. l,.eeal. Enrrineerinrr. 
Administrative. Annual Reportinl!. and Marketinf2) 

.lob T rainine 
Agreements with Other Tmdng DistricL,>: School District 
Reimbursements 
TOTAL ESTIMATED TIF BUDGET 

t!ru.<5; 
UlAJlp..!.9.klliost e~lilDn!eS are jn vear 2001; dnll.ar..5..-DlslS .. IDm' be ndjw;t~J!lDLiJlOJllinll.Jl~r the T!E ·\tl 

3.000.000 

10.000.000 

500.000 

500.000 

500.000 

500.000 
$35.000.000 

Cill.n.J!ddjljOD 10 the com jdemjfjd in the e"hjhj! oho\'e" .. ilru:.lillrul$jS~11CJLH.tfirwru:S_Ill1lm~Q[lh~..£.rjJj~s.u1J~trlt.rul.ll1lJ.!l! 
sufficient 10 pov fa} Cl15tomnr" nnd rCilSopnble ch!!~.S.JH;:illgrucd wjth the j:i'iImnce of~\lch oh!j!!:I!i()na,~ .. SJ....QD..!i.\!!;!1 .. hml1Lknu9..L~ 
cgpimlizcd i!1leren :md reasonahl\' reQl!irer! r§er .. e~. 
CI) AdjU'i!lDel1t~ to the eSlimnted line.item com nbo\'!! nre eXI!SSJed Adi\J~!ments 010\' he mnde in line-items within the Inlnl ejther 
it!£illsinl' or de!:rensin!! Ijne·item~ cnsl~ ror redel'elopm!:"! Each individlilll..nrojeC! CO~l will be rcel'nlU:l!ed in li!!h! orthe projected private 
del'e !opment anrl..r£.M~IiruU.i'!~JlllJ<S..iu..iLi'i.g)n~il~n:419I-PJj.lJliLrmnn~D.!U!lill~L!lJ.U'lJ:.!lllillm5S!fJhl,'; ... &;j. TIle 10Jjl!S of the !ine-jlems 
set (orlh above afe nO! intended 10 plnce n !otn! !imjl on Jhe dc&crihed e:>;rJm!.Ij.t!.K1;Ln~ccirt£...iilml~ lisled nhQ\"e are nO! intended 10 
p.r.g;hffi~.llnBllI,';D1..Qr.ill.hH e!il!ihle red!;\'e!opment project co..s:;jnsmll.lJ*:jhnJlJli£..cI£~Lrm\Il.l:!l1.!lL!1Jlt.Be..:l.=..Jllil.rid~J!Jh~ . .J9Ji\Ll]mo.\!flLQ.f 
pvvmenl for eligible redcve!npmcnt Project C051~ shnl! nO! exceed 1hs nl'emU..lllll~!nt ontlined ilhm:!:. 

Amendment E 
Page 2 J oj the Original TIF Plan 

~e~O; (eelleetien year 300S) and fell8win·g4e esmpletien efall petef!ti.al 
R,ede¥€-lepffie!l!-J2fe:ieets,the-L~le-l'R7j€et·h·ea is es~~ppre"ilfla,ely 
S21.153,Q0~ts-estimare-is-bose<i-en se,'e,al-Icey assumptiens. inffilding-;-+) 
rede¥€-lsj'>fllent-B-Hlle-i>fejeet-Area.-wiJ.k>eeur-in a timely manner; :)-tlre-I~he 
l'fe.ieet-Area-will-inflate-at-lile-I'frl~efee'*fleH1fl1ltlffi;-lld-3tth e fi \" e Yea, """''fige 
-.,qualicatien faeter ef3.10'll (ta" years 1991 threugh 1995) is used in all years te 
e<HeulateEl-es#maled-EA-\L 

Upon cOITIQletion of the anticipated ptivate development of the RPA and termination of 
the TIF District. it is estimated that the EA V of the property within the RP A will be 
approximately $55.000.000, 



EXBIBITC 

MAP OF AMENDED REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 

10 



at "I. ST. 

:J~ nel ST. 

l 34 t 
/i 

til ST. 

i.-.• w .. 

Il~1 ::;::~=l/~~J:~::' 

CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 
DEPOT DISTRICT TIF DISTRICT MAP 

oJ 
>--< 

oJ 
'" 0: oJ F" '" !;; ". ... ?, 0 '" ." 
0 '" '" '" 
,... -' '" ~ z Z 0 

0 ::l ~ :>: 
0: W '" 
1 1 L-- IU 
Il . '-"'I--~ 1"1 . I, 

I I I 
I !. 

I ~ .LII 

[
II J[I pq I. ..... 

r.:t\>'l \y,~ :~l":)':I;;~\\ \I.I\~"~~: 
,;>.~~ "ON 'No " I ,-"" .. 

----u\l'I,\\,\i'\G ~ 'l ,> ..... 
.... ::.-> ''il-i'\ilSt)~ . , 1 ! .. ,--c'>"; 

U'·< [J41~ 
-, 1--'1 I' - 1 1--"-1 

oJ 
;;;-
-< 

'" :>: 
." 

"" 
'" '" 0 

MAYOI, - MICIlA';!. A. O'CONNOR 
CITY cl.[<am - THOMM, J. PAVLIK 

oJ 
'" ." 

'" ::l 

~ 

oJ 
~ 

'" :!l 
VI 

'" r,::: 

'" ;.. 
." 

'" W 
?, 

'" '" j 
u 

W 
;.. 

'" fi; 
'" '" 

'" oJ :> 
oJ ~ oJ ". 

." 

~ "" "" ." ~ "" '" 0 "" ~ 
(fl '" 

7, 

'" 0 j :>: 
W 0 

'" ::J ;:: '" ~ ?, '" '" 0 t"'i '" u :;;J .... Ol 
:;;J 

(f) <.:J '" u 

L~ .... _I 1_ ... 1...-- .. ___ . __ ..... -' 

--~~", -

t·' ., .•.. --

-"11
-

1 

...... _ L_J L-

[·.Il [.Ie] / .... [ I [ ....J :~'i\,,;;. 
, ___ ,., ,:.': • . r'-' r I 

'.I .... \;I\ •.. \.(\~I) ·,~1, 
1\ ~ I !_ -- r 

~-. ,.-

[=:====,='1 D[lO..c 
I J~" 
I ... /! f /'/ 

[=-~] [_ .. J I. ...... _ . ..J 

I ............. I I. . I [/ /I"t: / 
1.._' ~_~..=J r __ ... ~ (\~~i Sr 

nn~~~ I--·--'·~~··l 1 ../.~ I I 

a2 ad ST. 

FAIlWIIlLll AVIl, 

aa rd S'I', 

31 til ST. 

Existing TIF District Parcels 

Proposed TIF District Extension 
nAn:: Aptl!H,~008 

,-~.--.-.--.• -------------------.. - .... - ..... ---.. ---_c;;;:::-:-:::=::::::---_ ... , 



EXBIBITD 

AMENDED PLAN AND PROJECT 

11 
r'iltit Uldiuance 



CITY OF BERWYN 
REDEVELOPMENT PLAN 
SOUTH BERWYN TIF DISTRICT 

~'RedeveIopment plan" means the comprehensive program of the 
municipality for development or J'cdevelopment intended by the payment of 
redevelopment project costs to reduce or eliminate those conditions the 
existence of which qualified the redevelopment project area as a "blighted 
area" or "conservation area" or combination thereof or "industrial parle. 
conservation area," and thereby to enhance the tax bases of the taxing 
districts which extend into the redevelopment project area as set for in the 
Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3, et. seq., 
as amended. 

Prepared for: City of Benvyn, Illinois 

Prepared Jointly by: Kane, McKenna and Associates, Inc. 

and 

The City of Berwyn 

August 2008 



SECTION 

I 

1I 

III 

Appendix I 

Appendix 2 

Appendix 3 

CITY OF BERWYN 
TlF REDEVELOPMENT PLAN 

SOUTH BERWYN TIF DlSTRlCT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Introduction 

The Proposed TIF District, as amended 

Amendments to TlF Plan 

Boundary Map as Amended 

Legal Description for Area to Be Added to TIF District Via 
Amendment 

Original TIF Plan 



I. INTRODUCTION 

ill 1996, the City of Berwyn adopted the South Berwyn Tax increment Financing 
Redevelopment Project and Plan (the "Original TIF Plan," contained in Appendix.l} 
The purpose of this document is to update and amend the Original TIF Plan principally 
by increasing the TIF budget for allowable expenditures and expanding the territorial 
coverage of the original TIF District The City is pursuing the proposed amendment as 
part of its stTategy to promote the revitalization of key under-utilized properties located 
within the TlF Distric~ as amended. 

Kane, McKenna and Associates, Inc. (KMA) has been retained by tl,e City of Berwyn to 
assist the City in drafting this Plan 

Objectives. The City's general economic development objectives are to enhance 
residential, commercial, industrial and mixed use opportunities within the City, including 
the proposed TlF DistTict, as amended. To achieve this overarching objective, the City 
has issued tl,e following guidelines identified in the 1993 Comprehensive Plan that would 
apply to tlle amended TIF District (Refer to Exhibit 1 below) 

Exhibit 1 

o Maintain and expand the range of retail and commercial services activities available 
within the City 

o Encourage corrective maintenance of older commercial and industrial properties in 
poor condition 

o Minimize any negative impact of commercial or industrial activities on neighboring 
land-use areas 

o Initiate long-range improvement and development programs for the various 
commercial corridors within the community 

o Promote new commercial, office and light industrial development in selected 
locations 

o Ensure safe and convenient vehicular access to, and adequate parking in, all 
commercial and industrial areas 

o Encourage safe and convenient pedestrian access to shopping and service areas 
o Improve the image and appearance of all existing commercial and industrial areas 
o Maintain, improve and upgrade signage within and around commercial areas 
o Promote creative and innovate approaches to site design and building development 

Given the City's goals as well as the conditions described in this report, the City has made 
a determination that it is highly desirable to promote the redevelopment of the proposed 
South Berwyn ("Depot") TlF District, as amended Without an implementation plan for 



redevelopment, City officials believe adverse conditions will worsen. TIle City intends to 
implement such a plan in order to restore, stabilize, and increase the economic base ofthe 
TIF District, which will not only benefit the community as a whole but also generate 
additional tax revenues to support municipal services 

Because of the conditions observed in the TIF District, as amended, and the required 
coordination for future land uses, the City is favorably disposed toward supporting 
redevelopment efforts. The City has determined that redevelopment should take place 
tlu'Ough tile benefit and guidance of comprehensive economic planning by the City 
Through this coordinated effort, the TIF District, as amended is expected to improve and 
development baITiers are to be eliminated. 

TIle City has further determined that redevelopment currently planned for the TIF 
District, as amended, is feasible only with public fmaneial assistance The creation and 
utilization of a TfF redevelopment plan is intended by the City to help provide the 
assistance required to eliminate conditions detrimental to successful redevelopment of the 
TIF District. 

II is further found, and certified by the City, in connection 10 the process required for the 
adoption ofthi, amended Plan prw,uant to the Act, that the projected redevelopment of 
the RPA is likely to result in the displacement offewet than 10 inhabited residential units 
Therefore, this Plan does not include a Housing Impact Study 

The use of T [F relies upon induced private redevelopment in the TIF District to create 
higher real estate values that would otherwise decline without such investment By so 
doing, it would result in increased property taxes compared to the previous land use (or 
lack of use). [n this way, the existing tax base for all tax districts would be protected and 
a portion of future increased taxes pledged to attract the requisite private investment. 



II. THE PROPOSED TIF DISTRICT. AS AMENDED 

The purpose of this report is to amend the TlF Plan principally by amending the TlF 
budget and expanding the territorial coverage ofthe Depot TlF District The expansion 
would result in approximately 5 parcels being added to the existing Depot TlF District 
(Please refer to Appendix I which identifies the parcels to be added.) 

The TlF District, as amended, generally runs parallel to tlle Burlington Northern railroad 
right-of'way, ranging from Home Avenue to Ridgeland Avenue. This proposed TIF 
expansion provides the City with the possibility of bringing new development to an area 
that has been underutilized .. 

The TlF District, as amended, suflers from a variety of economic development 
impediments, as identified in the TlF Act As indicated in the original TlF 
Redevelopment Plan, it suffers from variolls conditions which established it as a 
Conservation Area under the TIF Act The five parcels being added to the TlF District 
comprise a very small percentage (5 of approximately 257 parcels or 1.95%) of the 
overall TlF District and do not alter the rmdings establishing it as a Conservation Area 

Refer to Appendix 1 and 2, which respectively provide a boundary map and legal 
description of the TlF District, as amended 



ill. AMENDMENTS TO THE TIF PLAN 

In this section, amendments to the original TlF Plan are presented" For reference, 
relevant excerpts from the original TlF Plan are shown, with amendments showing 
additions and deletions to the onginallanguage, 

Amendment A 
Page 6 of the Original TIF Pion 

The boundaries of the Olioinal Project Area are shown in Figure 1, Boundary Map, and as 
amended are shown in Appendix J. Amended Boundary MaD. Said boundaries!ffi<l are 
generally described as follows: 

AmendmentB 
Poge 6-7 of the Original TIF Plan 

The boundaries of the Project Area are legally described in ApDendix 2. as fullsws: 

+ - - -1 Formatted Table 

... - - - iFormatted Table 

'FA at part sf SectiOl¥.8l aRaD in 'Fawllshijl 39 Nartfl;-fulRge-l3 East aftlie Third Prineipal 
~el<-Geunl)', lllinei5;-betlllileEl-aHcl-ae5c-fl.becl-as-fellew5-i 

BegiAAiAg at: t:1'1c i'f'lferscetioFl aftflC 'A8'l4h liRe ef:£tanlJ' A~'eAt:le v.'ith me \'l'cst liAe efI~ 
A->.'€fltle;-#lenee-<>a5!-al8flg-th€-flortherl), line of StaRle)' A"'Rue and fl8rth,rly 1m, e"teRaod-te-tRe 
west line of ClintOR /'.L'.'e~€17Ee-neFtfl-a.1~e west liFle of ClintsR AVCFll:lC to :fie e::ctcFldecl 
R6ftflerly liRe of tile east w~ler,-ly;ng-nertl~ of StaR Ie)' AV€lltle-afla sau:ll af:2"d-&ioeel; 
theRee ea5leri), alang tA,,-neflherl), liRe anEl nertherl), liRe e"teRded-ef.the last Eleseriaes aile)' ta 
the west line efKenih,'o11A /'e,'CFltlC; thenes nerth along tfle ',':2st liRe ofKcRi1wsrtfJ AYCfltlC to 
the-el<teBde<!-n81'!herly-line-af.tl1e afare5aid east west alley; thenc~r~ertfler.Jy 
line-afld a,e nortAerly line e"tencle4-e-f.sai4-alIey-te-the east line-ef.tfle-rl6ftfl-sootll alley lying 
se-tl~nd Sn'oct, ea~(eni1wBrth AVCFH::le;-fi€H .... .h efStan!cy, and west efGF0'(e /\','enlie; 
thenee Reflh aleng-tl1€-<!ast line ans east line-el<teReeEl-ef4l1e-iast described alley te a jleiRHln-ti1e 
nOFtflline sf 3211d Street; tRoneo east-a+eng the Bsrtl1line-ef.,;2,nd Stroet ts the west Ib.,c oftha 
nefli1-seuth alley Iying-hetween-Grsve Ayenue and GaIH'arlt AveRue; theA6€-fI<lrth along the 
west liRe ana west-lin~ed-ef.the last descrihed alley te tl1e-oo,'Il1--lffie eftAe Re,'Il1wesl 
'l"<lrter-eH;a-i<l-£eeti<m 3]; tlJeflce-east-aletJg-tfie-lasHleser-ibed Ih1e ta tile e"tende<ka5-~ 
nerth sooth alley lyiAg betweefl-GalH>arlt Avel1tle-af!<l-EueliEl Aven"e; thence s":tth aleng tAe east 
liRe and east line entenEleEl-ef.the-Iru;t-<lesefiae<l-aJ.ley-!e-!J;e-nflMinHlf.the east west alley I)'ffig 
nertA ofStaRley-Al'eRtle aAa salitA ef 31 "-Str-eet;-theRee-ea5t-aleng-tl1e-l1<lrt!t+ifle-frl1<!;lOfll1-line 
<ffienEled-l<l-the-west-lin e e f G" Rd e''5en-A-\'elltlej-thenc-e-oorth-aleng-tfl8-\-\<eSHine-ef.Gtlllilerwn 
Avenue; te-tlte-RBrth line eftl1e nortl1€ll5HjB<lfl8l-ef.saie-Seetie,H+,-thence east al<>ng a,e last 

• 6jA~ als8 eoiflr;:: ~hc !':I9!:t·hv:es~ 

J 

I 



eeffier-ef4fl~erthwest EImlrtcr of said SectioFl 3~; thence east aloFlg the-Harth liIlt of sate 
nerthwest qnarter ta ti,e sootherly line afth~ 

th;,nce sanlheaslerl), alang the last described line and the last described line e"tended ta the 
santherly-lffie a[the c.~.; thence westerly along the last deser-il>ed line to the easterly 
~dgelar!a Avenue; thence santh almo; th~.Jy-line-!e-Ri<l~nd Avenue la tloe sauti, 
+ine-eR€l-santh line e"Iendes of WindsorA¥et1t!e: thence wesl alang tl_th liRe and saUllt-+ine 
e:teF1ded aftRe 'iVi-ndsar '\veFlue; to a peh~Q5t line of Os I:: Parl;: AVentie; thence soufu 
alang :he last described-lffie ta the santh line-ef.34'" Street; thence west alang the lasl describea 
fine Ol'la last deser-ibed line e"tenaed-te-the west line ef Gre'.'e A\'eRUe;-tfl~'!h aleRg the 
west-fu>~e-eNteflded of Greye-A·venee to the Rerth Ene ef Lot 31 in B-le~ 
~ Snedivisien; thenee west aleng ti,e nerth-lffi~ded af let 31 te-tfie 
west linc of the J'lOrth soutH alley lying sot::lth oPA'indsor /wentl~eFlee west-a-leBg4Re--set::l#l 
+ine aRd senti, line e"tellded-ef..the last deseRl3eG-a1ley te the west line oRleme Avenu~ 
nerth aleng th' west line and west line e"t<*l<'lee-ef.l.J<;m~<>iRt-ef-eeginning. 

AmendmentC 
Page 16-18 of the Original TIF Plan ......... -i Formatted Table 

aj Casts efstndies, snrveys, d",,'~eeifieatis~€ffientatien and 
administration efthe fe~~~\:JdiI'lg but Flot limited to staff-ana professif:1fl-frl 
serviee costs fol'-ftf€lTiteetHFa:l~ering, Jegal, mariteting) finS:fl:et&l;i~hflniFlg or oEher seF\4ees; 
f7F€w·j.ae8-that no charges fOfi7F&fes.s4BAal services are ease~eFcentage oft~le tax iAGTeFlTeffi 
celleeted: 

e)-Fr-epertj' assemsly cest5rlflelnaiAg bnt Aet liA,itea te aeEjaisi,ioll efland aAS etl*"'i"~ 
~ersonal~ al' rights sr iflterests therein~ aemolitisl1 sfouileiRgs, and the clearing ana 
gradiflg sflaRs; 

e) Costs 0: rehabilitatiol1, reconstruction or repair or remoaeHng-of e:ds~ing public or private 
btH~dmg5 aHd fiXleR5; 

&)-Ce5t5-ef-the eellstl'li~"",,'6fl"""r~&. 

c) Costs ofjoa traifliflg allEi retraiFling prejects; 

f).J'.inaneiAg c-e5t5-ir!<;ludirlg,b1±kw: limited ta, all Aecas,ery Ol'la ineidantal e"peRSeS-Felateti-te 
the-i55tlaAee efoBligatiens and whjeh may-ii*l"ea paj·l"aRt-ef.lHte,-est-efl-8flJ"'6eJ.igat'~e8 
hereunder aceruing al:lring the estimated peRed of eOflstmctiol1 of ali)' rcdc\'elopmelit project fer 
which ,neh-ebligatiells are iosHed-antl-fer.rperied flet a"ceesin; 3 6 FIle"t'" fell~ 
and il1chlding-reasoi'tab.J.e-resen'cs related t~ 

g) All OF a i'ortieft-ef-a-(ll."~ri~st<H~g4i'-e"'-the-!'e<l,,,,<elepfl'''ffi-prejeet 
I1cecssarHy m6HA'ce or to be-mcui'!'ca within a ta~~iRg district in fH:l=tAerafice ofthe-e-B:teeti¥es-ef 

J 



tfle ree!eYelo~lan and preject to the extent the ffiunieipality by \\Titten agreemcRt accepts 
tm€l--apj3roves such costs; 

.fl.1-Rei.acatioFl oos~~nt that a FFlt:U1ieipality detenniRes that relocation oosts shall be-p-s+a 
er-fs-.fe€jtHrce to make pa)'iBcBt of rclecatisfl costs by feder.ru-er state law 

~flt-iR+jeu of ta"es; 

j) Costs of job trainif1g, ret:rah"1ing, advanced voeffiienal education Oi'-'€frfeeF edl:leatiol"t: ineluElffig 
eHl-fleHimit"El-te-eeurses in aeeHj3aei~emi-ledlHieal Of teC-fl~4i~"tfy-ttl 
employment, incurred by one or more ta:dFl'; districts: provided that sueR oosts (i) an:! related to 
IRe establishme_~anee afadditionaljob trainm", ad¥aft€€8 yaeatioRal-edt\eafioo-er 
eal'e€f-edtleaeieRi'",,~enS emplayed-ef-le-be-emp\eJ'<;d-by empla)'ers lo~ 
rede\'ele~meffi-pf6jeeHwe~B-when-iBeudeEl By a taxing distriet OF taxing distriets o~lel' 
than the mUf1ieip~fe-5~,.itten agl·eement b)· oF-fiffieflg-tf:ra-m.un.ieipalit)· oflt:i-4e 
to~istric+er ta::ing disITiets, whiGh egreement eeser-il>e5-#re pragram-te-be-\ffifle>iakeft; 
~et-J.im.it .. <l-tB-tR€--1'1t!ffii1er of employees to ee trained, a descriJ*i<>~ 
fIfl6-5erviees tlJ-be-p1",\4de8,th_beF and type-e-f.pos#iens ayailaele or to ee-a¥ailah1e, 
iteJT:lized costs of the pregram and sotliees of funds to pay for the-same, and the ten11 of the 
agr~dl cests i;,e1ude,-s~eeif~he payrnen: by communit), colloge-di5ffie!s-ef-c-es-ts 
f"Jf51*1f1He SectioflO 337,338,3 '19 and 3 19.1 efthe-Public Community Cellege Act ami-by 
5C-fl<>e1-4i~-ests-~"",""fIflHe-SeeHens 10 J2.J9n ana 19 33.3a efTIle Sehee1-8>cle; 

j+Hlter~-€est-inC-tll'f€cl-b)' a redel'eleperrelfr!ed-to ~,e ee"5trBetie~'flfien-Br-rehooilitatieil 
ef a redeYelepl"""t-j3rejeeti'1'<>¥kled-tl1ill; 

1. such c-ests-are-t,,-be-paid-clireetly frem tfle spedal talC allocation ful'lIl established 
pursuar:t to the Act; 
:h-sBeh"f'aymenls-itHlF1)'-<>ne-yeaHilflTnet e"eees 39% of~,e am,"31 inte_sts 
ifler;rr-ecl-by-1'I~'€leper will: regard te tRe redevel~ejeet dllrffig-th~ 
HHfl.re aFe flot su#ieier;t~ble-in4e-5j'lecial talC all"e<Jti<>n-f~<e-tRe 
i'8J'1_then-IRe-am"""t5-<i<l-due shall aecl'B€-flfle-ee-payable wheR slfff~d5-81'8 
ayailable iA the-5j3ecial tax alloeaeiOR-fuFlffi 
4:-tAe-rettt!-ef..s't:lefr-i.ffi.erest-paJ'»1cflts paid pursuant to the Act may not e:cece-d 39% of4Re 
t<1tfr1-(-i}oost pais or ineurred-by-tlrt>-fed~eH-er II:. rea.yelepmenti'rejeet ~lll~ 
reeevelopm.r;t-Pl'Gjeet-€osts excluding any prepel'!y-a55embly-eests aila aAY r~eA 
easts incurred by-a-fmlflkipality pHfSIH",HlJ-tl'1<-A-etj 

1,-19BJ~ktt1y-stateEl-her-ciH-the-eest-ef-ee_",aei-en-ffi:'new-pri yately OWfled 
OOi-J<l.ffigs4all-nel-be-an..eJigible-rede¥el<>pment-j3rejeet-eest, 

Eli2ible costs permitted by the Act and pertaininQ to this Plan include: 

ill-Professional Selvice Costs - Costs of studies. survevs. development of plans. and 
specifications. implementation and administration of the redevelopment plan including: but not 
limited to __ .staff and professional service cos.ts for architectmal. eng:ineering. legal. financia1. 



I2lannmg: or other services. grovided however t~at no chames for Qrofessional services mav be 
based OD a percenta"e of the tax increment collected: except that on and after November 1. 1999 
(the effective date of Public Act 91-478). no contracts for professional services. e~c1uding 
architectural and eng:ineering: services. may be entered into if the terms of the contract extend 
beyond a j2eriod of 3 vears. After consultation with the municij2aJity. each tax increment 
consultant or advisor to a rnunici12alitv that glans to designate or has desi2Tlated a redeveloQment 
I2roject area shall infann the munici12ality in writing of an)! contracts that the consultant or advisor 
has entered into with entities or individuals that have received. or are receiving. pavments 
financed bv tax increment revenues 12roduceg by the redevelopment Qroject area with resQect to 
which the consultant or advisor has Qerformed. Of will Qe Relformin2. service for the 
municiQalitv. This reguirement sha11 be satisfied by the consultant or advisor before the 
commencem~nt of services for the municipality and thereafter wheneveI' anv other contacts with 
those individuals or entities are executed by the consultant or advisor: 

0 The cost of marketing sites within the redeveloj2ment Qroj~ct area to QrDsQective 
businesses. developers. and investors: 

0 Annual administTative costs shall not include general overhead or administrative costs of 
the municigalitv that wQuld still have been incurred bv the municiI1alitv if the municigalitv had 
not designated a redevelopment project area or approved a redevelopment plan: . 

0 In addition. redevelopment project costs shall not include lobbying: expenses: 

(2) PropertY Assemb1v Costs Costs includiml but not limited to acguisition ofland and other 
QTOgertv (real or personal} or rights or interests therein. demolition ofbuildint!s. site gregaration, 
sit~ im:Qrovements that serve as an engineered barrier addt essinl! !!found level or below QToujld 
environmental contamination. includine. but not limited to QatkinQ lots and other concrete or 
aSPhalt ban'iers. and the clearing: and grading of land: 

(3) lln12rovements to Public or Private Bgildimzs - Costs of rehabilitation. reconstruction. 
reRair. or remodeling of existin2 Rublic or Qrivate buildinQs. fixtures. and leasehold 
im12rovements: and the cost ofreolaciml an existing public buildin2 if pursuant to the 
irnQlementation of a redevelooment Qroject the existlll!l I1ublic buildhlQ is to be demolished to use 
the site for private investment or devoted to a different use requirin£? orivate investment: 

(4) Public Works - Costs of the construction ofQublic works or irngrovements. exceg:t that on 
and after November 1. 1999. redevelogment groject costs shall not include the cost of 
constructin2: a new municiQal Qublic building nrincipally used to Qrovide offices. storaee sgace. or 
conference facilities or vehlcle storage. maintenance. or repair for administrative. public safety. or 
Qublic works personnel and that is not intended to reQlace an existing Qublic building as Qrovided 
under12aralITap-h (3) of subsection (g) of Section 11-74.4-3 unless either 0) the construction Qfthe 
new rnuniciQal buildine imQlements a redeveloQment QI'oject that was ll1cluded in a 
redeveloQment Qlan that was adol2ted bv the municigalitv grior to November 1. 1999 or (ii) the 
municipali!:;: makes a reasonable determination in the ledevelogment plan. sUQQorted by 
infonnation tbat grovides the basis fOJ that determination. that the new municiJ1al building is 
J~iluired to meet an increase in the need for public safety purposes anticipated to result fi'Om the 



implementation of the redevelopment plan: 

(5) Job Trainine Costs of job tTainin2. and retraining Qrojects. inc1udinfl the cost of "welfare 
to work" prmrrams implemented bv businesses located within the redevelopment project area: 

(6) Financing: Costs Costs includine. but not limited to all necessary and incidental expenses 
related to the issuance of obligations and which maY include gayment of interest on any 
obli2.ations issued hereunder includinQ (a) interest accruinQ durinQ the estimated Reriod of 
construction of any redevelopment Qroiect for which such obliQations are issued and for a period 
not exceeding 36 months thereafter and (b) reasonable reserves related thereto~ 

(7) CaRital Costs - To the extent the municiQality bv written ameement acce12ts and aRRroves 
the same. all or a portion ofa taxin!! district's capital costs resulting from the redevelogment 
m:oject necessarily incurred or to be incurred wit11in a taxinQ district in furtherance of the 
obiectives of the redevelonment plan and project: 

(8) School-Related Costs - For redeveloRment project areas desiQl1ated (or redevelopment 
12[oiect aJ'eas amended to add or increase the number of tax-increment-financing: assisted housing 
units) on or after November]. 1999. an elementary. secondarY. or unit school district's increased 
costs attributable to assisted housinQ units located within the redeveloQment J1roiect area for 
which the develoQer or redeveloQer receives financial assistance throuQh an a!lreement with the 
municiQalitv or because the municiQali!Y incurs the cost Qfnecessarv infi'astructure imQrovements 
within the boundaries of the assisted housing sites necessary for the cOlU:Qletion of that housin!! as 
authorized bv the Act. and which costs shall be Qaid bv the municigalitv from the Sgecial Tax 
Allocation Fund when the tax increment revenue is received as a result of the assisted housinQ 
units and shall be calculated annuallv. 

(9) Relocation Costs - To the extent that a municiQalitv determines that relocation costs shall 
be oaid or is reguired to make Qayment of relocation costs by federal or State law or in order to 
satisfy suboara0aoh (7) of subsection (n) of the Act: 

(10) Pavment in lieu of taxes: 

ill) Other Job Training - Costs of job t18ininQ. retraininlZ. advanced vocational education or 
caree!" education. incJudimz but ngt limited to courses in occuQational. semi-technical or technical 
fields leading directlv to emQlov[pent. incurred bv one or mOl'e taxing districts. provided that such 
costs (i) are related to the establishment and maintenance of additional job trainil1Q. advanced 
vocational education or career education Ql'Ogl'ams for Qersons errm10yed or to be emgloved bv 
emplovers located in a tedevelo12ment groject area: and (ii) when incurred bv a taxinQ district or 
taxinQ districts other than the municipalitv. are set forth in a written agT'eement by or among the 
municiRality and the taxin2. district or taxing: districts. wl)ich agreement describe:;; the QroQram to 
be undertaken. including but not limited to the number of emRlovees to be trained. a descrintion 
of the training and services to be }2rovided. the number and tv}2e ofRositions available or to be 
available, itemized costs of the R[omam and sources of funds to Ray fot' the same. and the tenn of 
the a2.reement. Such costs include. soecifically. the payment bv communi!Y college distr'icts of 
costs nursuant to Sections 3-37. 3-38. 3-40 and 3-40.1 of the Public Community ColleQe Act and 



by school districts of costs pursuant to Sections 10-22.20a and 10-23.3a of The School Code: 

(I2l Develooer Interest Cost - Interest cost incurred bv a redeveloQer related to the 
construction. renovation or rehabilitation of a redevelopment project provided that: 

(Al sych costs are to be Raid directly from the sRecial tax allocation fund estE!blished Rursuant 
to the Act: 
(Bl such Qavments in anyone vear may not exceed 30% of the annual intere~t costs incurred 
by the redeveloQer with re2ard to the redeveloRment Qroject durin!! that year: 
(Cl if there are not sufficient funds available in the sQecial tax allocation fund to make the 
Rayment then the amounts so due shall accrue and be payable when sufficient funds are available 
in the special tax allocation fund: 
(Dl the total of such interest Rayments paid Qursuant to the Act may not exceed 30% ofthe 
total (i) cost :gaid or incurred bv the redevelo:ger for the redeveJo:gment Qroject :glus (ii) 
redeveloQment Qroject costs excluding: anv Drogert: assemblY costs and anv leJocation costs 
incurred bv a municipality pursuant to the Act: 
(El the cost limits set forth in subparaQTaphs (Bl and (Dl of paraOJaph shall be modified for 
the fmancin2 of rehabilitated or new housing units for low-income households and verY Iow-
income households. as defmed in Section 3 of the Illinois Affordable Housing Act. The 
Rercentage of75% shall be substituted for 30% in subparaQTaphs (Bl and (Dl. 
(Fl Instead of the eligible co;ts provided b~ ;ubQaraOJaphs (B) and (D). as modified by this 
sub:garagra:gh. and notwithstanding anx other provisions of the Act to the contrarY. the 
Inunicipality may pay from tax increment revenues UQ to 50% of the cost of construction of new 
housin!! units to be occu12ied by low-income households and ver::Y low-income households as 
defined in Section 3 oftbe JIIinois Affordable HousiM bet. The cost of construction of those 
units may be derived from the Qroceeds ofbond$ issued bv the municipali!y under the Act or 
other constitutional or statutorY authority or from other sources of municip-al revenue that mav be 
reimbursed fr'Om tax increment revenues or the Qroceeds of bonds issued to finance the 
construction of that housine:. The eli!!ible costs provided under this subpara!ITaQh (F) shall be an 
elhzible cost for the construction. renovation. ang rehabilitation of all low and verY low-income 
housing units. as defined in Section 3 of the JIIinois Affordable Housing Act. within the 
r'edeveloQrnent proiect area. If the low and verY low-income units are Qart of a residential 
redevelo12ment project that includes units not affordable to low and ver.y low-income households. 
only the low and very low-income units shall be eli!!ible for benefits under subpara!ITaoh (F). 

The TIF Act 12rohibits certain co~ts. Unless eXQlicitlv stated herein the cost of construction of 
new Qrivately-owned buildinQs shall not be an elifdble redeveloQment Qroject cost. In addition. 
the statute Qrohibits costs related to retail development that results in the closimz of nearby 
facilities of the same retailers. SQecificallv. none of the redevelopment nroject costs enumerated 
in the Act shall be eligible redevelopment groject costs if those costs would provide direct 
financial support to a retail entity initiating oQerations in the redeveJoQfl1ent groject area while 
terminating oQelations at another Illinois location \>,Iithin 10 miles of the redeveloyment project 
area but outside the boundaries of the redevelooment omiect area municioalitv. 



AmendmentD 
Page 18-19 of the Original TIF Plan 

2. Estimated Redevelopment Costs 

I 
A range of redevelopment activities and improvements will be required to implement this 
Redevelopment Plan The activities and improvements and their estimated costs (+9%--2008 
dollars) are summarized belew ""d shewn-in Table I, Estimated Redevelopment Project 
Costs To the extent that municipal obligations have been issued to pay for such 
Redevelopment Project Costs prior to, and in anticipation of, the adoption of TlF, the City 

I 
shall be reimbursed from incremental property taxes for such Redevelopment Project Costs. 
The estimated Redevelopment Project Costs illHstreled below aBe in Table I are intended to 
provide an upper estimate of expenditures. Within this upper estimate, adjustments may be 

I made in line::-items without amending this Redevelopment Plan 

I The estimate of Redevelopment Project Costs listed belm"",,Rd illuslratea-in Table I excludes 
fmancing costs, including any interest expense, capitalized interest and costs associated with 
optional redemptions These costs are subject to prevailing market conditions and are in 
addition to total Redevelopment Project Costs 

a)Ple-{1Jifng, Legal, .1dmfJ1istra.'ire c711ti-f).f,~er Fees --~ -( Formatted: BuHets and Numbering I 

"slinoated Go 51 ~:5Q,QQG 

This-"*l'e~e inclHses sHrveY-'lHd sledy ,e~~dmirrislffiti.ve 
s-eF'fi€e5-aflEl-ethar profcssisHal ancl-serviee fees assoeiate€l--\i'itl1 implolTTefi#ng 
~e~l"enl Pl~J Seel:lFe env';reflfflent--fur'-j3rWate 
invcstFflen: in aeGer-daRce .,,:ith the A:et. 

'e-}h"f'OIo.:; . t!iSemb'~lo ---.. i Formatted: Bullets and Numbering I 

Es;jmated Gost S75G,ggG 

Tllis e"p~es fer Ihe a€<jttis#iet1-flfl<l--ss 5 eme I,· of 10Bd for 
Rtle¥~nt ej" the Giry' or-agenl fer Ihe Git),. "aeant or u:Hcl~ 
Pl"'I'8l'iy-lT~e-a€qei,.ed by I'm,hase . .,,,hange or long tem1-l€ase-b:Ti>r,p,'£l-e 
ee¥el~ef5-BHhe Gity fer tI'l€-J'HFpese-eHrew develol"m€!'ll-e'r-feeevelopmCl91o 

c) Build/,':g rt.ehabilitsticn 

Eilrtffiftt-eG-Ge st $ J ,75G,()GG 

~efldit'lFe pre '!'1 ees fer the feh ahltkati€H'i,re E e Fl Stftl Eti OR, repair or 
remedelii'lg ef e::tisting public er private bl:lildings and fi;,:~ures, 

cl)--!4rbl-f.e.-+11erlfS-ffl'ld-t'tifit::y IHiprcl'emel'l'fs 



Est""ated Cost S2,OGG;GOO 

~eru!ilHfe-j>F6¥ides-fer the eOAstruetietl-Or e,;tensioA of watef-il"",,,,, 
sewers and stOFfll\\ &tcr detention imprs\ aments; tl:ie 6el1str1::lctien OF 

in'provemeflt af laflGSeal'ffig-fmG buffers, streel56aj'>e!r,-5lreet Iigfitmg Bfld 
general13eat1~eR impro"'emel'lts; the een5tr-tlet-iB~\:l13!ie parl~efl: 
S13ace; ana the CGflstn:l6tiofl: sr ifHpre¥efftCnt of str~et5, sidewall~5---8fI.a 

parkways, 

e) D~er lilleresr Silesiciies 

Estimated Cost S8GG,QGG 

This e"pe"'"tl,"""1>F6¥i<le!;-fer-reimb~ereent of de\'elopefS 
iffie,'€St-€eS!s as Pl'Oyid€6--Jmder-tl~ 

f! Teta! R::derc!0jJmCn! Project Costs (Oboe esrimatcd at S6,.'59,9oo 

Table 1: Estimated Re<l<!¥cl<>j}m<>nt-{>rej.ec+Z:-<lsts 

PlaAning, Legal, Adl1",tis\~A<l-Gtf1ef-!'ees $ 3§Q,QGG 
----4P'rroperty Assembly $ 1,2§Q,GGG 
-Sldi/diAg RehabilitatioA S 1,7§Q,GGG 
---!,;Publie Worlo--afid-tJt~'F<ro"\,,,'e""f!1,..eftA!sts---------!$;-;2l;{J,OGG;GGQ 
---Dg,e¥elej>e1'-l_,~bs*lies S SQ(hOOG 

H-I Estimated ReaCTe!-apmen: Project Ges:s CJ.--e+ude }iI78I1e..f.fig-eesfs-ifii:Juaing 67;), 
inlerest expcmc, cc;pftali::ed inferest and casts aS56cieled...:w+th options! rcsempfieffJ: 
:[.:hese ccs-ls arc :;itl'ject te prerc-.;'/f.;;g !1ttH~rlifi{7ffr-£!fid moe in sadf:ian 1a :s:aI 
Rcd:::rclcfiment ,"reject Cssts. 

Land Acquisition. Assemblv and Relocation 

Site PI eparation 
Utility Improvements (Including Water. Storm. Sanitarv Sewer. 
Service of Public Facilities. and Road improvements) 

Environmental Remediation 

$]0,000,000 

$4,000,000 

3,000,000 

3,000.000 



Rehabilitation of Ex is tine. Structures 

Public Facilities (inc\udinl! Parkine: Gara2e) 

Interest Costs Pursuant to the Act 
Professional Service Costs f1nc\udine: Plannine:. Lee.aJ. En!:!ineerin!!. 
Administrative. Annual Reportin!!. and Marketine.) 

.lob Training 
AIITeements with Other Taxing: Districts: School District 
Reimbursements 
TOTAL ESTIMATED TIF BUDGET 

lliJJ,,; 
/1) AI! pro;!:"! COS! !:s!jmn!l!$ iln; in \'m 200!:; dnllars Com ro~y he ndjmted (or jufimiou per !he TIE '\el 

3.000.000 

10.000.000 

500.000 

500.000 

500.000 

500.000 
$35.000.000 

PI 10 ndditiou 10 the com ide!l!iGsd in Jhe eshjhjt ;)hQ\'e.~tiill!~QJ.QJio.QIl£lULJlll..l1liE-~kWn.1V jnch!d~ no "mOlIO! 
sufficiem!o na\' la)cl1ll!ll111U"" nnd reasnn"b!e chnrscs MSodmed wi!h the jS$lInnce orSlleh Qb!jnilljom_.ihlinJ.w;,'iLQ!UJ1~.J)1ldl.8 
cnnimlized jmere5! nnd rensonnhh- reunjred rcscn'e3 
(:0\ AdjIl5!menf~ to the es!im;)!ed line·item eom pbol'e flre expeeled, AdjuS!mentS ron\' he mnne in !jue·items within the IOwl ejlher 
jncre!l:ling or decrensing line-i!emfi cpm for redevelopment EDeh jndi"lduul nrojec! co~' wjll he reC\'ollinted io Huht oOhe projected privnle 
~:; n:veUltss os j! js !<!illWLI'Ji.fru:.JJ.1!hli£...lirutOOllil.llllPer Ihe !)fO\'i~jon~..n£.I1Uc.l TIle !Owls pflhe lins-j!ems 
set fnMh Qhm'e Ore no! intended 10 olnce fl toml !imjl on the descrilled e"ip_eDllir.!~s O!i the sJ1l;tjFjq jtemsljs!crl n1Jo\'c ore UN jUlcnded 10 

nrn;lrukP ... U:1ll.t:J.1Lo,rmher eliqjhle redel'e!opmeOl uroject com in CPllill.fJ.imu1J~S1'SJ.p.nmsnl of t~~.rig~.!lJh~J.Q1nLmrul!mt.nf 
pOl'lUent for diqjhle redevelnnmeOl Nojset cost~ ~hn!! 001 esceeri Ihe ol'ern!! bmil'C! llromlOl ontljned IIlm\'!? 

AmendmentE 
Page 21 of the 0, igillal T1F Plall 

By ta" year ~007 (eelleeliDA year 2(08) allB fallewing the eempletiell ef all p~ 
Rede\'el6j>ffi_..Jlrej€el5;-!he-r:~jeet .I,re. is esttmfrl<>d te tet.1 "i'prexitl'lfr!ely 
$~1.I£.;O()Q,-+fl~';mate is aase<l-efl-5e¥era-Hcey assHmptie~Hfr~ 
rede¥e!<;pttlent efthe-llr-ejeet Area will eeelir '" a timely-tnaflfler,;l14he 1995 EAV ef-the 
l'fejeet Area will iFlflate at the ,ate eO pereerrt-j'Jer a",mm; aRd 3) lAe g;'e year a¥efllge 
state eqllalicatieR-fa€ffir efC.1011 (t.Ol years 1991 tl1l'eugh 1995) is 'l5ed ill all years te 
ealclilated estimat~ 

U~on comRletion of the anticiQated p-rivate development of the RPA and tennination of 
the TIF District. it is estimated that the EA V of the RroRertv Witilin the BJ:A will be 
aQQro;xirnatelv $55.000.000. 



Appendix I 
Botmdary Map as Amended 



I 

at sl. ST. 

:_i~ ne! ST. 

I r 34 ll1 ST. 

I; 
i Ii 
I . "'~."-" [ -,~-

~~~ 
I 

r 7' " .... ~ .... ", 'NO 'C.w.u,n. 1= 
Jl\1 __ ':";':'="':'::..!";':;: __ _ 

'" > 

""' W 
;> 
-< ~ w 

> 
-< Z 0 

;::: 0 
w ~ ~ 

2 ::;; z 
" ::1 '" :I: W '" 

CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 
DEPOT DISTRICT TIF DISTRICT MAP 

MAYOR - MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR 
CITY CLtmK - TIIO~!.\S .!. PAVLIK 

W 
:> W '=l 

'" -<. 
0- ,. 
< 

'" 
w <: >- Z w 

"" >- -< 
>- '" .,.. w w 0 
-< '" 

< u w 'J) 
> -' "" -< ~ :..:', < 

W 0.. Cl W W 
,..J '" ::1 ;;: '" > -' '" '""' " '" u fn -< en " 2 

'" -< w -' .." v ;:0 

" 0 r.;i ~ u OJ en " 

w 

'" > 
"" ,. 

OJ 

"" '" >-
"" Cl Z 

"'" 
0 "' 0 OJ w 

~ " 
,..J ,.. 

~ '" :0 
w Ii: w 

III 

~ Lni 1 L-, ...... .-J n.~~ ~-I ~L-DI ol..--Ju [L-JlD 0
1. 0 [JD_ .. _.:::::.:::j .<.,:::/.· ... ~ .. ~.·.;.~~if~ 

I I I I .' ,,' ['.-.... '. 

I Ul' . I i. II fl' . .. ...-1. ~p-J [ .. !5'l-'/;;: :::::"~'.. ' .. ~ .:l';\'J;l(i.."-,~\'r·:' , ,.. I ""~ 1 - ~. .. ,_.oj [lj [ i [ 1 iii , I""" I' ___ I ;;:::..... . .. ,,,-i . . :::::""'1 '---..J 
, ; I i I I ' _~- J ._ . ..-~ ... --> - \) . .1 L ___ ~~ .... -; ~-

LJ U · I I I I I I 1 Jc=- [_ •.. J [.:;:::::. ·'i:;:~\1!?~·:::::~:::1 LJ CJ Of] _.'.. . .. - ~,- _._ ... "., ] ..... ::.. : , .... :.J 1'1 DU~l --.~..... .l2 nd >;l. .-." • - -: Ji::::l - 1 •• ::",--.' ...... •••• ..'-.. .... " , • L J '-fr--l ",-

II ll~i 1 ...... ,0. ' •.... "' .. "' .. :J.I.:::.::::.::J ::-;-:~.':;; ... ::::::' LJ I~D' [10 I [-"~~~'J >""--1 r .' <~ :::;>... . .... :::' .::-. L'~DJ DD 0 - I 1 II FAIRFIELD A VE-

l .,,·\e" ::;> ... \".\tl' .... /........ I I O' [J [ I, 
. ,,';'l):'\':' ',,0\1.'\\, .. --:: __ 0'.... , in = J 

;.l~~\~~~-I~ .. :f. Moj ~m.""" I . [iO. nl' r .. --I[ iii I O· 0 [t "" " "' I~ [, . i_I uEJ i I I. I U I U I __ .. =:J [ I .... / I L/: .. t . i ~ CJ I I U CJ ~ 1· ...... 1 1"--"--, [' 1 L~~,~Y 
=-:J L_ ,_.... - o0-'1:./l Lr.= :H l.h ST. 
~ r-, II II i"11 nn II II ,', I--~"""" i /:/., 1 nl 

EXlstingTtF District Parcels 

Proposed TtF District Extension 
!JAn~ AI>.1I1l,loas 



AppendLx 2 
Legal Description for Area to Be Added to TIF District Via Amendment 



Legal Description 
Parcels to Be Added to the Depot TIF District via Amendment 

Also including; 
That part of the East half of the Northwest Quarter Section 31, Township 39 North, 
Range 13 East of the Third Principal Meridian, described as follows: Beginning at the 
northeast corner of Lot 21 in Block 9 in Berwyn Subdivision, said northeast corner also 
being a point on the west right-of-way line of Grove Avenue; thence south along said 
west right-of-way line of Grove Avenue to the southeast corner of Lot 25 in said Block 9; 
thence west along the south line of said Lot 25 and its westerly extension to the west line 
of the north-south alley lying south of Windsor Avenue and north of 34th Street; thence 
north along said west line of the last described alley to the westerly extension of the north 
line of said Lot 21 in Block 9; thence easterly along said westerly extension and north 
line of Lot 21 to the Point of Beginning, all in Cook County, Illinois, 

Also including; 
That part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 31, Township 39 North, Range 13 East of 
the Third Principal Meridian, described as follows: Beginning at the northeast corner of 
Lot 2 in Block 3 in Bolen's Resubdivision of Woods Subdivision of Blocks 2 and IS in 
LaVergne, a Subdivision of Part of said Section 31, said northeast corner also being a 
point on the southerly right-of-way line of Windsor Avenue; thence south along the east 
line of said lot 2 and its southerly extension to the south line of the east-west alley lying 
south of Windsor Avenue and north of Fairfield Avenue; thence west along said south 
line and its westerly extension to the west line of East Avenue; thence north along said 
west line to said southerly right-of-way line of Windsor Avenue; thence Northeasterly 
along said southerly right-of-way line of Windsor A venue to the Point of Beginning, all 
in Cook County, Illinois 

Also including; 
That part of the West half of the Northwest Quarter Section 32, Township 39 North, 
Range 13 East of the Third Principal Meridian, described as follows: Beginning at the 
point of intersection of the southwesterly right-of~way line of the Illinois Central Railroad 
and the Southeasterly right-of-way line of the Chicago, Burlington and Quincy Railroad; 
thence southeasterly along said southwesterly right-of-way line to the North right-of-way 
line of Park A venue; thence southerly along a line that is perpendicular to said north 
right-of-way line to a point on the South right-of~way line of said Park Avenue; thence 
west along a said south line of Park Avenue to the east right-of-way line of Ridgeland 
Avenue; thence north along said east right-of-way line of Ridgeland A venue to said 
Southeasterly right-of-way line ofthe Chicago, Burlington and Quincy Raihoad; thence 
northeasterly along said Southeasterly right-of-way line to the Point of Beginning, all in 
Cook Counly, Illinois, 

\\Knnllf'\'2003\Comp~ny\C1ienl Folden\!!erwyn Dcvdopmcnl Corp~11l1ion\Depot (South Berv-yn) TI1'\2008 TIF Amemjment\Soun:e Ooc:umcnU\Bel"'l'o'Yn Depol-· Legal 
DeICT;pl;on ror New I'IIIccls.. May) ZOOS doc 



Appendix 3 
Original T1F Plan 



SOUTH BERWYN CORRIDOR 
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 

REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AND PLAN 

City of Berwyn, Illinois 

This Redevelopment Plan is subject to review 
and comment and may be revised 

after comment and hearing. 

Prepared by: 
T rlda, Pettigrew, Allen & Payne, Inc. 

October 25, 1996 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

L INTRODUCTION ............. , ... , ... ,.,., ....... , .... ,',., .... , .... ,' ...... , .. , .... ' ... , .... ".,., ........... " .... ",., .. ,' .. , ....... 1 

A TAX INCREMENT FINANCING."...."."'"." .. ,, ... , ..... ,." .. ,." .. "".,,' ... 1 

B THE SOUTH BERWYN REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA.,. ".". . 2 

C. THE SOUTH BERWYN REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AND PLAN ..... , .. ,,3 

II, LEGAL DESCRIPTION" ... ,..... ... , ..... , ..... "" .. ".. ....,..,,,. "". . .... """" , ..... 6 

IlL ELIGIBILITY CONDITIONS,. """"'''' "'''".".... .. '..... "" ." ... ,," "., ............... 9 

lV. GOALS AND OBJECTIVES... ., .... , ..... 10 

A GENERAL GOALS"". . ... 10 

B DEVELOPMENT AND DESIGN OBJECTIVES .. .. .. 10 

V. REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT ...... ................ .... ....... , .................... .. .." ....... 12 

A REDEVELOPMENT OBJECTIVES .... ,." ... "" .............. "" .... " ................ ".....".12 

B REDEVELOPMENT IMPROVEMENTS AND ACTIVITIES '" ................. 13 

C. GENERAL LAND-USE PLAN... ... .............. .......... " .... . , .. 14 

D. REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT COSTS.. , .......... 16 

E SOURCES OF FUNDS TO PAY REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT COSTS " .. 20 

F. ISSUANCE OF OBLIGATIONS., .............. , ..... ".20 

G .. VALUATION OF THE SOUTH BERWYN PROJECT AREA., ........ , ............ ', ........ 20 

VI. LACK OF GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT THROUGH INVESTMENT BY PRlV ATE 
ENTERPRISE ....... "."",,. . ".......,.....,... .23 

VII FINANCIAL IMPACT ............ . , .......... , ........ .24 

VIII, DEMAND ON TAXING DISTRlCT SERVICES .. ............. .. ...... ....."..25 

IX CONFORMITY OF THE REDEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PROJECT TO THE 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE.. .. " .. 26 



--CONTINTIED--

XI PROVISIONS FOR AMENDING THIS REDEVELOPMENT PLAN """",,,,,,,,,,, .. "" '" .28 

XIL AFFlRMA TIVE ACTION PLAN ."'""',,"', .. ' .. ' .... ,, .. '......, .... , ..... " ..... " ... "" .. ,,,29 

EXHIBIT I: SOUTH BERWYN CORRIDOR TlF REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 
ELIGIBILITY STUDY 



TABLES AND FIGURES 

TABLES 

TABLE 1 : ESTIMATED REDEVELOP:tvlENT PROJECT COSTS .. " ................ ,. .............19 

TABLE 2: 1995 EAV BY TAX BLOCK: PROJECT AREA .................................. .22 

FIGURES 

FIGURE 1: BOUNDARY MAP ........ " ........ "" ................................................................... 8 

FIGURE 2: LAND-USE PLAN................... ............ .. ............. .......... ..15 



1. INTRODUCTION 

The City of Berwyn, Illinois (the "City'') is a mature, built-up community of approximately 47,000 
persons located 8 miles west of downtown Chicago, The City is generally bordered by Oak Park On 
the north, Cicero on the East, Stickney on the south and Riverside, North Riverside and Forest Park 
on the west.. Long known as the "City of Homes," the City offers a wide range of housing types 
located in attractive and well-maintained neighborhood areas and enjoys a convenient and highly 
accessible location, quality housing at affordable prices, a variety of shopping and job 
opportunities, excellent schools and City services and a cooperative and responsive local 
govermnent.. 

In 1993, the City prepared its fIrst comprehensive plan, the Comprehensive Plan and Economic 
Development Strategy (the "Comprehensive Plan"), The Comprehensive Plan established an overall 
framework for coordinating public and private investment within the City and also included a 
comprehensive, long-range revitalization program for the City's eight commercial corridors. 
Among other items, the Comprehensive Plan recommended that the City's economic development 
progran1 be expanded in scope and geographic coverage to include the designation of the "South 
Berwyn Business Area" as either a tax increment fInancing project or a special service area, 

As part of a strategy to encourage managed growth and stimulate private investment in new 
construction and the maintenance and improvement of existing b!Jildings in the "South Berwyn 
Business Area" commercial corridor referred to in the Comprehensive Plan, the City, in 
cooperation with the Berwyn Development Corporation, engaged Trlda, Pettigrew, Allen & Payne, 
Inc. ("TP AP") to study whether an approximately 48 acre area qualifIes as a "conservation area" 
under the Illinois Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act The area studied by TP AP is 
described in more detail in Section I B and a legal description and map depicting the boundaries of 
the Project Area, are contained in Section n, Legal Description. 

A. TAX INCREMENT FINANClNG 

In January 1977, Tax Increment Financing "TIF" was made possible by the Ulinois General 
Assembly through passage of the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act, 65 ILCS 51! 1-
74.4-1 et seq, as amended (the "Act"). The .Act provides a means for municipalities, after the 
approval of a redevelopment plan and project, to redevelop blighted, conservation, or industrial 
park conservation areas and to fInance eligible "redevelopment project costs" with incremental 
property tax revenues,. "Incremental Property Tax" or "Incremental Property Taxes" are derived 
from the increase in the current EAV of real property within the redevelopment project area over 
and above the "CertifIed Initial EAV" of such real property. Any increase in EAV is then 
multiplied by the cunent tax rate which results in Incremental Property Taxes, A decline in current 
EA V does not result in a negative Incremental Property Tax. 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, minoi., 

page 1 



To finance redevelopment project costs, a municipality may issue obligations secured by 
Incremental Property Taxes to be generated within the project area. In addition, a municipality may 
pledge towards payment of such obligations any part or any combination of the following: (a) net 
revenues of all or part of any redevelopment project; (b) taxes levied and collected on any or all 
property in the municipality; ( c) the full faith and credit of the municipality; (d) a mortgage on part 
or all of the redevelopment project; or (e) any other taxes or anticipated receipts that the 
municipality may lawfully pledge. 

Tax increment fmancing does not generate tax revenues by increasing tax rates; it generates 
revenues by allowing the municipality to capture, temporarily, the new tax revenues generated by 
the enhanced valuation of properties resulting from the municipality's redevelopment program, 
improvements and activities, various redevelopment projects, and the reassessment of properties. 
Under TIF, all taxing districts continue to receive property taxes levied on the initial valuation of 
properties within the redevelopment project area. Additionally, taxing districts can receive 
distributions of excess Incremental Property Taxes when annual Incremental Property Taxes 
received exceed principal and interest obligations for that year and redevelopment project costs 
necessary to implement the redevelopment plan have been paid .. Taxing districts also benefit from 
the increased property tax base after redevelopment prqject costs and obligations are paid. 

B. THE SOUTH BERWYN CORRIDOR REDEVELOPMENT 
PROJECT AREA 

The area studied by TPAP, hereinafter referred to as the "Project Area," consists of 96 buildings 
situated on approximately 48 acres. The Project Area generally includes the frontage along the 
north side of Stanley Avenue between Clinton Avenue and Ridgeland Avenue; the frontage along 
the south side of Windsor Avenue between Home Avenue and Grove Avenue; the fr·ontage along 
both sides of Oak Park Avenue between Stanley Avenue and 31st Street; the block generally 
bounded by Windsor Avenue, Oak Park Avenue, 34th Street and Grove Street; the north half ofthe 
frontage along the west side of Grove Avenue between Windsor Avenue and 34th Street; and the 
portion of the Metra railroad right of way generally located between Stanley Avenue and Windsor 
Avenue and extending from Home Avenue to Ridgeland Avenue. 

The Project Area is a mixed-use area containing a wide range of land uses in a relatively compact 
geographic area. While office and service uses predominate, the ar·ea also includes a major hospital, 
retail stores, residential uses, a commuter rail station and several light industrial facilities. A Metra 
rail line, located between Stanley Avenue and Windsor Avenue, divides the Project Area into 2 
subareas, with the southern subarea being somewhat more intensely developed and containing more 
retail stores than the northern subarea. 

The Comprehensive Plan indicates that South Berwyn should continue to ftmction as a business 
area for the southern part ofthe community, and should provide sites for a range of office, service, 
convenience retail and residential uses. The plan also suggests projects to enhance the special 
character of the Proj ect Area, including the repair of older commercial buildings; storefront 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Ber11jm, Illinois 

page 2 



improvements; special sidewalk treatments and pedestrian amenities; more extensive landscaping; a 
small public plaza or park; additional angle parldng along side street; and additional off-street 
parking. 

Typical of many mature submban business areas, development in the Project Area occurred on a 
one-parcel, one building at a time basis, without the benefit or guidance of a comprehensive plan. 
Numerous manifestations of unplanned growth still exist within the Project Area, including small, 
irregularly shaped blocks, obsolete platting of parcels, vacant buildings, deteriorating buildings and 
site conditions, lack of conveniently located off-street parking, incompatible land-use relationships 
and buildings characterized by obsolescence. 

Without a substantial, visible and comprehensive effort by the City to promote investment 
throughout the Project Area, the Project Area will not lilcely be su~ject to additional growth through 
private investment Additionally, the Project Area would likely continue to be characterized by 
obsolescence, deterioration, excessive vacancies, excessive land coverage, deleterious land use and 
layout, depreciation of physical maintenance and assessed valuations that are failing to keep pace 
with the City as a whole. The Project Area, while not yet a blighted area, may continue to decline 
and deteriorate and, without tlle intervention ofthe City, may become a blighted area. Finally, the 
Project Area would not reasonably be anticipated to develop without the intervention of the City 
and the adoption of this redevelopment project and plan for the Project Area and TIF 

C. THE SOUTH BERWYN CORR1DOR REDEVELOPMENT 
PROJECT AND PLAN 

This report, entitled the Soulh Berwyn Conidor Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment Project 
and Plan (the "Redevelopment Plan") has been formulated in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act and is intended to guide improvements and activities within the Project Area in order to 
stimulate private investment in the Project Area The goal of the City, tluough the implementation 
of this Redevelopment Plan, is that the entire Project Area be revitalized on a comprehensive and 
plar1l1ed basis in order to ensme that private investment in rehabilitation and new development 
occurs: 

1. On a coordinated rather tllan piecemeal basis to ensure that tlle land use, pedestrian access, 
vehicular circulation, parking, service and mban design systems are functionally integrated 
and meet present-day principles and standards; 

2, On a reasonable, comprehensive and integrated basis to ensme that the factors of blight and 
conservation are elinlinated; and 

3, Within a reasonable and defined time period so that the ar'ea may contribute productively to 
the economic vitality of the City .. 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, niinois 

page 3 



The success of this effort will depend to a large extent on the cooperation between the private sector 
and agencies of local government The adoption of this Redevelopment Plan will make possible 
the implementation of a comprehensive program for the redevelopment of the Project Area, By 
means of public investment, the Project Area may become a stable environment that will again 
attract private investment Public investment will set the stage for redeveloping the Project Area 
through private investment Through this Redevelopment Plan, the City will serve as the central 
force for directing assets and energies of the private sector for a unified cooperative pUblic-private 
redevelopment effort. 

This Redevelopment Plan sets forth the overall "Redevelopment Project" to be undertaken to 
accomplish the above-stated goal.. During the Redevelopment Project implementation, the City 
may, from time to time, (i) undertake or cause to be undertaken public improvements and activities 
and (ii) enter into redevelopment agreements with private entities to construct, rehabilitate, renovate 
or restore private improvements on one or several parcels (collectively referred to as 
"Redevelopment Projects")' 

This Redevelopment Plan specifically describes the Project Area and summarizes the conservation 
area factors which qualify the Project Area as a "conservation area" as defined in the Act 

Successful implementation of this Redevelopment Plan requires that the City utilize Incremental 
Property Taxes and other resources in accordance with the Act and work cooperatively with the 
private sector and other governmental agencies. Incremental Property Taxes and other resources 
will be utilized to stimulate the comprehensive and coordinated revitalization of the Project Area, 
Only through the utilization of TIF ",ill the Project Area develop on a comprehensive and 
coordinated basis, thereby eliminating the conservation area conditions and the threatened blight 
which have precluded its comprehensive and coordinated revitalization by the private sector. 

The use of Incremental Property Taxes by the City will permit the City to direct, implement and 
coordinate public improvements and activities to stimulate private investments on a comprehensive 
basis. These improvements, activities and investments will benefit the City, its residents, and all 
taxing districts having jurisdiction over the PrClject Area. The anticipated benefits include: 

A Commitment to Maintaining Healthv and Viable Commercial Corridors 

o A demonstrated commitment to the City's commercial corridors. 
o Reinforces South Berwyn's special character as a mixed-use community business area 

• Addresses recornmendations made in the Comprehensive Plan 

An Improved Business Climate in the Added Project Area 

• Reduces physical deterioration and obsolescence. 
o Improves and upgrades the image and appear'ance of the area. 
o Stimulates private investment in building rehabilitation and new development 

o Promotes additional pedestrian traffic 
• Protects historic buildings and districts. 

South Ben1yn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, Illinois' 

page 4 



Increased Emplovment and Retail Opportunities for the City's Residents 

o Stabilizes and expands the Ci1y'S employment base. 
o Promotes a wider range of goods and services for the residents of the Ci1y. 

Stabilized and Expanded Tax Revenues Generated within the Added Project Area 

• Strengthens the non-residential property tax base of the City. 

• Strengthens the sales tax base of the City through increased business activi1y 

o Maintains a healthy balance between the proper1y tax burden borne by homeowners and non
residential properties. 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, Illinois 

page 5 



II. LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

The boundaries of the Project Area have been drawn to include only those contiguous parcels of 
real property and improvements substantially benefited by the proposed Redevelopment Project to 
be undertaken as part of this Redevelopment Plan, The boundaries of the Project Area are shown in 
Figure I, BoundQly Map, and ar'e generally described as follows: 

The area studied by TPAP, hereinafter referred to as the "Project Area," consists of 96 buildings 
situated on approximately 48 acres. The Project Area generally includes the frontage along the 
north side of Stanley Avenue between Clinton A venue and Ridgeland Avenue; the frontage along 
the south side of Windsor Avenue between Home Avenue and Grove Avenue; the frontage along 
both sides of Oak Park Avenue between Stanley Avenue and 31st Street; the block generally 
bounded by Windsor Avenue, Oak Park Avenue, 34th Street and Grove Street; the north half of the 
frontage along the west side of Grove Avenue between Windsor Avenue and 34th Street; and the 
portion of the Metra railroad right of way generally located between Stanley Avenue and Windsor 
A venue and extending from Home Avenue to Ridgeland Avenue. 

The boundaries of the Project Area are legally described as follows: 

That part of Sections 31 and 32 in Township 39 North, Range 13 East of the 
Third Principal Meridian in Cook County, Illinois, bounded and described as 
follows: 

Beginning at the intersection of the north line of Stanley Avenue with the west 
line of Home Avenue; thence east along the northerly line of Stanley Avenue and 
northerly line extended to the west line of Clinton Avenue; thence north along the 
west line of Clinton Avenue to the extended northerly line of the east-west alley, 

, lying north of Stanley Avenue and south of 32nd Street; thence easterly along the 
northerly line and northerly line extended of the last described alley to the west 
line of Kenilworth Avenue; thence north along the west line of Keriilworth 
Avenue to the extended northerly line of the aforesaid east-west alley; thence 
easterly along the northerly line and northerly line extended of said alley to the 
east line of the north-south alley lying south of 32nd Street, east of Kenilworth 
Avenue, north of Stanley, and west of Grove Avenue; thence north along the east 
line and east line extended of the last described alley to a point on the north line 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, minoi., 

page 6 



of 32nd Street; thence east along the north line of 32nd Street to the west line of 
the north-south alley lying between Grove Avenue and Oak Park Avenue; thence 
north along the west line and west line extended of the last described alley to the 
north line of the northwest quarter of said Section 31; thence east along the last 
described line to the extended east line of the north-south alley lying between Oak 
Park Avenue and Euclid Avenue; thence south along the east line and east line 
extended of the last described alley to the north line of the east-west alley lying 
north of Stanley Avenue and south of 31st Street; thence east along the north line 
and north line extended to the west line of Gunderson Avenue; thence north along 
the west line of Gunderson A venue to the north line of the northeast quarter of 
said Section 31; thence east along the last described line to the northeast corner 
of said northeast quarter; said point also being the northwest comer of the 
northwest quarter of said Section 32; thence east along the north line of said 
northwest quarter to the southerly line of the L C, R. R.; thence southeasterly along 
the last described line and the last described line extended to the southerly line 
of the C,B, & Q,R,R.; thence westerly along the last described line to the 
easterly line of Ridgeland Avenue; thence south along the easterly line of 
Ridgeland Avenue to the south line and south line extended of Windsor Avenue; 
thence west along the south line and south line extended of Windsor Avenue to 
a point on the east line of Oak Park Avenue; thence south along the last described 
line to the south line of 34th Street; thence west along the last described line and 
last described line extended to the west line of Grove A venue; thence north along 
the west line and west line extended of Grove Avenue to the north line of Lot 21 
in Block 9 in Berwyn Subdivision; thence west along the north line and north line 
extended of lot 21 to the west line of the north-south alley lying south of Windsor 
Avenue and north of 34th Street; thence north along the west line of the last 
described alley to the south line of the east-west alley lying south of Windsor 
Avenue; thence west along the south line and south line extended of the last 
described alley to the west line of Home Avenue; thence north along the west line 
and west line extended of Home Avenue to the point of beginning, 

S01lth Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, Illinois 

page 7 



" 
I·-·-~---t 

,~ 

";:00' 

," 'llJE!1Jg ~~ ~~ ~c5c=T F"J ~ ~~ ~@~~i-[~Ji~tt3'lil].;ll 
I J~.L---::;::;J~ ~ ~ r:;:~::::fc:::c~~-r;-I <® ,i3V ~ " ' ~ L'iU < ~ ~ __ ~oru\\\\l L"!--'! ' • • ~ """,,*"a~"'~"~ :;;;;--t~ ~ ; ; I ! ! ' I 

111 

'i".:~tdQ. l\\Ji\!l~ QB -A I ; • 

~[]]" \!W .. 

L.C/! I 
EJ Protect Area Boundary 

s > \ ~ > I ~ k 

Figure 1 
Boundary Map 

r-:::::-:+
I 

,@J·,il@lll;j':IO"· ~ ~ @I 
~ 
> 

s ~. 

~m_ 

.~ 

~ 

s 
I@I Blocl< 

. Tax increment Financing Redeveiopment Project Prepared By: Trkla, Petti, 

C><@ 
'. 

@ 
Ave. 

n 

~ 

s 

north ffi 



Ill. ELIGIBILITY CONDITIONS 

Based upon surveys, inspections and analyses of the area, the Pr(jject Area qualifies as a 
"conservation area" within the requirements of the Act Fifty-percent or mOre of the buildings in 
the Pr(jject Area have an age of 35 years or more, and the area is characterized by the presence of a 
combination of three or more of the conservation factors listed in the Act, rendering the area 
detrimental to the public safety, health and welfare of the citizens of the City. The Project Area is 
not yet a blighted area but it may become a blighted area. Specifically, 

• Of the 96 buildings in the Project Area, 73 (76 percent) are 35 years of age or older. 

• Of the 14 factors for conservation areas set forth in the Act, 7 are found to be present in the 
Proj ect Area. 

• These factors are reasonably distributed throughout the entire Project Area. 

D The entire Project Area is impacted by and shows the presence of these factors. 

Q The Project Area includes only real property and improvements substantially benefited by the 
Redevelopment Program and potential Redevelopment Projects. 

A detailed report concerning the defmition, application and extent of the conservation factors in the 
Project Area is contained in a report prepared by TP AP entitled South Berwyn TCD: Increment 
Redevelopment Project Area Eligibility Study TillS eligibility study is attached as Exhibit I to tillS 
Redevelopment Plan. 

The conservation factors found to be present in tlle Project Area are based upon surveys and 
analyses conducted by TP AP. The surveys and analyses conducted for the Project Area include: 

1. Exterior survey of the condition and use of each building; 

2. Analysis of existing uses and their relationships; 

3. Site conditions survey of streets, sidewalks, curbs and gutters, lighting, traffIc, parking 
facilities, landscaping, fences and walls, and general property maintenance; 

4 Comparison of current land use to the current zoning ordinance and the current zoning map; 

5. Comparison of the Project Area's existing platting, building sizes and land use layout with 
present-day platting, building and land use layout standards; 

6. Analysis of building floor area and site coverage; and 

7. Review of previously prepared plans, studies and data. 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, fllinois 

page 9 



IV. GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

Properly guided investment in new public and private improvements and facilities is essential for 
the successful redevelopment of the Pr~ject Area and the elimination of conditions that have 
impeded the redevelopment of the Project Area" Redevelopment of the Project Area will benefit 
the City through improvements in the physical environment, an increased non-residential tax base, 
increased sales tax revenues and additional employment opportunities. 

The Act encourages public and private sectors to work together to address and solve the problems 
associated with urban growth and development The joint effort between the City and the private 
sector to redevelop the Project Area will receive significant support from the financing methods 
made available by the Act 

This section identifies the goals and oJ:,jectives adopted by the City for the Project Area. Section V 
identifies redevelopment objectives and redevelopment activities the City plans to undertalce to 
achieve the redevelopment goals and objectives contained in this Redevelopment Plan. 

A. GENERAL GOALS 

Listed below are the general goals of this Redevelopment Plan. These goals provide the overall 
framework for guiding decisions during the implementation phases. 

1. An improved quality of life in the Project Area and the City by eliminating the 
influences and manifestations of physical and economic deterioration and 
obsolescence within the Project Area. 

2" An environment within the Project Area which will contribute more positively to 
the health, safety and general welfare of the City, and preserve or erthance the value 
of properties adjacent to the Project Area . 

.3" An increased real estate and sales tax base for the City and other taxing districts 
having jurisdiction over the Project Area. 

B. DEVELOPMENT AND DESIGN OBJECTIVES 

Listed below are development and design objectives of this Redevelopment Plan which will assist 
the City in directing and coordinating public improvements and activities with private investment 
in order to achieve the goals and objectives stated in this Redevelopment Plan. 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopmelll Project & Plan 
Berwyn, minais 

page 10 



L Establish a unique identity for the Project Area which clarifies and enhances the identity and 
functional role of the corridor and the City; 

2 Maintain and expand the range of retail and commercial service activities available within the 
Proj ect Area; 

3 Encourage the corrective maintenance of properties in poor condition; 

4. Minimize any negative impact of commercial or industrial activities on neighboring land-use 
8Teas; 

5. Ensure safe and convenient vehicular access to, and adequate parking in, all commercial and 
industrial areas; 

6. Encourage safe and convenient pedestrian access to shopping and service areas; 

7.. Improve the image and appearance of all existing commercial and industrial areas; 

8. Ensure high standards in the design and construction of new and rehabilitated structures or 
landscape features; 

9. Promote the preservation and protection of properties with local historical and architectural 
interest; 

10. Protect residential areas from encroachment by land-uses and traffic which may create adverse 
impacts; 

II. Require adequate buffering and screening between residential areas and adjacent commercial or 
industrial uses; 

12. Encourage new housing types that are compatible with the existing character and quality of the 

City; 

13. Promote a balanced mix of housing types and residential densities which provide housing 
opportunities for various socioeconomic groups; 

14. Ensure that all roadways in the community have surfaces, curbs and gutters .in adequate 
condition; and 

15. Improve the overall appearance of major roadway corridors. 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, Illinois 

page 11 



V. REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

This section presents the Redevelopment Proj ect anticipated to be undertaken by the City and by 
private entities on behalf of the City in furtherance of Redevelopment Plan. The Redevelopment 
Pr()ject contained in this Redevelopment Plan and pU!suant to the Act includes redevelopment 
o~jectives, a description of reaevelopment improvements and activities, a general land use plan, 
estimated redevelopment pI'Oject costs, a description of sources of funds to pay estimated 
redevelopment project costs, a description of obligations that may be issued, identification of the 
most recent EAV of pI'Operties in the Project Area, and an estimate of future EAV. 

A. REDEVELOPMENT OBJECTIVES 

Listed below are objectives which guide planning decisions to achieve the goals and objectives 
contained in this Redevelopment Plan. 

1. Reduce or eliminate those conditions which qualify the Project Area as a conservation 
area .. Section III, Eligibility Conditions, describes these conditions .. 

2. EncoU!age a high-quality appearance of buildings, rights-of-way, and open spaces and 
encourage high standards of design. 

3. Strengthen the economic well-being of the Project Area and the City by increasing 
taxable values 

4, Assemble or encoU!age the assembly of land into parcels of appropriate shape and 
sufficient size for redevelopment in accordance with this Redevelopment Plan and 
contemporary development needs and standards 

5.. Create an environment which stimulates private investment in appropriate new 
construction and rehabilitation. 

6 Provide needed improvements or facilities in proper relationship to the projected 
demand for such facilities and in accordance with present-day design standards fOl such 
facilities. 

7. Provide needed incentives to encourage a broad range ofimprovements in preservation, 
rehabilitation and new development 

8. Provide opportunities for women and minority businesses to share in the redevelopment 
of the Proj ect Area. 

South Berl1yn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, fliinois 

page 12 



B. REDEVELOPMENTJMPROVEMENTS AND ACTIVITIES 

The City proposes to achieve its redevelopment goals and objectives for the Project Area through 
public financing techniques including, but not limited to, tax increment financing, and by utilizing 
such financing techniques to undertake some or all of the activities and improvements authorized 
under the Act, including the activities and improvements described below. 

The City may enter into redevelopment agreements with private entities for the furtherance of this 
Redevelopment Plan. Such redevelopment agreements may be for the assemblage of land, 
rehabilitation of buildings, construction of improvements or facilities, the provision of services or 
any other lawful purpose. Redevelopment agreements may contain terms and provisions which are 
more specific than the controls which guide this Redevelopment Plan. 

I. Analysis, Administration, Studies, Surveys, Legal, etc. 

The City may undertake or engage professional consultants, engineers, architects, 
attorneys, etc. to conduct various analyses, studies, surveys, administration or legal. 
services to establish, implement and manage this Redevelopment Plan. 

2. Property Assembly 

The City, or an agent for the City, may acquire and assemble land for the purpose of 
redevelopment Vacant or underutilized property may be acquired by purchase, exchange 
or long-term lease by private developers or the City for the purpose of new development 

3. Provision of Public Works or Improvements 

The City may provide public improvements and facilities that are necessary to service the 
Project Area in accordance with this Redevelopment Plan and the Comprehensive Plan. 
Public improvements and facilities may include, but are not limited to, the following: 

a) Streets, Sidewalks, Utilities 

Public infrastructure improvements may be necessary to adequately serve the 
Project Area. 

b) Streetscape and Related Improvements 

Landscape/buffer improvements, street lighting and general beautification 
improvements may be provided. 

c) Parks and Open Space Improvements 

Improvements to existing or future parks, open spaces and public and private 
plazas may be provided. 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, fliinois 

page 1.3 



4. Building Rehabilitation 

The City will encourage the preservation and rehabilitation of existing buildings that are 
basically sound or historically significant and located so as not to impede overall 
economic development 

5. Interest Subsidies 

Under the Act, up to 30 percent of the total of (i) costs paid or incun'ed by a redeveloper 
for a redevelopment prc>jec\ plus (ii) redevelopment project costs excluding any property 
assembly costs and relocation costs incurred by the City pursuant to the Act, may be 
provided to a redeveloper for costs related to the construction, renovation or rehabilitation 
of a redevelopment project Such payments may not, in anyone year, exceed 30 percent 
of the annual interest costs incuned by the redeveloper with regard to the redevelopment 
project during that year. 

6. Redevelopment Agreements 

The City may enter into redevelopment agreements with private entities for the 
furtherance of this R.edevelopment Plan. Such redevelopment agreements may be for the 
assemblage of land, rehabilitation of buildings, construction of improvements or facilities, 
the provision of services or any other lawful purpose. R.edevelopment agreements may 
contain terms and provisions which are more specific than the controls which guide this 
Redevelopment Plan. 

C. GENERAL LAND-USE PLAN 

This Redevelopment Plan and the development program described herein conform to the land-use 
development policies and standards for the City as set forth in previous studies for the P,c>ject Area 
and the Comprehensive Plan. The Comprehensive Plan indicates that the South Berwyn corridor 
should function as a business area for the southern portion of the community and should continue to 
provide sites for a range of office, service, convenience retail and residential uses. 

Figure 2, Land-Use Plan, identifies the land-uses to be in effect upon adoption of this 
Redevelopment Plan. The primary land-use categories within the Project Area are "Community 
Business," "Two or More Family Residential" and "Industrial." 

Community Business District 

The role of the Commllluty Business District is to offer a special combination of retail, service and 
residential uses located in a "small-town" environment. Permitted uses include those allowed under 

the applicable provisions of the City's zoning ordinance. 

South Berl1')1n Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, fllinois 

page 14 



@ 
-'Avo. 

n 
~ ,-, , , 

r 

~ 

1 ___ ·1 PrOject Area Boundary 

.~ I@I Block 

~ 
Community Business 

• 34th St. 

I @> ·1iI@11 I~[@JD 2 or Mora Families 

;> , ~. Industrial 

Figure 2 
Land Use Plan north EB 

Tax Increment Financing Redevelopment Project Prepared By: Trlda, Pettigrew, Allen, & Payne, Inc. 



Two or More Family Residential 

The Two or More Family Residential areas provide for multi-family residential development The 
Comprehensive Plan indicates that the blocks immediately surrounding the South Berwyn 
commercial area, including sites along Stanley Avenue, Windsor Avenue, Oal( Park A venue and 
34th Street would be appropriate for additional townhouse and apartment construction and would 
be an ideal location for senior citizen housing, Permitted uses include those allowed under the 
applicable provisions of the City's zoning ordinance, 

Industrial 

Existing industrial uses in compliance with the City's zoning ordinance and Comprehensive Plan 
will be encouraged to remain in the City, 

D. REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT COSTS 

Reviewed below are the various redevelopment expenditures which are eligible for payment under 
the Act. Following this review is a list of estimated redevelopment project costs which are deemed 
to be necessary to implement this Redevelopment Plan (the "Redevelopment Project Costs"), 

1. Eligible Redevelopment Project Costs 

Redevelopment project costs include the sum total of all reasonable or necessary costs 
incurred, estimated to be incurred, Or incidental to this Redevelopment Plan pursuant to 
the Act Such costs may include, without limitation, the following: 

a) Costs of studies, surveys, development of plans and specifications, implementation 
and administration of the redevelopment plan including but not limited to, staff and 
professional service costs for 81'chitectural, engineering, legal, marketing, fmancial, 
planning or other services, provided that no charges for professional services are 
based on a percentage of the tax increment collected; 

b) Property assembly costs, including but not limited to, acquisition of land and other 
property, real or personal, or rights or interests therein, demolition of buildings, and 
the clearing and grading ofland; , 

c) Costs of rehabilitation, reconstruction or repair or remodeling of existing public or 
private buildings and fixtures; 

d) Costs of the construction of public works or improvements; 

e) Costs of job training and retraining projects; 

f) Fin\lIlcing costs including, but not limited to, all necessary and incidental expenses 
related to the issuance of obligations and which may include payment of interest on 
any obligations issued hereunder accruing during the estimated period of 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, minois 

page 16 



construction of any redevelopment project for which such obligations are issued and 
for a period not exceeding 36 months following completion and including reasonable 
reserves related thereto; 

g) All or a portion of a taxing district's capital costs resulting from a redevelopment 
pr~ject necessarily incurred or to be incurred in furtherance of the objectives of the 
redevelopment plan and project to the extent the municipality by written agreement 
accepts and approves such costs; 

h) Relocation costs to the extent that a municipality determines that relocation costs 
shall be paid or is required to malce payment of relocation costs by federal or state 
law; 

i) Payment in lieu of taxes as defmed in the Act; 

j) Costs of job training, advanced vocational education or career education, including 
but not limited to, courses in occupational, semi-technical or technical fields leading 
directly to employment, incllired by one or more taxing districts, provided that such 
costs (i) are related to the establishment and maintenance of additional job training, 
advanced vocational education or career education programs for persons employed or 
to be employed by employers located in a redevelopment project area; and (ii) when 
incllired by a taxing district or taxing districts other than the municipality, are set 
forth in a written agreement by or among the municipality and the taxing district or 
taxing districts, which agreement describes the program to be undertalcen including 
but not limited to, the number of employees to be trained, a description of the 
training and services to be provided, the number and type of positions available or to 
be available, itemized costs of the program and somces offtmds to pay for the same, 
and the term of the agreement. Such costs include, specifically, the payment by 
community college districts of costs pursuant to Sections 3-.37, 3-38, 3-40, and 3-
40J of the Public Community College Act and by school districts of costs pursuant 
to Sections 10-22.20a and 10-233a of the School Code; 

k) Interest cost incurred by a redeveloper related to tl,e construction, renovation or 
rehabilitation of a redevelopment project provided that: 

L such costs are to be paid directly from the special tax allocation ftmd 
established pursuant to this Act; 

2. such payments in anyone year may not exceed 30 percent of the armual 
interest costs incurred by the redeveloper with regard to the redevelopment 
project during that year; 

3. if there are not sufficient ftmds available in the special tax allocation fund to 
make the pa,ment pllisuant to this provision, then the amooot so due shall 
accme and be payable when sufficient ftmds are available in the special tax 
allocation ftmd; and 

4. the total of such interest payments inclliled pmsuant to tllis Act may not 
exceed 30 percent of the total: (i) costs paid or incurred by the redeveloper for 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan page 17 
Berwyn, Illinois 



such redevelopment project plus (ii) redevelopment pr~ject costs excluding 
any property assembly costs and any relocation costs incurred by a 
municipality pursuant to this Act 

1) Unless explicitly provided in the Act, the cost of construction of new privately
owned buildings shall Dot be an eligible redevelopment project cost 

If a special service area has been established pursuant to the Special Service Area Tax Act, 
[35 ILCS 2.35/0,0] et seq,] then any tax increment revenues derived from the tax imposed 
pursuant to the Special Service Area Tax Act may be used within the redevelopment 
project area for the purposes permitted by the Special Service Area Tax Act as well as the 
purposes permitted by the Act 

2. Estimated Redevelopment Project Costs 

A range of redevelopment activities and improvements will be required to implement this 
Redevelopment Plan The activities and improvements and their estimated costs (1996 
dollars) are summarized below and shown in Table 1, Estimated Redevelopment Project 
Costs, To the extent that municipal obligations have been issued to pay for such 
Redevelopment Project Costs prior to, and in anticipation of, tl,e adoption ofTIF, the City 
shall be reimbursed from Incremental property Taxes for such Redevelopment Project 
Costs. The estimated Redevelopment Project Costs illustrated below and in Table 1 are 
intended to provide an upper estimate of expenditures" Within this upper estimate, 
adjustments may be made in line items without amending this Redevelopment Plan, 

The estimate of Redevelopment Project Costs listed below and illustrated in Table I 
excludes financing costs, including any interest expense, capitalized interest and costs 
associated with optional redemptions These costs are subject to prevailing market 
conditions and are in addition to total Redevelopment Project Costs 

a) Planning, Legal, Administrative and Other Fees 

Estimated Cost $350,000 

This expenditure includes survey and study costs, legal services, administrative 
services and other professional and service fees associated with implementing tlus 
Redevelopment Plan and providing a secure environment for private inveslU1ent in 
accordance with the Act 

b) Property Assembly 

Estimated Cost 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, lllinois 

$1,250,000 

page 18 



This expenditure provides for the acquisition and assembly of land for redevelopment 
by the City or agent for the City. Vacant or underutilized property may be acquired by 
purchase, exchange or long-term lease by private developers of the City for the 
purpose of new development or redevelopment. 

cJ Building Rehabilitation 

Estimated Cost $1,750,000 

This expenditure provides for the rehabilitation, reconstruction, repair or remodeling 
of existing public or private buildings and fixtures. 

dJ Public Work> and Utility Improvements 

Estimated Cost $2,000,000 

This expenditure provides for the construction or extension of water mains, sewers 
and stormwater detention improvements; the construction or improvement of 
landscaping and buffers, streetscapes, street lighting and general beautification 
improvements; the construction of public parIes or open space; and the construction or 
improvement of streets, sidewalks and 

eJ Developer Interest Subsidies 

Estimated Cost $800,000 

This expenditure provides for reimbursement of up to 30 percent of developers 
interest costs as provided under the Act 

V Total Redevelopment Project Costs are estimated at 

Table 1: Estimated Redevelopment Project Costs 

Planning, Legal, Administrative and Other Fees 
Property Assembly 
Building Rehabilitation 
Public Works and Utility Improvements 
Developer Interest Subsidies 

Estimated Redevelopment Project Costs 

$6,150,000 

$350,000 
$1,250,000 
$1,750,000 
$2,000,000 

$800.000 

$6,150,000 (I) 

(\) Estimated Redevelopment Project Costs excludefinancing costs, including any interest 
expense, capitalized interest and costs associated with optional redemptions These costs 
are subject to prevailing market conditions and are in addition to total Redevelopment 
Project Costs 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, minois 

page 19 



E. SOURCES OF FUNDS TO PAY REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT COSTS 

Funds necessary to pay for Redevelopment Project Costs and secure municipal obligations issued 
for such costs are to be derived primarily from Incremental Property Taxes, Other sources of funds 
which may be used to pay for Redevelopment Project Costs or secure municipal obligations are 
land disposition proceeds, state and federal grants, investment income, private fmancing and other 
legally permissible funds the municipality may deem appropriate Also, the City may permit the 
utilization of guarantees, deposits and other forms of security made available by private sector 
developers, Additionally, the City may utilize revenues, other than State sales tax increment 
revenues, received under the Act from one redevelopment project area for eligible costs in another 
redevelopment project area that is either contiguous to, or is separated only by a public right-of-way 
from, the redevelopment project area from which the revenues are received, 

F. ISSUANCE OF OBLIGATIONS 

The City may issue obligations secured by Incremental Property Taxes pursuant to Section 11-74A-
7 of the Act To eohance the security of a municipal obligation the City may pledge its full faith 
and credit through the issuance of general obiigation bonds, Additionally, the City may provide 
other legally permissible credit eohancements to any obligations issued pursuant to the Act 

All obligations issued by the City pursuant to this Redevelopment Plan and the Act shall be retired 
within 23 years from the adoption of the ordinance approving the Original Pr()ject Area and the 
Original Redevelopment Plan, such ultimate retirement date OCCUlTing in 2018, Also, the final 
maturity date of any such obligations which are issued may not be later than 20 years from their 
respective dates of issue, One or more series of obligations may be sold at one or more times in 
order to implement this Redevelopment Plan. Obligations may issued on a parity Or subordinated 
basis, 

In addition to paying Redevelopment Project Costs, Incremental Property Taxes may be used for 
the scheduled retirement of obligations, mandatory or optional redemptions, establishment of debt 
service reserves and bond sinldng ftmds. To the extent that Incremental Property Taxes are not 
needed for these purposes, any excess Incremental Property Taxes shall then become available for 
distribution armually to taxing districts having jurisdiction over the Project Area in the marmer 
provided by the Act 

G. VALUATION OF THE PROJECT AREA 

1. Most Recent EA V of Properties in the Project Area 
The most recent EA V of all taxable parcels in the Project Area is estimated to be 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, Illinois 

page 20 



$18,144,5530 This EAV is based on 1995 EAV and is subject to verification by the County 
Clerk After verification, the fmal figure shall be certified by the County Clerk This 
certified amount shall become the Certified Initial EA V from which all Incremental 
Property Taxes in the Project Area will be calculated by the Countyo The 1995 EAV of the 
Project Area is summarized by tax block in Table 2, 1995 EA V by Tax Block Project Area. 

2. Anticipated Equalized Assessed Valuation 
By the tax year 2007 (collection year 2008) and following the completion of all potential 
Redevelopment Projects, the EA V of the Project Area is estimated to total approximately 
$24,153,0000. This estimate is based on several key assumptions, including: 1) 
redevelopment of the Project Area will occur in a timely manner; 2) the 1995 EAV of the 
Project Area will inflate at the rate of 3 percent per annum; and 3) the five year average 
state equalization factor of 201041 (tax years 1991 through 1995) is used in all years to 
calculate estimated EA V. 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Pian 
Berwyn, fliinois 

page 21 



TABLE 2: 1995 EAV BY TAX BLOCK 
SOUTH BERWYN CORRIDOR REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 
BERWYN, ILLINOIS 

PIN 

16-29-321 
16-31-107 
16-31-113 
16-31-114 
16-31-1'15 
16-31-118 
16-31-119 
16-31-124 
16-31-125 
16-31-126 
16-31-127 
16-31-200 
16-31-201 
16-31-202 
16-31-203 
16·3'1-204 
16-31-205 
16-31-206 
16-31-207 
16-31-208 
16-3'1-209 
16-31-500 
16-32-100 
Total 

1995 EAV 

442 
1,234,116 

337,337 
786,724 
944,152 

788,368 
363,992 

'1,055,828 
7,531,370 
1,794,522 

493,885 
365,401 
172,066 
541,125 
651,296 
732,365 

'151,892 
17,944,880 • 

*This figure is subject to verification by the County Clerk 
of Cook County, Illinois After verification, the figure shall 
be certified by the County Clerk 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, minois 

page 22 



VI. LACK OF GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT THROUGH 
INVESTMENT BY PRIVATE ENTERPRISE 

As described in Section III of this Redevelopment Plan, the Project Area as a whole is adversely 
impacted by the presence of numerous conservation area factors, and these factors are reasonably 
distributed throughout the Project Area. Conservation factors within the Project Area are 
widespread and represent major impediments to sound growth and development 

The lack of private investment in and the decline of the Project Area are evidenced by the 
following: 

o Improved areas characterized by obsolescence, deterioration, excessive vacancies, excessive 
land coverage, deleterious land use or layout, and an overall depreciation of physical 
maintenancec 

e Between 1991 and 1994, the equalized assessed valuation (the "EAV") of the Project Area 
increased by approximately 1004 percent, 3 percentage points less than the increase in the EAV 
of the City as a whole over the same period. 

As evidenced above and throughout this Redevelopment Plan, the Project Area is not yet a blighted 
area, but is deteriorating and declining and may become a blighted area. In addition, the Project 
Area on the whole has not been subject to growth and development through investment by public 
enterprise. Finally, the Project Area would not reasonably be anticipated to be developed without 
the adoption of tills Redevelopment Plan. 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, Illinois 

page 23 



VII. FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Without the adoption of this Redevelopment Plan and TIF, the Project Area is not reasonably 
expected to be redeveloped by private enterprise. In the absence of City-sponsored redevelopment 
initiatives there is a prospect that conservation factors will continue to exist and spread, and the 
Project Area on the whole and adjacent properties wiU become less attractive for the maintenance 
and improvement of existing buildings and sites In the absence of City-sponsored redevelopment 
initiatives, erosion of the assessed valuation of property in and outside of the Project Area could 
lead to a reduction of real estate tax revenue to aU taxing districts 

Section V of this Redevelopment Plan describes the comprehensive Redevelopment Project 
proposed to be undertalcen by the City to create an environment in which private investment can 
occur. The Redevelopment Project will he staged over a period of years consistent with local 
market conditions and available financial resources required to complete the various redevelopment 
improvements and activities as well as Redevelopment Pr(jjects set forth in this Redevelopment 
Plan. Successful implementation of tins Redevelopment Plan is expected to result in new private 
investment in rehabilitation of buildings and new construction on a scale sufficient to eliminate 
problem conditions and to return tile area to a long-term sound condition 

The Redevelopment Project is expected to have both short- and long-term positive financial 
impacts on the taxing districts affected by tins Redevelopment Plan. In the short-term, the City's 
strategic use of TIF can be expected to stabilize existing assessed values in the Project Area, 
thereby stabilizing the existing tax base for local taxing agencies. In the long-term, after the 
completion of all redevelopment improvements and activities, Redevelopment Projects and ilie 
payment of all Redevelopment Project Costs and mu.nicipal obligations, ilie taxing districts will 
benefit from an enhanced ta" base which results from the increase in EA V caused by the 
Redevelopment Projects. 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, Illinois 

page 24 



VIII. DEMAND ON TAXING DISTRICT SERVICES 

This Redevelopment Plan provides for commercial, industrial and residential type development 
activity within the Prqject Area The amount and type of new development is not known at this 

time, It is anticipated that redevelopment projects implemented as part ofthis Redevelopment Plan 

will not cause increased demand for services Or capital improvements on most of the taxing 
districts, 

Non-residential development (Le., community business and industrial) should not cause increased 

demand for services or capital improvements on any of the following taxing districts: School 

District 100, Berwyn Cicero Stickney High School District 201, Morton Community College 
District 527, Berwyn Park District, Village of Berwyn Library Fund, Township of Berwyn, County 

of Coole, Forest Preserve District of Coole County and Cook County Health Facilities 

Replacement of underutilized buildings and sites with active and more intensive uses may result in 

additional demands on services and facilities provided by the Metropolitan Water Reclamation 

District of Greater Chicago (WRD). It is expected that any increase in demand for treatment of 

sanitary and stann sewage associated with the Project Area can be adequately handled by existing 

treatment facilities maintained and operated by the WRD 

Residential development may cause increased demand for services or capital improvements to be 

provided by School District 100, Berwyn Cicero Sticlmey High School District 201, Morton 
Community College District 527, Berwyn Parle District and Village of Berwyn Library Fund. 

However, it is not possible at this time to predict, with any degree of reliability, (i) the number or 
timing of new or rehabilitated residential buildings that may be added within the Project Area, or 

(ii) the increased level of demand for services or capital improvements to be provided by any taxing 

district as a result therefrom. 

Because the scale and mix of development in the Prqject Area cannot be predicted with certainty as 
of the date of this Redevelopment Plan, the scope of the financial impact on taxing districts and 

increase in demand for services provided by those districts cannot be quantified at this time, As a 
result, the City has not developed, at present, a specific plan to address such impact or increased 

demand. 

However, as described more fully in Section Y.B.2, Redevelopment Improvements and Activities-
Provision of Public Works or Improvements, of this Redevelopment Plan, the City plans to provide 

public improvements and facilities to service the Prqject Area. Such improvements may mitigate 
some of the additional service and capital improvement demands placed on taxing districts as a 

result of the implementation of this Redevelopment Plan. 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, minoi.s 

page 25 



IX. CONFORMITY OF THE REDEVELOPMENT PLAN AND 
PROJECT TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

This Redevelopment Plan and the Redevelopment Project described herein conform to the 
Comprehensive Plan for the development of the City as a whole. 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, fliinois 

page 26 



x. PHASING AND SCHEDUUNG 

A phased implementation strategy will be utilized to achieve comprehensive and coordinated 
redevelopment of the Project Area 

It is anticipated that City expenditures for Redevelopment Project Costs will be carefully staged on 
a reasonable and proportional basis to coincide with Redevelopment Project expenditures by 
private developers and the receipt of Incremental Property Taxes by the City" 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, fllinois 

page 27 



XI. PROVISIONS FOR AMENDING TIDS REDEVELOPMENT 
PLAN 

This Redevelopment Plan may be amended pursuant to the Act 

SOllth Ben1yn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, Illinois 

page 28 



XII. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PLAN 

The City is committed to and will affirmatively implement the following principles with respect to 
this Redevelopment Plan: 

A) The assurance of equal opportunity in all personnel and employment actions, including, 
but not limited to: hiring, training, transfer, promotion, discipline, fringe benefits, salary, 
employment worldng conditions, termination, etc., without regard to race, color, religion, sex, 
age, handicapped status, national origin, creed or ancestry. 

B) TIns commitment to affirmative action will ensure that all members of the protected 
groups are sought out to compete for a11job openings and promotional opportunities. 

In order to implement these principles, the City shall require and promote equal employment 
practices and affirmative action on the part of itself and its contractors and vendors. In particular, 
parties engaged by the City shall be required to agree to the principles set forth in tins section. 

South Berwyn Corridor Redevelopment Project & Plan 
Berwyn, JIli170is 

page 29 



EXHlBIT I: SOUTH BERWYN CORRIDOR TIF REDEVELOP11ENT 
PROJECT AREA ELIGBILITY STUDY 



SOUTH BERWYN CORRIDOR 
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 

REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT AREA 
ELIGIBILITY STUDY 

City of Berwyn, Illinois 

This Eligibility Study is subject to change based on the review and comment by 
the City and may be revised before a [mal Eligibility Study is issued by 

the City for purposes of the public hearing 

Prepared by 
Trkla, Pettigrew, Allen & Payne, Inc, 

October 25, 1996 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARy.... ..... 

L BASIS FOR REDEVELOPMENT '" 

II.. THE STUDY AREA ............. . 

ill ELIGIBILITY SURVEY AND ANALySIS ...... . 

.......... 1 

. .......... 4 

. .................... 6 

k Building Condition Survey .. """ .......... ".... . ....... 6 
I. Building Components Evaluated ...... .............. .. 8 
2.. Building Component Classification ...................................................... 8 
3. Final Building Rating ..... ...................................... . .... 9 

B. Presence of Conservation Factors .... . 
1. Age....... ............. . ........ . 
2. Dilapidation ................. . ............................. . 
3. Obsolescence .... ................ .. ................. . 
4. Deterioration .................................................................... . 
5 Illegal Use ofIndividual Structures .......................... . 
6. Presence ofStmctures Below Minimum Code Standards. 
7. 
8 
9 

Abandonment. 
Excessive Vacancies .............................................................. . 
Overcrowding of Structures And Community Facilities .... . 

. ........ 10 

....... 10 
.. 11 

. ......... 12 
0< "."' '" 13 

..15 
. ........ 15 
........ 16 

.16 
16 

10. 
11. 
12 
13, 
14. 
15. 

Lack of V entilation, Light, or Sanitary Facilities ... . ........... 17 
Inadequate Utilities .. .... . . ......... . 
Excessive Land Coverage ........................... .. 
Deleterious Land-Use Or Layout..... ........................ . ................... . 
Depreciation of Physical Maintenance .. 
Lack of Community Planning .. 

IV. ELIGIBILITY CONCLUSIONS ..... 

.. 17 
.18 

......... 18 
. .. 19 



Figure I 

Figure 2 

Table I 

Table 2 

LIST OF FIGURES 

Study Area Boundary. 

Exterior Survey FOnTI .............................. ', .. , " ....... ,' "', .. ,' , .. "., "" .. 7 

LIST OF TABLES 

Summary of Building Deterioration,."" .. "."." 

Distribution of Conservation Factors, .. , '.' 

""""''''''''''''''.,. "",' ",.,.14 

... "",, .. ",."., .. 22 



I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The purpose of this study is to document whether the South Berwyn Corridor Tax Increment 
Financing Redevelopment Study Area (the "Study Area") in the City of Berwyn, Illinois (the 
"City") qualifies for designation as a "Conservation Area" pursuant to the definition contained in 
the Illinois Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act 65 ILCS 5111-74.4-1 et seq, as amended 
and supplemented from time to time (the "Act"), 

The purpose of this study, entitled the South Berv.'Yn Corridor Tax Increment FinanCing 
Redevelopment Project Area Eligibility Study (the "Eligibility Study") is to document the 
conditions that exist which may be sufficient to designate an approximately 48 acre area as a 
Conservation Area. The Study Area generally includes all of the commercial frontage in the blocks 
along the Burlington rail line, from Home Avenue on the west to Cuyler Avenue on the east and the 
commercial portions of blocks fronting Oak Park Avenue, from 31 st Street on the north to 34th 
Street on the south. Boundaries of the Study Area are shown in Figure 1, BoundGlY Map 

As set forth in the Act, "redevelopment project area" means an area designated by the 
municipality, which is not less in the aggregate than 1 1/2 acres and in respect to which the 
municipality has made a finding that there exist conditions which cause the area to be classified 
as an industrial park conservation area or a blighted area or a conservation area, or a combination 
of both blighted and conservation areas The Study Area exceeds the minimum acreage 
requirements of the Act 

As set forth in the Act, "Conservation Area" means any improved area within the boundaries of a 
redevelopment project area located within the territorial limits of the municipality in which 
50 percent or more of the structures in the area have an age of 35 years or more, Such an area is not 
yet a blighted area, but because of a combination of three or more of the following factors: 
dilapidation; obsolescence; deterioration; illegal use of individual structures; presence of structures 
below minimum code standar'ds; abandonment; excessive vacancies; overcrowding of structures 
and community facilities; lack of ventilation, light or sanitary facilities; inadequate utilities; 
excessive land coverage; deleterious land use or layout; depreciation of physical maintenance; or 
lack of community planning, is detrimental to the pubic safety, health, morals or welfare and such 
an area may become a blighted area, 

While it may be concluded that the mere presence of thr'ee or more of the stated factors may be 
sufficient to make a finding as a conservation area, the evaluation contained in this Eligibility Study 

South Berv.yn Corridor TIF Eligibility Study (1012.5196) 
Berwyn, Illinois 

Page i 



was made on the basis that the conservation factors must be present to an extent which would lead 
reasonable persons to conclude that public intervention is appropriate or necessary. 

On the basis of this approach, the Study Area is found to be eligible within the definition set forth 
in the Act Of the 96 structures located within the area, 73, or 76 percent are 35 years of age or 
older. In addition to age, of the fourteen other factors set forth in the Act, seven are found to be 
present in the Study Area. Additionally: 

• The conservation factors which are present are reasonably distributed throughout the 
Study Area 

• The entire Study Area is impacted by and shows the presence of conservation 
factors. 

• The Study Area includes only real property and improvements thereon substantially 
benefited by the proposed redevelopment project activities and improvements. 

The following conservation factors are found to be present in the Study Area 

1. Obsolescence 

Obsolescence as a factor is present to a major extent in two blocks and to a limited 
extent in thirteen blocks. Conditions contributing to tins factor include tile 
functional and econonlic obsolescence of buildings and obsolete platting .. 

2. Deterioration 

Deterioration as a factor is present to a major extent in one block and to a limited 
extent in thirteen blocks. Conditions contributing to this factor include deteriorating 
buildings, site surface, parking areas and alleys. 

3. Excessive Vacancies 

Excessive vacancies as a factor is present to a major extent in two blocks and to a 
linlited extent in six blocks. Conditions contributing to this factor include vacant 
buildings, vacant space within buildings llild vacllilt parcels .. 

4. Excessive Land Coverage 

Excessive land coverage as a factor is present to a major extent in twelve blocks and 
to a linlited extent in two blocks where buildings occupy close to the entire parcel 
llild where parcels contain multiple buildings, resulting in a lack of or limited off
street parking, loading llild service ar·eas 

Soutlt Berwyn Corridor TlF Eligibility Study (10/25/96) 
Berwyn, Illinois 

Page ii 



5. Deleterious Land Use or Layout 

Deleterious land use or layout as a factor is present to a major extent in six blocks 
and to a limited extent in nine blocks Conditions contributing to !bis factor include 
the improper layout of parcels; small, narrow and irregularly shaped parcels; and 
incompatible uses, 

6. Depreciation of Physical Maintenance 

Depreciation of physical maintenance as a factor is present to a major extent in four 
blocks and to a limited extent in eight blocks where maintenance of buildings, 
premises and parking areas has been defeII'ed, 

7. Lack of Community Planning 

Lack of community planning is present throughout the entire Study Area,. The 
commercial corridors and related blocks were developed without the benefit or 
guidance of a community plan with reasonable policies and standards for 
development of separate parcels and entire blocks 

The conclusion of Trkla, Pettigrew, Allen &. Payne, Inc, ("TP AP") is that the number, degree, and 
distribution of conservation factors as documented in this study warrant designation of the Study 
Area as a "conservation area" as set forth in the Act The conclusions presented in !bis Eligibility 
Study ar'e those of TP AP which was retained by the City to examine whether conservation area 
conditions exist within the Study Area, The City Council should review !bis Eligibility Study and 
any supporting data and files and, if satisfied with the methodologies and conclusions contained 
herein, may adopt the necessary ordinances approving the redevelopment project and plan of which 
!bis Eligibility Study is a part, designating the redevelopment project area and approving the use of 
tax increment financing. As part of the adoption of these ordinances, the City must malee this 
Eligibility Study a part of the public record 

Soulh Berwyn Corridor TIF Eligibility Study (10/25/96) 
Berwyn, minai, 

Page iii 



II. BASIS FOR REDEVELOPMENT 

The Illinois General Assembly made two key findings in adopting the Act: 

L That there exists in many municipalities within the State blighted and conservation 
areas; and 

2, That the eradication of blighted areas and the treatment and improvement of 
conservation areas by redevelopment projects are essential to the public interest 

These findings were made on the basis that the presence of blight or conditions which lead to blight 
is detrimental to the safety, health, welfare and morals of the pUblic, 

To ensure that the exercise of these powers is proper and in the public interest, the Act also 
specifies certain requirements which must be met before a municipality can proceed with 
implementing a redevelopment project One of these requirements is that the municipality must 
demonstrate that each prospective redevelopment project qualifies either as a "blighted area" or as a 
"conservation area" within the definitions set forth in the Act These definitions are paraphrased 
below: 

A. ELIGIBILITY OF A CONSERVATION AREA 

A conservation area is an improved area in which 50 percent or more of the structures in the 
area have an age of 35 years or more and there is a presence of a combination of three or more of 
the fourteen factors listed below, Such an area is not yet a blighted area, but because of a 
combination of three or more of these factors, the area may become a blighted area, 

a, Dilapidation 

b, Obsolescence 

c., Deterioration 

d, Illegal use of individual structures 

e, Presence of structures below minimum code standards 

f Abandonment 

g Excessive vacancies 

h Overcrowding of structures and community facilities 

L Lack of ventilation, light, or sanitary facilities 

J Inadequate utilities 

South Benvyn Corridor TIF Eligibility SllIdy (10/25/96) 
Berwyn. Illinois 

Page 1 



Ie Excessive land coverage 

l. Deleterious land-use or lay-out 

mo Depreciation of physical maintenance 

n. Lack of community planning 

B. ELIGIBILITY OF A BLIGHTED AREA 

1. Improved Blighted Area 

A blighted area may be either improved or vacant If the area is improved (eog, with industrial, 
commercial and residential buildings or improvements), a fmding may be made that the area is 
blighted because of the presence of a combination of five or more of the following fourteen factors: 

a. Age 

b. Dilapidation 

c. Obsolescence 

d.. Deterioration 

e. Illegal use of individual structures 

f. Presence of structures below minimum code standards 

go Excessive vacancies 

h. Overcrowding of structures and community facilities 

L Lack of ventilation, light, or sanitary facilities 

jo Inadequate utilities 

k. Excessive land coverage 

l. Deleterious land-use or lay-out 

m Depreciation of physical maintenance 

n Lack of community planning 

2. Vacant Blighted Area 

If the area is vacant, it may be found to be eligible as a blighted area based on the finding that the 
sound growth of the taxing districts is impaired by: 

a. A combination of two or more oIthe following factors: 

• Obsolete platting of the vacant land; 
• Diversity of ownership of such land; 
• Tax and special assessment delinquencies of such land; 

South Berwyn Corridor TIF Eligibility Study (1012.5196) 
Berwyn, Illinois 

Page 2 



• Flooding on all or part of such vacant land; or 
• Deterioration of structures or site improvements in neighboring areas adjacent to 

the vacant land, or 

b The area immediately prior to becoming vacant qualified as a blighted improved area, 
or 

c. The area consists of an unused quarry or unused quarries, or 

d. The area consists of unused railyards, rail tracks or railroad rights-of-way, or 

e. The area, prior to its designation, is subject to chronic flooding which adversely 
impacts on real property in the area and such flooding is substantially caused by one 
or more improvements in or in proximity to the area which improvements have been 
in existence for at least five years, or 

f The area consists of an unused disposal site, containing earth, stone, building debris or 
similar material, which were removed from construction, demolition, excavation or 
dredge sites, or 

g. The area is not less than 50 or more than 100 acres and 75 percent of which is vacant, 
notwithstanding the fact that such ar'ea has been used for commercial agricultural 
purposes within five years prior to the designation of the redevelopment project area, 
and which area meets at leaSt one of the factors itemized in provision (1) of this 
subsection (a), and the area has been designated as a town or City center by ordinance 
or comprehensive plan adopted prior to January 1, 1982, and the area has not been 
developed for that designated purpose. 

C. CONCLUSIONS 

While the Act defines a blighted area and a conservation area, respectively, it does not define the 
various factors for each, nor does it describe what constitutes the presence or the extent of presence 
necessary to mal<e a finding that a factor exists, Therefore, reasonable and defensible criteria should 
be developed to support each local finding that an area qualifies as either a blighted area or as a 
conservation area, In developing these criteria, the following basic principles have been applied: 

L The minimum number of factors must be present and the presence of each must be 
documented; 

2, Each factor to be claimed should be present to a meaningful extent so that a local 
governing body may reasonably fmd that the factor is clearly present within the intent 
of the Act; and 

3, The effect of the factors should be reasonably distributed throughout the Study Area 

It is also important to note that the test of eligibility is based on the conditions ofthe Study Area as 
a whole; it is not required that eligibility must be established for each and every property in the 
Study Area" 

SOl/th Berwyn Corridor TIF Eligibility Study (10125/96) 
Ber>lyn, Illinois 

Page 3 



III. THE STUDY AREA 

The Study Area includes of an area of approximately 48 acres and generally consists of the City's 
south commercial business district located along Oak Park Avenue and the Burlington rail line, 
between 31 st Street and 34th Street Streets and alley rights-of-way consist of 18,2 acres and the 
Burlington rail line right-of~way talces up 6.8 acres. Combined right-of-way consists of25 acres, or 
52 percent of the total acreage within the Study Area. 

The Study Area includes a total of sixteen blocks, including two full and fourteen partial blocks 
bordered by an inegular boundary. 

The Study Area includes a variety of uses, including retail, commercial service, offices and medical 
related uses. Two blocks each contain a single use, a cable company and a Commonwealth Edison 
facility .. The Study Area is characterized by several problem conditions, including an inconsistent 
mix of uses, some of whlch include residential uses inappropriately located along the commercial 
corridors within the Study Area; old, obsolete buildings, including a significant number of vacant 
buildings and buildings with vacant space; a mix of small and large parcels; building conversions; 
and deterioration of buildings and premises throughout most of the Study Area. 

Other conditions that have contributed to the conservation factors contained within the Study Area 
include: (i) limited block sizes and lot depths and the related overcrowding of buildings on parcels; 
(ii) multiple parcels of varying ",~dths and lengths; and (iii) the presence of older buildings of 
limited size whlch were constructed during the ear'ly development of the South Berwyn commercial 
corridor, which was, in part, related to the Burlington rail line which serves as both a commuter and 
freight line Windsor Avenue, along the south side of the Burlington rail line, and Stanley Avenue, 
along the north side of the rail line, are 50 and 40 feet in right-of-way width, respectively, resulting 
in narrow pavement widths whlch are obsolete by current street design standards. 

South B;;;::;;Y;; Corridor TfF Eligibility Study (10/25/96) 
Berwyn, minois 

Page 4 



JhL .51. 1-.... """'1 

1o~ I 1@"II.. 1 1_, 200 20

J 
[]2~ 1'®1l1Jl lu

r

.-------'--_I uLiJJ,Jffitm:m ~-~ 

" 

111 ' pq ",' 'I. • _'. fn\\\(:m\\\\\\l r::2 t:ITJJl1l.;;;;-.~ ';" '" .l]J.~g ~ ... ~ ~ ~, ~::c:51 r-...'!!!!>'''' ",. 

j

' ~C\\\\\\, ~~ ~ir:~::li[1iJ!t:'!lf[IJ;W!1 ~~.~ ~ ~~L~'4-~-" ; ; i ! ' 

mAD Iln 

I l' 12,' '" , @ 

~LJ; f !t!j ~I II' 

Figure 1 
Boundary Map 

. tl-lLJ 
I@ , ~'I@ll I ::-f@!'""'O'" I~ re ~ 

J , 
~ ~. 

EJ Project Area Boundary 

/@I Bloele 

~ 
," 

--'-_ ... _---_ ... __ .. -

_J2dlid 
Prepared By: Trlda, Pettigraw, Allen, & Payne, Inc: 



IV. ELIGIBILITY SURVEY AND ANALYSIS 

A survey and analysis of existing conditions within the Study Area was completed by TP AP to 
document the extent to which each conservation factor is present within the Study Area. The 
surveys and analyses included: 

1. Exterior survey of the condition and use of each building; 

2 Field survey of environmental conditions covering streets, sidewalks, lighting, 
traffic, parking facilities, landscaping, fences and walls, and general property 
maintenance; 

3. Analysis of existing uses and their relationships; 

4. Comparison of cunent land use to cuuent zoning ordinance and the cuuent zoning 
map; 

5. Comparison of surveyed buildings to property maintenance and other codes of the 
City; 

6. Analysis of original and cuuent platting and building size and layout; 

7. Analysis of vacant sites; and 

8. Review of previously prepared plans~ studies and data. 

A. BUILDING CONDITION SURVEY 

Initial preliminary surveys of the Study Area were conducted during November 1995 to determine 
the area's eligibility. A recent survey conducted during October 1996 was performed by TP AP in 
order to note any changes in use and to document the Study Area conditions based on exterior 
inspections of all buildings. Noted during the inspection were stmctural deficiencies of individual 
buildings and related environmental deficiencies in the Study Area.. Summarized below is the 
process used for assessing building conditions in the Study Area, the standards and criteria used for 
evaluation, and the findings as to the existence of dilapidation or deterioration of stmctures< Figure 
2, Exterior Survei' Form, illustrates the building condition survey form used to record building 
conditions. 

South Berwyn Corridor TIF Eligibility Study (10125196) 
Be/~I'Yn, Illinois 

Page 6 



EXTEl:l.IOR BUILDING SUnVEY FORM 

I'lIoJI~cr J m.lt. 
. , ", I: \11\1;, r.\H • 

~ II ~;,I:"! I ~TIZlKI", 14" I ~11'11 
PIJ!$ON/ICL 

ACI'JV!'I"Y 
-'- UA'l'!; ______ _ 

PAnCH!. jm.ur.,. 
1]IHII:·fl';I·HII~I~!I wr~'n!lr!l'J ~"f:S1 h~ I:~r f~II:,:.I:.,' I~"! :." I :"'1",, I '"I<1lI'l1l'H/nr.llio!l~ll~" I nn 171'1"1I11~ l:lIHIHfwl71 h .. /1!Q"" 1""""'fTr. 

1 1 1--'--1 H.....L...l-I-<-->-I-I.....L...l-I-<-->-I--'-I--'- _,_'_'--L.L-I-L-.l.-.II ______ -j 

!-'-~ --'- -<-->-~ - -'-'- -'-'- --'- --'- - -'-'-1- -I- - -'-'- -'-'-I I 
-L. f-t- -L- -....L.l- -L-i- - -L....l- -LL-I--,- --'- f- r- .......l-l- -'-L-

......l- ~ --L--Lil- -L...L- --L-!...- .....L -L 

--L- -1-.1...- -.LJ.i1_ -L.L. -L-l- -1-

.....L- -L-L- --L- -1- _ ~ 

-L.L- --l-L- i- -L-L-f--1-1..- --'- --L- -f- _ - - - -L....L- --.l.-1-

-L- ..-L-.L -L..L..:.. _ -L..l.- --L-l-- -'- -l.- _1 ___ -:- ___ -L.....L. -L-L-

-L- --L-.t.- -1..-L- i- -l...J....- --1-l-

1 ' 1 1 ' 1 ' 1 1 I--'-'-I-'-'-H ~14::1-:t'tttti=1_t_, .L.-L' '-+--'1' '--'-' 1-1 ----1 
1 1 1-'-1 H-'-'-I-'-'-

'-'-'-1-'-'-1 ______ -1 

I ' I I ' I ' I H-'-'-i-'-'-I 1 ' , I-'-'-I--'-I--'-I-I-H 1 I 1 I I-'-'-+-L-'--I------I 
1-'-1-1-'-1 H-'-'-I-'-'- -L-L-I--1-.I-.I--L-I-l.-,_,_ _,_._I-L.....l-I--1:..-.L-I _________ -l 

1 ' 1 1 ' 1-'-1 1-1-'-'-1-'-'- --i-L-i--1-L-f--L-J-L.....,-,-, -'-'-'-I~I-----I 

I 1 1--'-1 H-'-'-f-L--t-I 1 ' H- -I-I-I+f-L--t-I-'-'-II-------I 
1 1 1-'-1 1_1-,-,-1-,-,-1_1-,-,-1-,-,-1-,-1-,-,_,_,_,_ _i-i-.!-I---L..-L.-j!,_ ---------1 

-'- -'-1-'-1 I I-'-'-I-'-'-I-I-'-'-I-'-'-I-'-I-'-I-I-I-I-I-I-I-I-I-'-'-I-'-'-I-------i 
I 1 1-'-1 1 1-'-'-1-'-'-1-1---'-'-1-'-'-1-'-1-'-/-1-/-1-1-/-1-1-1-'-'-1-'-'-11-----
1 1 1-'-1 H-'-'-I-'-'-H~-'-I-'-'-I-'-I-'-I-/-I-I-H-/-I-I-'-'-I-'-'-II------i 

1 ' 1 1 ' 1-'-1 1 I-'-'-I-'-'-I-I-'-'-I-'-'-!-Y-'-I-I+ _'-'-'-1-'-'-1 _______ -1 

Figure 2 
EXTERIOR SURVEY FORM 

C II II t !i 

~~!I~,MI.:e{]~ 

II "f.SIIlr.Il1'IAt. 
c Ctl~~~nC'IAL 
I IIlOll.nUAt. 

r t'1Illt.IC 
~ HUlrWLIC 
TTMIlSIt><T 

D. !!!:.!..!!!!! 
10m: MlJlIf 

01 Dllt Mil ()~r.~!1,O.1J :aonl~ 
1 no nDlllll 
U~ un ~HU n~~·"~1.T ;U0I'I1r.::: 
~ limn; ll1unlr.~ 
~ ""m tlfllflll.ll 
fo flU l;TOllllOll. /.TO:, 

C, OIR1;TlOUCTlI.' 

I U~l'II!nf 
} CO"CII~1'g 

:J .,." • 
~ 114·U1. 

enm""4Tlon~ nr Tne AlOI)'C IU.TUI~Lll 
S",\U, DC t.lnco 111 Tnc tDI.1.O¥I~G 
WA~"tn, 

I~ lI~so~nr ~"U 
l'tlHCIll,Tt 

:11 wonl1 AKII 
11I:r~I. 

~ n"lJ. l'tIrT:n~u 
" !o'llI"l'I.C eDY_ 

"Mil 
7 !i~ .. Tt (IIf_ 

UlLit 

O.~ 

a nr.nml: l~"a 
I ""D_I'III 
1 1V1"_l,,~n 
~ U~D·IUC 

IJ 11"$0:<11, Mil 
>OCI'. t,c. 

" TII.e alnUn 
II ,ST"eI;U eUY~ 

tnu! 
I.C .• ":1 .'POII, 
~lUCCO eaY
'>ro 

I l:q".",o 
~ UI~_":'.<I 
4 ''':.<t_lfm. 
1 AI"JI/I ,p~o 

fl~tiJ)AU'!1dil,'ki!M'''''!''~ 

.II !;<)\I!ln , .IIrqUIA~ ~JCA 

1 atqu/J>t ""10a lIfPAIR 
nrrAia J ,>( (:lilT/CAt. 

(II~DI1'lo~ 
II tnlJiOLI: 1'0 vtu 

~Jb,\iBl·\I;J'·"\I/j,~ 

o !;<)lIJID :I IItQUI!IU AAJDA 
I nttlu/nu .Il'a~ nCP4lA 

M;'l.ln :. 5WUIoJIOJJ\ll 

ll. lltlr,!!!",r. '''Il.tl!:HLT_~ 

I I~"""",nr. r,ynU.T '''',nllT 
~ '"I",U,'AT/mJ; 11m::: Uf "UU' ,,,,r. 
~ 'lVIa,~"".""m "r ,mIlJ'"";:I "n '.Aa" 
~ U(;f.::t~/y~ ,,_':LLIm:: 11,111' ltl:ml'ln 
~ om;<lu:n IIUII..ltI~" nrl: 



1. Building Components Evaluated 

During the field survey, each component of a subject building was examined to determine whether 
it was in sound condition or had minor, major, or critical defects .. Building components examined 
were of two types: 

a. Primarv Structural Components. 

These components are the basic structural elements of any building, including 
foundation walls, load bearing walls and columns, roof structure, and roof 

b. Secondary Building Components .. 

These components are generally added to the primary structural components and ar'e 
necessary parts of the building, including porches and steps, windows and window 
units, doors and door units, chimneys, gutters and downspouts. 

c. Criteria for Classifying Defects for Building Components. 

Each primary and secondary component was evaluated separately as a basis for 
determining the overall condition of individual buildings. This evaluation 
considered the relative importance of specific components within a building and the 
effect that deficiencies in components will have on the remainder ofthe building. 

2. Building Component Classification 

The four categories used to classify building components and systems and the criteria used to 
evaluate deficiencies are described below 

a. Sound 

Building components which contain no defects, are adequately maintained, and 
require no treatment outside of normal maintenance as required during the life of the 
building 

b. Deficient - Requiring Minor Repair. 

Building components which contain defects (loose or missing material or holes and 
cracks over a limited area) which mayor may not be corrected through the course of 
normal maintenance but could be significant depending on the size of the building 
or number of buildings in a large complex. 

Buildings with minor defects clearly indicate a lack of or a reduced level of 
maintenance. Minor defects have limited effect on either primary or secondary 

South Berwyn Corridor TIF Eligibility Study (10125196) 
Berwyn, Illinois 

Page 8 



components and the correction of such defects may be accomplished by the owner 
or occupants of either average size residences or smaller commercial buildings, such 
as patching or caulking over a limited area or replacement of less complicated 
components, Minor defects are not considered in rating a building as structurally 
substandard, 

c Deficient - Requiring Major Repair 

Building components which contain major defects over a widespread area and 
would be difficult to correct through normal maintenance, Buildings in the major 
deficient category would require replacement or rebuilding of components or 
significant upgrading of larger buildings or complexes of buildings by skilled 
people in the building and maintenance trades 

d, Critical, 

Building components which contain major defects (bowing, sagging, or settling to 
any or all exterior component causing the structure to be out-of-plumb, or broken, 
loose or missing material and deterioration over a widespread area) so extensive that 
building is classified as substandard (dilapidated) and the cost of and degree of 
repair would be excessive or unfeasible. 

3. Final Building Rating 

After completing of the exterior building condition survey, each individual building was placed in 
one of four categories based on the combination of defects found in various primary and secondary 
building components Each final rating is described below. 

a Sound. 

Sound buildings kept in a standard condition, requiring no maintenance at present 
Buildings so classified have less than one minor defect 

b, IMis;@1 

Deficient buildings contain defects which collectively are either not easily 
correctable through normal maintenance or require contracted skills to accomplish 
the level of improvements as part of maintenance or correction of defects, The 
classification of major or minor reflects the degree or extent of defects folind during 
the survey of the building. 

SOllth Berwyn Corridor TIF Eligibility Study (10125196) 
Bel1vyn, Illinois 

Page 9 



c. Minor. 

Buildings classified as deficient (requiring minor repairs) have at least one minor 
defect, beyond normal maintenance, in one of the primary components or in the 
combined secondary components, but less than One major defect 

d. Major 

Buildings classified as deficient (requiring major repairs) have at least one major 
defect in one of the primary components or in the combined secondary components, 
but less than One critical defect. 

e. Substandard. 

Structurally substandard buildings contain defects which are so serious and so 
extensive that the building must be removed. Buildings classified as structurally 
substandard have two or more major defects. 

Minor deficient and maj or deficient buildings are considered to be the same as deteriorating 
buildings as referenced in the Act; substandard buildings are the same as dilapidated buildings .. The 
words "building" and "structure" are presumed to be interchangeable. 

B. PRESENCE OF CONSERVATION FACTORS 

Summarized below are the conclusions of the surveys and analyses completed for each 
conservation factor based on existing conditions within the Study Area. The conclusions indicate 
whether the factor is found to be present within the Study Area, and the relative extent to which the 
factor is present. A factor noted as "not present" indicates either that no information was available 
or that no evidence was documented as part of the various surveys and analyses which would 
indicate its presence .. A factor noted as "present to a limited extent" indicates that the factor is 
present, but the distribution or impact of the factor is limited. Finally, a factor noted as "present to a 
major extent" indicates that the factor is present throughout major portions of the block, and that the 
presence of such conditions has a major adverse impact or influence On adjacent and nearby 
development. 

1. Age 

Age is a primary and prerequisite facto! in determining an area's qualification for designation as a 
Conservation Area. Age presumes the existence of problems or limiting conditions resulting from 
normal and continuous use of structures over a period of years. Since building deterioration and 
related structural problems can be a fimction of time, temperature and moisture, structures which 
are 35 years of age or older typically exhibit more problems and require a greater level of 
maintenance than more recently constructed bUildings. 

South Berwyn Corridor TIF Eligibility Study (10/2.5/96) 
BerHYn, Illinois 

Page 10 



Discussion 

Buildings meeting the age factor are reasonably distributed throughout all of the blocks comprising 
the Study Area Many of the buildings in the Study Area date back to the early or mid 1920s, 
when the area was developed, Of the 96 buildings in the area, 73, or 76 percent exceed 35 years in 
age. 

Conclusion 

The Study Area meets the prerequisite test for designation as a Conservation Area since more than 
50 percent of the buildings in the area are 35 years of age or older. 

2. Dilapidation 

Dilapidation refers to an advanced state of disrepair of buildings and improvements, This is 
reflected in the Webster's New Collegiate Dictionary, which defines Dilapidate, Dilapidated and 
Dilapidation as follows: 

o Dilapidate, means " , to become or cause to become partially ruined and in need for 
repairs, 05 through neglect" 

o Dilapidated, means "", falling to pieces or il1fo disrepair; broken down,' shabby and 
neglected" 

o Dilapidation, means ", '. dilapidating or becoming dilapidated; a dilapidated condition 

Discussion 

TP AP conducted an exterior survey of each building within the Study Area to determine its 
condition Ofthe total 96 buildings: 

63 buildings were classified as structurally sound; 
32 buildings were classified as minor deficient (deteriorating); 

1 building was classified as major deficient (deteriorated); 
o buildings were classified as substandard (dilapidated) 

The results of the analysis indicate that the factor of dilapidation is not present witllin the Study 
Area, 

South Berwyn Corridor TIF Eligibility Study (10125196) 
Berwyn, Illinois 

Page 11 



.3. Obsolescence 

Webster's New Collegiate Dictionary defmes Obsolescence as "being out of use;' obsolete," 
Obsolete is further defmed as "no longer in use; disused" Or "of a type or fashion no longer 
cunent" These defInitions are helpful in describing the general obsolescence of buildings or site 
improvements in a proposed redevelopment project area, In making fIndings with respect to 
buildings, it is important to distinguish between functional obsolescence, which relates to the 
physical utility of a stmcture, and economic obsolescence, which relates to a property's ability to 
compete in the market place. 

Functional Obsolescence 

Stmctures historically have been built for specifIc uses or purposes, The design, location, 
height and space arrangement are intended for a specifIc occupancy' at a given time, 
Buildings become obsolescent when they contain characteristics or deficiencies which limit 
the use and marketability of such buildings, The characteristics may include loss in value to 
a property resulting from an inherent defIciency existing from poor design or layout, 
improper orientation of building on site, etc" which detracts from the overall usefulness Or 
desirability of a property, 

Economic Obsolescence, 

Economic obsolescence is normally a result of adverse conditions which cause some degree 
of market rejection and, hence, depreciation in market values., Typically, buildings 
classifIed as dilapidated and buildings which contain vacant space are characterized by 
problem conditions which may not be economically curable, resulting in net rental losses 
andlor depreciation in market value, 

Obsolete buildings contain characteristics or deficiencies which limit their long-term sound use or 
reuse, Obsolescence in such buildings is typically difficult and expensive to conect Obsolete 
building types have an adverse affect on nearby and surrounding development and detract from the 
physical, functional and economic vitality of an area, 

Site improvements, including sewer and water lines, public utility lines (gas, electric and 
telephone), roadways, parking areas, parking stmctures, sidewalks, curbs and gutters, lighting, etc., 
may also evidence obsolescence in terms of their relationship to contemporary development 
standards for such improvements, Factors of obsolescence may include inadequate utility 
capacities, outdated designs, etc, 

Discussion 

Obsolete buildings are present in twelve of the sixteen blocks These include residential buildings 
converted to accommodate commercial activity; single-family residential buildings converted to 
accommodate additional lmits; long, narrow buildings; small structures with limited utility or 

Soulh Ber11yn Corrido, TIF Eligibility Siudy (10/25/96) 
Berwyn, fllinois 

Page 12 



opportunity for expansion; and single purpose buildings which are difficult to adapt to other uses 
Obsolete buildings include 18, or 18.7 percent of the total 96 buildings in the Study Area, 

Throughout the Study Area, blocks contain parcels of varying sizes, depths and widths, including 
two parcels in one block which are only 85 feet in width and additional parcels oflimited widths, 
ranging from 20 to 25 feet in width in fourteen ofthe sixteen blocks. 

Windsor Avenue and Stanley Avenue run along the south and north side of the Burlington rail line, 
respectively, and contain angle commuter parking spaces along both sides of the rail line. These 
streets are nan'ow, obsolete streets with only 50 and 40 feet of right-of-way, res~ctively, and as a 
result, contain narrow pavement widths as compared to the other streets in the area. 

Conclusion 

The results of the analysis indicate that the combination of obsolete buildings and obsolete platting 
indicates that obsolescence is present to a major extent in two blocks and to a limited extent in 
thirteen blocks 

4. Deterioration 

Deterioration refers to any physical deficiencies or disrepair in buildings or site improvements 
requiring treatment or repair. 

o Deterioration may be evident in basically sound buildings containing minor defects, 
such as lack of paint, loose or missing materials, or holes and cracks over limited 
areas. This deterioration can be corrected through normal maintenance, 

o Deterioration which is not easily correctable and cannot be accomplished in the 
course ofnorrnal maintenance may also be evident in buildings, Such buildings may 
be classified as minor deficient or major deficient buildings, depending upon the 
degree or extent of defects. This would include buildings with defects in the 
secondary building components (e. g .. , doors, windows, porches, gutters and 
downspouts, fascia materials, etc.), and defects in primary building components 
(e.g., foundations, exterior walls, roofs, etc,), respectively .. 

o All buildings and site improvements classified as dilapidated are also deteriorated 

Discussion 

Building Deterioration. The analysis of building deterioration is based on the survey methodology 
and criteria described in the preceding section on "Dilapidation." Of the total 96 buildings, 33, or 
344 percent of the buildings in the Study Area are classified as deteriorating or deteriorated. As 
noted in the following summary in Table 1, building deterioration exists throughout the Study Area. 

South Berwyn Corridor TIF Eligibility Study (10/2.5/96) 
Berwyn. Illinois 

Page 13 



Site Deterioration Field surveys were conducted to identify the condition of par Icing and surface 
storage areas .. Only a limited number of parcels contain either broken concrete surfaces or gravel 
with weeds in the rear of buildings .. This condition is limited to three blocks. 

Street Pavement Deterioration Cracked irregular pavement and alligatored surfaces exist along 
Windsor Avenue between Ridgeland and Euclid Avenue. 

Deteriorated Alley Pavement. Alleys with cracked, irregular surface, including depressions and 
areas allowing water ponding are present in seven blocks, most of which are south of the rail line. 
East-west alleys in poor condition are present in Blocks 124, 125, 126 127, 114 and 200. 
Deteriorated alley pavement in north-south alleys is present in Block 127 and sections of the alley 
in Block 115. 

Conclusion 

Deterioration, including alleys and site improvements, is present to a major extent in one block and 
to a limited extent in thirteen blocks within the Study Area. 

Table 1: Summary of Building Deterioration 

Block Total Minor Major Substandard 
No. Buildings Sound Deficient Deficient (Dilapidation) 

100 I 
107 13 8 5 
113 2 2 
114 10 9 
115 4 

, 
1 0 

124 
, 

1 1 0 

125 4 3 1 
126 7 2 5 
127 15 9 6 
200 16 11 5 
201 5 4 
202 3 

, 
0 

203 1 
204 4 3 I 
205 5 5 
206 3 2 I 
Total 96 63 32 1 

South Benlyn Corridor TIF Eligibility Study (10/25/96) Page 14 
Berwyn, Illinois 



5. Illegal Use OfIndividual Structures 

Illegal use of individual structlUes refers to the presence of uses or activities which are not 
permitted by law. 

Discussion 

No evidence of illegal use has been documented as part of the exterior analysis of the Study Area. 

Conclusion 

The results of tile analysis indicate that the factor of illegal uses of individual structures is not found 
to be present throughout tile Study Area 

6. Presence Of Structures Below Minimum Code Staudards 

Structures below minimUU1 code standards include all structures which do not meet the standards of 
zoning, subdivision, building, housing, fire, property maintenance or other governmental codes 
applicable to the property. The principal pmposes of such codes are to require buildings to be 
constructed in such a way as to sustain safety of loads expected from the type of occupancy, to be 
safe for occupancy against fire and sin1i1ar hazards, andlor to establish minin1um standards essential 
for safe and sanitary habitation. Structures below minin1um code are characterized by defects or 
deficiencies which threaten health and safety. 

Discussion 

Of the 96 buildings in the area, one structlUe contained visible advanced defects over major 
portions of one secondary component While the defect visible may be below the City's building 
arld maintenance code, the exterior survey did not reveal a sufficient number of buildings with code 
related problems. 

Conclusion 

The results of the analysis, based on exterior surveys, indicate that the factor of siructures below 
minimum code standards is not sufficiently widespread or present in Study Area to be documented 
as part of this study. 

South Berwyn Corridor TIF Eligibility Study (10125196) 
Berwyn, Illinois 

Page 15 



7. Abandonment 

Webster's New Collegiate Dictionary defines Abandon as "to give up with the intent of never again 
claiming one's right or interest"; or "to give over or surrender completely; to desert" 

Conclusion 

Based on the analysis of the properties within the Study Area, abandonment as a factor is not found 
to be present 

8. Excessive Vacancies 

Excessive vacancies refers to the presence of buildings or parcels which ar'e unoccupied or 
underutilized and which represent an adverse influence on the area because of the frequency or 
duration of vacancies. Excessive vacancies include properties which evidence no apparent effort 
directed toward their occupancy or utilization. 

Discussion 

Within the Study Area, vacancies include vacant commercial buildings, vacant space within 
buildings and vacant parcels" Of the 96 buildings in the Study Area, seven are vacant and nine are 
predominantly vacant In addition, the Study Area contains three vacant parcels. 

Conclusion 

The results of the analysis indicate that the factor of excessive vacancies is present to a major extent 
in two blocks and to a limited extent in six blocks. 

9. Overcrowding Of Structures And Community Facilities 

Overcrowding of structures and community facilities refers to utilization of public or private 
buildings, facilities, or properties beyond their reasonable or legally permitted capacity. 
Overcrowding is frequently found in buildings originally designed for a specific use and later 
converted to accommodate a more intensive use of activities without adequate provision for 
minimum floor area requirements, privacy, ingress and egress, loading and services, capacity of 
building systems, etc, 

Soulh Be/"ll)1Il Corridor TIF Eligibility Stu«y (10/25/96) 
Berwyn, Illinois 

Page 16 



Discussion 

Several single-family residential buildings were converted to house additional dwelling units, 
however, this condition and factor is isolated and not sufficiently evident from the exterior surveys. 

Overcrowding of structures and community facilities as a factor is not sufficiently present 
tluoughout, nor distributed in enough blocks to be documented as part of this study. 

10. Lack Of Ventilation, Light, Or Sanitary Facilities 

Lack of ventilation, light, or sanitary facilities refers to substandard conditions which adversely 
affect the health and welfare of building occupants, e .. g., residents, employees, or visitors. 
Typical requirements for ventilation, light, and sanitary facilities include: 

• Adequate mechanical ventilation for air circulation in spaces/rooms without 
windows, i.e., batluooms, and dust, odO! or smoke producing activity areas; 

Adequate natural light and ventilation by means of skylights or windows for interior 
rooms/spaces, and proper window sizes with openable sections to provide tlle 
required amounts of ventilation based on the ratios of room size to window areas; 
and 

• Adequate sanitary facilities, ie, garbage storage/enclosure, batluoom facilities, hot 
water, and kitchens 

Conclusion 

Conditions of the lack of ventilation, light, or sanitary facilities have not been documented as part 
of the analyses undertaken within the Study Area. 

11. Inadequate Utilities 

Inadequate utilities refers to deficiencies in the capacity or condition of infiastructure which 
services a property or area, including but not limited to, storm drainage, water supply, sanitary 
sewers, gas and electricity lines. 

South Berwyn Corridor TIF Eligibility Study (10/25/96) 
Berwyn, Illinois 

Page 17 



Conclusion 

Inadequate utilities have not been found as part of the surveys and analysis undertaken within the 
Study Area, 

12. Excessive Land Coverage 

Excessive land coverage refers to the over-intensive use of property and the crowding of buildings 
and accessory facilities onto a site Problem conditions include buildings either improperly situated 
on a parcel or located on parcels of inadequate size and shape in relation to present-day standards of 
development for health and safety, The resulting inadequate conditions include such factors as 
insufficient provision for natural light and air, an increased threat of spread of fires due to close 
proximity to nearby buildings, lack of adequate or proper access to a public right-of-way, lack of 
required off-street parking and inadequate provision for loading, service and storage .. 

Discussion 

Excessive land coverage is wide-spread throughout the Study Area Parcels with excessive lot 
coverage include parcels with single buildings or buildings with rear access DIy buildings and 
parcels with mUltiple buildings These conditions contribute to the lack of sufficient space for 
loading, service and off-street parking provisions, These properties include both commercial 
buildings and apartment buildings. 

Conclusion 

The results of the analysis indicate that the factor of excessive land coverage is present to a major 
extent in twelve blocks and to a limited extent in two blocks. 

13. Deleterious Land-Use Or Layout 

Deleterious land-uses include all instances of incompatible land-use relationships, single-plupose 
buildings converted and added on to accommodate other activities, buildings which are occupied by 
inappropriate mixed-uses, or uses which may be considered noxious, offensive, or environmentally 
unsuitable, 

Deleterious layout includes improper or obsolete platting of the land, inadequate street layout, and 
parcels of inadequate size or shape to meet contemporary development standards. It also includes 
evidence of improper layout of buildings on parcels and in relation to other buildings 

South Berw)'n Corridor TIF Eligibility Study (10/25/96) 
Berwyn, Illinois 

Page 18 



Discussion 

Improper Platting/Layout, Improper plattingllayout in the Study Area includes parcels of limited 
size and depth, including parcels with widths of between 20 and 25 feet which exist in all but two 
of the sixteen blocks, One block contains two parcels which are only 85 feet in width. Several 
parcels contain multiple buildings, including rear buildings, 

Deleterious Land-Use, In some blocks, residential uses are inappropriately located along blocks 
fronts which are predominantly commercial, and include rear multiple buildings and converted 
residential buildings. Seventeen single family or low density residential buildings are located within 
five blocks of the Study Area.. Several auto and truck repair uses are inappropriately located 
adjacent to retail and office activities, These include auto service uses in small buildings 
previously occupied by other uses. 

Conclusion 

Deleterious land-use or layout exists to a major extent in six blocks and to a limited extent in nine 
blocks. These conditions are detrimental to the proper development of the entire Study Area .. 

14. Depreciation Of Physical Maintenance 

Depreciation of physical maintenance refers to the effects of deferred maintenance and the lack of 
maintenance of the buildings, parking areas and public improvements, including alleys, curbs and 
gutters, walks, and streets .. The presence of this factor within the Study Area includes: 

• Building,o .. Of the total 96 buildings, 33, or 34 percent, contain defects and evidence 
deterioration and related deferred maintenance of exterior walls, windows, doors, roofs, 
fascias, gutters and downspouts, and porches 

o Front yard. side vards. rear parking and stomge areas and vacant lots Properties 
affected are limited to three par'cels which contain deteriorated concrete or gravel 
surfaces which are deteriorated and poorly maintained with weeds and debris. 

o Allevs. and streets. Deteriorated alleys exist in seven blocks. Deteriorated street 
pavement exists along seven blocks and includes Windsor Avenue, from Ridgeland to 
Euclid Avenue. 

Conclusion 

The results of the survey and analyses of depreciation of physical maintenarlce within the Study 
Area indicates that this factor exists to a major extent in four blocks and to a limited extent in eight 
blocks. 

South Berl1Jl11 Corridor TIF Eligibility Study (10/25/96) 
Berl1Jlll. lliinois 

Page 19 



15. Lack Of Community Planning 

The Study Area was developed dUling the mid 1920's, and buildings were constructed on a parcel 
by parcel basis. The development of the commercial area occurred without the benefit of 
development controls. Most of the existing development was in place prior to the City's 
comprehensive plan. 

Discussion 

The existing problems, arrangement and mix of parcels and general overall poor appearance could 
have been avoided if the City, at the time, had the benefit of a plan or development controls to 
guide development within the Study Area. 

Conclusion 

Lack of community planning as a factor is present to a major extent throughout the Study Area. 

South Benvyn Corridor TIF Eligibility Study (10125196) 
Berwyn, Illinois 

Page 20 



IV. ELIGIBILITY CONCLUSIONS 

The Study Area meets the requirements of the Act for designation as a Conservation Area. Of the 
total 96 buildings, 73 (or 76 percent) exceed 35 years of age .. In addition to age, there is a 
reasonable presence and distribution of seven of the fourteen factors listed in the Act These factors 
include: 

1. Obsolescence 

2. Deterioration 

3. Excessive vacancies 

4. Excessive land coverage 

5 Deleterious land-use or layout 

6 Depreciation of physical maintenance 

7.. Lack of community planning 

The distribution of conservation factors is indicated in Table 2 .. 

The conclusion of this Eligibility Study is that the Study Area is in need of revitalization and 
guided growth to ensure that it will contribute to the long-term physical, economic, and social well
being of the City. The Study Area is not yet a blighted area but appears to be declining and 
deteriorating and may become a blighted area. The presence of the conservation factors indicates 
that the Study Area has not been subject to sound growth and development tlnaugh investment by 
private enterprise, and would not reasonably be anticipated to be developed without the adoption 
of the redevelopment plan, of which this Eligibility Study is a part, for the Study Area. 

~~~.. .~--~---~~----.---------------------South Berwyn Corridor TIF Eligibility Study (10125196) Page 21 

Berwyn, Illinois 



Table 2 
DISTRIBUTION OF CONSERVATION FACTORS 

BLOCK NUMBERS 

100 107 113 114 115 124 125 126 

Age 1!3 III III !Ill I!!I I!!I iii I1iI 

Other factors 

Dilapidation 

Obsolescence m ID 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Deterioration 0 0 0 0 !ill 0 0 

Illegal use of 
individual structures 

Structures below 
minimum code 

Abandonment 

Excessive vacancies 0 0 0 

Overcrowding of 
structures and 
community facilities 

Lack of ventilation, 
light and sanitary 
facilities 

Inadequate utilities 

Excessive land I1'l I!l III I'll 0 0 
coverage 

Deleterious land-use !ill III 0 113 0 0 0 0 
or layout 

Depreciation of I!iJ 0 0 "" 
Iii] 

physical maintenance 

Lack of community III 

planning 

0 Present to a limited extent 
lil Present to a major extent 

South BenVJIn Corridor TIF Eligibility Study (10/25/96) Page 22 

Berwyn, Illinois 



Table 2 (Continued) 
DISTRIBUTION OF CONSERVATION FACTORS 

BLOCK NUMBERS 

127 200 201 202 203 204 205 206 

Age III I!iI I1lI m D D Iil Jill 

Other factors 

Dilapidation 

Obsolescence D D D D D D D 

Deterioration D D D D D D D 

Illegal use of 
individual structures 

Structures below 
minimum code 

Abandonment 

Excessive vacancies D D D 

Overcrowding of 
structures and 
community facilities 

Lack of ventilation, 
light and sanitary 
facilities 

Inadequate utilities 

Excessive land Hill Ell ill Jjlj ffiI !':m 

coverage 

Deleterious land-use D D D D JjiJ 

or layout 

Depreciation of D D I'il D D D D 
physical maintenance 

Lack of community m!I Pm III 

planning 

D Present to a limited extent 
fJl Present to a major extent 

South Berwyn Corridor TIF Eligibility Study (1012.5196) Page 23 
Berwyn, Illinois 



.. Ii development 
COR P 0 RAT ION August 22, 2008 

3322 5. Oak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 

Berwyn, IL 60402 

708.788.8100 

fax: 708.788.0966 

wwwberwyn.net 

Mayor Michael O'Connor 
Members of the Benvyn City Council 
Benvyn City Hall 
6700 West 26th Street 
Benvyn, IL 60402 

Re: Municipal Parking Deck 

Dear Mayor and City Council, 

On February 7, 2003 City Council approved the use of Walker Parking 
Consultants as the design architect for the parking structure to be located on 
the 3300 block of Grove Avenue 

With the design phase of the project closing and construction phase 
beginning, a request to use Walker Construction for the construction phase 
of the project is being brought forward. The request is for amount not to 
exceed $200,000 in order to retain services through the project completion. 
The construction phase work of Walker will be on an hourly basis in order 
to minimize costs, through the oversight of the Owners Representative, 
Alfred Benesch. 

The City of Berwyn has received grant funds from West Suburban Mass 
Transit, a subdivision of Metra, for $435,000 to be used for soft costs 
associated with the parking deck construction. 

At this time, we request your approval to move forward with this long
awaited project, by authorizing the continued use of the project architectural 
firm, Walker Parking Consultants, through the construction phase of the 
project. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~f '-
Anthon~. Griffin 
Executive Director 



Walker Scope of Services 

PRE-CONSTRUCTION PHASE 

Document Updates 

I. Revise plans and technical specifications according to City and IDOT connnents. 
2. Update the opinion of probable cost. 
3.. Complete a bid set of construction documents for the proposed parking structure 

including architectural, structural, civil, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, fire 
protection, striping, graphics, access and revenue control equipment drawings and 
specifications. 

Bidding Phase 

I. Assist the City in issuing the bid documents. 
2. Attend the pre-bid meeting and the pre-construction meeting. 
3. Interpret documents, answer questions and issue addenda, if any. 
4. Prepare documents to be issued for construction. 

CONSTRUCTION PHASE 

1. Review shop drawings and material submittals. 
2. Perform construction observations in conjunction with progress meetings as 

requested by Alfred Benesch or the BDC Up to twenty visits are included in this 
phase, including a pre-concrete meeting . 

.3. Respond to requests for information and provide clarifications and interpretations 
of the construction documents. 

4. Review requests for change orders and requests for payment. 

POST CONSTRUCTION PHASE 

I. Prepare a final punch list for the par'king structure and participate in find punch 
list review. 

2. Assist the GC in the prepar'ation of maintenance and operational manuals for the 
parking structure, inclnding contractor warranties, system description and 
maintenance procedures. 

3. Perform an eleventh-month warranty review walk-through. 



Walker Standard Billing Rates 

PRINCIPALS 
Senior PrincipaL, '"""""""""""'""'""' .. " '"""' $265 
Principal,.,." ."" ... ".,.", " .... ,"",.," ... ', .. ',.'.', .. ,.,' $220 

PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
Senior Project Manager", .... ,," """""""", ... ",.,." .. $205 
Project Manager." .. '""" ............. '" ............ , .. ,"" ...... $170 
Assistant Project Manager. .... ".,', .. "." .. " .... ", ... ,", ... $130 

PARKING CONSULTANTS 
Senior Parking Consultant.. ... ,.,", .. ,.".".,',."." ... ,', .. , $205 
Parking ConsultanL", ... ",.,.""."., ... , ... , .... ".,., ... , .... $170 
Parking Analyst/Planner. " ... ,", .................. ,' ...... '" $130 

DESIGN 
Senior Engineer/Senior Architect, ................... , ...... $165 
Engineer/Architect."" ......... , ...... ,"", .. ,., .... ".,',., '''' $140 
Design." ....... , ... , .... , .... , .. "., .... ,." ...... , ... ,', .. , ... " ... $130 

TECHNICAL 
Senior Technician, ... """" ", .... ", ...... , ..... ," .... , .. , ... $115 
Teclmician .. , .... , .. , " ............. ,.' ......... " ........ ' ... $100 
Field Auditor ... ,',.".,", .. ,', .... , ... " ...... , ..... ,'.,', .. " ... $80 

SUPPORT 
Senior Admin AssistantlBusiness Manager. .,", ... " .... $80 
Administrative Assistant.., .. , ...... ,., ..... ,', ... ,., """" ., .. $60 



)erwyn development 
CORPORATION 

3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 

Berwyn, IL 60402 

708.78K8100 

fax: 708.78K0966 

www.berwyn.net 

August 22, 2008 

Mayor Michael O'Connor 
Members of the Benvyn City Council 
Benvyn City Hall 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Re: Hadem Metra Station Lease 

Dear Mayor and City Council, 

Please see attached for the drafted RFP to solicit a commercial tenant for the 
vacant office space at the Harlem Avenue Metra Station. The building is 
owned by the City with a BNSF ground lease. The BDC has discussed the 
concept with BNSF which is receptive to allow a retail use on the property. 
After moving through a public process to solicit prospective tenants, the 
BDC will summarize and bring forward the submittals for City Council 
selection. If a tenant is approved by Council, a fonnallease will be drafted 
and brought forward for City Council consideration. 

Respectfully submitted, 

r-I.J- . &_( .' 
)\nthonAr. Griffin 
Executive Director 



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
Retail space in the Harlem Avenue Metra Train Station 

71:35 Windsor Ave 
Benvyn, IL 60402 

The City of Berwyn seeks proposals from interested parties to lease, operate, and manage 
approximately 100 sq/ft. The building is owned by the City Berwyn with a ground lease 
of the property with BNSF Railway Company, 

Notice to Proposers: Proposals will be received at the Berwyn Development Corporation, 
on behalf of the City of Berwyn, until the time and date specified below: 

Address Proposals to: Berwyn Development Corporation, attention: Anthony Griffin, 
3322 South Oak Park Avenue, Berwyn Illinois 60402, on, or before the proposal opening 
local time and date specified below, Proposals should be clearly marked "Proposal for 
Harlem Metra Train Station Retail Lease," 

PROPOSALS ARE DUE NO LATER THAN: September 30, 2008 3:00 pm CST 

Proposers shall submit (3) hard copies and (1) electronic copy to: 

Anthony Griffin 
Berwyn Development Corporation 
3322 S. Oale Park Avenue 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

The City of Berwyn is not responsible for delays by the U ,S Postal Service, the internal 
mail delivery system, or any means of delivery employed by the bidder, Similarly, the 
City is not responsible for, and will not open, any proposals which are received later than 
the specified day and time, 

Ouestions: All questions and clarifications regarding the RFP must be submitted no later 
than August 29, 2008 by emailing or calling the following: 

Anthony Griffin 
agriffin@berwyn,net 
(708) 788-8100 

L General Area Description 

The Harlem Avenue Metra Train Station is located in an area referred to as the Depot 
District The station is bordered by Harlem and Windsor A venues, Daily Metra rider 
ship departing to and arriving at the Harlem Avenue Station totals: 532 inbound, 500 
outbound, The District is home to Berwyn's largest employer (MacNeal Hospital) which 
employs 2,400 employees and has over 300,000 visitors to the facility on an annual basis, 



The area contains three (3) Metra Train Stations and services transit ridership into the 
City of Chicago and to suburbs such as LaGrange, Hinsdale, and Aurora The area has 
development and new business activity throughout the corridor. The Harlem Station is 
located within a retail overlay, which restricts celiain uses without a variance approval 
tluough the City of Berwyn. 

Con1ll1on Description: 
L Property is located at 713 5 Windsor Ave, it contains a one-story train station. 

The building is owned by the City of Berwyn with a ground lease for the 
property with BNSF with the of City of Berwyn. 

2. Subject Propeliy will be going under construction in 2009 to receive a new 
platform by Metra, 

3 Available retail space is approximately 100 sq/ft .. within tlle station and was 
formerly used as a ticket office. Lease would include utilities of electricity 
and water. 

4. Any and all renovation cost will be the responsibility of the lessee and must 
obtain needed permits, 

II. Proposals 

The successful proposal will be for a retail use that supports and enhances the Depot 
transit area The Lessee will be expected to operate and manage the space, will be 
responsible for obtaining all necessary permits, maintenance and cleaning of leased 
space, equipment, and all necessary utilities, Lessee will be responsible and liable for all 
operations of said business and shall be fully insured to the same effect 

III. Selection Process 

All proposals must contain the following: 

1, Description of retail use and how it enhances tlle Depot District; 
2 Business Plan; 
3, Market data relating to the concept; 
4. Financial start up and operations costs; 
5. Proposed lease rate lessee will pay; 
6. Resunle of prospective lessee; 
7, Statement outlining relevant experience of prospective lessee; 
8 Anticipated timeframe for opening proposed operation. 

Each proposal submitted stands alone and will be evaluated on its own merits in terms of 
meeting the City's requirements, terms and conditions, lease rate, and overall 
responsiveness to the Request for ProposaL The BDC Executive Director may conduct 
discussions with any prospective lessee that submits an acceptable or potentially 
acceptable proposaL Prospective Lessees shall be afforded fair and equal treatment with 
respect to any opportunity for discussion and revision of proposals. During the course of 
the discussions, the BDC shall not disclose any information derived from one proposal to 



any other prospective lessee .. The BDC reserves the right to request the prospective lessee 
to provide additional information during this process. 

Lease Awal'd: 

1 The lessee's proposal must be complete to be considered for award. 
2. The City reserves the right to qualify, accept or reject any or aU lessees 

and accept any proposal deemed to be in the best interest of the City. The 
City of Berwyn reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals 
and to waive irregularities or teclmicalities in any proposal when in the 
best interest of the City. The City of Berwyn reserves the right to accept or 
reject any exception taken by the vendor to the terms and conditions of the 
request for proposals. 

3. Award, ifmade, shall be in the form ofa Lease. 
4.. Upon selection and Council approval, the lessee must also receive 

approval of use by BNSF. 

Proposal materials become property of the Berwyn Development Corporation and cannot 
be returned. 



)erwyn development August 22, 2008 
CORPORATIOI, 

3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 

Berwyn, IL 60402 

708. 788 8100 

fax: 708 7B8,0966 

www.berwyn.net 

Mayor Michael O'Connor 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Benvyn City Hall 
6700 West 26'h Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Re: TIF application - Nicholas and Angela DiBrizzi, 7005 Roosevelt Rd 

Dear Mayor and City Council, 

An agreement for this TIF application was drafted based upon the input and 
recommended stipulations of the Aldermen at the August 12, 2008 City 
Council meeting. If City Council is agreeable to the drafted agreement, 
approval of the application can be considered with the stipulation of the 
agreement being executed by the applicants and the City. 

City Council is being asked to consider TIF monies to pay only the eligible 
costs associated with this project up to a maximum of $21,000. As part of 
OUf process, BDC staff will validate work perfom1ed and eligibility prior to 
any payments. The applicant will be required to place his share of funds in 
escrow to be used as first payment prior to TIF draws. Furthermore, the 
BDC will ensure the applicant will not receive any TIF monies prior to 
obtaining City permits. 

With the consent of City Council, Nicholas and Angela DiBrizzi can 
commence work on their project and contribute to the revitalization efforts 
taking place on Roosevelt Road. 

Respectful! y, 

~;r " 
Anthon~. Griffin 
Executive Director 



Section F 

Reports and Communications 
From The Mayor 



CITY OF BERWYN 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING (Date) 08/26/08 

Deferred Communication 

Agenda Item F-1 is a Deferred Communication from C C Meeting dated 08/12/08 Agenda item #14 

FROM ______ ~M~A~Y~O~R~ ________________________________ _ 

Re: PROPOSED REFERENDUM-ALDERMAN ERICKSON 
------~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~------

Templete - xis 



The ~ of Berwyn 

/ 

Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor "I 

ITEM NO, ~~ 
DATE AUG 1 2.lJ08 

A Century of Progress with Pride DISPOSITlON-~- ~/:J.J.di 
6700 West 26~ Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 7~.2567 r= >. / 

www,berwyn-ii,gov 

Date: August 7, 2008 

To: Members of the City Council 

From: Mayor Michael A. O'Connor 

Re: Proposed Referendum - Alderman Erickson 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We will be discussing the proposed referendum question proposed by Alderman Erickson for 
non-partisan elections in the Committee of the Wholec 

Your direction will be appreciated. 

Sincerely, 

~t.P(}tf)~-
Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 



/ T~ City of Berwyn 

/f' 
A \jeJltu:r) 

Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788·2567 
www berwyn.il"gov 

Date: August 19, 2008 

To: Members of the City Council 

From: Mayor Michael A O'Connor 

Re: Proposed Non-Partisan Referendum Question for November 4, 2008 Ballot 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Please find attached a copy of the resolution that must be passed in order to secure a position 
on the balloL A public hearing was held on August 25 at 7:00pm and we will also discuss this 
issue in the Committee of the Whole. 

Your direction will be appreciated 

Sincerely, 

CfJ1~ a([)~UU(9L 
Michael A O'Connor 
Mayor 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois 

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that on Monday, August 25, 2008, the Mayor and 
City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, will hold a public hearing at 7 p.m .. at 
the City Hall of the City of Berwyn, 6700 West 26th Street, Berwyn, Illinois, on a proposed 
Resolution to place a referendum for Non-Partisan Elections, within the City of Berwyn, to be 
placed on the November 2008 ballot. 

YOU ARE HEREBY invited to attend the aforesaid public hearing at which time you 
will be given an opportunity to be heard in respect to any issues pertaining to the proposed 
resolutioR If you have any questions or want to obtain a copy of the proposed resolution, or any 
other document, do not hesitate to contact Thomas 1. Pavlik, City Clerk, City of Berwyn, 6700 
West 26th Street, Berwyn, Illinois 60402, At 708 .. 788.2660. 

IslThomas J. Pavlik, City Clerk, City of Berwyn 

August 20, 2008 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

RESOLUTION 
NUMBER-

A RESOLUTION CALLING FOR A REFERENDUM TO CONSIDER 
NON-PARTISAN PRIMARY AND GENERAl, ELECTIONS IN TIlE 

CITY OF BERWYN, 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

Michael A. O'Connor, Mayor 
Thomas J. Pavlik, City Clerk 

Nona Chapman 
Santiago" Jim" Ramos 

Mark Weiner 
Michele Slcryd 
Thomas Day 

Michael Phelan 
Robert Lovero 
Joel Ericlcson 
Aldermen 

Published in pampblet form by authority of the Mayor and City Clerk of tbe City of Berwyn on __ ._,2008 
Odelson & Sterk, Ltd. - City Attorneys - 3318 West 95" Street - Evergreen Park, Illinois 60805 



"DRAFT" 

RESOLUTION NO. ___ _ 

A RESOLUTION CALLING FOR A REFERENDUM TO CONSIDER NON
PARTISAN PRIMARY AND GENERAL ELECTIONS IN THE CITY OF 

BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Berwyn wish to increase voter 

participation in City elections; and 

WHEREAS, it is the belief of the City officials that more citizens of Berwyn will vote in 

the municipal election if they do not have to declare a party affiliation; and 

WHEREAS, the residents should be given a voice in determining if the primary and 

general elections should remain partisan or be changed to non-partisan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, illinois in the exercise of Berwyn's home rule powers as follows: 

SECTION 1: Provisions of Constitution, the Municipal Code and the Election 
Code 

Pursuant to the 1970 TIlinois Constitution, Article VlI, Section 6(f) and the illinois 

Municipal Code and the illinois Election Code, the following binding question shall appear on the 

November 4,2008 general election ballot: 

SHALL CANDIDATES FOR MAYOR, CLERK, 
TREASURER, AND ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF 
BERWYN BE ELECTED IN NONPARTISAN 
PRIMARY AND GENERAL ELECTIONS? 

1 

YES [ 1 
NO [ 1 



SECTION 2: Specifications to be Included on the Ballot Mter the Proposition 

The following specifications shall be printed on the ballot along with the above 

proposition, and that these specifications govern the appropriate authorities, officers, and persons 

should the proposition be approved by a majority of the electors in the City voting on the 

question: 

1. The Mayor, Clerk, Treasurer and Aldermen of the City of Berwyn elected at the 

Consolidated Election held in April, 2005, or their successors, (Mayor, Clerk, Treasurer and the 

"2005 Aldermen"), shall hold office for four (4) years and until their respective successors are 

elected and qualified. The provisions of this proposition and applicable law, in particular Sections 

3.1-25-20 through 3.1-25-55, inclusive, of the illinois Municipal Code, shall govern the election 

of the successors of the Mayor, Cleric, Treasurer and the "2005 Aldermen". Such successors shall 

be nominated and possibly elected at a non-partisan primary election to be held at the 

Consolidated Primary of 2009, and every fourth year thereafter (if a primary is necessary pursuant 

to the provisions of Sections 3.1-25-20 through 3.1-25-55, inclusive, of the illinois Municipal 

Code, Le. if only one candidate is on the baUot and there are no qualified write-in candidates), and 

elected at a general election to be held at the Consolidated Election in 2009 and every fourth year 

thereafter, unless elected at the primary as specified herein. 

2. All office holders whose terms expire in 2009 shall be nominated and elected 

pursuant to the above sections of the illinois Municipal Code, and this proposition, at the 

February 24, 2009, primary election, and as specified herein, if a run··off is necessary, at the 

general election on April 7, 2009. 

2 



3. A candidate who receives 50% plus one of the total vote cast for his or her office 

in the non-partisan primary election shall be declared elected. 

4. Ifno candidate receives 50% plus one of the total vote cast for his or her office in 

the non··partisan primary, then the candidates receiving the most votes equal in numher to twice 

the number of the candidate positions available for the particular office shall be candidates in the 

run-off election at the general election the following April after the February non-partisan 

primary. For instance, the two candidates receiving tile highest vote totals, but neither receiving 

50% of the total vote, plus one, would stand for election in the April election. 

5. If there is a tie vote for aIly position, that tie will be broken by drawing lots or a 

coin toss as agreed upon by tlJe caIldidates aIld conducted by the City Clerk (unless the City Clerk 

is one of the candidates whose office is being contested, aIld then tile Deputy City Clerk shall 

conduct the lottery). Ifno agreement CaIl be reached then the ties will be broken by lot. If there is 

a tie between two or more caIldidates for the last run-off position, the winner oftlJe last position 

shall be chosen by lot or as otlJerwise agreed, from tlJe tied caIldidates. 

6. All election contests will be conducted purSUaIlt to tlJe lllinois Election Code. 

7. IftlJe proposition is successful at tlJe November 4,2008 election, then those 

candidates, if any, who may have begun passing petitions for a partiSaIl primary shall be able to 

use said partisan petitions for purposes of ballot access for tlJe February 24, 2009 non-partisan 

election, aIld all will be listed on tlJe ballot as nOll:'partisan candidates. Thereafter, for all future 

elections, all petitions will be in accordaIlce witlJ tlJe applicable provisions oftlJe lllinois 

Municipal Code and lllinois Election Code and as set forth above. 

8. The required number of signatures and tlJe filing dates for ballot access at tlJe 

February 24, 2009 non-partisan primary and primaries tlJereafter, shall be in accordance with tlJe 

3 



City of Berwyn ordinances and the illinois Election Code with all candidates considered 

Independents pursuant to 5110-3 and 5/10-3.1 of the lllinois Election Code. There shall be no 

maximum signature limitation for the 2009 primary but all applicable election laws shall apply in 

all future elections. 

9. If this Referendum question receives a majority of votes at the November 4, 2008 

election, all Cit' of Berwyn elected offices shall be elected as set forth above even if the elected 

officials of Berwyn Township are still elected in a partisan primary. Those voters wanting to vote 

for City of Berwyn elected officers shall receive a non-partisan ballot and those voters wishing to 

vote for Berwyn Township elected officers shall receive a partisan ballot or whatever type of 

ballot style as determined by the appropriate election authority. 

SECTION 3: Enabling Provisions 

If a majority of the voters in the City of Berwyn voting on the question vote affirmatively, 

then candidates for all City offices, to be elected as specified above, will be elected as provided in 

the lllinois Municipal Code, the Election Code and in accordance with the specifications stated io 

this Resolution. 

SECTION 4: City Clerk 

The City Clerk shall file this Resolution in his office and certify the question and 

specifications to the Cook Couoty Clerk for placement on the November 4,2008 general election 

ballot, as iocluded on Exhibit A attached hereto. 

SECTION 5: If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this resolution shall 

be held invalid, the iovalidity thereof shall not effect any of the other provisions of this resolution. 

SECTION 6: All resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent 

of such conflict. 

4 



SECTION 7: Ibis resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage, approval and publication as provided by law. 

PASSED bytbe City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, illinois on this __ 

day of ___ 2008, pursuant to a roll call vote, as follows: 
_. 

YES NO --
Chapman 

Ramos 

Weiner 

Slcryd 

Day 

Phelan 

Lovero -
Erickson 

(Mayor O'Connor) 

TOTAL 

APPROVED by the Mayor on ____ --', 2008. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
CITY CLERK 

Michael A. O'Connor 
MAYOR 

5 

ABSENT PRESENT 

.. 

-



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF COOK ) 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Thomas J. Pavlik, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and elected 
Clerk of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, and that as such Clerk I do have 
charge of and custody of the books and records of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, 
lllinois. 

I do hereby further certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of 
Resolution No. "A RESOLUTION CALLING FOR A REFERENDUM 
TO CONSIDER NON-PARTISAN PRIMARY AND GENERAL ELECTIONS IN THE 
CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS," adopted and approved by the 
Mayor and City Council of the City of Berwyn, Illinois on August 26, 2008. 

In wi1ness whereof, I have hereunto affixed my hand and the Corporate Seal of 
the Town of Cicero, Cook County, lllinois this 26th day of August, 2008. 

(SEAL) 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk 
City of Berwyn 
Cook County, Illinois 

6 



EXHIBIT A 

SHALL CANDIDATES FOR MAYOR, CLERK, 
TREASURER, AND ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF 
BERWYN BE ELECTED IN NONPARTISAN 
PRIMARY AND GENERAL ELECTIONS? 

YES [ ] 
NO [ J 

• The Mayor, Clerk, Treasurer and Aldermen of the City of Berwyn elected at the 
Consolidated Election held in April, 2005, or their successors, (Mayor, Clerk, Treasurer and the 
"2005 Aldermen"), shall hold office for four (4) years and until their respective successors are 
elected and qualified. The provisions of this proposition and applicable law, in particular 
Sections 3.1-25-20 through 3.1-25-55, inclusive, of the illinois Municipal Code, shall govern the 
electiou of the successors of the Mayor, Clerk, Treasurer and the "2005 Aldermen". Such 
successors shall be nominated and possibly elected at a non-partisan primary election to be held 
at the Consolidated Primary of 2009, and every fourth year thereafter (if a primary is necessary 
pursuant to the provisions of Sections 3.1-25-20 through 3.1-25-55, inclusive, of the illinois 
Municipal Code, i.e. if only one candidate is on the ballot and there are no qualified write-in 
candidates), and elected at a general election to be held at the Consolidated Election in 2009 and 
every fmuth year thereafter, unless elected at the primary as specified herein. 

• All office holders whose terms expire in 2009 shall be nominated and elected 
pursuant to the above sections of the illinois Mlmicipal Code, and this proposition, at the 
February 24, 2009, primary election, and as specified herein, if a run-off is necessary, at the 
general election on April 7, 2009. 

• A candidate who receives 50% plus one of the total vote cast for his or her office 
in the non-partisan primary election shall be declared elected. 

• Ifno candidate receives 50% plus one of the total vote cast for his Of her office in 
the non-partisan primary, then the candidates receiving the most votes equal in number to twice 
the number of the candidate positions available for the particular office shall be candidates in the 
run-off election at the general election the following April after the February non-partisan 
primary. For instance, the two candidates receiving the highest vote totals, but neither receiving 
50% of the total vote, plus one, would stand for election in the April election. 

• If there is a tie vote for any position, that tie will be broken by drawing lots or a 
coin toss as agreed upon by the candidates and conducted by the City Clerk (unless the City 
Clerk is one of the candidates whose office is being contested, and then the Deputy City Clerk 
shall conduct the lottery). Ifno agreement can be reached then the ties will be broken by lot. If 
there is a tie between two or more candidates fOf the last run-off position, the winner of the last 
position shall be chosen by lot or as otherwise agreed, from the tied candidates. 

• All election contests will be conducted pursuant to the illinois Election Code. 



• If the proposition is successful at the November 4, 2008 election, then those 
candidates, if any, who may have begun passing petitions for a partisan primary shall be able to 
use said partisan petitions for purposes of ballot access for the February 24, 2009 non-partisan 
election, and all will be listed on the ballot as non-partisan candidates. Thereafter, for all future 
elections, all petitions will be in accordance with the applicable provisions of the illinois 
Municipal Code and illinois Election Code and as set forth above. 

• The required number of signatures and the filing dates for ballot access at the 
February 24, 2009 non-partisan primary and primaries thereafter, shall be in accordance with the 
City of Berwyn ordinances and the illinois Election Code with all candidates considered 
Independents pursuant to 5/10-3 and 5/10-3.1 of the illinois Election Code. There shall be no 
maximum signature limitation for the 2009 primary but all applicable election laws shall apply in 
all fhture elections. 

• If this Referendum question receives a majority of votes at the Novemher 4, 2008 
election, all City of Berwyn elected offices shall be elected as set forth above even if the elected 
officials of Berwyn Township are still elected in a partisan primary. Those voters wanting to vote 
for City of Berwyn elected officers shall receive a non-partisan ballot and those voters wishing to 
vote for Berwyn Township elected officers shall receive a partisan ballot or whatever type of 
ballot style as determined by the appropriate election authority. 



( ~ City of Berwyn 

A 

Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 

6700 West 26"' Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 TeJephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788·2567 
www,berwyn-il gOY 

Date: August 18, 2008 

To: Members of the City Council 

From: Mayor Michael k O'Connor 

Re: Zoning Hearing for Depot Parking Garage 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

I have asked the executive secretary to the Zoning Board, Milt Persin, to complete his report by 
the Friday, August 22nd 10:00am deadline. 

In the event he is unable to meet that very short deadline, he agreed he will be able to complete 
it by Tuesday, August 26'\ when I will forward it to the Committee of the Whole for review. 

Sincerely, 

CJIt~el tlj!) k£td/2-
Michael k O'Connor 
Mayor 



THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS Building A New Berwyn 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 
6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 
Telephone: (708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2675 • www.berwyn-iLgov 

July 31, 2008 ~ R~CYJ~!P 
CHAIRMAN Joel Chrastka -
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS ~ 

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY Milton F. Persin f\V' 
MEMBERS: \ Ii 
Dominick Castaldo 
Robert W. Fejt 
Mary Esther Hernandez 
Nora Laureto 
Don Miller 

Mrs. Sarah Bratcher-Senior Urban Planner 
Berwyn Development Corporation 
3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

RE: City of Berwyn-3310 S.Grove Avenue 
Variation for a Municipal P~rking ~~ge. 

Dear Ms Bratcher: 

This is to inform you that a Hearing has been scheduled on the above 
captioned matter at 7:00 P.M. in the City Council Chambers or other 
designated room in the Berwyn City Hall on Tuesday, the 19th day 
of Augus t , 2008 

The applicant or Agent of the Applicant must appear on the scheduled 
day and the documents presented must be adequate to satiSfy the 
Board requirEmEnts. 

No continuances are allowed, so faill,lre to appear will cause the 
Hearing to be cancelled and all funds deposited are forfeited. 

cc-Alderman 
Chairman & Building Director 
Mayor Michael O'Connor 

Sincerely 

~~;Z.~ 
Mi on F. Persin-Executlve Secretary 



The Cit Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26 ili Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788·2567 

www berwyn·il.gov 

Date: August 21, 2008 

To: Members of the City Council 

From: Mayor Michael A. O'Connor 

Re: MRA Contract Amendment 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Please find attached the amendment to our contract with MRA which will allow for the 
coJlection of the Red Speed tickets, 

Your approval will be appreciated, 

Mayor 



JUL-21-138 136:05 PM 

MRA 
1636 N. Wells - Ste 2202 

Chicago, IL 60614 
708-749·9926 

July 21, 2008 

17087490622 

AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT BETWEEN MRA AND CITY OF BERWYN 

It Is hereby agreed by and between the parties to amend paragraph 7 of said 
contract to add the following: 

d. 8% of all collections of redlight tickets after Red Speed returns them to the 
Berwyn Police Department at end of their contractual obligations. 

--------------- _ .. ------- --------- ----.------

P.02 



Adjudication Hearing Start Page Page 1 of 1 

Please Read to Violators before 
Hearing Start 

Why are you here? 
A vehicle registered to your name has been recorded by an automated traffic enforcement system in violation of City of 
Berwyn's Ordinance # 07-04 as allowed by House Bill 4835 (Automated Traffic Enforcement System) 

What's constitutes a Red Light Violation? 
You have received a notice in the mail for failing to stop at a red light OR for failing to come to a complete stop when making 
a legal right turn on red 

As stated in the Illinois Vehicle Code, Section 11-306e Section C: "vehicular traffic facing a steady circular red signal alone 
shall stop at a clearly marked stop line, but if there is no such stop line, before entering the crosswalk on the near side of the 
intersection, or if there is no such crosswalk, then before entering the intersection, and shall remain standing until an 
indication to proceed is shown" 

Additionally, lHinois Rules of the Road, Chapter 8 - Traffic Signats and Pavement Markings reads: 

RED LIGHT: Stop at the marked stop line If there is no a marked stop line, stop before entering the 
crosswalk If there is no crosswalk, stop before entering the intersection Do not go until the light is 
green and the intersection is dear 

You may make a right turn at a red light or a left turn at a red light when turning from a one-way street 
onto another one-way street that has traffic moving to the left In both instances, drivers must come to 
a complete stop and yietd the right-of way to oncoming traffic and pedestrians before turning 

Will the violation impact my record? 

Violation of the Ordinance # 07-04 constitutes a civil offence and does NOT impact your insurance OR your driving record 
However, if you have accumulated 5 unpaid OR uncontested Final Determinations of Liability, the City of Berwyn will petition 
the Secretary of State to suspend your driving privileges 

Failure to pay any fines due to the City of Berwyn will result in additional enforcement activities, including assessment by a 
collection agency and immobilization of your vehicle 

Which defenses are allowed? 

The operator of the vehicle was issued a uniform traffic citation by a police officer for the same incident: 

2 The violation occurred at any time during which the vehicle or its license plate was reported to a law enforcement agency 
as having been stolen and the vehicle or license plate had not been recovered by the owner at the time of the alleged 
violation: 

3 The vehicle was leased to another party and within sixty (60) calendar days after the citation was mailed to the owner, 
the owner submitted a written affidavit with the correct name and address of the lessee of the vehicle identified on the 
notice at the time of the violation, together with a copy of the lease agreement: 

4 The vehicle was an authorized emergency vehicle or was a vehicle lawfully participating in a funeral procession; 

5 The responded was not the registered owner or lessee of the cited vehicle at the time of violation 

If you were issued a uniform traffic citation by a police officer for the same incident, the uniform traffic citation may not be 
challenged on the basis of hearing options listed above If you were issued two violations for the same incident. Contest 
Option 1 listed above may only be used as a basis to contest the violation listed on this notice 

Additional instructions 

You will receive a notice in the mail instructing on how to pay the violatione if found liable 

https:/lredcheckeredspeed-illinoisecom/RedCheck. Ent WebServices/HearingStarteaspx ?uid= e 21712008 



The City 0 Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 

Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2567 
www berwyn·iLgov 

Date: August 22, 2008 

To: Members of the City Council 

From: Mayor Michael A. O'Connor 

Re: Damage to Clam Truck 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

I have enclosed a copy of the partial estimate from Runnion Equipment Company for damages 
to our "Clam Truck" from the Forestry Department A 20 year employee, Vince Stillo, drove 
the vehicle under the East Avenue viaduct He was suspended for 5 days without pay and the 
union has filed a grievance requesting his five days lost pay. That grievance is still awaiting 
my decision on the request. The damage to this vehicle CaImot be totally assessed until after 
the dismantling of the boom and a complete inspection of the damage can be performed. The 
Forestry Department will be unable to do large removals without the use of this vehicle. The 
City Council needs to decide whether or not to repair this vehicle or discontinue having Public 
Works perform removals in the future and use an outside contractor. 

Your direction will be appreciated. 

Sincerely, 

Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 



Page 1 of 1 



08/20/2008 16:45 F~X 7084473730 RUNNION EQUIPMENT CO. 

f -I' j 2 ,17"1 EQUIPMENT COMPANY 
-, 7950 WEST 47th STREET • LYONS, ILLINOIS 60534 

(708j447·3169 1-B1JO.824-6704 FAX (708j447-3730 
lIun10t'O f),JI11f+." rn1mt~" .. ",n" ,.,M;I\Mnllinmoni f'nm I;., ......... 'I<I .... ~"''' .. :J - .... "'.~,,- ""u" .............. '1 .. ,I",, ..... ,,·_ .. . 

To: CITY OF BERWYN 

Attn: SAM 

From: Bob Barcelona 

COMMENTS: 

Thank~Jy 

"...._n ~A""~'" """"'JIIo.'71. 
DUD D.f'LI:(,..' .• J!r.L.tVl ... rt 

~: 08/20/08 

PRODUCT SUPPORT MANAGER 

Fax #: 708' 749 9503 

Re: Requested Estimate 

Pages Including Cover: 3 

1ilJ001 



0812012008 16:45 F~~ 7084473730 RUNNION EQUIPMENT CO. 

f ; t I]' :iji!1!' t ~ 1 :~ • 
Equipment Company 

Truck Mounted Cranes & Equipment Sales, Service & Rentals 
7950 West 47tl1 St 
Lyons, 11 60534 

@j002 

Ph: (708) 447 3169 Fax: (708) 447 3730 Toll Free: (800) 824 6704 
www.runnionequipment.com 

CITY OF BERWYN 
PRENTICE F-90 
SIN Z202836 

ATTN: SAM 

RE: HERE IS A LIST OF REPAIR NEEDED TO REINSTALL BULKHEAD ONLY: 

1. Straighten bulkhead at base and pocket channels. 
2. Repair and reinforce bed pockets for bulkhead reinstallation. Reinstall 

bulkhead. 
3. Repair, realign and reweld 1st two (2) bed uprights. (Damaged by 

h.-nH,h .............. ' "'\11""'11,.( rouu;,lrf for- h. ,Ivho'::lo ..... 
lJU.n.I.CCUJ OIIU .\..oW.GI"" \.v.., ...... ,.,"""""_. 

4. Grind cracking welds at driver side of crane rest, reweld and gusset. 
Note: This area had been repaired previously. 

5. Refinish repaired areas only .. ---

PARTS 
SHOP LABOR ( 14 HRS. @ $109.53 EA) 

TOTAL $ 

$ 160.00 
1,533.42 

1,693.42 

+ TAX AND FREIGHT ADDITIONAL + 



UO/~U/~UUO ~o:q~ r~l IUti4~1373U RUNNION EQUIPMENT CO. Ii!J003 

NOTES: 

1. Many bed uprights are poorly welded and secured to bed. This should be corrected. 
This is not part of the bridge damage. 

2. Grapple jaws do not close evenly at jaw tips. Possibly worn pins and bushings. 

Please be advised that this is only an estimate and the total cost may 
differ from the "TOTALn

, Upon disassembly, additional parts or labor 
may be required to properly repair this unit. You will be notified of 
any major changes to this estimate prior to that change being made. 

(BERWY1) 
CITY OF BERWYN 

t:_ .. ""_~.".~"""""" _alf;!~~.rI f!-ft .. .a;Il'!I~*,::f!!R hIlIlRlLh~=,ri I .~. • OWH'!?!" ...... • ~ ...... --- -...- ......... __ •• -_ ... "" ... y--

Repairs Authorized By: . _______ _ Date: __ _ 

Purchase Order Number: ________ . for SIN Z202836 



UC:S/~U/~UUlS LO:JL t'iU. IUlSllQ/3/JU 

"y\lhere Quality Counts" 

IQ.: CITY OF BERWYN 

lWNNION EQUiPMENT CO. 

EQUIPMENT COMPANY 
7950 WEST 471h STREET • LYONS,ILLINOIS 60534 
(70B) 447·3169 '·BOIJ.B24-6704 FAX (708) 447·3730 

\WI\vJunnionequlpmenl.com 

Fax #: 708~ 749 9503 

IaJ 001 

Attn: SAM Date: 08/20/08 Re: Requested Estimate 

From: Bob Barcelona Pages Including Cover: 4 

COMMENTS: 

---------_._------

Thank yon, 

~ 
BOB BARCELONA 
PRODUCT SUPPORT MANAGER 



Equipment Company 
Truck Mounted Cranes & Equipment Sales, Service & Rentals 

7950 Vve.st 47th St 
Lyons, il, 60534 

!.SJ uuz 

Ph: (708) 447 3169 Fax: (708) 447 3730 Toll Free: (800) 824 6704 

August 20, Z008 

CITY OF BERWYN 
PRENTICE F-90 
SIN Z202836 

ATTN: SAM 

www.runnionequipment.com 

RE: HERE IS A UST OF DAMAGE REPAIR NEEDED (for the above mentioned 
unit): 

1. Drain hydrauliC tank due to leaking oil. 
2. Upright machine, bleed cylinders to close and temp clamp machine in 

place. 
3. Remove damaged swing gear box (for rotation bearing inspection.) 
4. Steam off machine and inspect for damage. 
5. Replace one (1) each missing mounting plate and straighten remaining 

three (3) plates. 
6. Replace all eight (8) mounting rods, nuts and hardened washers. Also, 

replace four (4) each damaged spacer tubes. Torque to specifications. 
7. Repiace damaged seat assembiy. 
8. Repair damaged seat mounting bracket at controls area. Trim paint as 

needed. 
9. Repair damaged (outer side) joystick mounting plate. 
10. Replace main lift cylinder and articulating cylinder control valve sections 

due to bent spools. 



-- _., ---- _ ... " .... " ..... ~ ,., ............. ..,,, If'J U03 

11. Replace cracked swing gear box, swing drive motor and counterbalance 
assembly. 

12. Replac.e aU swing box hoses and related steel tubing. (Hoses are crushed 
and leaking on cab.) 

13. Repiace one (i) damaged main iift cyiinder hose. 
14. Cut off bowed and bent pump mounting plate, straighten, add reinforcing 

rib and reweld in place. Remount pump. 
15. Remove "dented" pump driveline, sent out for re-tubing and reinstall. 
16. Reposition "shifted" pump suction hoses and reelamp in place. 
17. Replace damaged pump pressure hoses due to contact with truck 

driveiine. (Two (2) each) Note: Truck driveiine shouid be evaiuated for 
"possible" repair. 

18. Refill hydraulic oil tank and add oil as needed. 
19. Test operate machine and inspect for any other operational problems. 

Stability test. 

PARTS $ 9,251.76 
SHOP LABOR ( 51 HRS. @ $109.53 EA ) 5,586.03 

TOTAL $ 14,831.79 

+ TAX AND FREIGHT ADDITIONAL + 

NOTES: 

1 Thic:: ic::: ::\ nnn_nnQ~til'\n:::"l1 incr\.or+il"\n _. • ••• - .- - ............ l""'''''''._ .......... _ .... - .................... 1. 

2. Truck frame does not appear to need any repair. 
3. Minor truck cab and step damage and bed welded stake pocket damage is not 

addressed in this estimate. 
4. Minor impact to main boom area near turret and turret noted but should not affect 

operation. 

~:6"$6 be advised tliat t"nis is ui'i~y Em esi:ima1:e anD me wiai cost may 
differ from the "TOTALR. Upon disassembly, additional parts or labor 
may be required to properly repair this unit. You will be notified of 
any major changes to this estimate prior to that change being made. 



l(UJ\,!'ilUI'i l!.~U1YhlliNl r..:U, I4J004 

! ,....,,1""'1"\,11.1\.1' ... , 
\DCKVV' .L) 

CITY OF BERWYN 

For repairs 
Repairs Authorized By: ___ _ Date: _____ , 

for SIN z202836 



Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788·2567 
www berwyn·il gOY 

Date: August 22, 2008 

To: Members ofthe City Council 

From: Mayor Michael A. O'Connor 

Re: Business License Inspector 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Due to a resignation, we would like to upgrade the current business license inspector position 
to require ICC certification and food sanitation responsibilities and certification. The pay 
would be approximately $1.50 to $2.50 per hour more than the current position which would 
bring the starting salary to $13-$14 per hour. This position would also require the individual 
be bi-linguaL This is a necessary position to ensure the businesses are in compliance with 
regards to licensing, sign age, machines inside, and health codes, etc. 

Your approval would be appreciated. 

Sincerely, 

t/)t( dtuJl t{ cO~_ 
Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 



Michael A. O'Connor DebiSuchy 
Mayor City Collector 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 749·8910 
www berwyn.il gOY 

JOBDESCRIPnON 

Position Title: 

Reports to: 

Business License Inspector 

City Collector 

Department: Collector's Office 

Primary Purpose: 

Acts as liaison between City Collector and businesses. Performs license inspections throughout the City of 
Berwyn; assuring that licenses are in order and that buildings are in compliance with health and building 
codes. 

Principal Duties and Responsibilities: 

L Perform new business licenses inspections and provides periodic site visits related to health and 
building compliance, Checks new businesses to assure that new licenses have been obtained. 
Delivers stickers for vending machines, cigarette machines and other devices. Also inspects 
businesses to enforce machine sticker limits. 

2. Periodic inspection of businesses for compliance relating to customer complaints or as directed by 
the City Collector. 

3. Assures that signage installation has appropriate permit and measurements are according to data 
stated on pennit 

4. Picks up garage sale signs on parkways and other non-authorized locations and notifies 
homeowner of proper procedures. Assure that garage sale permit was obtained. 

5. Services violation notices to businesses from the City Collector. 
6. Writes tickets to businesses for various violations that are not in compliance. 
7. Empties parking meters on a weekly basis and reports problem meters to Public Works. 
8. Daily communication and travel between the Collector's OffIce and the Parking Division. 
9. Other duties as assigned. 

Position Requirements 
Formal Education: High School Graduate, some college preferred. 
Other Requirements: Familiarity with applicable licensing and permit requirement. Must have valid Illinois 
Drivers license. Must have good cOl1l111Unications, math and interpersonal skills and must be bi-lingual 
English/Spanish. 
Must be certified as a ICC property maintenance inspector. Must have Illinois Food Sanitation Certification or 
be able to obtain within six months. 
Working Conditions: A variety of environments 



e City of Berwyn 

1 AV"'HUU 

Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 

6700 West 26"' Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788·2567 
www,berwyn-ii.gov 

Date: August 22, 2008 

To: Members of the City Council 

From: Mayor Michael A- O'Connor 

Re: Committee of the Whole Referrals 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Please eliminate the following items from the Committee of the Whole referral list: 

• #39 10123/07 Chap 484.04-Visitor Parking Pass 
• #20 11113107 Cavero Medical Grp-7124 Cennak Rd 
• #30 11113/07 Set PH for Amendment to Zoning Ord. 
• #38 11113/07 Transition of Database Consultant 
• #26 11127/07 Metra Platform Lease 2006-2031 
• #2.3 12/18/07 Waiver Retail Overlay Restrictions 
• #30 01122/08 Snow/Street Cleaning 
• #28 03/25/08 Recent Approval of Ambulance Purchase 
• #.32 05/1.3/08 Vehicle Sticker Revenue 
• #45 05/13/08 Automated Rental Machine Lic. Ordinance 
• #52 0511.3/08 Ord. 462.06 - Amend Time Period to Purchase Vehicle Stickers 
• #57 05/13/08 Landscape Agreement with Lightspeed 
• #59 05/13/08 General Ledger Bids 
• #1905127/08 Discuss AT&T Proposal 
• #1606/10/082 Visitor Parking Passes Per Household@ No Charge, & Free Parking on 

Holidays 
• #1807/22/08 Mailing Equipment Upgrade 

Sincerely, 

9ft~(lc{)~-
Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 



Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 

Fax: (708) 788-2567 

Date: August 22, 2008 

To: Members of the City Council 

From: Mayor Michael A. O'Connor 

Re: Tree Trimming 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Please find attached a copy of the "Tree Trim" list which is current as of Friday, August 22nd 

The City's plan to address this problem by hiring an outside contractor and trim sections ofthe 
city each year has been abandoned because of the damage caused during the "Father's Day" 
storm which damaged over 1,200 trees and required almost 80 trees to be removed_ The 
Forestry Department at Public Works could not possibly handle that volume of work so the 
outside contractor was directed away from maintenance to assist with cleanup and removals_ It 
is obvious by the amount of work required to trim trees that the contract for the outside 
contractor must be expanded_ The City's engineer and Director Pat Ryan have estimated the 
cost for the work to address the current trim list at $145,000, which can be paid from 
Municipal Fuel Tax funds_ All new requests will be done by the Forestry Department, while 
the older list is completed by the outside contractor. If in the event the Forestry Department 
cannot handle a biggerjob it will be added to the outside contractor's list. 

I have been assured this solution will catch up the current list and allow the outside contractor 
to resume maintenance of our urban forest next year. I am requesting the approval ofthe 
additional cost of $145,000 paid for from MFT funds. Your support will be appreciated_ 

Sincerely, 

9z~t([()~ 
Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 



SCHEDULED DAY NAME IPHONE# DATE 

MONDAY 
1247 Wenonah (#1203) 3/i4/2008 
2102 Home (#3836) 6/30/2008 
7126 Riverside (#4390) 8/1/2008 
6609 W. 31st (#4043) 7/3/2008 
1347 Euclid (#4048) 7/11/2008 
TUESDAY 
3503 Kenilworth (#188) 6/18f?007 
3434 Wenonah (#189) 8/20/2007 
1515 Kenilworth (#1311) 91712007 
3626 Grove (#1310) 10/11/2007 
WEDNESDAY 
3436 Wesley (#2366)** 5/13/2008 
3625 Euclid (1644) 5/15/2008 
1421 Wenonah (#1185) 6/3/2008 
7006 29th St (#3172) 6/16/2008 
THURSDAY 
2429 Elmwood (#283) 5/16/2007 
2425 Scoville (#282) 5/21/2007 
3601 Scov-36th (#3753) 6/16/2008 
1618 Ridae!and '#4044) 7/3/2008 
FRIDAY 
3509 East (#1239) 10/19/2007 
1300 Harvev (#4384) 8/1/2008 
3302 Harvev (#600) 12/27/2007 
1435 Hiahland (#4391) 8/1/2008 
2119 Highland (#4389) 8/1/2008 
2231 Ridgeland (#2625) 4/22/2008 
3318 Clarence (#3198) 5/12/2008 
1500 Cuyler (#3266) 5/14/2008 
3639 Gunderson(#3167) 5/15/2008 
2430 Elmwood (#2883) 5/19/2008 
6442 Fairfield (#3399) 6/4/2008 
-1 ~A t::: Oi'iQpl""' ..... ,.., (~'lt::O'l\ • u-rv ,'\..,.,.. ...... all'-'l TrVV v 6/3/2008 
7010 W. 34th St 6/3/2008 
1647 Ridgeland(#4042) 7/3/2008 
2418 Harvey (#4041) 7/3/2008 



FRIDAY 
1604 Harvey 812712007 

2 1630 Harvey 6111120083 calls 365213704 4129 
3 1940 Harvey 6/2412008 3844 
4 2444 Harvey 10f10/2007 
5 2520 Harvey 7/1/2008 3968 
6 2532 Harvey 9/4/2007 
7 3828 Harvey 311212008 2 calls 4228 
8 1317 Highland 81712008 4463 
9 1807 Highland 711312007 

10 1941 Highland 7/18f2007 
11 2223 Highland 6{1312008 3720 
12 2241 Highland 9/27/2007 2 calls 2616 
13 2341 Highland 9(2912007 
14 2415 Highland 9/15(2007 
15 2733 Highland 7/2212008 4278 
16 2817 Highland 5f2512Q07 
17 3239 Highland 7/24f2007 
18 3401 Highland 8119/2008 4559 
19 3421 Highland 611712008 3766 
20 3447 Highland 6/1012008 3G31 
21 3529 Highland 7/9/2008 4101 
22 3819 H!ghland 512512007 
23 1526 Cuylar 7116/2008 4218 
24 1636 Cuyler 212712008 1958 
25 1912 Cuyler 312612008 2429 
26 2626 Cuyler 811112008 4487 
27 3126 Cuyler 7/21/2008 4265 
28 3248 Cuyler 512112008 2 calls 335314205 
29 3646 Cuyler 613012008 3941 
30 2331 Ridgeland 811512005 
31 2847 Ridgeland 61412008 3507 
32 3611 Ridgeland 51712008 2 calls 3401 
33 3835 Ridgeland 8119/2008 4558 
34 1228 Elmwood 7/1812008 4251 
35 1240 Elmwood 5116/2008 3294 
36 1516 Elmwood 51212007 
37 1910 Elmwood 7/2812008 4346 
38 1922 Elmwood 5127/2008 3404 
39 2118 Elmwood 6127/2007 
40 2308 Elmwood 712112008 4262 
41 2328 Elmwood 10/2512007 2 calls #343/4138 
42 3614 Elmwood 61712007 
43 3816 Elmwood 6/5/2008 3532 
44 1345 Gunderson 7/2412008 4308 
45 3645 Gunderson 8113/2008 4511 
46 1306 Scoville 7117/2008 4245 
47 1436 Scoville 912512006 
48 1510 Scoville 8/27/2007 
49 1632 Scoville 6/15/2007 
50 1918 ScovUle 8121/2008 4599 
51 1924 Scoville 7125/2006 
52 2320 Scoville 5/1912008 3310 
53 2242 Scoville 112512008 
54 3222 Scoville 7/10/2008 4125 
55 1631 East Ave 51112007 
56 1903 East Ave 611112008 3660 
57 1907 EastAve 6/11/2008 3658 
58 2224 East Ave 911712007 2 calls put back on per kevin 
59 2333 East Ave 9/19/2007 2 calls 4141 
60 1806 Clarence 5/812007 Trim LIst 
61 1844 Clarence 5/8/2007 As of August 21, 2008 
62 1916 Clarence 9/2012007 
63 2118 Clarence 51612008 2 calls 314214282 
64 2348 Clarence 4128/2008 2995 
65 2426 Clarence 7/2512008 4320 
66 2638 Clarence 6/612008 3577 
67 3012 Clarence 111212007 
68 3318 Clarence 5121/2007 
69 6417 33rd Street 6/1112007 



THURSDAY 
1 1348 Lombard 5/23/2007 
2 1828 Lombard 6/1212008 3709 
3 1830 Lombard 611212008 3710 
4 2244 Lombard 912712007 
5 2410 Lombard 7/21/2008 4267 
6 2508 Lombard 511212008 
7 3630 Lombard 912712007 
8 1315 Harvey 8(29/2007 
9 1531 Harvey 7125/2008 4319 

10 1817 Harvey 81512008 4426 
11 1831 Harvey 71212008 4024 
12 2307 Harvey 8113/2008 4513 
13 2507 Harvey 1012212007 2 calls #0184/3787 
14 2647 Harvey 515/2008 3125 
15 3739 Harvey 3/1012008 2108 
16 1240 Highland 6130/2008 3949 
17 1502 Highland 4/1012008 2 calls 2706 4327 
18 1626 Highland 712312007 
19 2346 Highland 7/23/2008 4292 
20 2448 Highland 4111/20084 calls 271712966 388714244 
21 2720 Highland 712012007 
22 3138 Highland 1011712007 #66 
23 343G Highland 6123/2008 3823 
24 3722 Highland 1/812008 #1390 
25 1319 Cuyler 5/1612008 3 calls 3293/3522 4468 
26 1447 Cuyler 611212008 3705 
27 1601 Cuyler 2127/2008 1972 
2. 2801 Cuyler 7/2512008 4325 
29 3831 Cuyler 9f712007 
30 3219 Cuyler 912012006 
31 3527 Cuyler 1/312008 #1269 
32 3537 Cuyler 7/18120072 calls Trim List 
33 3641 Cuyler 3128/2008 3641 
34 3735 Cuyler 811612007 As of August 21, 2008 
35 370G Ridgeland 7/24/2007 2 calls 4089 
36 1205 Elmwood 7/1812008 4250 
37 1233 Elmwood 7/18/200S 4248 
3. 1235 Elmwood 7/18/200S 4249 
39 2319 Elmwood 11/1412007 742 
40 3627 Elmwood 9/1212007 2 calls 2769 
41 1424 Gunderson 6/17/200S 
42 1612 Gunderson 6(912008 3609 
43 23 Gunderson 6/1812008 3777 
44 2518 Gunderson 7/3012007 2 calls 4382 
45 1325 Scoville 8/30/2007 
46 1401 Scoville 7/24/200S 4298 
47 1515 Scoville 6/16/2008 2 calls 3756/4018 
48 1521 Scoville 5/1512008 3269 
49 2423 Scoville 6/2412008 3841 
50 2443 Scoville 812412007 
51 3601 Scoville 4124/2008 2969 
52 3629 Scoville 5127/2008 3411 
53 2746 East Ave 5/30/2007 
54 3330 East Ave 9/14/2007 2 calls 4291 
55 3648 East 511212008 3235 
56 1621 Clarence 7116{2008 2 calls 4219 4321 
57 1847 Clarence 6/1612008 2 calls 375214562 
58 2101 Clarence 3/19/2008 2 calls 4080 
59 2343 Clarence 911212007 4 calls 300714156 4347 
60 3005 Clarence 7/23/2007 
61 3013 Clarence 101212007 
62 3219 Clarence 8f712008 2 calls 446214507 
63 6526 27th Street 8/1/2007 
64 6412 32nd Street 7/2512006 



WEDNESDAY 

1 1302 Wesley 4(2212008 2914 
2 2240 Wesley 711812008 4257 
3 2246 Wesley 711812008 4258 
4 2339 Wesley 5/2212008 
5 2430 Wesley 6/9/200B 3S07 
6 2442 Wesley 7/3012008 4370 
7 3418 Wesley 8126/2007 
8 1347 Euclid 7/21/2008 4266 
9 1305 Oak Park 6/17/2008 3761 

10 1531 Oak Park 7123/2008 4288 
11 1807 Oak Park 6/9/200S 3 calls 3594/4353 4543 
12 1843 Oak Park 512112008 3352 
13 3428 Oak Park 6/21/2007 
14 3432 Oak Park 7/20/2007 
15 3646 Oak Park 5/2312007 4 calls 4318 
16 3703 Oak Park 7/30/2008 4361 
17 3717 Oak Park 612412008 2 calls 3837/3846 
18 1319 Grove 7/3112008 4383 
19 1833 Grove 6/1312008 3717 
20 2219 Grove 8/13(2008 4520 
21 2447 Grove 9/4/2007 
22 2633 Grove 8/11/2008 4486 
23 3101 Grove 7/2012007 2 calls #51 
24 3711 Grove 5114{2008 2 calls 3255/3406 
25 1325 Kenilworth 7/101200B 4131 
26 1505 Kenilworth 7/28/2008 4337 
27 1629 Kenilworth 5/16/2008 3299 
28 1829 Kenilworth 8/612008 2 calls 4445/4480 
29 1933 Ken IIworth 6/1812008 3775 
30 1326 Home 7/14/2008 4173 
31 1812 Home 212812008 1974 
32 2114 Home 81512008 4437 
33 2651 Home 5/15/2008 3273 
34 3308 Home 5/19/2008 3324 
35 3440 Home 5127/2008 3400 
36 3600 Home 6/1312008 3713 
37 1801 Clinton 519/2008 3210 
38 1826 Clinton 5/27/2008 3402 
39 2231 Clinton 611112008 3680 
40 2515 Clinton 6/2412008 3845 
41 2547 Clinton 7/21/2008 4263 
42 3145 Clinton 81712008 4461 
43 3827 Clinton 1012912007 Trim List 
44 1247 wenonah 51712008 3163 
45 1409 wenonah 711812008 4252 
46 1411 wenonah 7/16/2008 4229 As of August 21, 2008 
47 1413 wenonah 7/18/2008 4253 
48 1531 wenonah 7116/2008 2 calls 421414351 4357 
49 3141 wenonah 6/12/2008 3703 
50 3205 wenonah 6/11/2008 3661 
51 3243 wenonah 6/30/2008 2 calls 3951 4454 
52 3542 wenonah 5/19/2008 3301 
53 3747 wenonah 7/112008 3969 
54 1501 Wisconsin 6/13/2008 3719 
55 1835 Wisconsin 619/2008 3583 
56 1425 Maple 5/19/2008 3302 
57 1823 Maple 5113/2008 3251 
5. 3637 Maple 111412008 1669 



TUESDAY 
1331 Wesley 61412008 3509 

2 1635 Wesley 6(1012008 2 calls 3637/3771 
3 1821 Wesley 6/10/2008 3648 
4 3001 Wesley 6119/2008 2 calls 3791/4322 
5 3801 Wesley 4/24/2008 2967 
6 2406 Euclid 1/1612008 1487 
7 1843 Oak Park 51211Z008 3352 
8 2401 Oak Park 413/2008 2583 
9 2425 Oak Park 7110/2008 4124 

10 3410 Oak Park 6/2012008 3807 
11 3646 Oak Park 7/3012008 4369 
12 1240 Grove Sf71200S 3166 
13 1330 Grove 7/2512008 2 calls 4323/4446 
14 1436 Grove 6/17/2008 3760 
15 1831 Grove 6/1212008 3698 
16 2446 Grove 7/3012008 2 calls 4372/4385 
17 2546 Grove 2I261Z008 1949 
18 3640 Grove 6/1212008 3725 
19 3648 Grove 51912008 
20 1237 Kenilworth 1011612007 #34 
21 1505 Kenilworth 101161Z007 #36 
22 1829 Kenllworth 5f7/200B 3165 
23 2420 Kenilworth 7/1012008 4130 
24 2448 Kenilworth 812012008 4587 
25 2727 Kenilworth 3113/200B 2195 
26 3431~33 Kenilworth 911812007 
27 3837 Kenilworth 812912007 
28 1826 Clinton 5/27/2008 3402 
29 1852 Clinton 4/8/2008 2660 
30 3838 Clinton 4121/2008 2889 
31 1401 Home 3/31/2008 
32 2245 Home 10/2912007 #411 
33 2347 Home 5/512008 3123 
34 2613 Home 311812008 2279 
35 2651 Home 5/15/2008 3273 
36 3525 Home 1012/2007 
37 1326 Wenonah 8/612008 4439 
38 3532 Wenonah 7/2312008 4289 
39 3542 Wenonah 5119/2008 3311 
40 3608 Wenonah 211812008 3 calls 1890/3145 4226 
41 3610 Wenonah 7/21/2008 4271 
42 3620 Wenonah 711612008 4227 
43 3730 Wenonah 4/312008 2 calls 2585/4168 
44 2818 Wisconsin 8119/2008 4544 
45 3612 Wisconsin 616/2008 3578 
46 3737 Wisconsin 5/2512005 
47 1228 Maple 10/2312007 #238 Trim List 
48 1836 Maple 412112008 2888 
49 1838 Maple 10118/2007 #118 As of August 21, 2008 
50 2942 Maple 811/2007 
51 3130 Maple 6/24/2008 3838 
52 3548 Maple 81612008 4440 
53 3622 Maple 61612008 
54 3524 Maple 811912008 4570 
55 6928 29th Place 712412007 
56 6920 30th Place 1111312007 688 
57 6932 30th Place 11114/2007 729 

MONDAY 
6834 13th Street 911212007 

2 6415 16th Street 6/3012008 3931 
3 6533 16th Street 512212008 3366 
4 6746 19th Street 8/20/2008 4573 
5 7023 26th ParkWay 7115/2008 4176 
6 7041 26th Parkway 81412008 4408 
7 7049 26th Parkway 7/2812008 4344 
8 6535 27th Place 8/19/2008 4571 
9 6504 28th Place 817/2008 4460 

10 6932 30th Place 512212008 3368 
11 6523 33rd Street 61412008 3511 
12 6435 34th Street 512112008 3354 
13 6509 34th Street 6/512008 3530 
14 6639 34th Street 61512008 3531 
15 6937 34th Street 512812008 3423 
16 3637 Euclid 511012007 
17 1247 Harlem 7/30/2008 4359 
18 2115 Harlem 61312008 3472 
19 6425 Sinclair 61912008 3608 
20 6700 Pershing 711412008 4167 



The City of Berwyn Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 

6700 West 26" StI'eet Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788·2567 
ww\V,berwyn~il gOY 

Date: August 22, 2008 

To: Members of the City Council 

From: Mayor Michael A, 0 'Connor 

Re: Grievance Filed by Public Works Union 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We will be discussing in closed Committee of the Whole a grievance filed by the Public Works 
union. 

Your direction will be appreciated 

Sincerely, 

9lf~(1.0 ~~9z_ 
Michael A O'Connor 
Mayor 



TJ;te City of Berwyn 

//\G 
Michael A. O'Connor 

Mayor 

6700 West 26 ili Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788·2567 
www berwyn-il,gov 

RESOL UTI ON 
Number 

A Resolution accepting the Cook County Interoperable 
Communication System 

WHEREAS, the U.S, Department of Homeland Security has recognized the 
importance of communication between first responders in the event of a crisis; and, 

WHEREAS, recent events in world history have caused Federal, State and Local 
Govemments to recognize their responsibility to share resources and work cooperatively to 
prepare for and respond to threats to the public health, safety, and welfare; and, 

WHEREAS, the U,S, Department of Homeland Security has funded the Cook County 
Interoperable Communication system to link first responders in Cook County; and, 

WHEREAS, THE Cook County Board of Judicial Advisory Council has been tasked 
as the administrator of the funding for the Cook County Interoperable Communication System; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn remains hopeful that the Cook County Board Judicial 
Advisory Council will allow the City to participate in the Cook County Mobile Video and Data 
Communications Network in the future. 

NOW, THEREFORE, LET IT BE RESOLVED BY the Mayor and the Aldermen of 
the City Council of the City of Berwyn that the Mayor is authorized to sign a Participation 
Agreement with Cook County, if offered in the future, concerning a Mobile Video and Data 
Communications Network. 

Adopted this ___ day of August 2008 

Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor, City of Berwyn 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk, City of Berwyn 



Section G 

Reports and Communications 
From The City Clerk 



Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Thomas Pavlik 
City Clerk 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788·2675 
www,berwyn .. jlgov 

August 20, 2008 

To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Tom Pavlik, City Clerk 

Re: Early Voting 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

I am once again happy to inform the Cow1cil and the Voters of Berwyn that the County 
has selected Berwyn as an Early Voting site for the upcoming November 4, 2008 
Presidential Election. Early Voting will be taking place on October 13 - 30, 2008. The 
County has requested uniformed hours for all Early Voting sites which will be 8:30 AM-
5:00 PM, Monday to Friday and 9:00 AM to 5:00 PM on Saturdays. This will require the 
Clerk's Office in Berwyn City Hall to remain open on Monday Oct. I 3 (Columbus Day) 
and two Saturdays Oct 18, 25th. Between me and my staff we should be able to 
maintain these hours without any additional overtime .. Please accept the matter as 
informationaL 



Office of the County Clerk 
David Orr, Cook County Clerk 

August 11, 2008 

Dear Early Voting Site: 

We have again selected your facility as one of the Early Voting sites for the 
November 4,2008 Presidential Election. We sincerely appreciate your 
commitment to assist us with Early Voting for the upcoming election. 

The following are important points related to early voting: 

o Early Voting will take place from Monday, October 13 through 
Thursday, October 30. (Please note that Monday, October 13 is 
Columbus Day. All sites will be open.) 

o In order to have consistent hours for early voting throughout 
suburban Cook County, each site must be open for early voting 
from 8:30 am to 5:00 pm, Monday through Friday, and 9:00 am to 
5:00 pm on Saturday (the two Saturday dates are October 18 and 
October 25) 

o A complete list of all early voting sites will be posted on our web 
site shortly .. 

Should you have any questions regarding early voting, please contact Lynnette 
Elliott at 312-603-1081 .. Thank you for partnering with us to offer early voting to 
all suburban voters .. We anticipate that early voting will again be popular in your 
area. 

Sincerely, 

Jl-Ov~'Ld &4A---
David Orr 
Cook County Clerk 

Jan A Kralovec 
Director of Elections 

69 West Washington, 5th Floor, Chicago, Illinois 60602 
Voice: Main Office 312-603-5656, Elections 312-603-0906, Ethics & Campaign Disclosure 312-603-0907 

Fax: Main Office 312-603-9788, Elections 312-603-9786, Ethics & Campaign Disclosure 312-603-9787 

TOO: 312-603-0902, E-Mail: dorr@cookclyclerk.com; Web: wwwcookclyclerk com 



Section H 

Communications From The 

Zoning 

Board of Appeals 



CITY OF BERWYN ILLINOIS B1l11ding A New Berwyn 

MICHAEL k O'CONNOR, Mayor 
6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, illinois 60402-0701 
Telephone: (708) 785-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2675 • www.berwyn-iLgov 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
CHAIRMAN: Joel Chrastka 
EXECUTNE SECRETARY: Milton F Persin 
MEMBERS: 
Dominick Castaldo 
Rubt:rt W. Fejt 
Mary l!;sther Hernandez 
Nora Laureto 
Don Miller 

City Clerk-City of Berwyn 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

August 21, 2008 

RE: City of Be-rwyn- .3310 S. Grove Ave. 
Vari~tion for a Municipal Garage 

Dear Mr_ Pavlik: 

Enclosed Is a Resolution and Ordinance pertaining to the above captioned 
Hearing(s) in which the Berwyn Zoning Board of Appe:!lls recommends 
approval by the City Council. 

Please present to the City Council at your earliest convenience. 

Sincerely 

Executive Secretary 



IlESOLUTION 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

LOTS 16 THROUGH 25, INCLUSIVE, IN BLOC''!( 9, IN BERWYN, BEING A 
SUBDIVISION IN SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH. RANGE 13 EAST 
OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY. ILLINOIS. 

COMMON ADDRESS 
3310 S.Grove Avenue 

REQUEST BY APPUCANT 
Variatiouso. to cons truet a Municipal Garage mil a Coooitional Use 

APPUCANT-CIndiVIdually and Collectively) 

City of Berwyn and Berwyn Development Corporation 
DATE QF PUBUC tiEARlN§ 

August 19th, 2008 

DATE OF PUBliC NOTICE PUBUCATION 

August 1st, 2008, BERYYN GAZETTE 

MEMBERS PRESENT 
MESSRS: Uu:aBtka, Castaldo, Fejt, Miller, Persin & Mrs. Laureto 

mil Hernmxle:z. 
WHEREAS, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the BERWYN ZONING 

BOARD OF APPEALS, (the "BOARD"), in a PUBUC MEETING of the 
BOARD on the~day of August, in the year 2008 , 
having considered all the facts presented at the Hearing of this 
matter, 

WHEREAS, the APPliCANT has been duly informed that: (a) if 
the BOARD fully or partially approves the request of the APPUCANT 
and the CITY COUNCIL concurs in such deciSion; or (b) if the CITY 
COUNCIL fully or partially approves the request even though the 
BOARD has rejected the request of the APPUCANT or if the BOARD 
has made no recommendation to the CITY COUNCIL; the APPUCANT 
must obtain a building permit within SIX (6) MONTHS after the date 
that the ORDINANCE is enacted; 

The BOARD has reached its decision after considering the 
testimony of the witnesses and the .documents presented both prior 
to and during the Hearing, briefly set forth as follows: 



1. Sarah Bratcher, who Is the Senior Urban Planner for the Berwyn 
Development Corporation testified as the main witness for the ownert 

the City of Berwyn, Illinois, and she was assisted by Sarah Davis, the 
project Engineer. Ms Bratcher explained that the Berwyn Development 
Corporation is a Not-For Profit Corporation which provides consulting, 
planning, and other services by contract with the City of Berwyn. 

2. The City of Berwyn is the owner of the parcel which measures 250 
feet along Grove Avenue from North to South, and 125 feet from east 
to the west alley line. No one had any specific information as to when 
the City of Berwyn took title to the parcel, but It Is presently being 
used as a muniCipal parking lot, with 81 spaces for parking. 

3. The City proposes to construct a 4 story, 5 level parking garage, 
with an open stn level, on this site. Variations needed include the 
following: 

12S4.0Z-Conditional Uses; 12S4.04-Required Yards; 1254.0S-Building 
Height; 1254.07-Buildlng Coverage on Lots; 1276.0B-Parklng for 
Conditional USes. 

4. The building will cover the entire width of the parcel, 250 feet, at 
Grove avenue and extend back west 123 feet with a 3 foot rear yard at 
the alley line. The rear yard Is necessary to comply with the alley 
requirements. (Ms Bratcher stated that the plans are subject to some 
minor changes which will be discussed with the Berwyn Building 
Department after the variations have been approved by the Zoning 
Board and City Council. 

5. There will be an enclosed stair~well extending from the ground level 
to a height of about 64'-4" at the south end of the building and an 
enclosed elevator extending from the ground level to a height of 
about 68'-4" at the north end of the building. The estim<lted height 
to the highest point for the main building will be about 50'-9". The 
approximate total height for the first floor will be around 15 feet, and 
about 11 feet for the 2nd, 3'" and 4tn floors. Height clearance for 
vehicles will be 8 feet on the first floor level and 7'-2" on the other 
levels. This should be an adequate height to accommodate any 
passenger Van. 

6. There will be no basement and the first floor level will conSist of 1 
regular parking space and 3 handicap parking spaces. Plans Include 



2 

about 15,705 square feet of retail rental space measuring about 175 
feet from the north end to the south on Grove Avenue extending back 
westerly to the rear wall of the building. This will remain an open space 
until it can be determined what size of a space is needed to 
accommodate the prospective tenants. Could be anywhere from 1 to 6 
retail spaces. The remaining portion of the building, about 75 feet to 
the south, will contain the entrance and exit from the building from 
and onto Grove Avenue. There will be no entrance or exit at the rear 
alley Side of the building for the general public, but they will have a 
few emergency exit doors. 

7. The second level will have 79 regular spaces, 5 spaces designated 
as smaller car spaces (will actually be the same In dimension as the 
other), and 5 handicap spaces situated near the elevators, for a total 
of 89 spaces; the thIrd level will have 87 regular spaces and 5 spaces 
deSignated for smaller Cars for a total of 92 spaces; the 4th level will 
have 87 regular spaces and 5 smaller car deSignated spaces for a 
total of 92 spaces; and the open top 5th level will have 108 regular 
spaces and 5 spaces designated for smaller cars, for A total 113 
spaces. There will be a total of 390 spaces for the entire garage. 

8. The dark brown brick building will have about 70 windows at the 
Grove side of the building. This will be a commuter parking garage and 
residents will buy parking passes at the rate of $30.00 for each 
quarter. There will be some space for emergency parking and parking 
for customers of the retail bUSinesses on the 2nd and 3rt! floor levels, 
but It has not yet been decided how those persons will be charged for 
the space. The garage will not be heated. 

9. The garage will be unattended with no gates. The lighting will be 
adequate for security purposes and there will be about 8 security 
cameras connected direct to the Berwyn Police Station on each floor of 
the garage. The Berwyn Police will also patrol the garage area as part 
of their regular rounds. 

10. The floors on each level will be cast In place with post tension 
cables for strength and stability. Cars will exit and enter from Grove at 
the south east· sIde of the building and there will be some vIsual 
mirrors to protect the pedestrians walking on the sidewalk on Grove 
Avenue. The exit area will be about 28 feet wide which wIll give the 
drivers good vIsion to the sidewalk. 



3 

11. It is estimated that the total cost to construct this building will be 
around twelve million dollars and wIll take about 11 to 12 months to 
complete. The City will be getting about $496,000.00 from the Metra 
Railroad and about 2 million from lOOT. The constructIon of this 
garage wi!1 take about 200 cars off the street, including the 80 cars in 
the municipal garage. 

12. Mr. Robert Fejt, the area Investigator, submitted a written report 
which Is Incorporated by reference in this resolutfon. He did his 
Investigation In presence of Ms Sarah Bratcher on August 13, 2008. 
The elevator will be located at the northwest corner of the building and 
there will be no basement. The first level of the garage will consist of 
15,705 square feet of retail space and the number of tenants Is 
unknow'n at this tIme. The first floor will have an electrical room, 
janitor room, storage area, 3 handicap spots, and 1 regular parking 
spot. The second floor will have 5 handicap spots and 84 regular 
parking spots and the third and fourth levels will have 92 parking 
spots, and the open fifth level will have 113 parking spots, for a total 
of 390 parking spots. 

The current area consists of a five story condo building at 3303 S. 
Grove and various retail and professional offices along Grove Avenue, 
with 2-two story six unit condo's at the south end of the 3300 block of 
Grove Avenue. The 3300 block of Kenilworth consists of mainly single 
family homes with a few three and four story apartments at the north 
end of the block. Notices of this meeting were handed out to homes 
and bUSinesses in the 3300 blocks of Grove and Kenilworth Avenues, 
also 4 homes on 34th Street. Mr. Fejt \loted In favor of granting the 
Conditional Use and all the necessary variations to complete this 
project. 

13. Messrs: Castaldo, Miller, Chrastka, Persin and Mrs. Laureto and 
Hernandez, all agreed with the area investigator and voted in favor of 
granting the Conditional Use and necessary variations for this project. 
Comments were that a municipal garage Is needed in this area, It wIll 
alleviate parking on the streets, and will be a great asset to the 
community. 111e flnal vote was 7 to 0 In favor of granting the 
Conditional Use and all the necessary variations to construct a four 
story, 5 level parking garage, as described' in. this resolution and 
ordinance, and as may be changed and amended with approval of the 
City of Berwyn Building Department. 



4 

This resolution was adopted on the 19th day of August, 2008. 

BERWYN ZONING BOARD, J.Jt--APPEALS 

Mil n F. Persin-Executlve Secretary 



a:lIDI:TI£HfJ. USE and 

YARIAUON ORDINANCE # 

Be it ordained by the City of Berwyn that: 

Whereas, the question of granting the Variatlon(s) included in this ordinance was 
ref-erred to the Board of Zoning Appeals to hold a PubliC Hearing thereon i 
Whereas, such Public Hearing was held after Public Notice was given In the manner 
provided by law; 
Whereas, the said Board has made a rePort containing findings of fact, and has 
recommended the granting of said Variation(s); 
Whereas, the Applicant CDY OF pjlMN and BrnWYN DEVELOI't£NT CXJRP'RQA.TIOO 
Has agreed to adhere to the Building Code or the City of Berwyn, Illinois; 
Whereas, the APplicant has agreed that the representations made to the Zoning 
Board of Appeals and ail other matters conSidered and as decided by the Zoning 
Board of Appeals shall be binding upon the Applicant and a II of 
...t.hJ!j r "privies, successors and assigns; 

AND WHEREAS, THE FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE ZONING BOARD 
OF APPEALS ARE HEREBY ADOPIED AND MADE A PART HEREOF; 

NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Berwyn, Illinois; 
Common address is 3310,S, Grove Avenue and legally described 
as follows: LOTS 16 THROUGH 25, INCLUSIVE, IN BLOCK 9, IN 
BERlJYN, BEING A SUBDIVISION IN SECTION 31, TOlolNSHIP 39 NORTH, 
RANGE 1.3 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS. 

A Conditional Use and all necessary variations are hereby granted 
to construct a four (4) story, five (5) level brick parking garage, 
in accordance with the testimony at the hearing; documents presented; 
and the resolution. 

This Ordinance shall become and be errectlve Immediately upon its passa<,Je, 
approval and publication In the manner prescribed by law. 

Passed this day of-,-,...,-________ _ 

Number Voting Yes: Number Voting No: ______ _ 

Absent: Abstaln----,-_______ _ 

Approved this __ day of 
ATTEST:. 

Michael O'Connor-Mayor 
Tom Pavlik- City Clerk 



Section I 

Reports and 
Communications From 

Aldermen, Committees, 
Boards and Commissions 



BERWYN, ILLINOIS 
MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayo/' 

6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 • Telephone: [708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2567 
W\·.r\". berwyn~il, gOY 

August 22, 2008 
Mayor Michael A. O'Connor 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 

SUBJECT: Library Board Appointments 

NONA N. CHAPMA.J'I 
First 'Vanl .Alderman 

ml: (708) 484.Nol1a (6662) 
~;'~I"il: lstWurd@Bem}71·II,.Go\, 

I would like to once again remind the Mayor and city council of the 3 possibly 4 positions that are vacant on 
the Library Board. We need to reappointment two of the Library board members: Louise Sommese's 
appointment expired January 12, 2008 and Eileen Pech's appointment expired April 23, 2008*. These 2 
board members are essential and both have worked diligently to further the goals of the Library. Eileen is 
currently on the Executive Board serving as the Secretary, and Louise also is on the Executive Board 
serving as the Treasurer. 

Continuity of leadership is important especially now that the Board of 9 is down to a possible 5. Those 
familiar with the pOlicies and practices of the Library are key to continued growth. Please consider their 
reappointment. 

~~,~~ 
1 st Ward Alderman 
Library Liaison 

*The citation from "illinois Library Law" is : 75 5/4-1.1 (a). Term of Office (last sentence of paragraph) 
"The trustees appointed by the mayor shall hold office for 3 years and until their successors are appointed." 

268.01 APPOINTMENT; COMPOSITION; POWERS AND DUTIES. 

The Mayor, with the advice and consent of Council, shall appoint a Library Board of nine members, not 
more than one of whom shall be a member of Council. The Board shall have the powers and shall 
perform the duties as provided by state law. 



Michael A. O'Connor 

/ }".YO' 
Santiago ".Jim" Ramos 

Second Ward Alderman 
(708) 484-4275 

2ndWard@Berwyn-IL.Gov 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26"> Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 781l-2660 

www"berwynwiLgov 

""-------. ------------------A:ugust 19, 2008---· 
Mayor Mike O'Connor 
Membc.- ofthe City Council 
City Clerk Tom Pavlik 

Re: Pcdestrian Safety in Crosswalks 

Dear Mayor and City Council Members, 

This summer I have once again had the pleasure of being able to walk and ride my 
bike throughout the City of Berwyn. For the most part it has been a pleasant experience 
and one that I hope will improve once the bike route/path is striped and marked. However, 
I have viitness several incidents where children and adults were almost hit by cars makjng 
left or right turns. As a walker I too have had close encounters of the first kind with 
vehicles making turns and cutting me off. All I would need is a red cape and a sequin suit 
and I would become Berwyn's first auto-matador. The reason I am bringing this up is that 
drivers seem to be in a big hurry and a lot more aggressive as they travel through our City. 
With the new school year starting soon I do not want to wait until someone is hurt to take 
action. I want to prevent any serious injuries to our school children or citizens crossing the 
street. Therefore, I am requesting that this City Council direct Chief William Kuslmer to 
look into purchasing the green neon color "A" frame signs that state, "State Law 
Requires You to Yield to Pedestrians in the Crosswalk" and place them around our 
schools, parks, and library. Other towns and cities I have visited use these signs and it 
does seem to help protect the pedestrianS in the crosswalk. Once these areas are covered I 
would ask that these signs be place at other busy intersection or where there is no traffic 
controls. I am also requesting that our Public Works Department paint or re··paint all 
crosswalk lines leading to our schools, parks, and library and put up warning signs where 
needed. 

I motion that we approve this request and forward it to Chief Kushner and Public 
Works Director Pat Ryan to implement it as soon as possible. 

Respectfully, 

SantiaO'o "Jim" Ramos 
" 2nd 'Vard Alderman 



August 22, 2008 

ALDERMAN MARK WEINER 
3132 Wenonah 

Berwyn, Illinois 60402 
MarkWeinerl@Hotmail.Com 

708-484-7512 

Re: Street Sweeping, August 26, 2008 Meeting 

Council Members: 

I have attached a recent newspaper article concerning "The City That Never Sweeps". I 
respectfully ask that this communication be sent to Committee of the Whole for discussion on 
whether or not we can be more efficient in cleaning our streets. 

Very truly yours, 

Mark Weiner 



C: 'i' ····-to· ~;eS.ir~~li~Iiii~~ 
residentS "'''', U'U"OU, 

fer thrQugh 
'iu~mei,·' . 

A1most three hundred yeats after Ben
Imin Frankl.!n first org,anized street 

:C Nel.!i0n is, a former N~w Yorh City 
",art.ment of 'fi'or'!spprtation q.ssistotlt 
missioner Jar bridge' and ,arteria! 
ltenance . 

should first ask, how, f~e9uentlY, ~tir 
neighborhoods rOaJly need 10' be swept. 
CoJi!dd~r:: Park Slope, ··Bi'-Qoldyn. where 
s~ccping._ h.~s-·. ,b~~~f 's4~pende~ '.for. :th~,. 
pas~ three rnolnhs so, that thousan9s_ of 
sign~ could pe l'epla~~~:~9 re!1ed a shqrt: 
e1' street cleatiing window of 90 minutes. 
dQwn from three' hours ([~~lf p,rogress). 

Despite the foul arid filthy outeome 
predicted by many; Par.l:t -Slope does not 
look or' smell like an urban wasteland 
The drains have notove1Dowedj U,ni.on 
Street ann ~eve~1t~ Avenue are npt h\lr~ 
ied under gar,bage, .No~ethel~ss, the' al· 
tetnate 'Side: parking r~les are sthed.uleq 

linlaculum up 
debris. Perhaps even 
lavender scent to'calm nllln,',v,;, 

~nt!l them, .we could the exam~ 
pl¢ of Hong Kong,wh.efe more than 2,000 
irianlial sweepers keep stre'ets and 9ide~ 
wall<s immaculate, Their' eql1ipment? 
Just,brooms and plastic handcarts; 

Closer to hame,'there are parts of Stat
en Island and Que~ns whele no parking 
regulations exist for streel cleaning .. The 
law, however, obliges property owners to 
maimain i.h~ curb along thiilr property 
lirie 18 inches intb the street The threat 
of a fine and a little elbow grease results 
inajobwelldo~e . 0 



August 22, 2008 

Michele D. Skryd 
ALDERMAN FOURTH WARD 

BERWYN, IllINOIS 

Hon Michael A O'Connor, Mayor 
Alderman of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

RE. Baseball Alley Netting 

Ladies and Gentlemen. 

.-,.\ ,'''.' 

Please see the attached letters fiom the residents at 6504,6516, and 6520 W 28th Place 
The issue of safety and property damage due to the lack of netting in the area of the 
baseball fields needs to be addressed I spoke with Director Martinucci and he has 
informed me that he has a current bid to complete the netting for $7100 00 from the 
company that installed the current netting Mr Martinucci also advised me that he has 
available funds in his field maintenance budget to proceed with the project It would be 
my recommendation to approve the expenditure for the netting and to have it installed as 
soon as possible 

Respectfully, 

(\'\ ~ '\). ~4JL. 

Michele D. Skryd 
4th Ward Alderman 

6700 W. 26TH SIREET, BERWYN, ILLINOIS 60402' TEL: 708-788-6934' E-MAlr: 4THWARD@BERWYN-ILGOV 

~~., 



Amy Nieves 
6504 W 28th Place 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

( i 

July 17, 2008 

The Honorable Michael O'Connor 
City of Berwyn 
6700 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Dear Mayor O'Connor, 

Per my conversations with Alderwoman Michele Skryd and Recreation Director Tony Martinucci, I am 
writing to you to ask for assistance. 

Last fall my husband and I bought the property located at 6504 28th Place, directly adjacent to Berwyn's 
Baseball Alley. Though we were very pleased by the park-like view behind our home, we were 
concerned about the safety nets that were nonexistent for a portion of the property (nets are missing for 
approximately four property lots). We assumed the nets were in the process of being installed and let the 
winter months pass. Unfortunately once the warm weather appeared so did many many baseballs and 
softballs in our yard. It was only when I narrowly missed being struck on two occasions, did I call 
Alderwoman Skryd to ask for assistance. She informed me that the missing nets were due to a budget 
issue, but would do her best to look into a resolution. As promised, Michele did contact Mr. Martinucci 
who mentioned to me today that he just received an estimate of $7,000 to erect the missing nets. While 
this may not completely alleviate the problem, at least 80% of the flying balls will be contained in the field. 

Mayor O'Connor, Mr. Martinucci is just waiting for your approval to move forward with this necessary 
repair. I ask you to please approve this safety expenditure and allow these nets to be installed as soon 
as possible. 

Thank you for your time and consideration in this important matter. 

Sincerel 

cc: Michele Skyrd, Tony Martinucci 



To: Mr. Anthony Martinucci 
Berwyn Park Director 

& 
Michelle Skyrd 
Berwyn Alderwoman 

July18,2007 

Re: Protection from Baseballs Coming from Baseball Field behind 6516 w.. 28 Place 

Three generations of my family have lived at 6516 W. 28 Place for over 101 years. I 
have used the park facilities and have seen the growth and improvement in recreational 
facilities in my area I commend the Park District for their effort however; I would like 
to bring to your attention a problem that is causing damage to my property and a 
potentially hazardous condition to people in my backyard. Since the ball fields have been 
built behind our homes, my family has repaired the garage wall shingles each year, 
damage caused from baseballs, and collected balls from the yard (106 balls in 2006 and 
55 balls in 2007). We have even stopped parking our car in front of our garage because 
of a dent from a ball, which came over the garage and hit the car. I have determined that 
most of the damage and balls landing in the yard have come from teams warming up 
before the game and non-game day practices. Balls are going over the shorter fence and 
hitting my garage wall or hitting the alley road and bouncing over my garage and landing 
in my yard. I have attached photos of the damage to my garage wall and a view of the 
fence between the field and my property. I believe that extending the protective taller 
fence would minimize the damage and maximize the safety to people in my yard. If I 
were finding one or two balls in my yard I would not be requesting a change; but over a 
100 in a year indicates a change is necessary. 

After the dent to my car in 2006, I talked to Mr. Martinucci and described the problem. 
At the time Mr. Marinucci thought there was money in the 2007 budget to continue the 
taller protective fencing into right field. Unfortunately, the taller protective fence was not 
extended and damage to my garage wall continues. I hope you will take action to correct 
this dangerous and damaging problem .. I would also hope that the City of Berwyn would 
pay for correcting the damage to my garage wall in that I did identify the problem in 
2006 and no action has been taken to date. 

If you need any further information please call me on my cell 

Respectfully, 

~A;Wc;LI 
Roy Malik 
6516 W. 28 PI 
Berwyn, IL 60402 





, 
,. 



February 5, 2008 

To: Michelle Skyrd, Berwyn Alderwoman 

When I called Berwyn City Hall in July of 2007 they advise me that my alderman was the person to 

contact to address matters of property damage, On July 18, 2007, I sent you and Mr, Martinucci, 

Berwyn Park Director, a letter describing how my property at 6516 W, 28 Place is being damaged by 

baseballs coming from the ball fields behind my property, Because the taller netting was not continued 

behind my property, the garage has been hit by baseballs causing many siding pieces to break or fall off, 

as shown in the pictures I sent you. In December 2007, City inspectors have cited the appearance of the 

garage as an eyesore and require me to correct the problem by May 2008, I have attached the Notice of 

Violation. 

I believe correcting the problem means first stopping the source of the destruction by extending the 

taller netting then replacing the damaged garage siding tiles. Fixing the garage tiles without fixing the 

source of destruction will put us back at this point again next year. The citation was a reminder to me 

that I have not received a response to my previous letter. If you are the correct contact person I would 

like to know what course of action I should take. If you are not the right contact could you please direct 

me to the right person? Hopefully the city can take the necessary actions before the May 31st deadline, 

I can be reached on my cell phone, 

Roy Malik 



The City of Berwyn Illinois 
6700 West 26th Street 

Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 

Monday, December 3, 2007 

Roy Malik 

Department Of Neighborhood Affairs 

Phone. (708) 788-2660 

FAX: (708) 788-1427 

Notice of Violation{s) 

Regarding: Condition of Property - PIN # 18-30-414-009-0000, Inspection ID # 35011 
Located at 6516 W 28th Place 

Dear Berwyn Property Owner: 

Your area of the City was recently surveyed as part of Dur inspection program This prDgram has been 
identified as Dne Df the most effective measures available tD protect property values, prevent blight, and maintain 
the high quality of our fine residential neighbDrhood. 

During Dur inspection, we noted some conditions that create a blight situation on your property We have listed 
the conditions below that require repair or maintenance . 

. _---------------------_ .. - -
Violation Local Enforcement 

repair siding on garag~ Maintain the garage/outbuilding in good repair. Prepare and paint as needed, Code: 
BI020 - PM3027, PM304.1, PM110.1 

The high property values and standards of maintenance we enjoy in Berwyn are only pDssible through the 
cDntinued CDncern and effort of each property owner YDur cODperation in maintaining your property to the high 
standards we hope for from all Berwynites will be greatly appreciated. Please call our inspector MmtI:Ia 1Qlartirn;;z 
at 788-2660 (Extension .~, if you have any questiDns regarding this notice or tD explain your particular 
circumstances ~ n'. f S ~,;. 

There will be a follow-up inspection on or around Saturday, May 31, Z008, 

Thank you, 

Department of Neighborhood Affairs, City of Berwyn 

( If work has been completed please contael our office immediately for are-inspection) 



Section J 

Staff Reports 



CITY OF BERWYN 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING (Date) 08/26/08 

Deferred Communication 

Agenda Item J-1 is a Deferred Communication from C C Meeting dated 08/12/08 Agenda item #27 

FROM ______ ~LA~W~D~E~P~A~R~T~M=E~NT~ ________________________ ___ 

Re: JOB DESCRIPTION RESOLUTIONS 
----~~~~~~~~~~~---------------

Templete -xis 



~n 
ATT011.NETS AT LAW 

__ terk, Ltd. 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk 
City of Berwyn 
6400 W. 26u, St. 
Berwyn, JL 60402 

Re: Job Description Resolutions 

Dear Mr. Pavlik: 

~1 
ITEM NO. -------f:::--
DATE AIIG 1 2 Z008 

JulY}Jl, 2008 

m6 WEST 95TH STREET 
EVERGREEN PAlUC. IL 5080S 
(7D6) 424-5578 
FAX (708) 425-1696 
www.odclSOOSle.rk..com 

Please put the attached resolutions on the JlUle 22, 2008 Agenda for consideration by COlUlciL 

Very truly yours, 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

RESOLUTION 
NUMBER ___ _ 

A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT TO THE MAYOR POSITION WITHIN THE 

CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 

SANTIAGO "JIM" RAMOS 

MARK WEINER 

MICHELE D. SKRYD 

THOMAS J. DAY 

MICHAEL. J. PHELAN 

ROBERT J. LOVERO 

JOEL ERICKSON 

Aldermen 

Published In pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Berwyn on --to-lOB 

Odelson & Sterk, Ltd. - City Attorneys - 3318 West 95" Street - Evergreen Park, Illinois 60B05 

RESOLUTION NO.: ___ _ 



A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT TO THE MAYOR POSITION WITHIN THE 

CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois 

(the "Corporate Authoritie:t) wish to amend the job description for the position of Assistant to 

the Mayor; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the job description for the position of Assistant to 

the Mayor to properly reflect the duties of this position; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The following job description for the Assistant to the Mayor position is 

hereby adopted: 

Responsible for the day to day operations within the Office of the Mayor including but 

not limited to the management of all concems, questions and complaints of residents, 

2 



building of relationships with all utility organizations servicing the City, organization, 

investigation and/or administration of any projects assigned by the Mayor. 

SECTION 2. This Resolution becomes effective immediately upon its adoption. 

3 



I I 
YES 

I 
NO 

I 
ABSENT 

I 
PRESENT 

I 
Chapman 

Ramos 

Weiner 

Skryd 

Day 

Phelan 

Lovero 

Erickson 

(Mayor O'Connor) 

I TOTAL 

I I I I I 

4 



Thomas J. Pavlik 

CITY CLERK 

5 

----------,--

Michael A. O'Connor 

MAYOR 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

RESOLUTION 
NUMBER ___ _ 

A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE 

ASSISTANT FIRE CHIEF POSITION WITHIN THE CITY OF BERWYN, 

COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 

SANTIAGO "JIM" RAMOS 

MARK WEINER 

MICHELE D. SKRYD 

THOMAS J. DAY 

MICHAEL J. PHELAN 

ROBERTJ. LOVERO 

JOEL ERICKSON 

Aldermen 

Published In pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Berwyn on --/--/08 

Odelson & Sterk, Ltd ... City Attorneys - 3318 West 95" Slreet - Evergreen Park, illinois 60805 

RESOLUTION NO.: __ 



A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE 

ASSISTANT FIRE CHIEF POSITION WITHIN THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK 

COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois 

(the "Corporate Authodties') wish to amend the job description for the position of Assistant Fire 

Chief; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the job description for the position of Assistant Fire 

Chief to properly reflect the duties of this pOSition; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The following job description for the Assistant Fire Chief position is hereby 

adopted: 

The Assistant Fire Chief assists the Fire Chief with organizing and direction of all Fire 

Department operations. The Assistant Chief is responsible to the Fire Chief for the 

conduct, efficiency, and activities of the Fire Department personnel on a daily basis. 

Each Deputy Chief is responsible to the Assistant Chief for the efficient operation of his 

2 



platoon. The Assistant Fire Chief exercises the duties and assumes the responsibilities 

of the Fire Chief during times when the Fire Chief is unavailable. 

Other duties included: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Formulate, disseminate, and implement Department policies, procedures, and 

guidelines 

Reviews personnel actions, personnel complaints, and recommends personnel 

actions to the Fire Chief 

Oversees operations of the Fire Prevention Bureau 

Consults with the Training Officer on a daily basis and reviews training schedules 

and operations 

Assist the Fire Chief with budget implementation and participates in forecast of 

future budgets 

Assist the Fire Chief with administrative procedures 

Attend required meetings such as Mutual Aid, disaster planning, operations, 

Is subject to be on call at all times to assist or manage emergency operations 

Oversees construction and repairs of all Fire stations 

Assists the Fire Chief with development of departmental goals, strategic, and 

operational plans 

Prepares and directs the execution of daily, weekly, and monthly work schedUles 

Assists with public education and awareness 

Participates with mutual aid fire protection plans and training exercises 

Assist with pre-planning of emergencies 

Shall work in close relationship with the Building Department and all oilier code 

enforcing agencies 

Shall deal effectively, courteously, and tactfully with the public and employees 

Implement Safety Officer duties to help prevent injuries 

Researches and plans activities, making recommendations for changes in 

operations 

Researches new ideas and technology in the Fire Service 

3 



SECTION 2. This Resolution becomes effective immediately upon its adoption. 

4 



I I 
YES 

I 
NO I ABSENT 

I 
PRESENT 

I 
Chapman 

Ramos 

Weiner 

Skryd 

Day 

Phelan 

Lovero 

Erickson 

(Mayor O'Connor) 

I TOTAL 

I I I I I 

5 



Thomas J. Pavlik 

CITY CLERK 

6 

Michael A. O'Connor 

MAYOR 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY. ILLINOIS 

RESOLUTION 
NUMBER ___ _ 

A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE 

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT POSITION WITHIN THE CITY 

OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR. Mayor 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK. City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 

SANTIAGO "JIM" RAMOS 

MARK WEINER 

MICHELE D. SKRYD 

THOMAS J. DAY 

MICHAEL J. PHELAN 

ROBERT J. LOVERO 

JOEL ERICKSON 

Aldermen 

Published In pamphlet form by authortty of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Berwyn on .... / .... /OB 

Odelson & Sierk, Ltd ... City Attorneys" 331B West 95'" Street .. Evergreen Park, illinois 60805 

RESOLUTION NO.: ____ _ 



A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE 

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT POSITION WITHIN THE CITY 

OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois 

(the "Corporate Authorities') wish to amend the job description for the position of Director of 

Community Development; and 

WHEREAS, it Is necessary to amend the job description for the position of Director of 

Community Development to properly reflect the duties of this position; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The following job description for the Director of Community Development 

position is hereby adopted: 

To oversee the administration of the Department of Community Development as well as 

oversee the distribution of the annual CDBG grant funds, including, but not limited to, 

the creation, on an annual basis, the HUD required Action Plan and the year end 

CAPER. The director must oversee the HUD approved Blight inspection program for the 

low-mod areas of the City of Berwyn and the implementation of the single family rehab 

2 



program. 

SECTION 2. This Resolution becomes effective immediately upon its adoption. 

3 



I I 
YES 

I 
NO 

I 
ABSENT 

I 
PRESENT 

I 
Chapman 

Ramos 

Weiner 

Skryd 

Day 

Phelan 

Lovero 

-

Erickson 

(Mayor O'Connor) 

TOTAL 

4 



Thomas J. Pavlik 

CITY CLERK 

5 

Michael A. O'Connor 

MAYOR 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNlY, ILLINOIS 

RESOLUTION 
NUMBER ___ _ 

A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE 

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY OUTREACH POSITION WITHIN THE CITY OF 

BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 

SANTIAGO "JIM" RAMOS 

MARK WEINER 

MICHELE D. SKRYD 

THOMAS J. DAY 

MICHAEL J. PHELAN 

ROBERT J. LOVERO 

.JOEL ERICKSON 

Aldermen 

Published In pamphlet farm by authority of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Berwyn on ,--/--/08 

Odelson & Sterk, Ltd. - City Attorneys - 3318 West 95· Street - Evergreen Park, illinois 60805 

RESOLUTiON NO.: 



A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE 

DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY OUTREACH POSITION WITHIN THE CITY OF 

BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois 

(the" Corporate Authorities') wish to amend the job description for the position of Director of 

Community Outreach; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the job description for the position of Director of 

Community Outreach to properiy reflect the duties of this position; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The following job description for the Director of Community Outreach 

position is hereby adopted: 

The function of the Community Outreach program involves establishing ways for citizens 

to become more activeiy involved in the community by opening up communication 

between City Departments, City staff and citizens. This will be accomplished through 

establishing programs within the city by working with departments, agencies and staff 

that involve the citizens. Holding Citizen Meetings, events and different venues of 

2 



communication will be utilized to reach the citizens. The Outreach Department will 

investigate and research citizens' suggestions and concerns, and respond to all 

inquiries. The Cornmunity Outreach will assist in planning, organizing, and directing 

activities and programs that will include the citizens of the community, business leaders 

and officials. 

SECTION 2. This Resolution becomes effective irnrnediately upon its adoption. 

3 



I I 
YES 

I 
NO 

I 
ABSENT 

I 
PRESENT 

I 
Chapman 

Ramos 

Weiner 

Skryd 

Day 

Phelan 

Lovero 

Erickson 

(Mayor O'Connor) 

. 

I TOTAL 

I I I I I 

4 



Thomas J. Pavlik 

CITY CLERK 

5 

---------------------

Michael A. O'Connor 

MAYOR 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

RESOLUTION 
NUMBER ___ _ 

A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE 

DIRECTOR OF NEIGHBORHOOD AFFAIRS POSITION WITHIN THE CITY 

OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 

SANTIAGO "JIM" RAMOS 

MARK WEINER 

MICHELE D. SKRYD 

THOMAS J. DAY 

MICHAEL J. PHELAN 

ROBERT J. LOVERO 

JOEL ERICKSON 

Aldermen 

PUblished In pamphlet fonn by aulhority of Ihe Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Berwyn on -- / _ .• /08 

Odelson & Sterk, Ltd. - City AUomeys - 3318 West 95th Street - Evergreen Park, Illinois 60805 

RESOLUTION NO.: ___ _ 



A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE 

DIRECTOR OF NEIGHBORHOOD AFFAIRS POSITION WITHIN THE CITY 

OF BERWYN, COOK COUN1Y, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois 

(the "Corporate Authorities') wish to amend the job description for the position of Director of 

Neighborhood Affairs; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the job description for the position of Director of 

Neighborhood Affairs to properly reflect the duties of this position; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The following job description for the Director of Neighborhood Affairs 

position is hereby adopted: 

Principal Duties and Responsibilities: 

1) Formulates and implements programs mid policies regarding blight and 

compliance inspections; Provides administrative planning, coordination, 

direction, and review of Building Department operations and personnel. 

2 



z) Supervises Blight and Compliance Inspectors regarding enforcement of city 

ordinances and codes. 

3) Supervises and coordinates Zoning infractions in reference to illegal 

apartments. 

4) Represents the City of Berwyn in Local Ordinance Court; Processes and 

recommends fines and additional actions to be taken for violations. 

5) Responds to all inquiries and concerns from all entities concerning policies, 

procedures, ordinances, codes, enforcement and adjudication; Attend meetings 

and supply technical information and advice to officials from other 

organizations, other City Departments, City Council and the general public as 

requested. 

6) Perform building inspections as needed in conjunction with oilier departments 

including Police, Fire, Public Works, Health, Etc. 

7) Contracts and coordinates all rodent abatement policies and procedures for 

the City of Berwyn including all city-owned buildings. 

8) Forecasts operational needs, department costs, and prepares the Building 

Department budget in conjunction with the Building Director. 

9) Tracks and processes orders lawn service for unoccupied properties; Orders 

board up for structures which are in disrepair or have been damaged by fire 

or any other cause in order to protect the public; Works in conjunction with 

the Building Director to condemn and demolish unsafe structures; forv"ard 

3 



infonnation to collector for billing to property owners 

10) Prepare, review and submit all necessary information, records, files and 

reports conceming the Department of Neighborhood Affairs; Maintain and 

update the Building Department data system 

11) Perfonn additional duties within the above scope as required or deemed 

necessary to accommodate departmental as well as residential needs 

SECTION 2. This Resolution becomes effective immediately upon its adoption" 

4 



YES NO ABSENT PRESENT 

Chapman 

Ramos 

Weiner 

Skryd 

Day 

Phelan 

Lovero 

Erickson 

(Mayor O'Connor) 

I TOTAL 

I I I I I 

5 



Thomas J. Pavlik 

CITY CLERK 

6 

Michael A. O'Connor 

MAYOR 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

RESOLUTION 
NUMBER 

A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE 

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE POSITION WITHIN THE CITY OF BERWYN, 

COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 

SANTIAGO "JIM" RAMOS 

MARK WEINER 

MICHELE D. SKRYD 

THOMAS J. DAY 

MICHAEL J. PHELAN 

ROBERT J. LOVERO 

JOEL ERICKSON 

Aldermen 

Published In pamphlet loom by authority of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City 01 Berwyn on -- / -- /08 

Odelson & Sterk, Ltd •• , City Attorneys - 3318 West 95" Street - Evergreen Park, Illinois 60805 

RESOLUTION NO.: 



A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE 

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE POSITION WITHIN THE CITY OF BERWYN, 

COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois 

(the "Corporate Authorities') wish to amend the job description for the position of Director of 

Finance; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the job description for the position of Director fo 

Finance to properly reflect the duties of this position; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOL YEO by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The following job description for the Director of Finance position is hereby 

adopted: 

Primary Purpose: 

Performs a variety of complex supervisory, professional administrative and technical 

accounting and finance functions in maintaining the fiscal records and systems of the 

City within the Finance Department under the general direction of the Mayor. 

2 



Principal Duties and Responsibilities: 

1. Manages and supervises assigned operations to achieve goals within available 

resources; plans and organizes workloads and staff assignments; trains, 

motivates, and evaluates assigned staff; reviews progress and directs changes 

as needed. 

2. Provides leadership and direction in the development of short and long range 

plans; gathers interprets; and prepares data for studies, reports and 

recommendations; coordinates department activities with other departments 

and agencies as needed. 

3. Assures that assigned areas of responsibility are perfonmed within budget; 

perfonms cost control activities; monitors revenues and expenditures in 

assigned area to assure sound fiscal management of funds, personnel, 

materials, facilities and time. 

4. Detenmines work procedures; studies and standardizes procedures to improve 

efficiency and effectiveness of operations. 

5. Prepares a variety of studies, reports and related information for decision 

making purposes. 

6. Serves as chief financial advisor to the City of Berwyn. 

7. Establishes and maintains internal control procedures and assures that state 

and national standard accounting procedures are maintained. Oversees the 

3 



collection of taxes and other receipts in accordance with laws and regulations. 

8. Develops financial studies and plans. Forecasts, estimates, and monitors the 

financial condition of the City to assure the fiscal well being of the City. 

9. Prepares financial reports, preparation of annual levy and appropriations 

ordinance. 

10. Coordinates budget preparation and execution under the Mayor's supervision. 

11. Oversees the preparation of state and Federal Reports, including tax reports. 

12. Assists in the management and reporting of the City's Tax Increment Finance 

Districts (TIF). 

13. Establishes and maintains records needed for bond payments, fiscal agent 

and related redemption ledgers. 

14. Responsible for the supervision of the payroll function. 

15. Prepares periodic financial, statistical or operational reports as assigned. 

4 



Position Requirements: 

Formal Education: - Graduation from an accredited four-year college or university with a degree in 

accounting or finance related field. 

Previous Work Experience: CPA and not less than five years experience and specialization in 

governmental accounting. 

Technical or Specialized Knowledge: ,. Considerable knowledge of modem governmental accounting 

theory, principles and practices; knowledge of internal control procedures and management 

information systems; knowledge of office automation and computerized financial applications; 

knowledge of public finance and fiscal planning; knowledge of payroll and accounts payable 

functions; working knowledge of budgetary, accounting and reporting systems and CAFR preparation 

and compliance with GMP, GFOA and GASB principles. 

Certifications: - Certified Public Accountant 

SECTION 2. This Resolution becomes effectiVe immediately lipon its adoption. 

5 



YES NO ABSENT PRESENT 

Chapman 

Ramos 

Weiner 

Skryd 

Day 

Phelan 

Lovero 

Erickson 

(Mayor O'Connor) 

ITOT~ 
I I I I I 

6 



Thomas J. Pavlik 

CITY CLERK 

7 

Michael A. O'Connor 

MAYOR 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

RESOLUTION 
NUMBER ___ _ 

A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE 

GRANTS ADMINISTRATOR/COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT POSITION 

WITHIN THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 

SANTIAGO "JIM" RAMOS 

MARK WEINER 

MICHELE D. SKRYD 

THOMAS J. DAY 

MICHAEL J. PHELAN 

ROBERT J. LOVERO 

JOEL ERICKSON 

Aldermen 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Berwyn on ·-';-/OB 

Odelson & Sterk, Ltd. - City Attorneys - 331B West 9S~ Street·· Evergreen Park, illinois 60BOS 

RESOLUTION NO.: ___ _ 



A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE 

GRANTS ADMINISTRATOR/COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT POSITION 

WITHIN THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois 

(the "Corporate Authorities') wish to amend the job description for the position of Grants 

Administrator/Community Development; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the job description for the position of Grants 

Administrator/Community Development to properly reflect the duties of this position; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The following job description for Grants Administrator/Community 

Development position is hereby adopted: 

The function of Grants Administrator/Community Development for CDBG is primarily to 

monitor the distribution of the grant that is received from HUD according to all of the 

federally mandated guidelines as established by HUD. This requires the Grants 

Administrator/Community Development to have a thorough knowledge cif the current 

projects that are part of the Action Plan, as well as developing an awareness of the 

2 



community's needs for future Action Plans as well as what will be required for the next 

five year Consolidated Plan. The Grants Administrator must also be a willing participant 

in the hearing process and interact with the sub-grantees on an ongoing basis that 

monitors their input. Knowledge of the HUD's IDIS system of recording keeping is also 

required so that all timely reports maybe generated as required. 

SECTION 2. This Resolution becomes effective immediately upon its adoption. 

3 



YES NO ABSENT PRESENT 

Chapman 

Ramos 

Weiner 

Skryd 

Day 

Phelan 

Lovero 

Erickson 

(Mayor O'Connor) 

I TOThl 

I I I I I 

4 



Thomas J. Pavlik 

CITY CLERK 

5 

Michael A. O'Connor 

MAYOR 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

RESOLUTION 
NUMBER ___ _ 

A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE 

DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES POSITION WITHIN THE CITY OF 

BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 

SANTIAGO "JIM" RAMOS 

MARK WEINER 

MICHELE D. SKRYD 

THOMAS J. DAY 

MICHAEL J. PHELAN 

ROBERT J. LOVERO 

JOEL ERICKSON 

Aldermen 

Published In pamphlet lonm by authority of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Serwyn on --/--/OB 

Odelson & Sterk, Ltd. - City Attorneys - 331B West 95'" Street - Evergreen Park. Illinois 60805 

RESOLUTION NO.: ___ _ 



A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE JOB DESCRIPTION FOR THE 

DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES POSITION WITHIN THE CITY OF 

BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois 

(the "Corporate Authorities') wish to amend the job description for the position of Director of 

Human Resources, and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the job description for the position of Director of 

Human Resources to properly reflect the duties of this position; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

SECTION 1. The following job description for the Director of Human Resources position 

is hereby adopted: 

Primary Purpose: 

Plans, manages, oversees and directs the operations of the Human Resources 

Department, which includes recruitment, labor relations, workers compensation, 

classification and compensation, benefits administration, specialized training and to 

2 



provide complex staff assistance to management and City CounciL The Director of 

Human Resources shall report to the Mayor. 

Key Accountabilities 

1. Ensures that all policies and practices comply with federal, state and local 

laws and regulations and provide consistent implementation and enforcement. 

2. Oversees recruitment of qualified personnel and provides new employee 

orientation. 

3. Counsels employees and managers; initiates, conducts and/or oversees 

investigations relative to disciplinary actions and complaints for City 

departments. 

4. Serves as a member of union contract negotiation team by assisting with 

formulation and recommendation of collective bargaining policies to be 

reviewed by the Mayor and City Council. Does all research connected with 

collective bargaining negotiations. 

5. Manages the City's benefit programs, oversees new enrollment and benefit 

processing, changes and terminations. 

6. Assists employees in all issues including interpersonal, compensation and 

benefit issues by performing day-to-day employee relations activities. 

? Responds to all inquiries related to job openings and proper application 

procedures. 

3 



8. Conducts a variety of organizational studies, investigations resulting in 

recommendations for modification to personnel programs, policies and 

procedures as appropriate. 

9. Evaluates the City's compensation program and makes recommendations so 

as to keep our compensation competitive with other municipalities. 

10. Designs performance evaluation system for selected departments and provides 

appropriate training related to implementation. 

11. Evaluates and recommends employee benefit modifications or new programs, 

with an annual review of all current benefits for cost effectiveness. 

12. Prepared departmental budget annually and assists managers with portions of 

their budget preparation. 

13. Responsible for all human resources related federal, state and local reporting 

requirements. 

14. Handles all workers compensation claim management and case management 

of individual work-related claims. 

15. Researches and recommends policies in connection with applicable state and 

federal guidelines. 

16. Implements and oversees Kronos Timekeeping System, in conjunction with 

payroll. 

4 



Position Requirements: 

Formal Education: Bachelors degree in human resources or related field Masters degree 

preferable. 

Previous Work Experience: Minimum of 10 years In a human resources management position. 

Certifications: SPHR certification required, 

Equipment Knowledge: Must be computer literate and able to perform all data management 

activities related to human resources. 

SECTION 2. This Resolution becomes effective immediately upon its adoption. 

5 



YES NO ABSENT PRESENT 

Chapman 

1-. 

Ramos 

Weiner 

Skryd 

Day 

Phelan 

Lovero 

Erickson 

(Mayor O'Connor) 

I TOTAL 

I I i I I 

6 



Thomas J. Pavlik 

CITY CLERK 

7 

Michael A. O'Connor 

MAYOR 



1110mas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk 
City of Berwyn 
6400 W. 26111 St. 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

August 19, 2008 

3319 WEST 9STIi STREEr 
EVERGREEN PARK, IL 60005 
UD9) 424-5679 
FAX (708) 425-1698 
www.odelsonstc:rkcom 

Case No.: 08 C 897 (U.S. District Court for the Northern District ofTIlinois) 

Dear Mr. Pavlik: 

Please put an item 011 the August 26, 2008 agenda authorizing the settlement of the above 
referenced matter for the total stun of $4,501.00 based upon prior City Council authority in 
executive session. 

Very truly yours, 

~ 
Richard F. Bmen, Jr. 

RFBfjt 



Thomas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk 
City of Berwyn 
6400 W. 26th St. 
Berwyn, 1L 60402 

August 21, 2008 

Case No.: Traffic Regulation Ordinances 

Dear Mr. Pavlik: 

3316 WEST 951H STREET 
EVERGREEN PARK, IL 60605 
(70B) 424·567B 
FAX (706) 425·1696 
www.odcisonslcrk.com 

The Council referred Item 1-2 from the July 22, 2008 Council Agenda and J-B from the August 
12, 2008 Council Agenda to us to draft ordinances. Item I· 2 (a copy of which is attached) seeks 
to prohibit left turns from southbound Scoville Avenue onto eastbound 26th Street. Item J-13 
(also attached) seeks to temporarily prohibit turns from Ogden Avenue onto northbound 
Kenilworth Avenue. Attached find Ordinances maldng those changes. 

Chapter 442.01 (c) of the Berwyn Code authorizes the Director of Public Works to determine 
those intersections at which drivers of vehicles shall not make a right, left or "U" tum and place 
proper signs at such intersections. And Chapter 442.0 1 (n) authorizes the Director of Public 
Works to enact temporary regulations for experimental or other special purposes for ninety (90) 
days - or longer if reinstated by the Traffic Engineer. 

Authority to carry out the desired changes set forth in Items 1-2 and J-13 would seem to have 
already been delegated to the Director ofPuhlic Works. Nevertheless, we have drafted the 
attached Ordinances at the direction of Council. 

Very truly yours, 

Richard F. Bmen, Jr. 

RFB!jt 

Attachments 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER ____ _ 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS TO ENACT A 

TEMPORARY REGULATION PROHIBITING TRAFFIC ON OGDEN AVENUE 

FROM TURNING NORTHBOUND ONTO KENILWORTH AVENUE 

AT CERTAIN SPECIFIED HOURS 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 
SANTIAGO "OJIM' RAMOS 

MARK WEINER 
MICHELE D. SKRYD 

THOMAS J. DAY 

MICHAEL J. PHELAN 

ROBERT J. LOVERO 

JOEL ERICKSON 

Aldermen 

Published In pamphlet rorm by authority Df tho Mayor and City Clclk 01 tho City or Barwyn on ~~/-/OB 
Oda!snn 81 Stark, Ltd. ~ City Attorneys ~ 3318 Wast 95 111 Sirnat ~ Evergreen Pork, lUlnols 60805 

ORDINANCE NO.: ___ _ 



AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS TO ENACT A 

TEMPORARY REGULATION PROHIBITING TRAFFIC ON OGDEN AVENUE 

FROM TURNING NORTHBOLJND ONTO KENILWORTH AVENUE 

AT CERTAIN SPECIFIED HOURS 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois (the "City") is a home rule 

municipality pursuant to Section 6(a), Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of 

Illinois, and as such may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its 

government and affairs (the" Harne Rule Powers" ); 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Berwyn (the "Corporate 

Authorities') has adopted a Traffic Code, which has been amended from time to time; 

WHEREAS, the Director of Public Works is authorized pursuant to Section 442.01(n) 

of the Traffic Code, to enact temporary traffic regulations for experimental or other special 

purposes; 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have further decided to concur with the Director 

of Public Works and enact a temporary traffic regulation identified herein; and 

2 



WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have determined that it is in the best interests 

of the residents of the City to provide for such a temporary parking regulation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, by and through its home rule powers, as follows: 

Section 1: That the above recitals and legislative findings are found to be true 

and correct and are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof, as if fully set forth 

in their entirety. 

Section 2: The Director of Public Works Is hereby authorized, pursuant to Chapter 

442.01(n) as amended, to enact a temporary traffic regulation during the hours of 7a.m. to 

9a.m. and Zp.m. to 6p.m. on Monday through, and including, Friday of each week at the 

intersection of Ogden Avenue and Kenilworth Avenue prohibiting the following: 

1) Eastbound traffic on Ogden Avenue from making left turns onto Kenilworth 

Avenue heading northbound on Kenilworth Avenue; and 

3 



2) Westbound traffic on Ogden Avenue from making right turns onto Kenilworth 

Avenue heading southbound on Kenilworth Avenue. 

Section 3. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be 

held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect any of the other provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 4. All ordinances, resolutions, motions or orders in conflict with this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 5. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, 

approval and publication as provided by law. 

4 



Adopted this . __ day of . _______ • 2008. pursuant to a roll call vote as 

follows: 

I I YES I NO I ABSENT I PRESENT I 
Chapman 

Ramos 

Weiner 

Skryd 

Day -
Phelan --
Lovero 

Erlckson 

(Mayor O'Connor) 

I TOTAL I I I I I 

APPROVED by the Mayor on _________ • 2008. 

Michael A. O'Connor 

MAYOR 

Thomas ,J. Pavlik 

CITY CLERK 

5 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS TO ENACT A 

REGULATION PROHIBITING SOUTHBOUND TRAFFIC ON SCOVILLE AVENUE 

FROM TURNING EASTBOUND ONTO 26'h STREET 

AT CERTAIN SPECIFIED HOURS 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK, City Clerk 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 

SANTIAGO 'JIM' RAMOS 

MARK WEINER 

MICHELE D. SKRYD 

lHOMAS J. DAY 

MICHAEL J. PHELAN 

ROBERT J. LOVERO 

JOEL ERICKSON 

Aldermen 

PUblishod In pamphlBt form by authority of Iha Moyor nnd ClIy Clark 01 Ihe City of Berwyn on -~/--/Oe 
Odeison & Slmk. LId. ~ City Allornoys - 3318 Wasl 9S~ Slroat - Evorgrnon Pmk. nUncls 60805 

ORDINANCE NO.: ___ _ 



AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS TO ENACT A 

REGULATION PROHIBITING SOUTHBOUND TRAFFIC ON SCOVILLE AVENUE 

FROM TURNING EASTBOUND ONTO 26
th 

STREET 

AT CERTAIN SPECIFIED HOURS 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois (the "City") is a home rule 

municipality pursuant to Section 6(a). Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of tha State of 

Illinois, and as such may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its 

government and affairs (the "Home Rule Powers"); 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Berwyn (the "Corporate 

Authorities') has adopted a Traffic Code, which has been amended from time to time; 

WHEREAS, the Director of Public Works is authorized, pursuant to Section HZ.01(c) 

of the Traffic Code, to determine those intersections at which drivers of vehicles shall not 

make right, left or "U" turn and place proper signs at such intersections; 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have further decided to concur with the Director 

of Public Works and enact the traffic regulation identified herein; and 

2 



WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities have determined that it is in the best interests 

of the residents of the City to provide for such a temporary parking regulation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, by and through its home rule powers, as follows: 

Section 1: That the above recitals and legislative findings are found to be true 

and correct and are hereby incorporated herein and made a part hereof, as If fully set forth 

in their entirety. 

Section 2: The Director of Public Works is hereby authorized, pursuant to Chapter 

442.01(c) as amended, to enact a traffic regulation prohibiting the following: 

1) Southbound traffic on Scoville Avenue from making left turns eastbound onto 

26
1n 

Street. 

Section 3. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall be 

held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect any of the other provisions of this Ordinance. 

3 



Section 4. All ordinances, resolutions, motions or orders in conflict with this 

Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 5. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, 

approval and publication as provided by law. 

4 



Adopted this __ day of ________ , 2008, pursuant to a roll call vote as 

follows: 

YES NO ABSENT PRESENT 

Chapman 

Ramos 

Weiner 

Skryd 

Day 

Phelan 

Lovero 

Erickson 

(Mayor O'Connor) 

I TOTAL I I I I I 
APPROVED by the Mayor on ________ , 2008. 

Michael A. O'Connor 

MAYOR 

Thomas J. Pavlik 

CITY CLERK 

5 



Mich el A. O'Connor Daniel J. LeBeau 
Building Director j. Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26"' Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-1427 

www ,berwyn-il.gov 

August 20, 2008 

Re: Metra's Request to Waive Permit Fee 

Dear Mayor and Council members, 

Metra is requesting the City of Berwyn to waive the permit fee for the Harlem Avenue and 
LaVergne station projects. Copies of documents are attached that indicate other communities 
waive the permit fees for work performed on railroad property, as it is considered a public 
improvement Also attached is a written request from Metra. Please understand their request 
includes review fees and all required inspections. That amount should not exceed $2000.00_ 

Please approve the request to waive the permit, review and inspection fees. 

Building Director 

Attachments 



August 5, 2008 

Mr .. Daniel J. LeBeau 
Director - Building Department 
City of Berwyn 
6700 26 th Street 
Benvyn, lllinois 60402 

Dear l\tr, LeBeau: 

Metra has designed improvements for the Harlem Avenue and LaVergne commuter train stations 
in order to provide Metra commuters with the highest level of service, convenience and safety. 
The improvements include the construction of new inbound and outbound platforms at both 
stations and a new warming shelter at LaVergne. Upon completion of construction, commuters 
will quicldy realize the ease of boarding our trains due to the new platforms. The warming 
shelter will be larger in size in order to accommodate more commuters and will include overhead 
heating elements and better protection from winter weather. 

Our contractor, John Burns Construction Company, intends to begin construction this year, 
however a schedule has yet to be finalized. Issues such as the number of slow zones and the 
availability of safety flagman are factors in determining a schedule. Metra understands the city's 
desire to have these projects move forward in the very near future. 

As with all our projects, Metra requests the municipality waive any and all permit fees. This 
letter is to seek your assistance in obtaining a waiver for the permit fees for both the Harlem 
Avenue and LaVergne station projects. Also, Metra respectfully requests your support with 
assisting our contractor, John Burns, through the city process of obtaining the necessary permits. 

If you have any questions or if I can be of any assistance to you in the future, please feel free to 
call me at (312) 322-6494. 

I wish to thank you in advance for your assistance and efforts on our behalf 

Sincer 

e Corrao 
Director of Community Affairs 

cc: D. Skoufis, Metra 
P. Ryan, Berwyn 

Metra is the registered service mark for the Northeast Illinois Regional Commuter Raifroad Corporation 



Catalina T. Rohmann 

From: 
Sent: 

pryan@ci.berwyn.il us [p-ryan240@comcastnet] 
Tuesday, August 05,20081:18 PM 

To: Daniel J. LeBeau 
Subject: Fw: Route 59 - Cost Estimate - SA 2008.1556 

METRA states someone in your office requested t:hey pay a $5,000 "plan review" fee before 
they issue the permits.. Should this not be free for METRA? 

sincerely, 

Patrick Ryan 
Director of Public Works 
city of Berwyn 
1 public Works Drive 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

(708) 749-4700 

-------------- Forwarded Message: -------------
From: ltDemetrios Skoufis" <dskoufis@metrarr.com> 
To: "Patrick IT. Ryan It <pryan@ci.berwyn.il"lls> 
Subj ect: Fw: Route 59 - Cost Estimate - S .A .. 2008.1556 
Date: Mon, 4 Aug 2008 21:42:02 +0000 
> 
> ----- Original Message -----
> From: "Bhane Higgins ll <shiggins@jbconstructionco.com> 
> To: IIDemetrios Skoufis lt <dskoufis@metrarr.com> 
> Sent: Monday, August 04, 2008 4:26 PM 
> Subject: RE: Route 59 - Cost Estimate - S.A. 2008.1556 
> 
> 
> Demetri, 
> Did you ever track down the name/contact for the Village of Berwyn? 
> It would come in handy for procuring the building permits- they 
> informed me at the building department that they haven't eVen seen the drawings. 
> 
> Also- would you be able to help me with getting the building fees waived? 
> We were informed by the Building Department that Metra's Community 
> Relations could assist us with this, They appeared willing to waive 
> the fees, but it almost seemed like they wanted Metra to make the 
> request. All other villages on this Contract have waived the fees. 
> Let me know if you could 
> help- Thanks. 
> Shane Higgins 
> Project Manager 
> John Burns Construction Company 
> 312-550-6069 
> 
> 

1 



Daniel J. LeBeau 

From: 
Sent: 

Demetrios Skoufis [dskoufis@metrarr.comJ 
Monday, August 18, 2008 2:15 PM 

To: Daniel J. LeBeau 
Cc: Lynne Corrao 
Subject: Fw: West Chicago - Permit Fee Waiver Request 

Below is email correspondence between myself and west Chicago City Manager Michael 
Guttman" The waiver was for the construction of an approximately 140 space commuter 
parking lot and retaining wall. Construction started last year and the lot opened for use 
earlier this Bummer, 

Dernetri 

----- Original Message -----
From: IIMichael Guttman ll <MGuttrnan@westchicago .. org> 
To: lIDemetrios Skoufis ll <dskoufis@rnetrarr"com> 
Cc: "Joanne Kalchbrenner" <JKalchbrenner@westchicago"org> 
Sent: Monday, April 23, 2007 2:41 PM 
Subject: Re: West Chicago - Permit Fee Waiver Request 

> Demetri, 
> The City will treat the 3rd commuter parking lot project as if it is 
> our own, and no fees will be charged. 
> Michael -
> 
> »> "Dernetrios Skoufis ll <dskoufis@metrarr"com> 4/17/2007 1:28:06 PM 
> »> 
> Michael, 
> 
> Metra would like to re~lest a permit fee waiver for the commuter 
> parking lot project. If I recall correctly, the city council will need 
> to review this request, What do you need from me? 
> 
> Demetri Skoufis 
> Metra Community Affairs 
> 547 West Jackson Boulevard 
> 13th Floor 
> Chicago, Illinois 60661 
> Office (312) 322-6754 
> Fax (312) 322-7094 
> dskoufis@metrarr"com 

1 



Page 10f2 

Daniel J. LeBeau 

From: Demetrios Skoufis [dskoufis@metrarr com] 

Sent: Monday, August 18, 20082:06 PM 

To: Daniel J. LeBeau 

Cc: Lynne Corrao 

Subject: Fw: Congress Park station - Fee Waiver Email 

Dan, 

Below is email correspondence between myself and Rick Ginex, Village Manager for Brookfield The village is 
waiving the fees for a Congress Park station sewer and sidewalk project and a platform lighting project at the 
Hollywood station. 

I'll look through my email for others We usually get a verbal approval from the manager Rarely do they go before 
the village board or city council 

Demetri 

--- Original Message -
From: Rick Ginex 
To: Demetrios Skoufis 
Cc: Holly Lown ; Lynne Corrao 
Sent: Thursday, August 14, 2008 10:44 AM 
Subject: RE: Congress Park station 

Demetri, 

Thanks. I will have someone there as I am on vacation that week. Also, we would waive the permit fees since 
this is considered a public improvement 

Thanks, 

Rick 

From: Demetrios Skoufis [mailto:dskoufis@metrarr.com] 
Sent: Thursday, August 14, 2008 8:44 AM 
To: Rick Ginex 
Cc: Holly Lown; Lynne Corrao 
Subject: Fw: Congress Park station 

Rick, 

Good morning We are making some progress with the schedule .. 

Please read email below from Metra Engineering Please have a village representative attend on the 27th 

Also, could you please forward this to the representatives of the sweetener company that have attended past 
meetings regarding this project I think it would be beneficial to have them attend if there are any questions 
about their rail operations 

8/1812008 



Page 2 of2 

As we do with every project, Metra is requesting that any village permit fees be waived for this project. Please let 
me know before the meeting if the village will approve this request Do you need a formalletler request or is this 
email sufficient? 

Thanks, 
Demetri 

- Original Message -
From: Manny Quilatan 
To: kevin harden; Harder Kevin; patricia casler; donato brescia ; Lindsey, Rose M 
Cc: joseph lorenzini ; Aziz Tokh ; demetri skoufis ; glenn peters; James Wilhelms 
Sent: Thursday, August 14, 2008 8:22 AM 
SUbject: Congress Park station 

To Everybody: 

Congress Park station was set for the pre-bid meeting on 
Wednesday, August 27, 2008 at 2:00 pm at the site (Congress Park station). 
Below is the schedule. 

It wiJI go out to adds: Tuesday, August 19, 2008 
Pre-bid: Wednesday, August 27, 2008 - Time: 2:00 pm. 
Cut off for Q & A: Tuesday, September 2, 2008 
Bid Opng: Friday, September 12,2008 - Time: 2:00 pm. 

If you have any questions, please contact me at extension 6625. 

Thank you. 

Manny Quilatan, Project Manager 
Stations & Parking Design 
Division of Engineering 
Metra - Metropolitan Rail 

8118/2008 



Berwyn Public Library 
2701 S. Harlem Avenue 

Be~,Il,60402 

(708) 795-8000 Fax (708) 795-8101 

August 19, 2008 

Re: Library Appointments 

Honorable Mayor Michael A O'Connor 
Berwyn City Council 
City of Berwyn 
6700 W. 2601 Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

Dear Mayor O'Connor and Members of the Berwyn City Council: 

Please approve replacement of three staff members who've recently resigned. Attached 
are job descriptions for two Pages (16 hours and 13 hours) and one full-time Library 
Assistant It 

Witll recent layoffs and the loss of 247 work hours, library services to the Berwyn 
community will have to be reduced. To prevent further curtailment of hours and 
progranID1ing these positions are essentiaL During these difficult economic times 
residents are turning in increasing numbers to the library for career resources, educational 
materials, recreational and progranID1ing opportunities. With gas prices patrons are 
staying closer to home and finding local outlets for personal time activities at the library. 
Our circulation numbers continues to increase, progranl attendance up and usage of 
computers is heavy throughout the day. The library is also a warming and cooling center. 

The Board approved these replacements at the August meeting. We request that you 
concur with their recommendation. 

Respectfully, 

Bill Hensley, Director, for the Board of the Berwyn Public Library 



REFERENCE PAGE 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CLASS SPECIFICATION 

DISTINGUISHING FEATURES OF WORK: 

Under the Head of Reference, shelves materials, straightens and maintains stacks. 

ILLUSTRATIVE EXAMPLES OF WORK: 

1. Shelves library materials in the correct order; shifts materials as needed; reads 
shelves; straightens shelves. 

2. Straightens tables and chairs; shelves materials that are lying on tables; maintains 
the neat and orderly appearance of the library. 

3. Performs other duties as assigned. 

EDUCATION: 

Minimum requirement completion of at least 2 years of high SchooL 

EXPERIENCE: 

Requires elementary knowledge of library functions and procedures .. 



YOUTH SERVICES PAGE 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CLASS SPECIFICATION 

DISTINGUISHING FEATURES OF WORK: 

Position is under the direction of the Youth Services Reference Librarian, sorting and 
shelving library materials. 

ILLUSTRATIVE EXAMPLES OF WORK: 

I. Shelves books, periodicals, audio-visual, realia and other materials in the correct 
order. 

2. Shifts materials as needed. 
3. Completes assigned shelf~reading. 
4. Straightens tables and chairs. 
5. Shelves books that are lying on tables and shelves. 
6. Maintains the neat and orderly appearance of the library, especially in the Primary 

Room. 
7. Performs other duties as assigned. 

EDUCATION: 

High school student, or older. 

EXPERIENCE: 

None required .. Training will be provided. 



CITY OF BERWYN 
CLASS SPECIFICATION 

AUDIO VISUAL LIBRARY ASSISTANT II 

DISTINGUISHING FEATURES OF WORK: 

Under the general supervision of Department head or appointee, perform a variety of 
duties at assigned department's public service desk 

ILLUSTRATIVE EXAMPLES OF WORK: 

1. Assist patrons in accordance with specialty of department. 

2. Supervises the Pages; trains them on shelving procedures; periodically checks 
their shelving for accuracy. 

3. Processes various media and enters it on automated library computer system. 

4. Opens and closes the department, including turning on/off lights, turning on/off 
computers, counting daily fine money, filling photocopier with paper, printing 
daily hold list and pulling items to send for loar1s. 

5. Maintains count of all items added, deleted and re-cataloged in collection. 

6. Deletes items being removed fbm the collection. 

7. Performs basic maintenance of patron records by adding fines, fees, other charges 
and notes. 

8. Performs various duties related to the automated database system including title 
searches, checking in and out items, and clearing fines. 

9. Provides assistance at the Computer Services desk as needed. 

10. Shelves material as needed. 

11. Performs other duties as assigned. 

EDUCATION: 

Requires knowledge, skill and mental development equivalent to the completion of four 
years of high school, a high school diploma is preferred. Some college preferred. 



EXPERIENCE: 

Requires one year of library work experience. 
Requires some supervisory experience. 
Requires elementary knowledge of library functions and procedures. 
Computer experience desired. 



mn·y;y'\,:~",", ... r OF BERWYN ILLINOIS Building A New Benuylt 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 
6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 • 'Telephone: (708) 788·2660 • Fax: (708) 788·2567 

www.berwyn·il.gov 

August 20, 2008 

To: Mayor Michael O'Connor, & City Council Members 

From: Patrick Ryan, Public Works Director 

Re: Costs for Contractual Trimming of "Trim-List" Trees 

Approximately 350 trees remain on the current trim list and 110 on the removal list at Public 
Works. Public Works crews are able to trim about 10 trees per week and less if there are 
large removals scheduled. The department is receiving requests for trimming an additional 25 
trees per week. 

Current contract prices average $92 per tree for trimming and $2,500 for removal. 

This equates to a lists that will continue to grow each week by 10 trees.. Current staffing is 
insufficient to complete all trim and removal requests within the year. 

Extending contractual trimming and removal services by $78,000 would allow the city to 
complete all trees on the trim list and address any future low-level wind storm. State of 
Illinois rules prevent the City from extending an existing contract by more than 25% of the 
original bid. Therefore, it would be necessary to extend the current contact with Landscape 
Concepts by $28,750 and also bid out another contract for the remainder. 

Recommended Actions 

Staff recommends the City Council approve an extension of the current contact for tree 
trimming and removal with Landscape Concepts by $28,750 and also bid out another 
contract for the remainder. 



Section Ko 

Consent Agenda 



August 22, 2008 

Re: Payroll 

Council Members: 

ALDERMAN MARK WEINER 
3132 Wenonah 

Berwyn, Illinois 60402 
MarkWeinerl@Hotmail.Com 

708-484·7512 

The CUITent payroll has been prepared for review by the Finance Department and for approval at 
the August 26, 2008 Council meeting. 

Payroll August 20, 2008 is $946,945.53 

Very truly yours, 

r -

Mruk Weiner, BJ~ri1mittee Chairman 



\ 
, 

\ 

August 22, 2008 

Re: Payables 

Council Members: 

ALDERMAN MARK WEINER 
3132 Wenonah 

Berwyn, Illinois 60402 
MarkWeinerl@Hotmail.Com 

708-484-7512 

The current payabJes have been prepared for review by the Finance Department and are ready for 
approval at the August 26, 2008 Council meeting. 

PayabJes: $1,067,534.22 

Very truly yours, 

I /,_~ ... __ 
Mark Weiner, Budget Committee Chairman 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK # 

01 338699 

01 338585 

01 338578 

01 338579 

01 338591 

01 338708 

01 338526 

01 338564 

01 338532 

01 338731 

01 338528 

01 338523 

01 338648 

01 338700 

GENERATED: 20 HAR OS 16:33 RUN: THURSDAY AUG21200B 13:51 

CHECK AMT 

AHOUNT 

$830.00 
830.00 

$48.68 
48.68 

$7692.00 
7692.00 

$16520.34 
16520.34 

$190.75 
190.75 

$11510.00 
11510.00 

$5841. 00 
1053.00 

263.00 
263.00 
918.00 

3344.00 

$910.00 
910.00 

$1500.00 
1500.00 

$80.00 
80.00 

$362.00 
333.00 

29.00 

$5412.04 
93.36 
27.75 

5290.93 

$5659.67 
280.0B 

5379.59 

$1317.31 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 08/19/08 - 08/21/08 

CHECK DATE VENnOR # 

G/L ACCT ff: 

08/21/08 01569 
11-5-08-5335 

08/20/08 00736 
23-5-00-5215 

08/20/08 00504 
11-2-00-2256 

08/20/08 00504 
11-5-25-6011 

08/20/08 00908 
11-5-21-5500 

08/21/08 01861 
55-5-55-8120 

08/19/08 00076 
11-5-11-5500 
32-5-00-5300 
15-5-00-5500 
11-5-23-5300 
11-5-08-5300 

08/20/08 00076 
80-5-00-5500 

08/19/08 00445 
15-5-00-5215 

08/21/08 20559 
11-4-00-4218 

08/19/08 00198 
11-5-14-5245 
11-5-01-5210 

08/19{08 00055 
11-5-07-5310 
15-5-00-5300 
11-5-06-5310 

08/21/08 00055 
11-5-08-5310 
11-5-08-5310 

OS/21{08 01586 

ADDRS fl VENDOR NAME 

DESCRIPTION 

a A-AMERICAN VETERINARY HOSPITAL 
A 

INVOICE # 

a ABRAHAM LINCOLN PRESIDENTIAL LIBRARY 
A 

o AETNA-U.S.HEALTHCARE 
A 

o AETNA-U.S.HEALTHCARE 
A 

o AIRGAS NORTH CENTRAL 
A 

o ALFRED BENESCH & COMPANY 
A 

o ALPHA BUILDING MAINTENANCE SERIVCE INC. 
BD 
CDBG 
COMM RELAT 
REC 
PD 

o ALPHA BUILDING HAINTENANCE SERIVCE INC. 
A 

o AMERICAN VIDEO SERVICES-SOUND NEMORIES 
A 

o ANTHONY GIANNINI 
A 

o ART FLO SHIRT AND LETTERING 
CENTENNIAL 
MAYOR 

o AT & T 
A 
A 
A 

o AT & T 
A 
A 

o AT&T 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

3 



REPORT; CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK ff: 

Ol 338524 

Ol 338615 

Ol 338581 

Ol 338562 

Ol 338653 

Ol 338559 

Ol 338695 

Ol 338590 

Ol 338687 

Ol 338705 

Ol 338628 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16;33 RUN: THURSDAY AUG212008 13:51 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 08/19/08 - 08/21/08 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR ff ADDRS ff VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT ff: DESCRIPTION INVOICE ff 

1317.31 11-5-16-5210 A 

$384.39 08/19/08 00063 0 AT&T LONG DISTANCE 
26.90 32-5-00-5310 CnBG 
30.75 11-5-23-5310 REC 
11.53 11-5-20-5310 PW 
19.21 11-5-07-5310 FD 

130.72 11-5-06-5310 CITY 
130.69 11-5-08-5310 PD 

34.59 23-5-00-5310 LIB 

$986.87 08/20/08 01838 0 BAKER & TAYLOR ENTERTAINMENT 
746.97 23-5-00-5220 A 
239.90 23-5-00-5220 A 

$716.14 08/20/08 00531 0 BAKER & TAYLOR,INC. 
689.81 23-5-00-5210 BOOKS 

26.33 23-5-00-5220 LIB 

$1152.70 08/20/08 00013 0 BARGE TERMINAL & TRUCKING 
1152.70 80-5-00-5300 A 

$4500.00 08/21/08 00078 0 BERWYN DEVELOPMENT CORP 
1125.00 56-5-56-8100 CER TIP 
1125.00 55-5-55-8120 SO BER TIF 
1125.00 57-5-57-8130 RR TIF 
1125.00 58-5-58-8110 OGDEN TIP 

$1000.00 08/19/08 35679 0 BERWYN EXPLORER POST ff 94 
1000.00 15-5-00-5225 A 

$1247.50 08/2l/08 01300 0 BLACK HILLS ~wruNITION 
1247.50 11-5-08-5335 A 

$1364.00 08/20/08 00888 0 BOB 1 S LAWN CARE 
437.00 15-5-00-5500 A 
290.00 15-5-00-5500 A 
447.00 23-5-00-5500 A 
190.00 15-5-00-5500 A 

$890.00 08/21/08 00888 0 BOB'S LAWN CARE 
890.00 11-5-08-5500 A 

$228.66 08/21/08 01788 0 BOUND TREE MEDICAL,LLC 
228.66 11-5-07-5300 A 

$39.40 08/20/08 20533 0 BRUCE M.BIALY 
39.40 80-4-00-4305 A 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

4 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK ff: 

01 338728 

01 338602 

01 338721 

01 338594 

01 338706 

01 338663 

01 338556 

01 338593 

01 338689 

01 338521 

01 338658 

01 338600 

01 338534 

01 338739 

GENERATED: 20 r.1AR 05 16: 33 RUN: THURSDAY AUG212008 13:51 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 08/19/08 - 08/21/08 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR ff: ADDRS it VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT ff: DESCRIPTION INVOICE it 

$30.00 08/21/08 20556 0 BRUCE RHOADES 
30.00 11-4-00-4218 a 

$231.00 08/20/08 01256 0 BUSY-BEE BOARD-UP & EMERGENCY SERVICE ,INC. 
231.00 11-5-11-5500 A 

$15.00 08/21/08 20549 0 CAROL RISTOW 
15.00 11-4-00-4218 A 

$300.10 08/20/08 00996 0 CASE LOTS INC 
300.10 23-5-00-5335 A 

$251.52 08/21/08 01800 0 CDW GOVERNMENT. INC. 
251.52 11-5-16-5215 A 

$22.52 08/21/08 00236 0 CHICAGO OFFICE TECHNOLOGY GROUP 
22.52 11-5-08-5505 A 

$1475.00 08/19/08 20529 0 CHRISTINE EDISON 
1475.00 11-2-00-2400 A 

$68.50 08/20/08 00976 0 CINTAS it 769 
68.50 23-5-00-5335 A 

$1194.15 08i21/08 00976 0 CINTAS it 769 
876.60 11-5-07-5500 A 
105.85 11-5-11-5500 A 
105.85 11-5-11-5500 A 
105.85 11-5-11-5500 A 

$363517.44 08/19/08 00005 0 CITY OF CHICAGO 
363517.44 80-5-00-5200 A 

$6204.00 08/21/08 00121 0 CLARKE MOSQUITO CONTROL 
6204.00 11-5-20-5300 A 

$4604.82 08/20/08 01140 0 CLASSIC PARTY RENTALS 
4604.82 15-5-00-5215 A 

$812.00 08/19/08 01153 0 CLEARCHANNEL OUTDOOR 
203.00 56-5-56-8100 CER TIP 
203.00 58-5-58-8110 OGDEN TIP 
203.00 55-5-55-8120 S BERWYN TIF 
203.00 57-5-57-8130 RR TIFD 

$600.00 08/21/08 20567 0 CLEM GRECO 
600.00 11-4-00-4340 A 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

5 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

BJ\NK CHECK tt 

01 338613 

01 338599 

01 338522 

01 338560 

01 338691 

01 338575 

01 338563 

01 33S529 

01 33S743 

01 33S538 

01 33S576 

01 338673 

01 338572 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16:33 RUN: THURSDAY AUG21200S 13:51 

CITY OF BERYlYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 08/19/08 - OS/21/0S 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS It VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT tt DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

$115.89 OS/20/08 01659 0 CNA SURETY 
115.89 23-5-00-5260 A 

$2452.63 08/20/08 01135 0 CNH CAPITAL AMERICA LLC 
2452.63 11-5-29-5705 A 

$361.31 08/19/08 00009 0 COr.lM ED 
178.56 11-5-11-5300 A 
182.75 79-5-00-5320 A 

$6982.15 08/20/0s 00009 0 CQII'1M ED 
6982.15 79-5-00-5520 A 

$439.15 08/21/08 01080 0 COMMUNICATIONS REVOLVING FUND 
439.15 11-5-08-5310 A 

$75.00 08/20/08 00412 0 CON GLOBAL INDUSTRIES,INC. 
75.00 40-5-00-5609 A 

$10.00 OS/20/08 00062 0 COOK COUNTY CLERK-DAVID ORR 
10.00 11-5-08-5335 A 

$2700.00 08/19/0S 00271 0 CORE BUSINESS TECHNOLOGIES 
2700.00 11-5-16-5230 A 

$264.00 08/21/08 32381 0 DEBBIE HUTCHENS 
264.00 11-4-00-4340 A 

$7617.79 OS/19/08 01344 0 DELAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL SERVICES 
791.37 11-5-01-5505 MO 
626.27 11-5-02-5505 CC 
732.75 11-5-06-5505 PIN 
626.27 11-5-07-5505 PD 

2083.02 11-5-08-5505 PD 
626.27 11-5-11-5505 BD 
821.67 11-5-23-5505 REC 
683.90 32-5-00-5505 CDBG 
626.27 80-5-00-5510 PW 

$4589.00 08/20/08 00438 0 DELL MARKETING L.P 
2332.00 11-5-16-5215 A 
2257.00 11-5-16-5215 A 

$200.00 OS/2I/08 00438 0 DELL MARKETING L.P, 
200.00 11-5-16-5215 A 

$67.84 08/20/08 00388 0 DEMCO EDUCATIONAL CORP 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

6 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK -It 

01 33B642 

01 338681 

01 338570 

01 338694 

01 338548 

01 33B652 

01 33869B 

01 338724 

01 338587 

01 338676 

01 338541 

01 338631 

01 338704 

01 338558 

01 336601 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16:33 RUN: THURSDAY AUG21200B 13:51 

CITY OF BERNYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 08/19/0B - OB/21/08 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR fl ADDRS n VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT It DESCRIPTION INVOICE n 

67.84 23-5-00-5335 A 

$400.00 OS/20108 32620 0 DONORS FORml OF CHICAGO 
400.00 23-5-00-5210 A 

$14.00 08/21/08 00534 0 EAGLE ENGRAVING 
14.00 11-5-07-5300 A 

$14.27 OB/20/0B 00194 0 EBSCO SUBSCRIPTION SERVICE 
14.27 23-5-00-5215 A 

$641.44 08/21/08 01230 0 ECOLAB 
641.44 11-5-07-5300 A 

$200.00 08/19/08 20367 0 EMERSON SCHOOL PTA 
200.00 11-5-14-5245 A 

$92.00 08/21/08 00075 0 EMPIRE COOLER SERVICE,INC. 
92.00 11-5-23-5300 A 

$767.75 08/21/0B 01537 0 EPPIS CUSTOM HEATING & AIR 
767.75 11-5-07-5500 A 

$15.00 08/21/0B 20552 0 ERIC ALOROR 
15.00 11-4-00-4218 A 

$353.60 08/20/08 00808 0 FAN FAIR FOTO 
353.60 15-5-00-5215 A 

$127.24 08/21/08 00459 0 FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION 
127.24 11-5-08-5335 A 

$290.00 OB/19/0B 01549 0 FEDERAL RENT-A-FENCE,INC. 
290.00 56-5-56-8100 A 

$500.00 OB/20/0B 20536 0 FELICIA FLOWERS 
500.00 11-4-00-4405 A 

$1710.00 08/21/08 01760 0 FLASH ELECTRIC CO. 
1710.00 11-5-11-5210 A 

$63.5B OS/19/08 33503 0 FRANK PADUCH 
63.58 32-5-00-5300 A 

$191. 72 08/20/08 01246 0 GABRIEL SALES 
107.78 11-5-20-5500 POl 

83.94 11-5-20-5200 STREETS 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

7 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK it 

01 338614 

01 338716 

01 338712 

01 338746 

01 338539 

01 338540 

01 338637 

01 338664 

01 338735 

01 338674 

01 338561 

01 33B747 

01 33B622 

01 338635 

01 338531 

01 338604 

GENERATED: 20 MAR OS 16:33 RUN: THURSDAY AUG212008 13:51 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 08/19/08 - 08/21/08 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR it ADDRS it VENDOR NAME 

AHOUNT G/L ACCT it DESCRIPTION INVOICE U 

$441. 65 08/20/08 01786 0 GALE 
441.65 23-5-00-5210 a 

$15.00 08/21/08 20544 0 GEORGE WINTERNHEIMER 
15.00 11-4-00-4218 A 

$385.00 08/21/08 20540 0 GEORGES! S WHOLESALE HEATS 
385.00 11-5-08-5300 A 

$550.00 08/21/08 33166 0 GINA ROLEK 
550.00 11-4-00-4340 A 

$15000.00 08/19/08 01435 0 GOLDSTINE,SKRODZKI,RUSSIAN,NEMEC & HOFF,LTD. 
15000.00 11-5-05-5400 A 

$11819.00 08/19/08 01435 0 GOLDSTINE,SKRODZKI,RUSSIAN,NEMEC & HOFF,LTD. 
3770.00 80-5-00-5405 HATER 
8049.00 11-5-05-5400 LEGAL 

$17.10 08/20/08 31117 0 GRAINGER 
17.10 23-5-00-5335 A 

$150.00 08/21/08 00241 0 GRANT IMPORTING & DISTRIBUTING CO. ,INC. 
150.00 11-5-23-5215 A 

$4150.00 08/21/08 20563 0 GREEN GARDENS SERVICES.LLC 
4150.00 15-5-00-5500 A 

$840.00 OB/21/0B 00452 0 HALOGEN SUPPLY CO INC 
840.00 11-5-23-5500 A 

$1822.00 08/20/08 00012 0 HD SUPPLY vlATERHORKS, LTD 
1822.00 BO-5-00-5300 A 

$lB7.70 08/21/0B 33243 0 HOUSE OF DOORS,INC. 
187.70 11-5-23-5500 A 

$27.95 OB/20/0B 20487 0 ILLINOIS BRICK CO. 
27.95 23-5-00-5335 A 

$110.00 OB/20/08 30390 0 ILLINOIS LIBRARY ASSOCIATION 
110.00 23-5-00-5230 A 

$20.00 OB/19/08 00344 0 ILLINOIs fvtuNICIPAL LEAGUE 
20.00 11-5-12-5210 A 

$959.15 OS/20/08 01366 0 ILLINOIS PAPER & COPIER CO. 
959.15 23-5-00-5500 A 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

8 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK it 

01 338574 

01 338552 

01 338639 

01 338632 

01 338722 

01 338569 

01 338565 

01 338659 

01 338543 

01 338719 

01 338741 

01 338626 

01 338525 

01 338650 

01 338547 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16:33 RUN: THURSDAY AUG21200S 13:51 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 08/19/08 - OS/21/0S 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR it ADDRS it VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE it 

$1591.31 OS/20/0S 00398 0 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES 
1591.31 23-5-00-5210 A 

$589.S4 OS/19/08 20525 0 INTERMEDIA GRAPHICS 
147.46 56-5-56-8100 CER TIP 
147.46 58-5-5S-8110 OGDEN TIP 
147.46 55-5-55-8120 S BERi'TYN TIP 
147.46 57-5-57-8130 RR TIP 

$351. 85 08/20/08 31638 0 INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM OF CENTRAL CHGO. 
351.85 11-5-20-5200 A 

$25.00 08/20/08 20537 0 ITLIA MENEGUZZI 
25.00 11-4-00-4415 A 

$30.00 08/21/08 20550 0 J.SHAH 
30.00 11-4-00-4218 A 

$165.00 08/20/08 00188 0 JACK PHELAN CHEVROLET 
165.00 11-5-07-5500 A 

$613.53 08/20/08 00162 0 JACK'S RENTAL INC 
509.87 11-5-21-5500 FORESTRY 
103.66 11-5-20-5300 STREETS 

$25.9.99 08/21/08 00162 0 JACK! S RENTAL INC 
259.99 11-5-23-5500 A 

$13332.75 08/19/08 01618 0 JAMES DUNCAN & ASSOCIATES,INC. 
13332.75 57-5-57-8130 A 

$15.00 08/21/08 20547 0 JAMES JIMENEZ 
15.00 11-4-00-4218 A 

$550.00 08/21/08 20569 0 JENNY DRANKIE 
550.00 11-4-00-4340 A 

$1475.00 08/20/08 20531 0 JESUS SANDOVAL 
1475.00 11-2-00-2400 A 

$55.95 08/19/08 00067 0 Jn-t FRANK 
55.95 11-5-16-5300 A 

$114.97 08/21/08 00067 0 Jnt FRANK 
114.97 11-5-16-5300 A 

$675.00 08/19/08 20096 0 JOE BARTOSZ 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

9 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK #; 

01 338714 

01 338641 

01 338537 

01 338555 

01 338625 

01 338589 

01 338640 

01 338623 

01 338709 

01 338606 

01 338597 

01 338656 

01 338584 

01 338662 

01 338670 

GENERATED: 20 r-1AR 05 16: 33 RUN: THURSDAY AUG212008 13:51 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 08/19/08 - 08/21/08 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR #; ADDRS #; VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE It 

675.00 15-5-00-5300 A 

$85.00 08/21/08 20542 0 JOHN & ANGIE KOWALSKI 
85.00 11-4-00-4218 A 

$2950.00 08/20/08 32605 0 JOSEPH J. PAV 
1475.00 11-2-00-2400 A 
1475.00 11-2-00-2400 A 

$210.00 08/19/08 01273 0 JOSEPH M.CRISCIONE 
210.00 11-5-11-5210 A 

$1475.00 08/19/08 20528 0 JUAN & ANDREA CANTU 
1475.00 11-2-00-2400 A 

$1180.00 08/20/08 20530 0 JUAN SANCHEZ 
1180.00 11-4-00-4240 A 

$364.60 08/20/08 00880 0 JULIE, INC. 
364.60 80-5-00-5505 A 

$214.98 08/20/08 32052 0 JUST TIRES 
214.98 11-5-08-5500 A 

$300.00 08/20/08 20501 0 KAY McKEEN 
300.00 23-5-00-5240 A 

$331. 95 08/21/08 01933 0 KDD OF ILLINOIS,LTD. 
331.95 11-5-08-5500 A 

$2277.00 08/20/08 01460 0 KEY EQUIPTMENT FINANCE 
2277.00 23-5-00-5500 A 

$200.00 08/20/08 01081 0 KIEFT BROS, INC. 
200.00 80-5-00-5300 A 

$330.50 08/21/08 00098 0 L-K FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICE 
330.50 11-5-23-5500 A 

$130.00 08/20/08 00713 0 LACONI-RUTHANN SWANSON 
130.00 23-5-00-5230 A 

$1140.00 08/21/08 00224 0 LAIDLAW TRANS IT, INC. 
1140.00 11-5-23-5210 A 

$21018.50 08/21/08 00403 0 LANDSCAPING CONCEPTS MANAGEMENT 
21018.50 79-5-00-5405 A 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

10 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK tt 

01 338672 

01 338618 

01 338737 

01 338732 

01 338655 

01 338734 

01 338598 

01 338738 

01 338645 

01 338553 

01 338588 

01 338686 

01 338580 

01 338647 

01 338733 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16:33 RUN: THURSDAY AUG212008 13:51 

CITY OP BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 08/19/08 - 08/21/08 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR tl 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT it 

$535.90 
535.90 

$1515.00 
1515.00 

$125.00 
125.00 

$10.00 
10.00 

$35.00 
35.00 

$1475.00 
1475.00 

$325.00 
325.00 

$600.00 
600.00 

$16.95 
16.95 

$550.00 
137.50 
137.50 
137.50 
137.50 

$341.80 
341.80 

$833.20 
833.20 

$1.18 
1.18 

$9534.93 
9297.47 

237.46 

$1890.56 
1890.56 

08/21/08 00407 
11-5-08-5305 

OS/20/08 10005 
11-2-00-2251 

OB/21/08 20565 
11-4-00-4340 

08/21/08 20560 
11-4-00-4218 

08/21/08 00085 
11-5-08-5300 

OS/21/08 20562 
11-2-00-2400 

OS/20/08 01093 
11-5-04-5203 

08/21/08 20566 
11-4-00-4340 

08/20/08 33560 
23-5-00-5335 

08/19/08 20526 
56-5-56-8100 
58-5-58-8110 
55-5-55-8120 
57-5-57-8130 

08/20/08 00821 
11-5-11-5500 

08/21/08 00821 
11-5-08-5500 

08/20/08 00520 
23-5-00-5245 

08/21/08 00040 
23-5-00-5225 
23-5-00-5305 

08/21/08 20561 
11-5-14-5300 

AnDRS it VENDOR NAME 

DESCRIPTION 

o LITTLE VILLAGE PRINTING 
A 

o LOCAL 705 
A 

o LOUIS SCARDINA 
A 

o LUIS LOPEZ 
A 

INVOICE tl 

o MACNEAL OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH SERVICES 
A 

o MARCOS AL VARAnO 
A 

o MARK WEINER 
A 

o MATT SCHABOWSKI 
A 

o MENARD'S HODGKINS 
A 

o METRA 
CER TIP 
OGDEN TIP 
S BERW TIP 
RR TIP 

o HETRO GARAGE INC 
A 

o METRO GARAGE INC 
A 

o METROPOLITAN LIBRARY SYSTEM 
A 

o METROPOLITAN LIBRARY SYSTEM 
COM SUPPORT 
POSTAGE 

o METROPOLITAN MAYORS CAUCUS 
A 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

11 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK U 

01 338634 

01 338717 

01 338649 

01 338636 

01 338745 

01 338748 

01 338688 

01 338713 

01 338616 

01 338629 

01 338665 

01 338546 

01 338620 

01 338675 

01 338633 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16:33 RUN: THURSDAY AUG212008 13:51 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 08/19/08 - 08/21/08 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR fr ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT U DESCRIPTION INVOICE U 

$360.00 08/20/08 20539 0 METROPOLITAN PLANNING COUNCIL 
360.00 32-5-00-5300 A 

$15.00 08/21/08 20545 0 MICHAEL HRILJAC 
15.00 11-4-00-4218 A 

$621.44 08/21/08 00060 0 MIDWEST PROTECTION. INC. 
621. 44 11-5-08-5300 A 

$178.40 08/20/08 30520 0 MIDV1EST TAPE 
178.40 23-5-00-5220 A 

$600.00 OB/21/0B 33088 0 MIKE BECKER 
600.00 11-4-00-4340 A 

$264.00 08/21/08 33272 0 MONI QUE ABBATE 
264.00 11-4-00-4340 A 

$5718.42 OB/21/0B 00929 0 McDONOUGH MECHANICAL SERVICES,INC. 
4054.00 11-5-08-5500 A 
1664.42 11-5-08-5500 A 

$150.00 08/21/08 20541 0 McNEARY TREE CARE 
150.00 51-5-00-5626 A 

$340.88 OS/20/08 01928 0 NABIR 
114.71 23-5-00-5335 PROMO 

69.84 23-5-00-5250 SUPPLIES 
156.33 23-5-00-5250 A 

$B9.67 08/20/08 20534 0 NANCY LUDIHCK 
89.67 80-4-00-4305 A 

$589.75 08/21/08 00247 0 NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF TOrm WATCH 
589.75 11-5-08-5335 A 

$317.00 08/19/08 10014 0 NCPERS GROUP LIFE INS-UNIT U 3326 
317.00 11-2-00-2243 A 

$241.00 08/20/08 10014 0 NCPERS GROUP LIFE INS-UNIT U 3326 
241.00 11-2-00-2243 A 

$11076.60 08/21/08 00457 0 NEAL & LEROY,L.L.C. 
8901.60 56-5-56-8100 CT 
2175.00 55-5-55-8120 SO BERWYN TIF 

$500.00 08/20/08 20538 0 NESTOR GUTIERREZ 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

12 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK tt 

Ol 338677 

Ol 338571 

Ol 338667 

Ol 338736 

Ol 338611 

Ol 338701 

Ol 338710 

Ol 338711 

Ol 338542 

Ol 338577 

Ol 338545 

Ol 338533 

Ol 338644 

Ol 338661 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16:33 RUN: THURSDAY AUG212008 13:51 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: oa/19/08 - 08/21/08 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT GIL ACCT fl DESCRIPTION INVoICE # 

500.00 11-4-00-4415 A 

$1275.19 08/21/08 00473 0 NEW WORLD SYSTEMS 
1275.19 40-5-06-5700 A 

$53.82 08/20/08 00301 0 NEXTEL coMMUNICATIONS 
53.82 11-5-16-5300 A 

$677.57 08/21/08 00301 0 NEXTEL COMMUNICATIONS 
677.57 11-5-08-5310 A 

$600.00 08/Zl/08 20564 0 NICK SAKELLARIS 
600.00 11-4-00-4340 A 

$1849.48 08/20/08 01632 0 NICOR GAS 
753.95 80-5-00-5325 A 

1095.53 23-5-00-5325 A 

$1478.46 08/21/08 01632 0 NICOR GAS 
1478.46 11-5-08-5335 A 

$750.00 08/21/08 20405 0 NORTH BERWYN PARK DIST. 
750.00 15-5-00-5215 A 

$3165.00 08/21/08 20405 0 NORTH BERWYN PARK DIST. 
3165.00 15-5-00-5500 A 

$62500.00 08/19/08 01573 0 OAK PARK REGIONAL HOUSING CENTER 
62500.00 11-5-14-5220 A 

$12022.59 08/20/08 00458 0 OAK PARK RIVER FOREST INFANT WELFARE CLINIC 
12022.59 32-5-00-5235 A 

$80.00 08/19/08 01716 0 oceMED GROUP 
80.00 11-5-20-5300 A 

$26643.80 08/l9/08 01094 0 ODELSON & STERK,LTD. 
23013.80 11-5-05-5400 LEGAL 

701.25 55-5-55-8120 SO BERWYN TIF 
1072.50 56-5-56-8100 CERMAK 
1856.25 57-5-57-8130 RR TIF 

$80.58 08/20/08 33183 0 OFFICE DEPOT 
80.58 23-5-00-5335 A 

$270.18 08/21/08 00195 0 OFFICE EQUIPMENT SALES 
270.18 11-5-08-5335 A 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

13 



REPORT; CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK # 

01 33S715 

01 338726 

01 33S730 

01 338554 

01 338592 

01 338621 

01 338646 

01 338643 

01 338586 

01 338612 

01 338596 

01 33871S 

01 338723 

01 338751 

01 33S536 

01 338727 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16:33 RUN: THURSDAY AUG212008 13:51 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: OS/19/08 - 08/21/0S 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS IF VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT n DESCRIPTION INVoICE -# 

$15.00 OS/21/08 20543 0 OI-tAR ZAYYAD 
15.00 11-4-00-4218 A 

$100.00 OS/21/0S 20554 0 OSCAR TESORO 
100.00 11-4-00-4218 A 

$20.00 OS/21/08 20558 0 OSWALDO CASTRO 
20.00 11-4-00-4218 A 

$1475.00 08/19/08 20527 0 PATRICIO BRICENO 
1475.00 11-2-00-2400 A 

$2835.39 08/20/08 00913 0 PETAR DUMANOVIC,LLC 
2835.39 23-5-00-5500 A 

$600.00 08/20/08 20014 0 PETER STEINHAGEN 
600.00 32-5-00-5250 A 

$4119.00 08/21/08 00029 0 PITNEY BOWES 
4119.00 80-5-00-5650 A 

$1065.00 08/20/08 33113 0 PROQUEST 
1065.00 23-5-00-5210 A 

$2076.60 08/20/08 007S6 0 PRUDENTIAL INS CO. OF AMERICA 
2076.60 11-2-00-2241 A 

$341.00 08/20/0S 01647 0 RANDOM HOUSE,INC. 
341.00 23-5-00-5220 A 

$10000.00 08/20/08 01078 0 RESERVE ACCOUNT 
10000.00 80-5-00-5305 A 

$15.00 08/21/08 20546 0 RICARDO MORAGA 
15.00 11-4-00-4218 A 

$100.00 08/21/08 20551 0 RINO DINARDI 
100.00 11-4-00-4218 A 

$9545.11 OS/21/08 37657 0 ROBERT ANDREAS & SONS,INC. 
9545.11 40-5-23-5700 A 

$134.98 08/19/08 01240 0 ROBERT DWAN 
134.98 32-5-00-5300 A 

$75.00 08/21/08 20555 0 ROBERT HACHTMAN 
75.00 11-4-00-4218 A 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTAND ING 

14 



REPORT; CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK # 

01 338707 

01 33S60S 

01 33S744 

01 338725 

01 338530 

01 338666 

01 338607 

01 338729 

01 338566 

01 338535 

01 338657 

01 33S583 

01 33S654 

01 338544 

01 338610 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16:33 RUN: THURSDAY AUG212008 13:51 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: OS/19/08 - 08/21/08 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

$345.00 08/21/08 01810 0 ROBERT J.LOVERO 
345.00 11-5-04-5207 A 

$223750.00 08/20/08 01615 0 ROBERT YIU 
223750.00 40-5-00-5609 A 

$250.00 08/21/08 32578 0 ROBERTO HERNANDEZ 
250.00 11-4-00-4340 A 

$325.00 08/21/08 20553 0 ROPA RENTALS 
325.00 11-4-00-4218 A 

$276.99 08/19/08 00280 0 ROSCOE COMPANY 
116.32 15-5-00-5500 A 

97.75 11-5-11-5500 A 
62.92 15-5-00-5500 A 

$256.19 08/21/08 00280 0 ROSCOE COMPANY 
49.20 11-5-07-5500 A 
32.59 11-5-07-5500 A 

174.40 11-5-08-5500 A 

$195.00 OS/20/08 01572 0 ROTARY CLUB OF BERWYN 
195.00 11-5-01-5210 A 

$15.00 08/21/08 20557 0 RUBEN GONZALEZ 
15.00 11-4-00-4218 A 

$9211. 90 OS/20/0S 00164 0 S-P-D- INCORPORATED 
9211.90 80-5-00-5500 A 

$585.00 08/19/08 01236 0 SABER-TOOTH COMPUTING 
585.00 11-5-16-5400 A 

$39.90 08/21/0S 00101 0 SCHULTZ SUPPLY CO. INC. 
39.90 11-5-07-5300 A 

$8570.00 08/20/08 00608 0 SCOT DECAL COMPANY INC 
8570.00 11-5-06-5300 A 

$242.79 08/21/08 00082 0 SENSIT TECHNOLOGIES 
242.79 11-5-07-5500 A 

$455.00 08/19/08 01637 0 SEYFARTH SHAN LLP 
455.00 11-5-05-5400 A 

$57.76 08/20/08 01629 0 SHANE'S OFFICE SUPPLY CO. 
57.76 23-5-00-5335 A 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

15 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK if 

-----------

01 338742 

01 338638 

01 338680 

01 338595 

01 338605 

01 338671 

01 338690 

01 338609 

01 338692 

01 338573 

01 338669 

01 338702 

01 338617 

01 338696 

01 338684 

01 338550 

GENERATED: 20 HAR 05 16:33 RUN: THURSDAY AUG212008 13:51 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 08/19/08 - 08/21/08 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR if ADDRS if VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT n DESCRIPTION INVOICE tt 

$250.00 08/21/08 32023 0 SHANNON DICKINSON 
250.00 11-4-00-4340 A 

$150.00 08/20/08 31388 0 SIMMONS PEST CONTROL 
150.00 23-5-00-5500 A 

$793.80 08/21/08 00510 0 SPORTSFIELDS. INC. 
793.80 11-5-23-5500 A 

$96.05 08/20/08 01000 0 STANDARD EQUIPMENT CO 
96.05 11-5-20-5500 A 

$913.00 08/20/08 01454 0 SWANK HOTION PICTURE ~INC. 
913.00 23-5-00-5240 A 

$90.00 08/21/08 00404 0 SWF PRODUCTS 
90.00 15-5-00-5215 A 

$701.57 08/21/08 00989 0 T-MOBILE 
526.20 11-5-11-5300 BD 
175.37 15-5-00-5300 CO 

$237.54 08/20/08 01619 0 TANTOR MEDIA 
237.54 23-5-00-5220 A 

$78.54 08/21/08 01106 0 TARGET AUTO PARTS 
78.54 11-5-07-5300 A 

$35.96 OB/20/0B 00391 0 TELE-TRON ACE HARDWARE 
35.96 23-5-00-5335 A 

$76.94 08/21/08 00391 0 TELE-TRON ACE HARDWARE 
76.94 11-5-08-5335 A 

$426.07 08/21/08 01706 0 TEXOR PETROLEUM COMPANY 
426.07 11-5-08-5325 A 

$42.39 08/20/08 01929 0 THE AV CAFE 
42.39 23-5-00-5220 A 

$2678.00 08/21/08 01424 0 THE HEATING & COOLING WORKS 
2678.00 11-5-23-5500 A 

$15.00 08/21/08 00657 0 THE NATIONAL ARBOR DAY FOUNDATION 
15.00 11-5-01-5300 A 

$1650.00 08/19/08 20524 0 TIGER O! STYLES 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

16 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK # 

01 338551 

01 338549 

01 338749 

01 338603 

01 338682 

01 338679 

01 338703 

01 338619 

01 338567 

01 338693 

01 338685 

01 338678 

01 338740 

01 338720 

01 338557 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16;33 RUN: THURSDAY AUG212008 13:51 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 08/19/08 - 08/21/08 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR It ADDRS It VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT It DESCRIPTION INVOICE Ii 

1650.00 58-5-58-8110 A 

$7100.00 08/~9/08 20524 0 TIGER O'STYLES 
7100.00 58-5-58-8110 A 

$1475.00 08/19/08 20522 0 TONY AND EVONA NIEMYNSKI 
1475.00 11-2-00-2400 A 

$417.00 08/21/08 33963 0 TRACEY BORNHEIM 
417.00 11-4-00-4340 A 

$506.27 08/20/08 01364 0 TRYAD AUTOMOTIVE 
408.02 11-5-08-5500 PD 

23.55 80-5-00-5500 ,m 
74.70 11-5-20-5200 STREETS 

$9500.00 08/21/08 00597 0 UNITED CONTRACTING SERVICES,INC. 
9500.00 51-5-00-5626 A 

$8015.00 08/21/08 00506 0 UNITED FACILITY SERVICES,INC. 
8015.00 51-5-00-5626 A 

$10.63 08/21/08 01750 0 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 
10.63 11-5-08-5310 A 

$19.00 08/20/08 10006 0 UNITED WAY OF BERWYN 
19.00 11-2-00-2252 A 

$230.00 08/20/08 00165 0 UPSTART INC 
230.00 23-5-00-5250 A 

$189.60 08/21/08 01171 0 US GAS 
189.60 11-5-07-5300 A 

$991. 95 08/21/08 00767 0 VCG UNIFORM/CARLSON MURRAY 
991.95 11-5-07-5300 A 

$53.60 08/21/08 00480 0 VERIFICATIONS, INC. 
53.60 11-5-08-5335 A 

$450.00 08/21/08 20568 0 VICKI SICARAS 
450.00 11-4-00-4340 A 

$15.00 08/21/08 20548 0 VICTOR JURISEVIC 
15.00 11-4-00-4218 A 

$90.00 08/19/08 31968 0 VIOLET FLOWER SHOP 
90.00 11-5-01-5210 A 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

17 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16;33 RUN: THURSDAY AUG212008 13:51 

BANK CHECK if CHECK AMT 

AMOUNT 

01 338750 $24255.25 
24255.25 

01 338651 $397,71 
5.51 

96.46 
136.43 

32.81 
52.28 
74.22 

01 338668 $100.75 
40.50 
60.25 

01 338624 $36.00 
36.00 

01 338527 $260.00 
65.00 
65.00 
65.00 
65.00 

01 338568 $449.00 
449.00 

01 338660 $3619.79 
3619.79 

01 338582 $15.00 
15.00 

01 338683 $735.00 
735.00 

01 338630 $107.09 
107.09 

01 338697 $3317.95 
3317.95 

01 338627 $39.68 
39.68 

TOTAL H OF ISSUED CHECKS, 

CITY OF BERNYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 08/19/08 - 08/21/08 

CHECK DATE VENDOR if ADORS n VENDOR NAME 

G/L ACCT if 

08/21/08 37369 
55-5-55-8120 

08/21/08 00069 
11-5-01-5300 
11-5-01-5300 
32-5-00-5300 
11-5-06-5300 
11-5-20-5300 
11-5-06-5300 

08/21/08 00377 
11-5-08-5335 
11-5-11-5300 

08/20/08 20523 
23-5-00-5215 

08/19/08 00180 
11-5-01-5210 
11-5-04-5202 
11-5-04-5204 
11-5-04-5201 

08/20/08 00175 
23-5-00-5210 

OS/21/08 00163 
11-5-20-5300 

OS/20/08 00598 
11-5-08-5500 

08/21/08 00598 
11-5-29-5702 

08/20/08 20535 
80-4-00-4305 

08/21/08 01446 
40-5-00-5609 

08/20/08 20532 
80-4-00-4305 

231 TOTAL AMOUNT: 

DESCRIPTION 

o 1'1ALKER PARKING CONSULTANTS 
A 

o WAREHOUSE DIRECT 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 

o NATER ONE 
A 
A 

o NEDNESDAY JOURNAL 
A 

o NEST CENTRAL MUNICIPAL CONFERE 
MAYOR 
RAMOS 
SKRYD 
CHAPMAN 

o NEST GROUP PAYMENT CTR. 
A 

o WESTERN REMAC INC. 
A 

o WIDAMAN SIGNS 
A 

o NIDAMAN SIGNS 
A 

o NILLIAM VAN BRIGGLE 
A 

o NOLD ARCHITECTS AND ENGINEERS 
A 

o YVON I'1ARTINEZ 
A 

1067534.22 

INVOICE It 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

18 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 20 MAR OS 16:33 RUN: THURSDAY AUG21200a 13:51 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 08/19/08 - 08/21/08 

BANK CHECK tt CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR fi ADDRS fi VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT GIL ACCT if- DESCRIPTION INVOICE if-

TOTAL # OF VOIDED/REISSUED CHECKS: o TOTAL AMOUNT: 0.00 

TOTAL tt OF ACH CHECKS: o TOTAL AMOUNT: 0.00 

TOTAL # OF UNISSUED CHECKS: 0 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

19 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

FUND TOTALS 

FUND 

all 
015 
023 
032 
040 
051 
055 
056 
057 
05B 
07. 
aBO 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16:33 

FUND NAME 

GENERAL FUND 
COMMUNITY OUTREACH FUND 
LIBRARY FUND 
CDBG PROJECT FUND 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
MISC GRANT FUND 
SOUTH BERWYN CORRIDOR TIP FUND 
CERMAK TIP DISTRICT 
ROOSEVELT TIP FUND 
OGDEN AVE. TIF DISTRICT 
MOTOR FUEL TAX 
WATER AND SEWER 

TOTAL -

ISSUED TOTAL 

248,841.19 
17,850.78 
26.695.53 
14,291.38 

237,963.25 
17,665.00 
40,254.46 
11,877.06 
16,801.96 
10,362.96 
28,183.40 

396,747.25 

1,067,534.22 

RUN: THURSDAY AUG212008 13:51 

VOIDED/REISSUED TOTAL 

0.00 
0.00 
O. 00 
0.00 
0,00 
0.00 
0.00 
0,00 
0,00 
0.00 
0.00 
0,00 

0.00 

PAGE 20 



THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 
MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 

6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 • Telephone: (708) 788-2660 • fax: (708) 788-2567 
wwwberwyn-iLgov 

August 22, 2008 
Mayor Michael A. O'Connor 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 

SUBJECT: Handicap request #569 
7014 W. 34th Street 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 
First Ward Alderman 

lIM: (708) 484.Nona (6662) 
E-Mail: lstWard@Berwyn-IL.Gov 

I concur with the investigating officer's recommendation in the attached Handicap application to approve 
the request. 

Respectfully, 

Nona N. Chapman 
1 st Ward Alderman 



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

BERWYN 
rabU::E BEPARTMENT 

640\ West 31 st Street 
Berwyn. Illinois 60402-O7~ 

Phone (708) 79£;;-5600 I 

Fax (708) 795-5627 Emel11ency 9-1-1 

HONORABLE MAYOR MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR AND 
MEMBERS OF THE BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

BERWYN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
LOCAL ORINANCE DIVISION 

August 19, 2008 

• .J . 

RE: HANDICAPPED SIGN FOR: Shirley E K1emchuk # 569 

ATTACHED IS A COpy OF REQUEST FOR A HANDICAPPED SIGN TO Bj: 
ERECTED IN THE CITY OF BERWYN PARKWAY IN FRONT OF: 

7014 W. 34th Street 

PLEASE REVIEW THE ATTACHED PAPERWORK AND ADVISE. 

cc: ALD ERMAN _----"N:;:.o""na::......:::C,.,.h:=Ja p""m"",a",,-n_, 



CBerrvyn 
CPoCice c])epartment 

6401 West 31 n Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402~0733 

Phone (708) 795-5600 
(Fax) 795-5627 Emergency 9-1-1 

HANDICAPPED PARKING SIGN REQUEST & REPORT 

To: Mayor Michael O'Connor 
and Members of City Council 

Date: 08-19-2008 

From: 

Application #: 569 

Berwyn Police Department 
Local Ordinance DivisiAll 

~ 
~ 
G> 

'.r> 
Name of Applicant: Shirley E Klemchuk 

Address: 7014 W 34th Street Berwyn, IL 60402 

Telephone: -

Nature of Disability: '" 

Information YES NO Information YES NO 

Doctor's Note/Affidavit: IX] 0 Interviewed: ~ 0 

Owner's Support Letter: 0 ~ Handicap Plates: ~ 0 

Garage: ~ 0 Wheelchair: 

Driveway: 0 ~ Walker: 

Off Street: 0 ~ Cane: 

On Street: IX] 0 Oxygen: 

Meets Requirements: I2SJ 0 Report Number: 08-11432 

Recommendation: APPROVE I2SJ DENY 0 Reporting Officer: M, Schwanderlik #252 

Comments: 

Aldemlan: Ward: 



THE CITY OF BER'","YN, ILLINOIS 

CITY OF BERWYN - AFFIDAVIT FOR HANDICAP SIGN 

PLEASE PRINT 
I 'j- J./ 

'j I) J- v.---__ ..Jr. {k.Lr;>j Lt /V..£=;'i/)CHU~, 
(Name of Handicapped Person) 
0;:--" r . ",....-: 

~d I i!Lc----!r" !::: - r\LE'Y]CH V ((. ... 
(Name of Applicant) 

'~;-) , ,I I, }. '::."> (. TJ/JC:"'/ '!..Lri1 Vv' --.J<-'-'-' 
(Address of Handicapped Person) 

-/ 

(phone Number of Handicapped Persc·n) 

* * *'i:* *-k* "k*** i: * *'1:* '1:*:!' 'k';: **** 'k-): ****'1: 'k* ***-):*'1: * -}: 'k* *** 'k**',I:*-x * * '1: *» .. -), *"1: * * 'it'}: * *'k -ki:-): 'k ~I; **~': ~\"-J. *,~ 

I hereby affirm that the information provided is true and correct, and it shall be prohibited and 
unlawful for any person to file a sworn affidavit which said person lmows to be false or believes 
to be false. 

l"& ' .' L - fl \ 

'. A~.'-<-<-IG .' ','7"''''' C I~.z 
(Signature o[Jl\pplic'ant) (Date) 

PHYSICIANS STATEMENT 
PLEASE PRINT NATURE OF PATIENT'S HANDICAP 

! 

-.. 

I, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE PHYSICAL CONDITION OF THE ABOVE NAMED "HANDICAPPED 
PERSON" CONSTITUTES HIM/HER A HANDICAPPED PERSON AS DEFINED UNDER THE STA llITOf{Y 
PROV1SION PAR 1-\ 59 J (physically Handicapped Person - Every person who has permanently lost tie lISC of 
a leg or both Jegs or an arm or both arms or any combination thereof, or any person who is so severely di mbled as 
to be una~ to 1110ve without the aid of crutches or a wheelchair) 

/ } ~ 1 ,... 

(Print - Name oifP\l'Ysfcian)/ (Print - Address of Physician) 

/(Sii{nature of PhysicialJ1 
-
(Physicians Phone #) 

********************************************************************************* 
YOU MUST HAVE A HANDICAP STATE PLATE OR CARD TO PARK YOUR VEHICLE 
IN A HANDICAPPED PARKING SPACE. 



§ 
";' 

"' '" 

Berwyn Police Department - Incident Report 
(708) 795-5600 6401 West 31st Street Berwyn, IL 60402 

ST AllON COMPLAiNT UCR 1 DESCRIPTION INCIDENT " DDT /I 

9041 (Applicant File) Applicant File 08-11432 
WHEN REPORTED I LOCA nON OF OFFENSE (HDUSE NO~ STREET NAME) HOWRECSVED 

08/1912008 07:46 7014 W 34th S1 BERWYN, IL 60402 Telepbone 
TIME OF OCCURRENCE ! SlATUS CODE STATUS DATE 

081191200807:46 

:§ INVOLVED ENTITIES 

~ 

] 
NAME 

JOOB I AGE j ADDRESS 

KLEMCHUK, SHIRLEY E 7014 W 34th ST BERWYN, IL 60402 
SEX I RACE I HGT I w~~ I HAIR 1 EYES I PHON~ 
F 5' 5" 

UCR j TYPE ! REi.A TED EVENT , 

INVOLVED VEHICLES 

INVOLVEMENT 

COLOR 

Red 
I COMMENTS I YEAR / MAKE I MOOEl 

NARRATIVES 
PRIMARV NARRATIVE 

In Summary: 

Shirley E Klemchu1 .' resides at 7014 W 34th street Berwyn, ll- 60402. Shirley OWns the property 

along with ber husband. Shirley suffers from 

J. Mrs. Klemchuk currently use~ 

on how long sbe will be gone. 

when outside the residence depending 

No spoke with Shirley wbo advised Mrs. Klemchuk is requesting handicapped signs in front of her residence because 

sbe bas a difficult time maneuvering rrom the garage to the residence. Mrs Klemcbuk related that she does 

not currently drive due to the recent surgeries and that her husband bas a hard time assisting her into the residence from the 

garage. Mrs. Klemchuk related that it would be easier for her to gain entry to her residence from the front of the house due to 

it being more open and a shorter distance. 

No noted that the above listed address is a single family residence with a 2 car garage located in the rear of the property 

No also noted on street parking available at the time of this report. Mrs Klemcbuk advised that on street parking gets very 

limited in the area in the evening hours. 

Mrs. Klemchuk meets the state requirements for being bandicapped as well as meets the city requirements for 

bandicapped parking signs. This officer feels that this application sbould be approved at this time. 

Nothing further to report. 

1

5™' 
252 

I REVIEWER / STARI REPORTING OFFICER 

SCHWANDERLIK, MARK 



Michael A. O'Connor 
\ \ Mayor 

IV\ 
Santiago "Jim" Ramos 

Second Ward Alderman 
(708) 484-4275 

2ndWard@Berwyn-IL.Gov 

, 
A Century of Progress with Pride 

6700 West 26"' Strest Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 
www .. berwyn~il,gov 

Mayor MiI{e O'Connor 
City Council Members 
City Clerk 

Re: Handicap Request 

Dear Mayor and City Council Members, 

August 21, 2008 

I have tried to contact Mrs. Chavez regarding her request for a hartdicap 
sign. After two attempts and leaving her a note I have not had any response. 
Therefore I will support the AlO's recommendation to deny the request. 

Respectfully, 

---$~ 
Santiago "Jim" Ramos 
2nd Ward Alderman 



We S,:we and protect 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

BERWYN 
pableE BEP-ARTM.ENT 

6401 West 31 st Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402-07<13 

Phone (708) 79!S-5600 I 

i=a:x: (708) 795-5627 Emel'Qency 9-1-1 

HONORABLE MAYOR MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR AND 
MEMBERS OF THE BERWYN CITf COUNCIL 

BERWYN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
LOCAL ORINANCE DIVISION 

July 14, 2008 

HANDICAPPED SIGN FOR: Lina Chavez #562 

"'" = = = 
L. c:: 
r-

ATTACHED IS A COpy OF REQUEST FOR A HANDICAPPED SIGN TO BJ: 
ERECTED IN THE CITY OF BERWYN PARKWAY IN FRONT OF: 

3736 S. Lombard Avenue 

PLEASE REVIEW THE ATTACHED PAPERWORK AND ADVISE. 

cc: ALDERMAN --..:::J.:::.im:::.....:R.:;;:a:!!mo~s:::.-______ _ 



(Berwyn 
CRoCice CJ)epartment 

6401 West31J1 Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 6040Z-t1733 

Phone (708) 795·5600 
(Fax) 795·5627 Emergency 9·1-1 

HANDICAPPED PARKING SIGN REQUEST & REPORT 

To: Mayor Michael O'Connor 
and Members of City Council 

Date: 07-13-2008 

Name of Applicant: Lina Chavez 

From: 

Application #: 562 

Berwyn Police Department 
Local Ordinance Divisi~ 

<= 
C
C ,-

Address: 3736 S Lombard Ave Berwyn, IL 60402 

Telephone: 08-843-3739 

Nature of Disability: 

Informatioll YES NO Information YES NO 

Doctor's Note/Affidavit: Ig] 0 Interviewed: 0 Ig] 

Owner's Support Letter: 0 Ig] Handicap Plates: 0 Ig] 

Garage: Ig] 0 Wheelchair: 

Driveway: 0 Ig] Walker: 

Off Street: 0 Ig] Cane: 

On Street: Ig] 0 Oxygen: 

Meets Requirements: 0 [SJ Report Number: 08-09611 

Recommendation: APPROVE 0 DENY [SJ Reporting Officer: M Schwanderlik #252 

Comments: 

Alderman: Ward: 



THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 

CITY OF BERWYN - AFFIDAVIT FOR HANDICAP SIGN 

(Name of Hand!capped Person) 

.lAid ch40&-z.. 
(Name of Applicant) 

PLEASE PRINT 

~Z3/' 5. /...oP"b,44? <i. /lvE 
(Address of Handicapped Person) 

(phone Number of Handicapped Person) 

'.k*****·J:*·,\:·k***oJti:******'.\- . .t:**'1:***'k*<J:**************'J:*****i:·k**t.·o).·****'Jt*·k***·J:******'It·.o:**** 

l hereby affirm that the information provided is true and correct, and it shall be prohibited and 
unlawful for any person to file a sworn affidavit which said person knows to be false or believes 

to be falsLY . 

~/L_ dade !d4/ /3-;20D,9 
(SignatUl'e of Applicant) (Date) 

1.-*-.l:1.-**-.I;**-);-'1 .. *-):-I.'o),'*'1:1:**-1:*-):*1"·k**********-1 .. ,,,.*-J:-J,·1:·1:***'.I:*'1:****oJ:********oJ:*'1:*'I.·*******·}:<J:·J:**»..* 

PHYSICIANS STATEMENT 
PLEASE PRINT NATURE OF PATIENT'S HANDICAP 
/ 

'i 0: .: 0:' '-"I .. ! "1 .... '- -'-1 L..-! ( • 

i, HEREBY' CERnFY tH~;:r:::tH'EcpHYSICAL CONDITION ElF THE ABOVE NAMED "HANDICAPPED 
PERSON" CONSTITUTES HIM/HER A HANDICAPPED PERSON AS DEFINED UNDER THE STATUTORY 
PROVISION PAR, 1,159,1 (Physically Handicapped Person - Every person who has permanently lost the use of 
a leg or both legs or an arm or both anns or any combination thereof, or any person who is so severely disabled as 
to be unable to move without the aid of crutches or a wheelchair), 

(print - Name of Physician) (Print - Address of Physician) 

(Signature of Physician) 
\ • II r 

"(physicians Phone #) 

Regular State Plate # _______ _ Handicap State Card if/TA 40.4 
**·k'h*1:*·k******"Jt**'i:oJt*'i,·-,1.·**·k********~:**~:*******-k**'k***oJ:********·):"i:·)..·*****·}:·r.'1:*****-I:**** 

YOU MUST HAVE A HANDICAP STATE PLATE OR CARD TO PARK YOUR VEHICLE 
IN A HANDICAPPED PARKING SPACE. 



.... .... 
a': 
9' 
::g 

Berwyn Police Department - Incident Report 
(70S) 795-5600 6401 '''est 31st Street Berwyn, IL 60402 

STATION COMPLAlNT UCR I DESCRIf>T1DN INCIDENT #/ DOT' 

9041 (Applicant File) Applicant File 08-09611 
WHEN REPOR'TED ! lOCA.T10N OF OFFENSE (HOUSE NO .. STREET NAME) HOW RECEIVED 

071131200811:17 3736 S LOMBARD AV BERWYN,IL 60402 Radio 
TIME OF OCCURRENCE I SlAlUS CODE STATUS DAlE 

07/1312008 II: 17 (09) Administratively Closed 0711312008 

~ INVOLVED ENTITIES 

= 
~ .s 

NAME 100B I AGE J ADDRESS 

CHA VEl, LINA NMI 3736 S LOMBARD AV BERWYN,IL 60402 
SEX I RACE I HGT I WGT I HAIR lEY" I PHONE 

F 5* 511 Brown 
VCR I TYPE I REl..A TED EVENT 1# 

9041 (Applicant File) - 0 count(s) Other 

NARRATIVES 

PRIMARY NARRATIVE 

In Summary: 

Lina Chavez resides at 3736 S Lomabrd Ave Berwyn, IL 60402 .. Lina suffers 1 and recently 

recovered Lina submitted an application for handicapped parking signs to be placed in front of her 

residence located at the above listed address. Along with the application Lina supplied No with an expired temporary 

handicapped placard number issued to her .. (Exp 04/08) 

On 06-10-2008 No left a message on at the number supplied on the application ( advising Lina that she 

needed to renew her handicapped placard and bring a copy to the police department so her application could be processed. 

As of the date of this report Lina has not complied with the above request. 

On 07-10-2008 Alo attempted to contact Lina via TX with negative results - No left message with no return call. No 
went to the residence in an attempt to make contact with Lina also with negative reSUlts .. While at the residence No noted the 

following: 3736 S Lombard Ave is a single family residence. There are currently handicapped signs placed in front 00734 S 

Lombard Ave .. There is a 2 1/2 car garage on the property .. The vehicle listed on the application was parked directly in front 

of the residence with available on slreet parking in the area. 

On 07-13-2008 at 1115 hrs No went to 3738 S Lombard Ave in another attempt to make contact with Lina which was 

met with negative results. Again the vehicle listed on the application was parked directly in front of the residence and on slree 

parking was available in the area. 

Subject Lina does not meet the City requirements for handicapped signs (no valid handicapped placard or plates) and due 

to the above listed reasons No feels that this application should be denied at this time .. 

Nothing further to report at this time. 

SCHW ANDERLlK, MARK I 
STAR. 

252 
\ REVIEWER I STAR' REPORTING OFFICER 



Michael A. o'qtrmor 

~ 
A Century of Progress with Pride 

Mark Weiner 
Third Ward Alderman 

(708) 484-7512 
3rdward\al.Berwyn-i1.gov 

st 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788·2675 
www<,berwyn~U gov 

August 21,2008 

Honorable Mayor Michael A O'Connor and 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Handicap Request for 
Tom Powell 
6830 W 2601 Street 

Mayor and City Council Members: 

I concur with the recommendation of the investigating Officer to Approve the request 
and install the Handicap Signs at the above referenced residence. 

Very truly yours, 

Mark Weiner 



We S.erve ahd Protect 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

BERWYN 
Velbll:E BEPARTMENT 

64Dt west 31 st Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402-O7~ 

Phone (708) 79S-5600 I 

i=ax (708) 795-S62.7 Emel'Qency 9-1-1 

HONORABLE MAYOR MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR AND 
MEMBERS OF THE BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

BERWYN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
LOCAL ORINANCE DIVISION 

August 19, 2008 

HANDICAPPED SIGN FOR: Tom Powell #568 

"" = = = 
"'"' c 
G") 

ATTACHED IS A COpy OF REQUEST FOR A HANDICAPPED SIGN TO Bj: 
ERECTED IN THE CITY OF BERWYN PARKWAY IN FRONT OF: 

6830 W. 26th Street 

PLEASE REVIEW THE ATTACHED PAPERWORK AND ADVISE. 

cc: ALDERMAN Mark Weiner 
--~~~~~---------



CJ3erwya 
C20fice ®epartmertt 

6401 West 31'1 Street 
Benvyn, Illinois 60402-0733 

Phone (708) 795-5600 
(Fax)795-5627 Emergency 9-1-1 

HANDICAPPED PARKING SIGN REQUEST & REPORT 

To: Mayor Michael O'Cormor 
and Members of City Council 

Date: 08-19-2008 

Name of Applicant: Tom Powell 

From: Berwyn Police Department 
Local Ordinance Division 

Application #: 568 
"'" = = = 
:= 
c:: 
G') 

Address: 6830 W 26th Street Berwyn, IL 60402 

Telephone: 

Nature of Disability: 

Information YES 

Doctor's Note! Affidavit: IZl 

Owner's Support Letter: 0 

Garage: IZl 

Driveway: 0 

Off Street: IZl 

_-On Street: IZl 

Meets Requirements: ~ 

NO 

0 

IZl 

0 

IZl 

0 

0 

0 

Information YES 

Interviewed: 

Haodicap Plates: 

Wheelchair: 

Walker: 

Cane: 

Oxygen: 

Report Number: 08-11431 

NO 

o 
o 

Recommendation: APPROVE ~ DENY 0 Reporting Officer: M. Schwanderlik #252 

Comments: 

---:A::lderman:--- ---- - ------- - -- ---- -Ward~-- ---- --- -- ----- --- --------



~ ,., ... 
~ 
~ , 
'" '" 

Berwvn Police Denartment - Incident Renort 
(708) 795·5600 6401 West 31st Street Berwyn, IL 60402 

STATION COMPLAINT UCR ! DESCRIPTION INCIDENT t# I DOT it 

9041 (Applicant File) Applicant File 08·11431 
WHEN REPORTED I. LOCATION OF OFFENSE (HOUSE NO ..• STREET NAME) HOW RECEIVED 

08/19/200807:45 6830 W 26th ST BERWYN, IL 60402 Telephone 
11ME OF OCCURRENCE I STATUS CODE STATUS DATE 

08/191200807:45 

INVOLVED ENTITIES 
NAME I OOB rOE I ADDRESS 

POWELL, TOM 
SEX ! RACE I ~GT I WGT I HAIR I EYES I PHONE 

M Brown 
UCR I TYPE 

J RELATED EVENT tI 

Reporting Party 

INVOLVED VEHICLES 

VEHlPLATEtI I S;;'1E I TYPE 
INVOLVEMENT I ~N' 

CartyalVSUV ___ ' __ '_'A 

YEAR I MAKE 
1 ~ODE~ COLOR 1 COMMENTS 

2006 Gray 

NARRATIVES 

PRIMARY NARRATIVe 

In Summary: 

Tom Powell resides at 6830 W 26th Street Tom owns the above listed property. Mr Powell suffers 

from Tom id currently recovering from surgery where 1 

had a pace maker / defribillator hnplanted in his chest Mr. Powell does not cunently I 

. at this thne but relates that he has trouble walking short to moderate distances without loosing his breath. 

Ala spoke with Mr. Powell who is requesting the bandicapped signs in front oihis residence because parking is limited in 

the evening hours and he has difficulty walking from the garage in the rear of the residence .. Mr. Powell related that he 

currently can not drive due to the recent surgeries but when he is cleared by his doctor to drive he related it would be easier 

for hhn to park on the street in front of his residence due to it being a shorter distance. 

Ala noted that the above listed address is a single family residence with a 2 car garage and a car port next to the garage 

for off street parking. Ala further noted on street parking available at the thne of this report. Mr. Powells vehicle is currently 

parked in the car port area behind the residence with the garage being used to park his wife's vehicle 

Mr. Powell meets the state requirements for being handicapped and meets the city requirements for handicapped parking 

signs. This officer feels that this application should be approved at this thne. 

Nothing further to report. 

I 
STAR II 

252 
I REVIEvrr;:.R ! STARt: REPORTING OFFICER 

SCHwANDERLIX, MARK 



CITY OF BERWYN - AFFIDAVIT FOR HANDICAP SIGN 

PLEASE PRINT 

-rv I'M J!\ ~ Po w e ({ 
(Name of andicapped Person) 

to m m \/ Fo W ~ II 
(Address of Handicapped Person) 

(Name of Applicant) (phone Number of Handicapped Person) 

I hereby affirm that the information provided is true and correct, and it shall be prohibitEd and 
unlawful for any person to file a sworn affidavit which said person knows to be false or believes 
to be false. 

:1cfflfJo/J fjgcgd-f 7 -21/- O~ 
(Signature 6r Applicant) (Date) 

*****************************************k*************************************~* 

PHYSICIANS STATEMENT 
PLEASE PRINT NATURE OF PATIENT'S HANDICAP 

i ...... ~--~~~/r-----~'~-~"~'~-------~--~'~I 

Ii7 r :~ r.., I'l • _ \ 

I, HEREBY ~CER1WY TH/NiHfpHYSICAL CONDITIONOFTHE M'C\v'E NAMED "I-IANDICA~"'EI1 / 
PERSON" CONSTITUTES HIM/HER A HANDICAPPED PERSON AS DEFINED UNDER THE STA TUTORY 
PROVISION PAR 1-159 .. I (physically Handicapped Person - Every person who has permanently lost ti,c lise of 
a leg or both legs or an arm or both arms or any combination thereof, or any person who is s? severely disabled as 
to be unable to move without the aid of crutches or a wheelchair) 

/' . 

''" • - '1""" " 
(Print - N arne of Physician) 

*"X** * *** idd: * '* i: i: * * * * * ** * -k * -:: *1: -:: * * * oJ: oJ: *-:d: * 1.* * * i: *** * -}: 'of: * 'of: *.* 1:-1 .. ~': * ~~* oJ: * * 'b'o;* * * * # ~l: ,~, ~~ ~\- ~ 
Handicapped State Plate # Vehicle Tag # 335'0 Year 2.-002. -- Handicap State Card # & F 71 9{" g Regular State Plate # __ ~ __ ~,~ __ 

YOU MUST HAVE A HANDICAP STATE PLATE OR CARD TO PARK YOUR VEHICLE 
IN A HANDICAPPED PARKING SPACE. 

{ 



Michael . O'Connor Mark Weiner 

\ 
\ 
\ 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Third Ward Alderman 
(708) 484-7512 

3rdward@Berwyn-i1.gov 

o West 26~ Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788·2675 
www,berwynTil,gov 

August 21,2008 

Honorable Mayor Michael A. O'Connor and 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Handicap Request for 
Demetrios Mantis 
6943 W. 30th Place 

Mayor and City Council Members: 

I concur with the recommendation of the investigating Officer to Approve the request 
and install the Handicap Signs at the above referenced residence. 

Very truly yours, 

Mark Weiner 



We s~erve ahd protect 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

BER.WYN 
FSbU2E BEP-ARTMENT 

6401 West 31st Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402..()?~ 

Phone (70B) 799-5600 1 

i=ax (708) 795-5627 'Emel'Qency 9-1-1 

HONORABLE MAYOR MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR AND 
MEMBERS OF THE BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

BERWYN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
LOCAL ORINANCE DIVISION 

August 19, 2008 

HANDICAPPED SIGN FOR: Demetrios Mantis 

"" = = <= 

-.J . 

ATTACHED IS A COPY OF REQUEST FOR A HANDICAPPED SIGN TO Bt: 
ERECTED IN THE CITY OF BERWYN PARKWAY IN FRONT OF: 

6943 W. 30th Place 

PLEASE REVIEW THE ATTACHED PAPERWORK AND ADVISE. 

cc: ALDERMAN _....!M:::;a~r~k ..lW!£e=in~e~r ____ _ 



(j3erwyn 
CEofice CDepartment 

6401 West31J1 Street 
Bernyn, Illlnoi, 60402-0733 

Phone (708) 795-5600 
(Fax) 795-5627 Emergency 9-1-1 

HANDICAPPED PARKING SIGN REQUEST & REPORT 

To: Mayor Michael O'Connor 
and Members of City Council 

From: Berwyn Police Department 
Local Ordinance Division 

Date: 08-19-2008 Application #: 571 

Name of Applicant: Demetrios Mantis 

Address: 6943 W 30th Place Berwyn, IL 60402 

Telephone: 

Nature of Disability: 

Infonnation YES NO 

Doctor's Note/Affidavit: [gJ 0 

Owner's Support Letter: 0 !Zl 

Garage: [gJ 0 

Driveway: 0 !Zl 

Off Street: 0 !Zl 

On Street: !Zl 0 

Meets Requirements: !Xl 0 

, , 

Information YES 

Interviewed: 

Handicap Plates: 

Wheelchair: 

Walker: 

Cane: L 

Oxygen: 

Report Number: 08-11434 

NO 

o 
o 

Recommendation: APPROVE !Xl DENY 0 Reporting Officer: M. Schwanderlik #252 

Comments: 

Alderman: Ward: 



Berwyn Police Depaliment - Incident Report 
(708) 795-5600 6401 West 31st Street Berwyn, IL 60402 

STATION COMPLAINT UCR 1 DESCRIPTION INCIDENT ft.l DOT. 

9041 (Applicant File) Applicant File 08-11434 
WHEN REPORTED 1l.0CATION OF OFFENSE (HOUSE NO .. STREET NAME) HOW RECEIVED 

081191200807:51 6943 W 30th PL BERWYN,IL 60402 Telephone 
TIME OF OCCURRENCE I STATUS CODE STATUS DATE 

081191200807:51 

INVOLVED ENTITIES 
NAME 100B I ~eE I ADDRESS 

MANTIS, DEMETRJUS 6943 W 30th PL BERWYN,IL 60402 
SEX I RACE I HGT I weT I HAIR I EYES I PHONE 

M 5'811 

UCR I TYPE I RELA TEO EVENT # 

Reporting Party 

INVOLVED VEHICLES 

VEHJPLATE , 
1 S~TE 1 lYPE INVOLVEMENT I VIN#-

YEAR I MAKE .1 MODEL 
COLOR I COMMENTS 

2002 (unknown) 

NARRATtVES 
PRIMARY NARRATIve. 

In Summary: 

Demetrios Mantis resides at 6943 W 30th Place Berwyn, Il 60402. Mr. Mantis owns the above listed property. Mr. 

Mantis suffers from t. Mr Mantis currently uses a 

Ala spoke with Mr. Mantis who related that he wants handicapped signs placed in front of his residence because he has a 
hard time walking and on street parking is limited and various times of day and evening. Mr, Mantis related that the garage is 
used for storage and that the overhead garage door is in need of repair and unable to be used at this time. 

Ala noted that the above address is a single family residence with a two car garage in tbe rear of the property. Ala further 
noted on street parking available at the time of this report. 

Mr. Mantis meets the state requirements for being handicapped as well as meets the city requirements for handicapped 
signs. This officer feels that this application should be approved at this time. 

Nothing further to report 
REPORTING OFFICER 

SCHWANDERLlK, MARK I STAR I 

252 
I REVIEWER j STAR t 



THE CITY OF BER"\\TYN, ILLINOIS 

CITY OF BERWYN - AFFIDAVIT FOR HANDICAP SIGN 

PLEASE PRINT 

(Name of Handicapped Person) 

De me +('10 S t1 a 1'1 +, 5 
(Name of Applicant) 

G q q 3 W 30+~ f/4ce Berwri'/)_:~ GO,{02. 
(Address of Handicapped Person) 

(Phone Number of Handicapped Person) 

*****************************************k************************************i** 
I hereby aftirm that the information provided is true and correct, and it shall be prohibited :Jnd 
unlawful for any person to file a sworn aftidavH which said person knows to be false or believes 
to be false. 

"~~~vC:: 7-,f-J-(~nre of APP£' (D==-a-:t-:e):'--<-L..--<.L--------

PHYSICIANS STATEMENT 
PLEASE PRINT NATURE OF PATIENT'S HANDICAP 

I, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE PHYSICAL CONDITION OF THE ABOVE NAMED "HANDICAPPED 
PERSON" CONSTITUTES HIM/HER A HANDICAPPED PERSON AS DEFINED UNDER TI-lE STATUTORY 
PROVISION PAR 1-159 I (Physically Handicapped Person - Every person who haR permanently lost tl C lise of 
a leg or both legs or an arm Or both anns or any combination thereof, or any person who is 50 severely tJj-;abled as 
to be unable to move wi!hout the aid of crutches or a wheelchair). 

(Print= Na~e of P,h)Ysician) , 
I 1j • , I .~ C'~ 

(Print - Address of)Physician) 
-1- y- ........ 

..,. II -'" 

(Signature of Phy;ician) (Physicians Phon:e #) 

************************************************************************** 
Handicapped State Plate # Vehicle Tag #.53 '7 b Year'Z..c?O~ 00, 

Regular State Plate # _______ _ Handicap State Card #A F -=f!J-.L '1 0 

*************'k-),'***'k***********************************-Jf·k·k'1:**~:**·k'1 .. *-J:*'1:*~I:'I.·~l:·k**\""*·J:** 

YOU MUST HAVE A HANDICAP STATE PLATE OR CARD TO PARK YOUR VEHlCLE 
IN A HANDICAPPED P ARIGNG SP ACE, 



''..:. ,.-

Michele D. Skryd 
NOERMAN FOURTH WARD 

BERWYN, illINOIS 

August 22, 2008 

Hon Michael A O'Connor, Mayor 
Alderman of the Berwyn City Council 
6700 W 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

RE Handicap Sign for Richard Gilbert Sr #558 

Ladies and Gentlemen. 

I am at this time reversing my decision to deny this request The applicant has since 
submitted a valid handicapped placard from the State of Illinois which expires 2010 

Respectfully, 

CV\ ~ D. ~-"'(i>'\ 
Michele D Sklyd 
4th Ward Alderman 

6700 W. 26TH StREET, BERWYN, IlLINOIS 60402 • TEL: 708-788-6934. E-MAlL: 4THWARD@BER\VYN-IL.GOV 

,~., 



~F 71207 
i 



We Serve end ProrecT 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

BEi\VIYN 
VabU2\E BlEPAR,TlbtEMT 

6401 West 31st Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0733 

Phone (70B) 795-5600 
Fax (70B) 795-5627 Emergency 9-1-1 

1J ORiGiNAL 

HONORABLE MAYOR MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR AND 
MEMBERS OF THE BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

BERWYN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
LOCAL ORINANCE DIVISION 

May 15, 2008 

~ = = = 

RE: HANDICAPPED SIGN FOR: Richard Gilbert Sr- 11558 

ATTACHED IS A COpy OF REQUEST FOR A HANDICAPPED SIGN TO BE 
ERECTED IN THE CITY OF BERWYN PARKWAY IN FRONT OF: 

2812 S_ Highland Ave 

PLEASE REVIEW THE ATTACHED PAPERWORK AND ADVISE. 

cc: ALDERMAN Michele Skryd 



(jJerwya 
CJ!ofice (J)epartment 

O()RiG~NAl 
6401 West 31'1 Street 

Berwyn, Illinois 60402~0733 
Phon!! (70S) 795-5600 

(Fnx) 795·5621 Emergency 9-1~1 

HANDICAPPED PARIGNG SIGN REQUEST & REPOR~ 

To: Mayor Michael O'Colllor 
and Members of City Council 

Date: 05-15-2008 

~ 
From: Berwyn Police Department. 

Application #: 558 

Local Ordinance Division 011 
..", 

~ 

Name of Applicant: Richard Gilbert Sf 

Address: 2812 S Highland Ave Berwyn, IL 60402 

Telephone: 

Nature of Disability: 

Infomlation YES NO Infonnation YES NO 

Doctor's Note! Affidavit: 0 0 Interviewed: 0 0 
Owner's Support Letter: 0 0 Handicap Plates: 0 0 

Garage: 0 0 Wheelchair: 

Driveway: 0 0 Walker: 

Off Street: 0 0 Cane: 

On Street: 0 0 Oxygen: 

Meets Requirements: IX] 0 Report Number: 08-06565 

Recommendation: APPROVE 0 DENY IX] Reporting Officer: M. Schwanderlik #252 

Comments: 

Aldem18n: Ward: 



------- ---l Berwyn Police Department - Incident Report 
(708) 795~5GOO 6401 West 31st Street Bcnvyn.lL 60402 

sTATlml COMPLAINT UCR 

9041 (Appli,ontF=-:i"lc,-) ---r-:-._____==::-::"='="'-='''''''=:=-:'=:;pp'== --------1 08-06565 

--, 1-;;°H;;:~;;:",~rudl;;:~,n;;;nOpp;;;"-Cd-A'-""'I-'_'-'-II.O-.--------'''';;;'''"''';;;';;'JT;;';;';;oOO;;'o;'--- ----"---jl 
WHEniW>OnTaD I LO[;AT10NOFOFFS~SEIHOUSENO SmEETNAIAE)" HOWRECElVED 

051151200B 12:37 2812 S HIGHLAND AV BERWYN,IL.6:.;0;.:.40"'2'-_____ . ______ l-==c-c=-:-_________ _ 
_______ ~l6TATUS CODE t:oTATUS DATE I TIME OF OCCURRENCE 

05f151200B 12:37 

INVOLVED ENTITIEE_. __ '. ____ "";;;-_ 

NAME J_D_D. 
~G~IL~.B=ER~r~,.~ru2c~H~A~RD~---- ~~ __ L,~~2~B~12TS~H~I~G~H~LA~N~D~A~V~B~E~R\~WYN~,~J~L~60~4r.02~~. _______ -i 

se.:x I RACE HAIR EVEG 1 PHoNE , 
M I 

"CR 
9041 (Appll,:ml Filc) - 0 'oun1(s'") ____ _ 

INVOLVED VEHICLES 
'--,---

VEHfPI..ATEP 

YEAR 

1998 

NARRATIVES 

PRIMARY NAARA.TIVE ---.--'-~ 

[n Summary: I 
Richard Gilbert Sr resides at 2812 S Highland Ave Berwyn, It 60402 and suffets frDm I 

, Subject Richard related that he dDes not drive due to his cDndition The vehicle listed Dn the application belongs I 
to his son who resides at the same location and drives him places that he needs to go Richard wnnts the signs placed in front 1 
of lhe residence for convenience There is a two car garage at the above location which his son uses to park his work van 
Richard related that on stTeet parking is limited in the evening hours 

Mr Gilberts handicapped placard expired 07106 and therefore he does not meet the city requirements for handicapped signs 
at this time. 

Assigned also noted that there are currently handicapped signs in frDnt Df 2808 and 2810 S Highland Ave which belong to 
his neighbon; .. 

Due to Mr Gilbert not meeting the city requirements for the handicapped signs at this time and his son wanting the signs for 
convenience, this officer feels that this application should be denied at this time. 

Nothing further to report at this ti:;m::.e", ___ T _____ ,-____ _ 

~$;~~ 1 R~~_'_R ____ . _" ____ .• 
I REPORTING OFFICER 

SCHWANDERLlK, MARK 



TH.E CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 

CITY OF BERWYN - AFFIDAVIT FOR HANDICAP SIGN 

(Name of Handicapped Person) (Address of Handicapped Person) 

!2;e..h A/L/J j... (];~he~:J/l." _ :of • ...... r _ • 

(Name of Applicant) (phone Number of Handicapped Person) 

I hereby affirm that the information provided is true and correct, and it shall be prohibited and 
unlawful for any person to file a sworn affidavit which said person knows to be false or believes 
to be false, 

MAY 1 ~, 2008 
(Date) 

PHYSICIANS STATEMENT 
PLEASE ProNT NATURE OF PATIENT'S HANDICAP 

, .. \I~\ 

i, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE PHYSICAL CONDITION OFTHE ABOVE NAMED "HANDICAPPED 
PERSON" CONSTITUTES HIM/HER A HANDICAPPED PERSON AS DEFINED UNDER THE STATUTORY 
PROVISiON PAR 1·[59 I (Physically Handicapped Person - Every person who has permanently lost the use of 
a leg or both legs or an arm or both anns or ,my combination thereof, or any person \vho is so severely disabled as 
to be un(]ble to move without the aid of crutches 01 a wheelchair) 

~~~~'------~~----------
(Print - Address of Physician) 

{Signature of -pil'ys~i~ - (i?I;isi~ia!;s'Ph~n~ #) il::iat~)") 

******'fd:********,****'~:******'~****fl'******************'1:******'f.'*'**~I:**''r****.**** 

Handicapped State Plate # Vehlele Tag #j:1 '7.1 (p /Year 07 -;::l)8' 
't I 

Regular State Plate; .. Handicap State Card # jF t' 2<5'7 s' '1 ~ ) 
• ** H** ,"**.",;",****:.'**" ':";'H * * * ** '* * *,****.** •• *H'" *" '*** '**'''', **', *J';;i*~,]*~'}* Zlf-X p, 01 0(, 
YOU MUST HAVE A HANDICAP STATE PLATE OR CARD TO PARK YOUR VEHICLE ' 
IN A HANDICAPPED PARJ<ING SPACE. 



ILLINOIS SECRETARY OF STATE 
HANDICAPPED PARKING - RECIPIENT INQUIRY 05/15/0B 

NAME GILBERT,RICHARD, TELEPHONE 
ADDR 2B12 HIGHLAND AVE DRIVERS LC# -
CITY BERWYN IL 60402 REC STATUS INDIVIDUAL 

COMMENTS PERMANENT 
DOB .... ,." ..• 
GSD uu/OO/OOOO GBR GSW MALE/FEMALE M 
LAST TYPE ACTION RC LAST TYPE ACTION DATE 12131/03 PRT-STAT NO 
LAST OPR ID NSS ACTIVE CARDS 01 DOC CARD NO F193B9 ALLOC I 1 
CARD NUM CARD STATUS ISSUE DATE EXP DATE METHOD MICROFILM NO 

FAC CODE ALLOC DATE 

F193B9 CURRENT 12/31/03 07/06 MAIL-IN 
I 1 

S2350 LOST 02l0B/02 07106 MAIL-IN. 
02108/02 

K48578 RENEWED 09/14/9B 04/02 MAIL-IN. 
II. 



Michael A. O'lJonll'Q!\ 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Michael Phelan 
Sixth Ward Alderman 
(708) 749-4342 
6thward@Berwyn-il.gov 

6700 West 26th Street Berwyn, lllinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788·2675 
www.berwyn·ilgov 

August 20, 2008 

Honorable Mayor Michael A. O'Connor and 
Members ofthe Berwyn City Council 

RE: Handicap Sign No. 570 
1531 S. Scoville Avenue 

Mayor and Members of the City Council, 

I hereby concur with the investigating officer's recommendation in the attached Handicap 
application to Approve the request 

Sincerely, 

Michael Phelan 
6tl1 Ward Alderman 



We S.etVe ahd Protect 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

BERWYN 
VE1hl12E BEPARTMENT 

6401 West 31 st Street 
Berwyn, lIIinois 60402-1??S3 

Phone (708) 79S-5600 J 

I'=ax (708) 795-5627 Emel'Qency 9-1"1 

HONORABLE MAYOR MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR AND 
MEMBERS OF THE BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

BERWYN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
LOCAL ORINANCE DIVISION 

August 19, 2008 

~ 

= = = 

'..£j 

v 
RE: HANDICAPPED SIGN FOR: Margaret Capilupo #57~ 

w 
ATTACHED IS A COpy OF REQUEST FOR A HANDICAPPED SIGN 11'0 Bt: 
ERECTED IN THE CITY OF BERWYN PARKWAY IN FRONT OF: 

1531 S. Scoville Avenue 

PLEASE REVIEW THE ATTACHED PAPERWORK AND ADVISE. 

cc: ALDERMAN Michael Phelan 
--~~~~~==~-------



(]3erwya 
CFofice (Departtnent 

6401 West31 J1 Street 
Benvyn, Illinois 60402~0733 

Phone (70B) 795·5600 
(Fax) 795·5627 Emergency 9·1·1 

HANDICAPPED PARKING SIGN REQUEST & REPORT 

To: Mayor Michael O'Connor 
and Members of City Council 

From: Berwyn Police Department 
Local Ordinance Divisi~ 

"" 
E:: 

Date: 08-19-2008 Application #: 570 G"> 

Name of Applicant: Margaret Capilupo 
_.J . 

Address: 1531 S Scoville Ave Berwyn, IL 60402 

Telephone: 

Nature of Disability: 

Information YES NO Information YES NO 

Doctor's Note/Affidavit: !Zl 0 Interviewed: !Zl 0 

Owner's Support Letter: 0 !Zl Handicap Plates: !Zl 0 

Garage: !Zl Wheelchair: 

Driveway: 0 !Zl Walker: 

Off Street: 0 !Zl Cane: 

On Street: !Zl 0 Oxygen: 

Meets Requirements: ~ D Report Number: 08-11433 

Recommendation: APPROVE ~ DENY D Reporting Officer: M. Schwanderlik #252 

Comments: 

Alderman: Ward: 



Berwyn Police Department - Incident RepOli 
(708) 795·5600 6401 West 31st Street Berwyn,lL 60402 

STATION COMPLAINT UCR 1 DESCRIPTION INCIDENT' I DOT' 

9041 (Applicant File) Applicant File Og·1l433 
WHEN REPORTED I LOCATION OF OFFENSE (HOUSE NO", STREET NAME) HOW RECEIVED 

0811912008 07:49 1531 S SCOVILLEAV BERWYN,lL60402 Rlldio 
TIME OF OCCURRENCE I STATUS CODE STATUS DATE 

081191200807:49 
§ -~ 
:S INVOLVED ENTITIES 

• • 
] 

NAME 
J 006 I AGE j ADDRESS 

CAPlLUPO, MARGARET 1531 S SCOVILLE AV BERWYN,lL 60402 
SEX I nACE I HOT I WOT I HAIR 17"" I PHONE 

F 5'9" 
UCR j 'TYPE I RE.l.A TED EVENT # 

Reporting Party 

INVOLVED VEHICLES 

VEHIPLATE , 
1 S~TE I TYPE 

INVOLVEMENT I VlN. 
r 

YEAR I MAKE I MODEl COLOR I COMMENTS 

2000 Blue, Dark 

NARRATIVES 

PRIMARY NARRATIVE 

In Summary: 

Margaret Capilupo resides at 1531 S Scoville Ave. Mrs Capilupo owns the above listed address 

where she resides alone. Mrs. Capilupo su 

Mrs. Capilupo has a hard time walking short to moderate distances without 

becoming short of breath. Mrs Capilupo currently 

Alo spoke with Mrs Capilupo who is requesting the handicapped signs in front of her residence because she does not 

have a garage to park her vehicle in and the on street parking is very limited at times because of families in the area with 

numerous vehicles. Mrs Capilupo related that she often has to park near the end of the block and walk with her groceries to 

her residence and that she lives alone with nobody to help heL 

Alo noted the above address is a single family residence with no garage or off street parking. Ala also noted the on street 

parking to be limited at the time of this report. 

Mrs Capilupo meets the state requirements for being handicapped and meets the city requirements for handicapped 

parking signs .. For the above reasons this officer feels that this application should be approved at this time. 

Nothing further to report. 
REPORTING OFFlCER 

SCHWANDERLlK, MARK I 
STAR' 

252 
I REVIEWER I STAR' 



THE CITY OF BERVlYN ILLINOIS 

CITY OF BERWYN - AFFIDAVIT FOR HANDICAP SIGN 

PLEASE PRINT 

/.>31 ScoViLLE Mr=>BtE~w>ti 
(Address of Handicapped Person) , -(Name of Handicapped Person) 

" •. '< • 

(Name of Applicant) (phone Number of Handicapped Pors(,n) 

****************************************************************************~*'** 

I hereby aflirm that the information provided is true and con'ect, and it shall be prohibited and 
unlawful for any person to file a sworn affidavit which said person knows to be false or believes 
to be false. 

(Date) 

PHYSICIANS STATEMENT 
PLEASE PRINT NATURE OF PATIENT'S HANDICA~ 

" I 

, = 

-" ,'b"''''-r.d/\<"..J.../ -==-:-c===:: 
I, HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE PHYSICAL CONDITION OF THE ABOVE NAMED "HANDICA'.'I-bU 
PERSON" CONSTITUTES HIM/HER A HANDICAPPED PERSON AS DEFINED UNDER THE SrATUlORY 
PROVISION PAR 1- 1 59 1 (physically Handicapped Person - Every person who h., permanently lost th lise or 
a leg or both legs or an arm or both arms or any combination thereof, or any person who is so sevel ely di mbled as 
to be unable to move without the aid of crutches or a wheelchair) 

'I 
• 1 ) 

(Siilniiure of Physician) 1Physicia~s Phone #) (Dat(,) 

************************************************************************** 
Handicapped State Plate # _____ _ Vehicle Tag # .90'11 

""Regular State Plate #~~ .. ~.---",,,.,,,_~,~, __ _ Handicap State Card # It f $;).167 __ 

****************************************************************************Irk*** 
YOU MUST HAVE A HANDICAP STATE PLATE OR CARD TO P ARl( YO UR VEHtCL E 
IN A HANDICAPPED PARI(ING SPACE. 

I\~' " 
_ Ii 



/ 
'JJ Girl Scouts. 

JUly 14, 2008 

Thomas Pavlik. City Clerk 
City of Berwyn 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Re: Request for Solicitation Permit 

Gi rl Scout:. of Gre.3.tl~r 
Chic:ago i:!nd l~orthwest 'tndiana 
- Lidla Service Center 
2400 GQden A'Jenu(:!, Suite 400 
Lisle, lL 60[)32-3933 
T 630 51. 5900 I 630 514 
5999 
www.girlscoutsgcnwi.org 

On behalf of the Girl Scouts who are members of our council and residents of your community we 
respectfully request permission to solicit our Girl Scout products in your municipality as follows: 

Fall Product Program 

- (Nuts and Candies) Annual Cookie Sale Program Annual Booth Cookie Sales 
Order taking dates: Order Taking dates: January 2 .. 3"'1; 9-10-11 
October 1-19, ;W08 January 1-25, 2009 Febnuary 20-21-22; February 

27 - March 1,2009 
November 15-30, 2008 February 14 - March 2, 2009 Permission solicited from 

Product Delivery and Money Product Delivery and Money looal merchants 
Collection Collection 

Attached is an information sheet that provides you with general information If the attached 
information is sufficient, please check the appropriate box below and e-mail (or fax) this letter 
back to me as soon as possible. If you require an application or require other specific 
documentation please fill out the section below 

If you require a Certificate of Insurance, please check your records for the most current certificate 
on file Our certificate of insurance is automatically sent to you directly from our insurance agent 
on or about january 1 each year. 

If you have questions or need additional information, e-mail our Program Manager at 
ckeyser@girlscoutsgcnwLorg or call me at (630) 544·5975 

Thank you for your support and for helping our Girls Grow Strong 

Christine Keyser 
Program Manager 

Please check the appropriate box below and return this letter to the address above: o The attached information is sufficient and your request is approved as submitted o Please complete and return the enclosed application o We also require the follOWing documents: 



APPLICATION FOR NON-COMMERCIAL SOLlCITIATION 
Not for Profit Organization 

Name of Organization: 

Phone: 
Permanent Address: 

Name of Person In Charge of ProgramSales: 

Name of Person responsible to sign agreement: 

During soliCitation this person can be contacted: 

Purpose of the non-commercial solicitation: 

Solicitation Oates: 

. ~,; , 

flours otsolicitation 
ordinance code 
Description of Vehicles used In solicitation: 
Last date of previous requests: 

Has the permit ever been reVOked? If yes, when. 

Has anyone listed on this application ever been 
conVicted of a commission of a felony under 
the laws of the State of Illinois or any other 
state or federal law of the United States? 
If yes, whenc 

Girl Scouts of Greater Chicago 
Northwest Indiana - Lisle 
Service Cenler 
(630) 544-5900 
2400 Ogden Avenue, Suite 400, 
lisle, IL 60532 
Christine Keyser, 
Program Manager 
(630)544-5975 
Sarah Durbin 
Vp, Regional Service Center 
(630) 544-5930 
Monday-Friday 9am-5pm 
Same address, same phone 
Annual Girl Scout program sales 
Nuts and Candy for the fall 
product program; 
Girl Scout Cookies for the 
cookie prog ram 
Fall product Program: 
Oct 1·19, 2008 (Order taking 
period) 
Nov 16·30, 2007 (delivery 
period) 
Cookie Program: 
,jan 1-25 - March 1,2009 
(Order taking and Booth sales) 
Feb 14-Mar 2, 2009 (delivery 
period) 
Booth Cookie Program 
Weekends: 
Jan 2-3-4 and 9·10-11, 2009 
Feb 20·21·22. Feb 27-March 1. 
2009 
Products are paid for upon 
delivery-not in advance 
Arrangements for cooKie booths 
are made directly with local 
merchants. Product is sold and 
paid for at the COoKie booth site 
As described in village or city 

None 
October 2007·March 2008 

No 

No 



/ ~ tJltlt igI It" "f QI" [lt11tIJ1t" 
MONSIGNOFl JOHN FARRELL COUNCIL, No" 4200 

August 12, 2008 

City of Berwyn 
Mr" Thomas Pavlik 
City Clerk 
6700 West 26th St. 
Berwyn, II 60402-0701 

Dear Mr. Pavlik 

PO" Box 426 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402-2502 

Meels 
FIr!11 lind lhbd 

Wodl11!9dny 

Once again the time has come to respectfully request permission to 
conduct our "M/H TOOTSIE ROLL DRIVE" in your area. On Friday, Saturday 
and Sunday, September 19,20, and 2~, 2008 the Msgr. John Farrell 
Council #4200 (formerly Berwyn Council) and their families, friends 
and volunteers will be distributing "TOOTSIE ROLLS" in return for 
donations for their ANNUAL MENTALLY HANDICAPPED DRIVE, with proceeds 
benefitting children and adults with mental disabilities and some 
physically challenged as well" 

We are grateful for the help that you have always given to the Knights 
of Columbus in the past, and hopefully to continue to do so again. 

Sincer~ly yours , 

c4~~Q~ 
PGK Willia~~iva 
Chairman, H/H Drive William P. Feeley 

Grann Kni~ht and Co-Chairman 



ThE\. City of Berwyn 

/ \ \ 
\ 

Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26"' Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788·2567 

www,benvyn~il gOY 

Date: August 14, 2008 

To: Members ofthe City Council 

From: Mayor Michael A, O'COlIDor 

Re: Fitzgerald's Night Club 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Fitzgerald's Night Club has requested pennission to host a mini festival and pre-party for the 
Roosevelt Road Summer Spectacular Street Fair on Friday, August 22, 2008. The event is 
titled the "Dog Days Jamboree!" and is sponsored by 93XRT. Doors open at 6:00pm with live 
music outside from 8:00pm to 11 :30pm and also live music inside the club from 9:15pm to 
2:00am. 

Since the request was mistakenly submitted to our office after the deadline for submissions for 
the August 12 City Cowlcil Meeting, I have granted them pennission to hold the event I 
would appreciate your approvaL 

Sincerely, 

!ludUl&{l{)~J~-
Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 



Page 1 of 1 

Thomas J. Pavlik 

From: Wilma L Salvatore 

Sent: Wednesday, August 20, 2008 5:03 PM 

To: Nona N. Chapman (External Contact); Santiago Ramos; Mark Weiner; Michele D. Skryd; 
Thomas J. Day (External Contact); Michael J Phelan; Robert J Lovero; Joel Erickson; 
Thomas J Pavlik 

Subject: Fitzgerald's Night Club 

Attachments: fitzgeralds .pdf 

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen, 

Mayor Michael A. O'Connor asked that I forward this document to you. Since Fitzgerald's turned in their 
request ofter the deadline for August 12 Council Meeting submissions, and because there being no problems 
in the past, Mayor O'Connor approved their request. 

Through my error, though, you did not receive this email and attachment in a timely manner and I ask that 
you accept my apology. 

Regards, Wilma 

Wilma Salvatore 
Office of Mayor Michael A. O'Connor 
City of Berwyn 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402-0701 
708.788.2660 ext. 3201 
708.788.2567 fax 

8/2112008 



;;E ICE R 
5801 W Cermak Rd, 2M Flo 

Cicero IL 60B( 
Ph (70B) 863-60( 
Fax (708) 863-891 

www cicerochamberol 
'CIIAM6I::R OF COMMEHCf:. & INDI)$ ',"> , 

August 21, 2008 

Mayor Michael O'Connor 
City Council 
City of Berwyn 
6700 W 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Honorable Mayor and City Council; 

We are keeping a tradition alive!! The Houby Festival is celebrating its 40'h anniversary, 
The Cicero Chamber of Commerce & ~ndustry formally requests p.rmission for the 
International Houby Festival and Para,je, The Festival will begin 0' Friday, October 3,2008 
on Cermak Road, throughout the TaWil of Cicero and the City of Berwyn The Festival will end 
on Sunday. October 5th with the 40th Annual Houby Parade, The ~'arade starts at 561n Court in 
Cicero and travels along Cermak Road to Riverside Drive. Berwyn Main Street will sponsor a 
CZElch Oasis, The Oasis will feature traditional Czech entertainment, food and a beer garden 

We are asking that the City of Berwyn support the festival by providing the services of the 
Police and Public Works departments, As you know, Berwyn leaders have been kind in their 
support of this festival since its inceptie,n, As this year's festival coincides with state and 
national elections, we are anticipating 11 high level of interest and p 3rticipation" 

A certificate of insurance will follow, Thank you in advance for your continued interest and 
support, 

Sincerely, 

v1aL/lu~t-
Mary £~=dez ::.::> 
Executive Director 
Cicero Chamber of Commerce & Industry 

BUsmess Government & Cor"munily ,BUILDING A BE"TER CICERO 



~RY DOMINICK 
PRESIDENT 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS. 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

·' ... ,-" t,o 

.:, .. ~\)\!~' ;~f:"" ,~, ;1!'-:llii'i:&~"" 
." ... ~.A .ftl1 .. ~. ,!' • .• .JI . , ... 
;1.' ." ,A.,. ,'1'>,/ ~,," 1~'."iIli ' I • ' ... .-;~ ..... .' .... ' 'i'q," ' '.. (' ,;; I. 

,~:, . I'~: ' •. ''1/ ' ,,: .. tlo~ ,,. "_,41ft,, 11.13 ....... 

. q ~/)~ o/{5~co 
4937 W. 25"H STFtEET • CICERO, ILI .. INOIS 60804 

(709) 658·3600 EXT. 211 1. 214 8< 254 • FAX (70E) 666-0646 

RESOLUTION 

the Cicero Chamber o/Commerce and Industry will hold the 
4(Jh AnNual HOl.,rby Parade on Sunday, October 5th

, 2008; and 

The Cicero Board o/Trustees vbted to grant permission for the 
ajoresaidactiviJyon Tuesday, Mi2JI131h, 2008; and 

the parade participants will begin at 56'h Court andproceed 
west on Cermak Road to Riverside DriVi1 in Berwyn, 11; and 

the Cicero Polic,e Department will have officers controlling 
traffic on the scheduled route with speCial attention to major 
intersections. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the President and Bc·ard of Trustees o/the 
Town o/Cicero to grcmt pemlissfon/or this annual event and 
extend to all par#cipants in the Houby Parade, our best wishes 
for good weather and a most successful day. 



Mi.chf.lel A. O'Connor 

~ M3r 

/\ A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 7SS·2660 Fax: (70B) 7SB·2675 

www.berwyn·jl,gov 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Date: ____________ _ 

Mayor O'Connor & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Block party __ 3.::::::-s.1-""Oc.:::D ___ block of _-L...m-,a..~f-:.I~=-__ _ 
Honorable Mayor O'Connor & Members of Council: 

Attached, please find a petition for a block party on the ___ 3=-.!..-1 0:::::...>0",,-__ block 

The residents request permission to hold the event on _--,,$,,"<'t.2::...+~' .:::5,=-=~~p~b~ __ _ 

With a rain date of ___ 5_1-1.-=-1'\",-,,-, ....:5='=~"IF-"._~-'-___ .• We are aware of the ordinance 

regarding block parties and ""ill abide by all of them. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Yours truly, ,d£F 
-

Contact person is: /lbrk I. f2er 
Address is: 3139 mo..p/Q.; 

Phone number is: 

****PLEASE RETURN 3-4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED**** 



WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE _3.::.....:..I-=O-=()_~ BLOCK OF ma..e\e..., 
DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON -",~c:.::..+'-'·-r-'=5e"=-ffc..:.·..::b=--___ _ 

BETWEEN THE HOURS OF )fa..(V'1. AND q ptVl . OUR RAIN DATE IS Sun, 5ep. 1-
ALL REFUSE MUST BE PLACED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL** 
================================================================= 
N.AME ADDRESS 
==============~================================================== 

._~1.l_(?L/Yl~L?::: ____ . _______________ _ 

._~_J,(_~~ ____ ~ ______________ _ 

.3.u_~ _______ ~_ __L~ ____________ . __ 

6(j~ ----------------~ --------------------

__ Zll~~ _______ ~~-~-------------_-.----
3/v [ frl fi PLE.. -----.. __ .. ----_ ....... __ .. _------------_ ..... _ .. __ .. 

3_16_&.. ___ ~-------
_2L~ __ L __ J~~-------_.-------------_-
__ 3Xi3 __ .l11p_LG ____________________ _ 

3/3 5 M I.e-----.,.-----------t?::ft'------------------------.-----
.. -li-Ji-i!l[~.:r_k-:-----~.----------.. ----

.-------".----~-----.... -----.. ---------~,- .. ,-----... ~,---.. 

. --~..,- ... ~-,--------...... ---.. -... --.. -.. ----.. --.. ---~-.. ---.. --.. 

~---... - .. ----------.. -.... -,-.~-----..... --... ---.. --- ... --........ ----
• ____ •• _w, _________ ~ ___ ... ______ .. __ .. ____ ~ __ .. ______ ... ___ .. _ 

.-.. ,-.... -.... ----.. -----.. -~--.. -... --------.. ---.. ------.... -.. -.. -

._ .. ____ .. ___ .n_~ __ .. ___ ... __ .. ___________ ,_ ..... __ ... ___ ~ ______ _ 

--------------~-------.... -----... --,-..... -- .. --.~---- ... -----'--

~---------------------------~------------------------

~-... -------~-------------- ... -----~"'---.. ---------------
'"---~,---~------------------------------------ ... ------



Mi.dlf.l.eJ A. 'Connor 

/ \,y" 
A Century of Progress with Pride 

6700 West 26 th Street Berwyn. illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 78B-2675 
www.berwyn-ilgov 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Date: g- II - at;? 

Mayor O'Connor & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Block Party __ :2--,---,,81_0_0 ___ block of __ M_t'_""_o...:.>J-,-,,, h'-'----___ _ 

Honorable Mayor O'Connor & Members of Council: 

Attached, please find a petition for a block party on the __ ..:::2";:"::@O-{),--O ___ block 

Of Wf'10'14 t, 

The residents request permission to hold the event on _.5':::::..::"c.::~c:c-,-/<t7/?-y_....:..J4,-,4"'J.;:lA",j,,-,--( --,3~i 

With a rain date of H()~J~(y, 5<'e t . i 
/' 

regarding block parties and will abide by all of them. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Yours truly, 

Contact person is: 

Address is: 

Phone number is: 

. We are aware ofthe ordinance 

****PLEASE RETURN 3-4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED**** 



WETHEUNDERSIGNEDRESIDENTSOFTHE 2800 . BLOCKOF L~)I"''''o,,'i L1 

DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSroN TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON S:1"'''fc.,y If4.J 4.51 '6) 
/ 

BE1WEEN THE HOURS OF CJ f1 (-f AND tt f/j . OUR RAIN DATE IS l1/)~d<1''; :)1"1". i 
/ 

ALL REFUSE MUST BE PLACED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL** 
:==:=:=========::===:======:====:========:=========:============= 
!'lAME ADDRESS 
----------------------~======================-

__ ~~_~_~ _______ ~~~q_~j_t.l ______ _ 

"r25.'3.Lif: _____ j)JP/.!lJJ!J.tJP-L __ . __ 

;.JJfr-T-~_;!;!;J-Dk)tL6. 
__________ .. '_ .. _____ OH _______________ _ 

___ ~~Hz._.w.~~~:.h _______ _ 
_____ 2tJ3.J_1.. ____ 5 ~-~.l 
_ ~9 __ WY.~~ ____ 1/. 

./ 
...2_ ~ Jf:. __ W-LIC1Jd_aE:!::::-::. ___ •. : 
_2:.8_:?::a_~1R.J~)frt:f ______ _ 
d--3~ u//fN7)jt//JJJ 

,~"~3~~3.~~~~~[i1efi~~;j 
_______ 4~!ti_1-f!L~ 
________ ~p:31 ____ (t)~~ 
_~ _____ J..c:J.i£ ____ u..~~ 
. ________ 2~_~J._.JdL&:.ibc~, 
________ s:6~;) ___ iJ]~-<9Y.2!:L 

.------__ 2.82I-___ {1".bJKma6 __ . 
----------?;g.l~---S~-~~Q~ 

.-~---------------------------,--- .... --------~ 



CIGARS AND STRIPES 

August 22, 2008 

Hammerhed.Entlnc. 

6715 W Ogden 
Berwyn. Il60402 
Phone (708) 484,,1043 
\WNJ hammerhed.com 

This is a letter to request a permit for outdoor entertainment on Wednesday, Sept 4th, 2008 at 
Cigars and Stripes. 

Cigars and Stripes would like to hold our weekly Open Mic Comedy Show outdoors in our parking 
lot, under an enclosed tent located east of the building. 

Comedy Show will take place from 7pm till llpm. Outdoor entertainment will completely subside 
by 11:00pm. 

Cigars and Stripes would like to request a license for patrons to remain on the lot until 12am for 
this event. 

I think my neighbors will be attending the show as well and I don't for see any complaints. 

NOTE: (No live music ,justStand Up Comics) 

ThankY,~t4 __ ' ) 

" ,~ £;::7 
Ronn Vrhel 


	1a
	2a
	3a
	4a



